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Officers and Board Members 

General Officers 
Moderator . . . ... . .... . .............. . Carl Cheshier 
Assistant Moderator . ...... . ................ Tim York 
Clerk ................. . ............. Keith Burden 
Assistant Clerk ........................ John Hibbard 
Executive Secretary-Treasurer .......... Melvin Worthington 

2001 
Alabama: Rick Cosh 
Arizona: George Harvey, Jr. 
Arkansas: David Joslin 
Atl. Canada: Fred Hanson 
California: Doice McAlister 
Colorado: Mark Thomas 
Florida: Tim Owen 
Georgia: William Smith 
Idaho: Earl Jenkins 
Illinois: Ernie Lewis 

General Board 
2002 

Indiana: Chris Ooy 
Kansas: Dole McCoy 
Kentucky: James Patton 
First Louisiana: Ron Porker 
Mid-Ario~tic: Joy Baines 
Mexico: Luis Felipe Tijerina 
Michigan: Gene Norris 
Mississippi: J. L Gore 
Missouri: Nathan Ruble 
New Jersey: William Brown 
New Mexjco: Tim Byers 

Executive Committee 
Moderator: Carl Cheshier, P. 0. Box 7208, Moore, OK 73153 

2003 
North Carolina: Jim Marcum 
Northeast Assoc: Jim Nason 
Northwest Assoc: Brent Nix 
Ohio: Delmar Sparks 
O~ohomo: Ernest Harrison, Jr. 
South Carolina: Sigbee Dildo 
Tennessee: Charles Thigpen 
Texas: Keith Woody 
Virginia: Glen Johnson 
West Virginia: Carl Vollonce 

Assistant Moderator: Tim York, 12708 Copley Rood, Ashland, KY 41102 
Clerk: Keith Burden, P. 0. Box 183, Locust Grove, OK 7 4352 
Assistant Clerk: John Hibbard, 928 Yellow Brick Rood, Modesto, CA 95351 -4449 

2001 
David Joslin (Ark.) 
Doice McAlister (Calif.) 
Rick Cosh (Ala.) 

2002 
J. L. Gore (Miss.) 
Gene Norris (Mich.) 
Nathan Ruble (Mo.) 

2003 
Ernest Harrison, Jr. (Oklo.) 
Glen Johnson (Vo.) 
Charles Thigpen (Tenn.) 

Bible College Trustees 
Chairman: Gory Fry, 401 South Main, Mountain Grove, MO 65711 
President: Tom Malone, 3606 West End Avenue, Nashville, TN 37205 

2002 
Archie Ratliff (N.C.) 
Lorry Montgomery (Go.) 
Gene Outland (Ill.) 

2004 
Richard Bowers (Ala.) 
Lorry Powell (Tenn.) 
Steve Ashby (Ind.) 
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2006 
Richard Barnes (Vo.) 
Gory Fry (Mo.) 
A. C. Allen (S.C.) 

Foreign Missions Board 

Chairman: Doug Uttle, 1103 East L Street, Russellville, AR 72801 
Diredor: James Forlines, P. 0. Box 5002, Antioch, TN 37011-5002 

2002 2004 
Bill Jones (Texas) David Shores (Ill.) 
David Williford (Flo.) Terry Eagleton (Tenn.) 
Bill Von Winkle (Miss.) Sherwood Lee (S.C.) 

Home Missions Board 
Chairman: Earl Hendrix, 88 Blackstock Rood, Inmon, SC 29349 
Director: Lorry Powell, P. 0. Box 5002, Antioch, TN 37011-5002 

2001 
Matt Upton (Calif.) 
Earl Hendrix (S.C.) 
J. D. Norris (Vo.) 

2003 
Ronnie Adkins (Tenn.) 
Loyd Locklear (Mich.) 
Jim Puckett (Oklo.) 

Board of Retirement 

Chairman: Wayman Fields, P. 0. Box 17 4, Millport, AL 3557 6 
Diredor: William Evans, P. 0. Box 5002, Antioch, TN 37011-5002 

2001 
Bobby Bowers (S.C) 
Jock Daniel (Go.) 
Wayman Fields (Ala.) 

2003 
William Ferguson (Mich.) 
Roger Harwell (Mo.) 
James Lowe (Ohio) 

2006 
Randy Wilson (Oklo.) 
Doug Uttle (Ark.) 
Milton Worthington (Mich.) 

2005 
Harold Blankenship (N.C) 
Robert Thebeau (Mo.) 
Lynn Wood (Oklo.) 

2005 
Ron Barber (Oklo.) 
Henry Von Kluyve (N.C.) 
Milburn Wilson (Texas) 

Free Will Baptist Foundation Board 

Chairman: Henry Von Kluyve, P. 0. Box 568, Beaufort, NC 28516 
Diredor: William Evans, P. 0. Box 5002, Antioch, TN 37011 -5002 

2001 
Bobby Bowers (S.C.) 
Jock Daniel (Go.) 
Wayman Fields (Ala.) 

2003 
James Lowe (Ohio) 
Roger Harwell (Mo.) 
William Ferguson (Mich.) 

Plus these directors of national agencies: 

2005 
Ron Barber (Oklo.) 
Henry Von Kluyve (N.C.) 
Milburn Wilson, (Texas) 

James Forlines, Foreign Missions Dept. Alton Loveless, S.S. I Church Training Dept. 
Lorry Powell, Home Missions Deportment Marjorie Workman, WNAC 
Tom Dooley, Moster's Men Deportment Melvin Worthington, Executive Office 
Tom Malone, Free Will Baptist Bible College 
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Sunday School and Church Training Board 

Chairman: David Sutton, 1412 East Main, Moore, OK 73160 
Director: Alton loveless, P. 0. Box 17306, Nashville, TN 37217 

2002 
David Sutton (Oklo.) 
David Reece {Vo.) 
Nuel Brown (Calif.) 

2004 
Will Harmon (Ark.) 
Brion Hampton (Tenn.) 
Michael Waddell {Tenn.) 

2006 
Edwin Hayes (Ohio) 
Dennis Wiggs (N.C.) 
Jeff Crabtree (Canada) 

Master's Men Board 

Chairman: Wayman Roy, 3705 South 65th West Avenue, Tulsa, OK 7 41 07 
Director: Tom Dooley, P. 0. Box 5002, Antioch, TN 37011 -5002 

2001 2003 2005 
Jerry Atwell {Miss.) 
Johnny Fowlkes (Ark.) 
Wayman Roy (Oklo.) 

Cliff Donoho (Tenn.) 
Oarence lewis (Tenn.) 
Thurmon Pate, Jr.(Tenn.) 

Mike Mounts (Ohio} 
Don Neal (Ind.) 
Ernie Taylor {Ill.) 

Commission for Theological Integrity 
Chairman: leroy Forlines, 3606 West End Avenue, Nashville, TN 37205 
2001 Paul Harrison (Tenn.) 2004 Jeff Manning (N.C.) 
2002 leroy Forlines (Tenn.) 2005 Daryl Ellis (Ill.) 
2003 Matt Pinson (Go.) 

Historical Commission 

Chairman: Thomas Marberry, P. 0. Box 810, Pharr, TX 78577 
2001 Thomas Marberry (Texas) 2004 Robert Picirilli (Tenn.) 
2002 Jock Williams (Tenn.) 2005 Dorrell Holley (Tenn.) 
2003 Paul Kennedy (Calif.) 

Media Commission 

Chairman: Steve Faison, P. 0. Box 295, Cedar Springs, GA 31732 
2001 Ron Hunter (Tenn.) 2004 Michael Jones {S.C.) 
2002 Bill Gordner (Tenn.) 2005 Doug Kite {N.C.) 
2003 Steve Faison (Go.) 

Music Commission 
Chairman: Randy Sawyer, 124 General Pemberton Street, Stanley, NC 28164 
2001 Scott Bullman (Oklo.) 2004 Randy Sawyer (N.C.) 
2002 Douglas Uttle (Ark.) 2005 Chris Truett (N.C.) 
2003 Bill Gordner (Tenn.) 
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Proceedings 
The 64th annual session of the National Association of Free Will 

Baptists met July 16-20, 2000, at the Anaheim Convention Center in 
Anaheim, California. The theme was "Witnesses in the World." Randy 
Sawyer served as the music coordinator: Jamie Patrick served as organ­
ist, Jerry Carraway as pianist and Chris Truett as orchestra conductor: 

Sunday School - July 16, 2000 

Trent Walley led the congregation in singing ''To God Be The Glory" 
and "Thou Art Worthy." Brent Nix called the Sunday School session to 
order at 10:00 a.m., welcomed the attendees and led in prayer: 

The Jenks Road Quartet from Jenks, Oklahoma, sang " I Am 
Redeemed." Paul Kennedy from Pioneer, California, was introduced 
as the adult teacher. The lesson topic was "The Curse of Self­
Interest." The scripture text was Mark 9:33-50. The session con­
cluded at 10:50 a.m . Brother Nix closed the session in prayer. 

Sunday Morning -July 16, 2000 

The morning worship service was called to order at 11 :00 a.m. 
as Trent Walley led the congregation in singing ''A New Name In 
Glory" and " I'm So Glad Jesus Lifted Me." Brent Nix gave the wel­
come and led in prayer. 

The congregation sang "He Touched Me." Stanley Outlaw 
called for the convention offering and led in prayer. The Jenks Road 
Quartet sang "He Will Take Me All The Way." 

Ron Helms, pastor from Southgate, Michigan, was introduced 
as the speaker. Before he spoke, the Jenks Road Quartet sang "I 
Believe In A Hill Called Mount Calvary." 

Pastor Helms read Ads 1 :8 and Ads 8:1-5 for a sermon text, 
led in prayer, then spoke on the subject " Can He Get A Witness?" 
Clayton Hampton prayed the benediction. 

Sunday Evening - July 16, 2000 

At 7:00 p.m. Brad Williams and a praise team led the congrega­
tion in singing a medley of hymns including ''When We All Get To 
Heaven/Vv'on't It Be Wonderful There?/ Amazing Grace/Beulah Land." 

Legacy of Praise, a quartet from Tennessee, sang " I Want To Stroll 
Over Heaven" and "One More Chance To Change The World." 
Doice McAlister welcomed the congregation and led in prayer: 

Brad Williams led in the singing of another medley of hymns 
which included "When The Roll Is Called Up Yonder/Do Lord/1'11 Fly 
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-------------------------------...... ------------
Away/What A Day That Will Be/The King Is Coming." 

California Executive Secretary Nuel Brown called for the con­
vention offering and led in prayer. As an offertory Legacy of Praise 
sang "The Fire Has No Power." 

Doice McAlister introduced Edward Cook, pastor of Oak Park FWB 
Church in Pine Bluff, Manses, to bring the evening message. Before he 
spoke, a Men's Chorale under the direction of Do ron Dwyer sang 
"Midnight Cry." 

Pastor Cook read Acts 1 0:34-48 for his sermon text and spoke 
on the subject "God Has Always Had A Witness." Do ice McAlister 
led in the dismissal prayer. 

Monday Evening - July 171 2000 
The evening worship service began at 7:00 p.m. with Daron 

Dwyer leading the congregation in singing "Glory To His Name," 
'J\t Calvary" and "Wonderful Grace of Jesus." Jay Baines wel­
comed the congregation and led in prayer. 

Clerk Keith Burden called the 64th convention of the National 
Association into official session and introduced Moderator Carl Cheshier. 

The moderator announced the appointments to four committees: 

Nominating Committee: David Joslin - Chairman (AR}, Ernest 
Harrison (OK), Mirchael Jones (SC), Gene Norris (MI}, Glen Johnson 
(VA) and Jim Marcum (NC). 

Credentials Committee: George Harvey- Chairman (AZ), William 
Smith (GA}, Tim Owen (FL), Jim Patton (KY) and Brent Nix (NW). 

Resolutions Committee: Ernie Lewis- Chairman (IL), Jack Richey (OK), 
Mike Mounts (OH), Charles Thigpen (TN) and Fred Hanson (CAN). 

Obituary Commiffee: Carl Vallance- Chairman f!N), Henry Van Kluyve 
(NC), David Sutton (OK), Ron Parker (1st LA) and Dale McCoy (KS). 

California Executive Secretary Nuel Brown brought official 
greetings to the convention from the California State Association of 
Frel Will Baptists. 

The congregation sang '~II Because Of God's Amazing Grace," 
"Grace Alone," and then Daron Dwyer led in a special prayer for all 
the pastors in attendance. 

Jay Baines called for the convention offering. Jim Fairchild led 
in prayer. The Cornerstone Quartet from Tulsa, Oklahoma, sang 
"What A Meeting In The Air." 

The Convention Choir under the direction of Thurman Lucas sang 
"The Unseen Hand." The congregation then sang "The Old Rugged 
Cross" and "Until Then." 
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Jay Baines introduced Doug King, pastor of Cramerton FWB 
Church in Cramerton, North Carolina, to bring the evening mes­
sage. The Cornerstone Quartet sang "Master, I See." 

Pastor King read Philippians 1 :27 for his scripture text and spoke 
on the subject "Evangelizing The World." Jay Baines led in the 
prayer of benediction. · 

Tuesday Evening - July 181 2000 

The congregation sang 'f\11 Hail The Power Of Jesus' Name," 
"Majesty" and "Blessed Be The Lord God Almighty" to begin the evening 
worship service. Fred Hanson welcomed the congregation, shared 
prayer requests and introduced Jeff Crabtree who offered the invocation. 

Ron Hunter introduced a special film presentation by the Media 
Commission. Trymon Messer made an appeal for financial support 
for the commission's "Raise the Standard" campaign. 

The Men's Chorale under the direction of Daron Dwyer sang an 
acappella rendition of "More Precious Than Gold" and "Stand In Awe." 
Scott Bullman then led the congregation in singing "Crown Him With 
Many Crowns," '~II Hail, King Jesus," "I'll Worship You, Almighty God" 
and "0 Come, Let Us Adore Him." 

Fred Hanson called for the convention offering. Canadian Pastor 
Oral McAffee led in prayer. A praise team sang "Covered By The Blood." 

Tim Owen, pastor of Piney Grove FWB Church in Chipley, Florida, 
was introduced as the speaker for the evening service. The praise team 
sang "The Lamb Has Overcome." 

Pastor Owen read Acts 1 :8 and Acts 2:1-4 for his sermon text 
and spoke on the subject "Why Have We No Power?" Scott Bullman 
led the congregation in singing "Have Thine Own Way Lord." Fred 
Hanson led in the benediction. 

• 

Wednesday Morning - July 191 2000 
Moderator Carl Cheshier called the meeting to order at 9:00a.m. He 

read Philippians 2:5-11, shared devotional thoughts and led in prayer. 
The clerk read the report of the Credentials Committee. A 

motion carried to receive the report and seat the delegates. 
The clerk read a partial report of the General Board. A motion 

carried to receive Item # 1 of this report. 
A motion carried to receive a partial report of the Nominating 

Committee for nominations to standing boards. 
Executive Secretary Melvin Worthington gave the report of the 

Executive Office. He presented a plaque to George Harvey, Jr., for 
15 years of service as registration coordinator for the convention. A 
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motion carried to receive the Executive Office report and adopt the 
budgets contained in the report. 

Director Tom Dooley gave the report of the Master's Men Department. 
A motion canied to receive the report and adopt the budget. 

Director T rymon Messer gave the report of the Home Missions 
Department. Plaques were presented to various Home Missionary pas­
tors whose churches have gone self-supporting during the past year. CH 
COL Kerry Steedlely, U.S. Army Chaplain, brought greetings to the con­
vention. A motion carried to receive the report and adopt the budget. 

Matt Upton (CA) was elected to fill an unexpired one-year term 
on the Home Missions Board. Robert Thebeau (MO) was elected to 
fill an unexpired five-year term on the Home Missions Board. 

Director Williams Evans gave the report of the Board of Retirement. 
Ray Lewis gave the financial report. A motion canied to receive the 
report and adopt the budget. 

Director Evans also gave the report of the Free Will Baptist 
Foundation. David Brown gave. the financial report. A motion car­
ried to receive the report and adopt the budget. 

Director James Forlines gave the report of the Foreign Missions 
Department. He presented a plaque to William Reagan (CAN) for 
serving two full terms on the Foreign Missions Board. Dave and Pat 
Franks were presented a plaque of appreciation and a monetary gift 
acknowledging their years of ministry in Brazil. Fred Warner was rec­
ognized for his years of service with the Foreign Missions Department. 
A motion carried to receive the report and adopt the budget. 

Randy Wilson (OK), Douglas Little (AR) and Milton Worthington 
(MI) were elected to six-year terms on the Foreign Missions Board. 

President Tom Malone gave the report of Free Will Baptist Bible 
College. Treasurer Tom Sass presented the financial report. A motion 
carried to receive the report and adopt the budget. 

Richard Barnes 0/A}, Gary Fry (MO) and A .C. Allen (SC) were 
elected to six-year terms on the Bible College Board of Trustees. 

The moderator declared a lunch break at 12:00 noon. 

Wednesday Afternoon- July 19,2000 
Assistant Moderator Tim York called the meeting to order at 

1 :30 p.m. He read Psalm 119:89 and led in prayer. 
Director Alton Loveless gave the report of the Sunday School 

and Church Training Department. He presented a plaque to Billy 
Hanna (GA) for serving two full terms on the Sunday School and 
Church Training Board. A motion carried to receive the report and 
adopt the budget. 
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----.... -----------------
Edwin Hayes (OH), Dennis Wiggs (NC) and Jeff Crabtree (CAN) 

were elected to six-year terms on the Sunday School and Church 
Training Board. 

Leroy Forlines gave the report of the Commission for Theological 
Integrity. Matt Pinson shared information about the commission's 
newest publication, Integrity: A Journal Of Christian Thought. A 
motion carried to receive the report and adopt the budget. 

Daryl Ellis (IL) was elected to a five-year term on the Commission 
for Theological Integrity. 

Steve Faison gave the report of the Media Commission. Com­
mission members Mirchael Jones, Ron Hunter and Bill Gardner, assist­
ed by video clips, presented information about the commission's "Raise 
the Standard" campaign. A motion carried to receive the report and 
adopt the budget. 

Doug Kite (NC) was elected to a five-year term on the Media 
Commission. 

Randy Sawyer gave the report of the Music Commission. A 
motion carried to receive the report and adopt the budget. 

Chris Truett (NC) was elected to serve a five-year term on the 
Music Commission. 

Thomas Marberry gave the report of the Historical Commission. 
A motion carried to receive the report and adopt the budget. 

Darrell Holley (TN) was elected to a five-year term on the Histor­
ical Commission. 

The remainder of the General Board report was considered. 
The clerk read Item #2 which outlined the procedure regarding the 
election of the executive secretary. A motion carried to lay Item #2 
on the table until Thursday morning, July 20, 2000. 

The clerk read Item #3 which pertained to the site selection for 
the national convention. A motion carried to adopt this item. 

The clerk read Item #4 which recommended the site for the 
201 0 convention. A motion carried to adopt this item. 

The clerk read Item #5 which addressed efforts to reconcile 
problems in Mexico. There was a motion and second to adopt this 
item. There was a subsequent motion and second that a committee 
of five people be appointed to study the validity of the appeal by the 
Mexico Association and report back to this body on Thursday, July 
20, 2000. A motion carried for the previous question. The motion 
for the appointment of the committee of five carried. 

A partial report of the Nominating Committee for General Board 
members was read. The following were elected to the General Board : 

Serving unexpired 2001 terms - George Harvey, Jr. (AZ) and 
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Tim Owen (FL). 
Serving 2003 terms- Jim Marcum (NC), Jim Nason (Northeast), 

Brent Nix (Northwest), Delmar Sparks (OH), Ernest Harrison (OK), 
Sigbee Dildo (SC), Charles Thigpen (TN), Keith Woody (TX), Glen 
Johnson 01 A) and Carl Valiance 0/W). 

The clerk read a partial report of the Nominating Committee 
nominating persons to the Executive Committee. Rick Cash (AL) was 
elected to a one-year term on the Executive Committee. Glen 
Johnson f:IA), Ernest Harrison (OK) and Charles Thigpen (TN) were 
elected to three-year terms on the Executive Committee. 

The moderator appointed the following to serve on the five­
member committee to study the validity of the appeal by the Mexico 
Association: Nathan Ruble (Chairman), Gene Norris, Leroy 
Forlines, Matt Pinson and David Joslin. 

The moderator declared a recess until Thursday morning. 

Wednesday Evening - July 19, 2000 

The Wednesday evening missions service began with a children's 
choir and the congregation singing '~esus Loves the Children," "Go 
Tell It On the Mountain," "Send the Light" and '~esus Loves the Little 
Children." 

Tim York gave the welcome and called on Jeff Davis to offer the 
invocation. Danny Thomas led the congregation in singing "I Love 
To Tell the Story" and "Shine, Jesus, Shine." 

Steve Lytle introduced all foreign missionaries present for the 
service as they marched across the platform. David Crowe intro­
duced home missionaries present for the service. 

The Convention Choir, under the direction of Vernon Whaley, sang 
"Hallelujah To The Lamb." Tim York called for the missions offering, and 
as it was being received a Russian choir provided special music. 

David Shores, pastor of Ina FWB Church in Ina, Illinois, was introduced 
as the speaker: A male trio and the Convention Choir sang "I Will Follow 
Christ." The congregation sang "I Pledge Allegiance to the Lamb." 

Pastor Shores read Ads 1 :8 for his sermon text and spoke on the 
subject "Witnesses In The World ." Danny Thomas led the congre­
gation in singing "Wherever He Leads I'll Go." After sharing some 
announcements, Tim York dismissed the service. 

Thursday Morning - July 20, 2000 

The meeting was called to order at 9 :00 a.m. Assistant Clerk 
John Hibbard read Psalm 127: 1 and led in prayer. 

The clerk read the Report of the Special Committee on Mexico. 
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A motion carried to receive the report. 
The clerk read Item #5 of the General Board Report. There was 

a motion and second to table Item #5. It was questioned whether 
it was in order to table this item. The moderator ruled the motion to 
table was in order. The vote to sustain the chair passed. The motion 
to table Item #5 carried. 

Dean Jones gave the report of the National Youth Conference. 
A motion carried to receive the report as information. 

WNAC executive secretary-treasurer Marjorie Workman gave 
the report of the Women Nationally Active for Christ. A motion car­
ried to receive the report as information. 

A motion carried to remove Item #2 of the General Board Report 
from the table. The clerk read the item. There was a motion and sec­
ond to amend Item #2 by changing the words "a majority vote" to "a 
two-thirds majority vote." The motion to amend failed. The original 
motion to adopt Item #2 carried. 

Melvin Worthington gave the Educational Task Force Report. A 
motion carried to adopt the report. 

The clerk read the Registration Committee Report. A motion car­
ried to receive the report. 

Melvin Worthington gave the Budget Committee Report. A 
motion carried to adopt the report. 

The clerk read the Obituary Committee Report. A motion car­
ried to receive the report. Billy Hanna led the convention in prayer. 

The clerk read the Resolutions Committee Report. A motion car­
ried to receive the report. 

The clerk read the final report of the Nominating Committee. A 
motion carried to receive the report and elect the officers. 

Carl Cheshier (OK) was elected moderator. 
Tim York (KY) was elected assistant moderator. 
Keith Burden (OK) was elected clerk. 
John Hibbard (CA) was elected assistant clerk. 
A motion carried to adjourn. 
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The Executive Secretary's Report 
1999 

The Executive Office continues to operate smoothly. The staff does its 
work efficiently. We appreciate and applaud the quality work of Steve Pate, 
Melody Hood, Dari Goodfellow, Anne Worthington, Marilyn Pritchard, Altha 
Keifer, Janis Williams and Jack Williams. 

The Executive Office represented the National Association of Free Will 
Baptists at 22 Free Will Baptist state/district meetings, the Religious 
Conference Management Association, Christian Stewardship Association, 
Association of Statisticians of American Religious Bodies and the Executive 
Committee of the International Fellowship of Free Will Baptist Churches, Inc. 

The Free Will Baptist Hymn Book: Rejoice and The Rejoice Hymnal For 
The Church At Worship are experiencing steady sales. The Free Will Baptist 
Hymn Book: Rejoice may be ordered from Randall House Publications. It is 
in three colors in round or shaped note editions. The Rejoice Hymnal For 
The Church At Worship, in both shaped and round note editions in two col­
ors, is distributed by Tempo Music Publications, Inc. A companion for the 
two hymnals, Rejoice, The Free Will Baptist Hymn Book and The Rejoice 
Hymnal For The Church At Worship, is being compiled. The Executive 
Office and Randall House are working together on this project. 

The I 999 convention in Atlanta, Georgia, was one of the best ever. 
Registration totaled 6,592. The music, messages and meetings were a spe­
cial blessing. We commend the Georgia State Association of Free Will 
Baptists for their excellent job hosting the convention. Preparations for the 
2000 convention in Anaheim, California, are on schedule. 

Speakers and a theme for the 2000 national convention were selected 
by the Executive Committee during its December 1999 meeting in Nashville, 
Tennessee. The theme chosen was Witnesses in the World. The speakers 
include Winston Sweeney (TN), Paul Kennedy (CA), Edward Cook (AR), 
Doug King (NC), Tim Owen (FL), David Shores (IL) and H. B. London (CO). 

Contact provides current information regarding denominational life. 
Life-time subscriptions cost $500. We now have 22 life-time subscribers. Life­
time subscribers receive a leather-bound copy of the Free Will Baptist Hymn 
Book: Rejoice (1988). We encourage each church to purchase a life-time 
subscription. Every church should be a Contact subscriber. Complimentary 
copies are provided for students at Free Will Baptist Bible College, Hillsdale 
FWB College, California Christian College and Southeastern FWB College. 
The December I 999 mailing of Contad totaled 5,996. 

Capital StewardshipMctory Campaign contributions through December 
I999, totaled $310,529.72. The indebtedness on the National Office building 
was $34,225. I 4 on December 3 I, 1999. 

The Rest of the Family Offering totaled $16,378.90 in I 999. After expens­
es, the balance was disbursed to participating national agencies. 

The Free Will Baptist Leadership Conference met December 6-7, I 999, 
at Regal Maxwell House Hotel in Nashville, Tennessee. Speakers Ronnie 
Adkins (TN), Roger Childers (OH), Tom Dooley (TN), Gary Fry (MO), Ernest 
Harrison, Jr. (OK), Rick Ketchum (AR), Jim Marcum (NC), Matt Pinson 
(GA) and Nathan Ruble (MO) developed the theme Working Together. 

The reporting forms (501, 502, 503 and 504) need to be used when 
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reporting statistical data. We encourage local church, district and state 
association clerks to take the necessary time to accurately fill out these 
National Association reporting forms. These forms are carefully designed 
to report denominational data which enables us to compile an accurate 
statistical table. The reporting forms are supplied at no cost and may be 
ordered from the Executive Office. 

The Treatise of the Faith and Practices of the National Assodation of 
Free Will Baptists, Inc., may be ordered from Randall House Publications. 
The Together Way stewardship notebook and brochure, Stewards on Task, 
may be order at no charge from the Executive Office. 

Gifts for the Executive Office totaled $327,671.74 in I999. Of this 
amount, $304,209.03 was cooperative and $23,462. 7I was designated. The 
Executive Office I999 budget called for $379,000. Gift income left a budget 
shortfall of $5 I ,328.26. 
.. Gifts for national ministries in 1999 totaled $11,474,176.I3. Per capita 

g1vmg was $54.52. Together Way Plan gifts through the Executive Office 
totaled $3,742,572.57. Of this amount, $676,020.36 was cooperative and 
$3,066,552.2I was designated. Thank you for your systematic and sacrificial 
support to national ministries in 1999. 

The Together Way Totals 

1990 $6,933,944.49 
1991 $7,848,694.01 
1992 $7,832,441.46 
I993 $7,864,572.0I 
I 994 $8,750,648.37 

I995 $8,777,067.71 
1996 $9,687,9I 9.1 I 
I 997 $I 0,020,229.65 
1998 $I I,279,076.53 
I999 $I I,474,I76.I3 

Tracking The Together Way Totals 
(Through the Executive Offlce) 

Designated Co-op Total 

1990 
1,035,463.36 (+255%) 330,567.40 (+3.47%) 1 )66,030.7 6 (+2.77%) 

76% 24% 
1991 

1,129,064.33 (+9.04%) 329,050.08 (-0.46%) 1 ,458,114.41 (+614%) 
n % 23% 

1992 
1,480,847 51 (+31.16%) 243,195.98 (·26.09%) 1,724,043.49 (+1814%) 

86% 14% 
1993 

1,786,527.81 (+20.64%) 278,925.67 (+ 14.69%) 2,065,453.48 ( + 19.80%) 
86% 14% 

1994 
2,071,80859 ( + 15.97%) 313,198.40 (+ 12.29%) 2,385 ,006. 99 (+ 15.47%) 

87% 13% 
1995 

2,128,315.33 (+2.73%) 362,69452 ( + 15.80%) 2,491 ,009.85 ( +4.44%) 
85% 15% 

1996 
2,110,182.97 (-0.85%) 375,760.11 (+3.60%) 2,485,943.08 (-0.20%) 

85% 15% 
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Designated Co-op Total Home Missions 

Designated Co-op Total 
1997 1990 $179,583.94 $ 29,571 .90 $209,155.84 

2,n5,292.31 (+3152%) 442,453.17 ( + 17.75%) 3,217,745.48 (+29.44%) 1991 216,177.42 24,769.01 240,946.43 
86% 14% 1992 293,769.40 11 ,250.25 305,019.65 

1998 
(+12.28%) 

1993 368,660.04 18,690.90 387,350.94 
3,004,636.43 (+8.26%) 608,297.49 (+37.48%) 3,612,933.92 1994 442,380.26 17,707.66 460,087.92 

83% 17% 1995 539,687.11 26,114.04 565,801 .15 
1999 

$3,742,57257 ( +359%) 
1996 590,400.81 30,436.66 620,837.47 

$3,066,552.21 (+2.06%) $676,020.36 ( + 11.13%) 1997 723,293.97 39,820.70 763,114.67 
82% 18% 1998 824,074.15 60,221 .42 884,295.57 

1999 879,042.73 66,926.03 945,968.76 

The Together Way Totals increase/decrease fro~ 1990-1999: Retirement & Insurance 
Designated 196.15% Cooperative 1 04.50o/o 

Designated Co-op Total 
1990 $ 5,368.00 $23,000.39 $28,368.39 

Executive Office 1991 6,458.01 19,264.88 25,722.89 

Designated Co-op Total 1992 16,509.81 8,750.10 25,259.91 
1993 12,344.65 14,537.48 26,882.13 

1990 $ 75,721.44 $ 166,278.57 $ 242,000.01 1994 9,579.30 13,772 .71 23,352.01 
68,011 .64 191,443.70 259,455.34 1991 1995 10,066.31 20,310.94 30,377.25 

123,182.46 180,694.62 303,877.08 1992 1996 10,481 .55 23,672 .89 34,154.44 
1993 128,789.88 175,087.19 303,877.07 

1997 13,634.99 30,971 .63 44,606.62 
111,598.53 214,822 .00 326,420.53 1994 1998 6,654.14 46,838.93 53,493.07 

1995 117,223.58 217,616.55 334,840.13 
1999 5,198.57 52,053.61 57,252.18 

1996 113,665.59 206,667.60 320,332.19 
1997 100,925.33 221,226.99 322,152.32 Master's Men 
1998 36,680.05 273,733.63 310,413.68 

Designated Co-op Total 
1999 23,462 .71 304,209.03 327,671 .74 

1990 $ 5,424.23 $23,000.39 $28,424.62 

Foreign Missions 1991 7,316.70 19,264.88 26,581.58 
1992 17,388.70 8 ,750.10 26,138.80 

Designated Co-op Total 1993 20,807.95 14,537.48 35,345.43 
1990 $ 691 ,133.71 $ 37,786.32 $ 728,920.03 1994 20,928.93 13,772 .71 34,701 .64 
1991 712,661 .39 31,649.40 744,310.79 1995 22,607.06 20,310.94 42,918.00 
1992 850,776.88 14,375.28 865,152.16 1996 19,034.94 23,672.89 42,707.83 
1993 1,053,812 .57 23,882 .82 1,077,695.39 1997 20,526.60 30,971 .63 51,498.23 
1994 1,179,663.50 22,626.46 1,202,289.96 1998 8,734.39 46,838.93 55,573.32 
1995 1 ,219,696.08 33,367.82 1,253,063.90 1999 5,427.86 52,053.61 57,481.47 
1996 11164,284.76 38,891 .12 1 ,203,175.88 

Free Will Baptist Foundation 1997 1,652,641 .05 50,882 .05 1,703,523.10 
1998 1,758,589.14 76,949.58 1,835,538.72 Designated Co-op Total 
1999 1,795,075.28 85,516.57 1,880,591 .85 1990 $ 9,592 .75 $ 9,857.36 $19,450.11 

Free Will Baptist Bible College 
1991 9,256.60 8,256.35 17,512.95 
1992 11 ,036.40 3,750.10 14,786.50 

Designated Co-op Total 1993 11 ,281 .73 6,230.32 17,512.05* 

1990 $ 48,084.25 $ 37,786.32 $ 85,870.57 1994 9,482 .16 5,902 .52 15,384.68** 

1991 61 ,558.53 31 ,649.40 93,207.93 1995 9,927.89 8,704.77 18,632.66 .. 

1992 81 ,669.82 14,375.28 96,045.10 1996 9,513.75 10,145.63 19,659.38 .. 

1993 105,536.09 23,882.82 129,418.91 1997 13,162.31 13,273.56 26,435.87** 

1994 1 19,264.56 22,626.46 141 ,891.02 1998 5,254.24 20,073.90 25,328.1 4 .. 

1995 157,993.66 33,367.82 191,361.48 1999 4,001 .29 22,308.66 26,309.95** 

1996 150,132.44 38,891 .12 189,023.56 • This bolooce represents Notionol Mmis!Jies Offering giln of $1,906.99 ond gifts of $3,600.00 to The Together Woy Endowment Fund. 
1997 157,522.68 50,882 .05 208,404.73 • • This bolo nee represents Endowment giln mode through The Together Woy Pion that do not benefit the foundation. 
1998 245,940.89 76,949.58 322,890.47 
1999 213,519.34 85,516.57 299,035.91 
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1990 
1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 
1998 
1999 

1990 
1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 
1998 
1999 

1990 
1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 
1998 
1999 

1990 
1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 
1998 
1999 

Historical Commission 

Designated Co-op 
$ 413.59 $ 821 .42 

493.53 688.09 
1,137.01 312 .52 
1,118.66 519.14 

966.21 491 .97 
1,161.46 725.41 
1,060.83 845.55 

867.70 1,106.14 
374.95 1,672 .88 
288.81 1,859.07 

Total 
$ 1,235.01 

1,181 .62 
1,449.53 
1,637.80 
1,458.18 
1,886.87 
1,906.38 
1,973.84 
2,047.83 
2,147.88 

Commission for Theological Integrity 

Designated Co-op 
$ 446.56 $ 821 .42 

542.41 688.09 
1,193.44 312 .52 
1,267.94 519.14 
1,140.95 491.97 
1,296.68 725.41 
1,276.01 845.55 
1,077.90 1,106.14 

635.44 1,672 .88 
883.46 1,859.07 

Media Commission 

Designated Co-op 
$ 488.94 $ 821.42 

640.71 688.09 
1,042.42 312.52 
1,136.55 519.14 
1,039.04 491.97 
1,113.75 725.41 
1,322 .22 845.55 

885.05 1,106.14 
3,073.57 1,672.88 

434.69 1,859.07 

Music Commission 

Designated Co-op 
$ 197.63 $ 82 1.42 

221.71 688.09 
920.26 312 .52 

1,017.59 519.14 
899.06 491 .97 
978.22 725.41 
985.74 845.55 
808.02 1,106.14 
378.07 1,672 .88 
260.51 1,859.07 

A- 30 

Total 
$1 ,267 .98 

1,230.50 
1,505.96 
1,787 .08 
1,632 .92 
2,022 .09 
2,121 .56 
2,184.04 
2,308.32 
2,742 .53 

Total 
$ 1,310.36 

1,328.80 
1,354.94 
1,655.69 
1,531.01 
1 ,839. 16 
2,167.77 
1,991 .19 
4,746.45 
2,293.76 

Total 
$1 ,019.05 

909.80 
1,232 .78 
1,536.73 
1,391 .03 
1,703.63 
1,831 .29 
1,914.16 
2,050.95 
2,119.58 

----..... ----------
Thank you for the privilege of serving as executive secretary for the 

National Association of Free Will Baptists, lnc. 

Rejoicing and Resting in the Redeemer, Your Servant, 

Melvin Worthington , Th.D., Ed.D., CMP 

Statistical Summary 

Beginning Ending 
Year Membership Baptisms Members Members Net Membership 

Totals Added Lost Increase Totals 

1988 2041382 71910 121436 6,454 51982 210,364 

1989 210,364 8,678 12,726 7,511 51215 2151579 

1990 2151579 7,946 12,537 6,583 51954 221,533 

1991 221,533 81703 121931 7,240 5,691 227,224 

1992 2271224 9,283 121123 71223 41900 2321124 

1993 232,124 81828 12,246 6,011 61235 238,359 

1994 2381359 7,804 12,393 7,508 41885 2431244 

1995 243,244 8,089 121701 61232 6,469 249,713 

1996 249,713 8,436 12,155 5,985 6,170 255,883 

1997 2551883 8,971 11,946 6,660 5,286 2611 169 

1998 2611169 1 0,169 141089 61345 71744 268,913 

1999 2681913 10,200 131965 7,715 6,250 275,163 

Totals 1051017 1521248 81,467 701781 
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mit~ Hill, Harper & Associates 
l ~ Certified Public Accountants 

Terry A H tll 
Ernest R Harper 

Independent Auditors' Report 

Executive Committee of the 
General Board of the National 
Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. 

Brentwood ~<e<uhVI' c .. ntt'r 
761 Old H ickory Boule,·ard 
SuilP 30.1 
Bfl'ntwood. TN :17027 
TEL: 615/:ln-3485 

We have audited the statements of financial position of the Executive Office 
of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. as of December 31, 
1999 and 1998 and the related statements of activities and changes in net 
assets, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended. These 
financial statements are the responsibility of the Executive Office's 
management. Our respoDSJbility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally aocepted auditing 
standards. Those standards requir'! that we plan and perform the audits to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free 
of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as weU as evaluating the overaU financial 
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis 
for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of the Executive Office of the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. as of December 31, 1999 and 
1998, and its changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended in 
conformity with generally aocepted accounting principles. 

May 3, 2000 
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-- -----
EXECUfiVE OffiCE OF THE EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE 

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 
Statements of Financial Position Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets 

December 31, 1999 and 1998 For the years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998 

Executive Con tad Special Convention 1999 1998 
Assets 1999 1998 Revenues: Offjce Mqqqzjne Projects fsuul Totals Iotqls 

Current assets: The Together Way Plan s 3,742~72 0 0 0 3,742~72 3,612,933 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 126,591 207,455 Disbursed to agendas 
Funds held by Free Will Baptist Foundation and departments {3,414,900} 0 0 0 {3,414,900} {3,302~19) 9,000 9,000 Receivables: 327,672 0 0 0 327,672 310,414 

Hymnal sales 
36,901 61,580 Subscrip~ons to (ontad Magazine 0 57,205 0 0 57,205 57,730 

Other departmental and agency charges Sales of hymnals 0 50 83,306 0 83,356 95,892 481 638 TotaJ receivables 37,382 62,218 Gifts and offerings 2,220 0 0 6,981 9,201 13,026 
Inventory, at lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) Interest income 8,650 864 0 0 9~14 11,447 

or market 
167,352 212,635 Conven~on fees 0 12,000 0 118~50 130~50 105,050 

Prepaid expenses Other income 12,069 488 2,404 10,632 25293 30,495 36,250 37,924 TotaJ current assets Total revenues 350,611 70,607 85,710 136,163 643,091 624,054 376,575 529,232 
Office equipment and furniture 

115,055 113,695 Cost of hymnal sales: 
Less accumulated depreciation Beginning inventory 0 0 212,635 0 212,635 251,967 100,769 91,380 

Costs of production 0 0 8,915 0 8,915 21 ,892 
Net office equipment and furniture 14,286 22,315 

Total cost of inventory 0 0 221~50 0 221~50 273,859 
$ 390,861 551,547 less ending inventory 0 0 167,352 0 167,352 212,635 

Liabilities and Net Assets 
Current liabilities: 

Cost of hymnal sales 0 0 54,198 0 54,198 61,224 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 22,074 48,993 Gross profit 350,611 70,607 31512 136,163 588,893 562,830 
Funds held for other denominational agencies 14,559 7,912 Notes payable Expenses of operations: 0 67,022 Deferred host state fee Executive Office 328,443 0 0 0 328,443 334,613 0 30,000 Deferred subscription revenues (ontad Magazine 0 78~66 0 0 78~66 77,746 201344 231295 TotaJ current liabilities Special Projects 0 0 21,710 0 21,710 26,910 56,977 177,222 

ConvenHon Fund 0 0 0 200.615 200.615 133.~6Z Net assets: 
Executive Office 

237,699 207,502 Total expenses 328,443 78566 21 ,710 200,615 629,334 572)36 
Net investment in equipment 

14,286 22,315 Contact Magazine lnaease (decrease) (15,716) (7,757) Special Projects in net assets 22,168 (7,959} 9,802 (64,452} (40,441} (9,906} 130,990 121,188 Convention Fund Net assets, beginning 
TotaJ net assets (331375) 311077 

of year as restated 229,817 (7,757} 121,188 31,077 374,325 384,231 333,884 374,325 
Net assets, end of year 

$ 390,861 551,547 as restated s 251,985 {15,716} 130,990 {33,375) 333,884 374,325 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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EXECUfiVE OFFICE OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE Will BAPTISTS, INC. 

Statements of Functional Expenses 
For the years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998 

Executive Contad 
Office Magazine 

Expenses of operations: 
Salaries 132,874 0 
Housing allowance 41,000 0 
Employee fringe benefrn 

and general insurance 34,008 0 
Payroll taxes 20,432 0 
Travel 19,6n 2,068 
Executive CommiHee 583 0 
Occupancy costs 29,892 0 
Depredation 9,389 0 
legal and audit 1,134 959 
Equipment maintenance 1,895 0 
Supplies, office expense 8,756 3,993 
Printing and promotion 3,786 49,376 
Postage I mail services 980 16,627 
Telephone 3,004 47 
Writers' fees 0 3,559 
Interest expense 0 0 
Auditorium 0 0 
Meal functions 0 0 
Music 0 0 
leadership Conference 712 0 
International Fellowship 1,200 0 
Edumtional Task Force 0 0 
Doctrinal Survey 0 0 
The Together Way Plan 785 0 
Auto and copier leases 14,606 0 
Other 3,730 1,937 

Total expenses s 328,443 78,566 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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Special Convention 1999 
Proiects Fund Totals 

9,886 2,302 145,062 
0 0 41,000 

0 40 34,048 
756 176 21,364 
27 32,509 54,281 
0 6,490 7,073 
0 0 29,892 
0 0 9,389 

2,359 959 5,411 
0 200 2,095 

(526) 12,802 25,025 
4,996 23,314 81,472 

17 808 18,432 
2 207 3,260 
0 0 3,559 

2,518 0 2,518 
0 76,064 76,064 
0 2,087 2,087 
0 2,070 2,070 
0 0 712 
0 0 1,200 
0 6,217 6,217 
0 0 0 
0 0 785 
0 0 14,606 

1,675 34,370 41,712 

21,710 200,615 629,334 

EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WIU. BAPTISTS, INC. 

Statements of Cash Flows 
For the years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998 

1999 1998 
1998 

cash flows from Operatina Actiyities Totals $ (40,441) (9,906) 
Decrease in net assets . 

141,550 Adjustments to reconcile de~rease. ~~.net assets to 
40,000 net cash provided by oper~ti~ actiVIties. 9,389 9,909 

Depreciation and ~ortization 
30,122 (Increase) decrease m: 24,836 21,305 
21,241 Receivables 45,283 39,332 
60,383 Inventories 1,674 908 
5,306 Prepaid expenses . 

29,892 Increase (decrease) m: (26,919) (13,360) 
9,909 Accounts payable and accrued expenses . 6,647 (816) 
6,372 Funds held for other denominational agenoes (30,000) 0 
1,858 Deferred state host fee (2,951) 2,633 

20,150 Deferred subscription revenue 
88,946 

Net operating activities 14,257 
(12,482) 50,005 

1,no 
Cash Flom from Investi!Yl A~tie~ 3,365 0 (3,500) 

13,265 Funds held by Free Will Baptist Foundation (1,360) (2,931) 
43,469 Purchase of equipment 
1,498 
1,106 Net investing activities 

(1,360) (6,431) 

250 
Cash Flows from Financing Activities 4,691 (67,022) (77,085) 

0 Prepayments of notes paya~l~ . (67,022) (77,085) 
799 Net financing actiVIties 
920 (80,864) (31,879) 

13,809 Net decrease in cash 
17,808 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 
207.455 239,334 

572,736 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

$ 126,591 207,455 

Supplemental disclosures: 
Interest paid 

$ 2 015 14,053 

See accompanying notes to fmandal statements. 
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EXECUfiVE OffiCE OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WIU BAPTISTS INC 

Notes to rmancial Statements ' • 
December 31, 1999 and 1998 

~~ ~~u~~~ck~era~e~ under the auspices of the NationaJ Association of 

GeneraJ Board of the N~~n~s.J~~~~~dn ~} ~~ ~~f~~~~s~~~ttee of the 

{I) Summary of Siiflificant Accounting Policies 
Basis of Presentation 
The financiaJ statements of the Ex r Offi 
accruaJ basis of accounting. ecu Jve ce have been prepared on the 

~FM~~~uti~f7 ~~ce a~opted Statement of FmanciaJ Accounting Standards 
SFAS No I j 7 th~ ~nanc!aJ State~ents o~ Not-for-Profit Organizations". Under 
finan .al '·. ecutiv~ ~ffice IS reQUITed to report information regaJiding .ts 

CJ position and activities according to three d f I 
stricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets ~ses o net assets ~e­
net assets. In addition, the Executive Office . ' ~d permanently restricted 
of cash flows As pe ·tt db thi IS reqw.re to present a statement 
continued its ·use of fu}:d ~cc6'un~ew ~~men~ th~ Executive Office has dis­
cial statements to present the das an f ' accordingly, reclassified its finan­
Executive Office adopted SFAS No I f~'A~c net ting~s~ts Cr~d.. Further, the 
and Contributions Mad " · · . ' oun •Or ontributions Received 
contnbutions received cie ::c~r::f:Se~ In ~c~~dance wi~ SFAS !'Jo. II6, 
permanently restricted s rt d . es c '· temporarily restricted, or 
any donor restrictions. uppo epending on the exlstence and I or nature of 

The Executive Office aJso folio th · . . 
No. I16 (Accounting for Contri~~tio~rwVJsu;msdof ~ Cterp~eta.tion of SFAS 
lnterp~et~tion No. 42, "Transfers of :S~~I~e . an Whi o~tributions Made), 
Orgaruzation Acts as an Agent Ti t m . c , a Not-for-Profit 
with Interpretation No 42 rw; rus ee., or Intermediary · In accordance 
nated by the donor to be transfe~s recet~ed fro'!! donors which are desig­
bility transactions. (see note B) ed to third parties are accounted for as lia-

Office Equipment and Furniture 
Office equipment and furniture ar t t d . . . 
over the useful life of the asset . e s ~ e a~ cost: Depreciation IS provided 
for maintenance and repairs r~~~al: ~~Itht~me method. Expenditures 
icantly extend the useful lives of assets 'a e ermen~ that do not signif-

re expensed as mcurred. 

Income Taxes 
The Executive Office is exempt fr F d . 
accordingly, no provision for incomeo~e:ise:da;~ ~~t~c~::O~~ taxes; 

Ca,h and Cash Eguiyalents 

~~r ~UW~1 o~~ s~ment of cash flows, the Executive Office considers 
chased with ~ originaJ ma~otyu~tsU:d highJy liquid debt instruments pur­
equivalents. o ee months or less to be cash and cash 

¥fie~~"tm1 '(;~ ~ubsq;ip~on Revenue from Contact Mauazine 
account deferred ~~~~~~ti~ns collected are recorded as a liability in the 
over the life of the subscrf:~o~~evenues. Revenues are recognized ratably 
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EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

(1) Summary of Si@ificant Accountirw Policies. continued 
Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted account­
ing principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabil­
ities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Compensated Absences 
Fmployees of the Executive Office are entitled to paid vacation, paid sick days and person­
al days off, depending on job classification, length of service and other factors. It is imprac­
ticable to estimate the amount of compensation for future absences, and accord.ing]y, no 
liability has been recorded in the accompanying financial statements. The Executive 
Office's policy is to recognize the cost of compensated absences when actual1y paid to 
employees. 

Presentation of Fmancial Statements 
Certain amounts as reported in the 1998 financial statements have been reclassified 
to conform to current year presentation. 

(2) Inventory of Hymnals 
The Executive Office has an agreement with Sunday School and Church Training and 
Randall House Publications ("Randall House"), whereby Randall House warehouses and 
distributes Free Will Baptist and "generic" hymnals. Further, Randall House invoices the cus­
tomer, collects funds and remits to the Executive Office $6.32 for each Free Will Baptist 
Hymnal sold. A third party distnbutor sales the "generic" hymnal and remits to the Executive 
Office approximately $5.00 for each "generic'' hymnal soki, at which time Randall House is 
paid an amount equal to 5% of the sales price for shipping and handling. 

Randall House, as of December 31, 1999, warehoused hymnals valued at a cost of $167,000. 

The leather hymnals remaining from the first printing (approximately 480) valued at 
$24,465 have been transferred to the Contact Magazine Fund and recorded as prepaid 
expenses. These leather hymnals will be given as incentives to subscribers who pur­
chase a life time subscription to Contact Magazine. 

(3) Notes Payable 
1 0. 75% demand note payable to The Board of Retirement and Insurance of the 
National Association of Free WiiJ Baptists with an outstanding amount due of 
$67,022 as of December 31, 1998 was repaid during 1999. The purpose of the note 
was for production of the hymnals as discussed in note 2. The debt was secured by 
the inventory of hymnals and general income and assets of the Executive Office. 

(4) Pension 
The Executive Office participates in the master pension plan of the Board of 
Retirement and Insurance of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. The 
plan is contributory and is matched up to a maximum of 5% of compensation. 
Employees may participate at date of employment. Pension expenses amounted to 
$6,721 in 1999 and $5,492 in 1998. The pension plan is a defined contribution plan. 
Under the plan, an account is maintained for each participant and upon retirement 
the participant can either receive a lump-sum distribution or purchase one of sev­
eral types of annuity contracts. 
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EXECUfiVE OFFICE OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 

Notes to Fmanclal Statements, continued 

(5) Ooeratint Leases 

The Executive Office has entered into non-<:ancellable lease arrangements relating to a 
copy machine and two automobiles. Total expenses amounted to $14,606 for 1999 and 
$13,809 for 1998. The minimum payments required are $12,492 for 2000 and $7.259 for 
2001. 

Further, the Executive Office rents office space from the National Office Building 
located in Antioch, Tennessee. The lease agreement is cancelable with 90 day writ­
ten notice after the mortgage has been retired. The mortgage note is scheduled to 
be retired in June 2000. Office lease expense amounted to $29,892 for 1999 and 
1998. 

(6) The Toaether Way Plan 

The Executive Office is responsible for receiving and disbursing funds received from 
The Together \Vciy Plan program. Designated contributions are disbursed to the 
named Department or agency, and cooperative funds are disbursed based on the 
proportionate sharing arrangemenl The following summarizes these transactions 
for the year ended December 31, 1999 as compared to I998 totals. 

1999 1998 
Receipts: Designated Cooperatiye Total Total 
Alabama $ 6,255 0 6,255 6,233 
Arizona 3,464 214 3,678 4,975 
Arkansas 205,526 183,095 388,621 382,612 
California 0 13,335 13,335 1 3,841 
Florida 655 13,934 14,589 20,669 
Georgia 316,037 21,027 337,064 266,326 
Illinois 93,383 24,349 I 1 7, 732 128,051 
Indiana 13,672 2,758 16,430 15,637 
Iowa 450 2,848 3,298 3,521 
Kentucky 15,060 6,248 21,308 19,121 
Maryland 150 9,642 9,792 3,092 
Michigan 221 ,305 34,330 255,635 284,705 
Mississippi 84,29I 6,187 90,478 186,525 
Missouri 504,657 148,608 653,265 578,658 
New Mexico 7,122 45 I 7,573 10,864 
North Carolina 14,984 23,583 38,567 31,862 
Ohio 122,992 35,019 158,011 I58,683 
OkJahoma 628,838 125,452 754,290 700,640 
South Carolina 536,260 0 536,260 499,007 
Tennessee I42,28I 19,628 161,909 154,037 
Texas I 05,859 3,51 5 1 09,37 4 83, 160 
Virginia 9,260 60 9,320 8, 735 
West Virginia 30,432 1, I94 3I,626 35,474 
Mrica 0 0 0 12,960 
Canada 3,403 159 3,562 2,525 
Contributions totaling $1,000 or less7--=-::--::-::-:2:-::1-=-6---=-=-=-'3=-=8~4--=-=--:-:-'6=:-=0-=-0--=--:-:-1=,0~20 

Total receipts =$==3=,0=66=,5=5=2 ====67=6==,0=2===0 =3=, 7=4=2=,5=72====3=,6=12~,9=3=3 
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EXECUI1VE OFFICE OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAYilSTS, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

(6) The ToRther Way Plan. continued 
Disbursements: 

Executive Office 
Foreign Missions 
Free Wlll Baptist Bible College 
Home Missions 
Retirement & Insurance 

$ 

Master's Men . . 
Commission for Theologtcallntegnty 
Foundation 
Historical Commission 
Music Commission 
Radio & Television Commission 
Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College 
Other including the Capital ' . Stewardship Campatgn 

23,463 
1,795,075 

213,519 
879,043 

5,199 
5,428 

883 
4,001 

289 
261 
435 

19,293 

119,663 
Total disbursements $ 3,066,552 

(1) Correction of AccountiJYl Error 

304,209 
85,517 
85,517 
66,926 
52,053 
52,053 

1,859 
22,309 

1,859 
1,859 
1,859 

0 

327,672 310,414 
1 ,880,592 1 ,835,539 

299,036 322,890 
945,969 884,295 

57,252 53,493 
57,481 55,573 

2,742 2,308 
26,310 25,327 
2,148 2,048 
2 120 2,051 

' 2,294 4,747 
19,293 17,627 

0 119,663 96,621 
676,020 3,742,572 3,612,933 

. 1999 N ti al Convention paid its host state In 1997, the host state, Georgta, f~r the $30 0~ ~inadvertently recorded as and 
fees in advance. The fee, .am~~~ ~dal ;tatements in error. This fee should 
reported on as revenues m e . d as revenue in the year of 
have been recorded as defe~~ r!venu~ an: %~0ff~~ial statements as issued as 
the Convention which was 1 . bccor31T997 have been restated to correct this of and for the year ended Decem er , 
error. 

The effect of the restatement is as follows: 

As 
Originally Restate- As 
Reported ment Restated 

Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets 

Convention fees $ 139,425 (30,000) 109,425 

Total revenues $ 653,422 (30,000) 623,422 

Increase (decrease) in net assets $ 50,808 (30,000) 20,808 

Net assets at end of year $ 421,327 (30,000) 391 ,327 

Statements of Fmancial Position 

Deferred host state fee $ 0 30,000 30,000 

Total liabilities $ 227,122 30,000 257,122 

Net assets - convention fund $ 74,581 (30,000) 44,581 

Total net assets $ 421,327 (30,000) 391,327 
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EXECUI'IVE OFFlCE OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE Will BAPTISTS, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

(8) Chanae in Accountiu Principle 

The Executive Office follows the provisions of an interpretation of SFAS No. 116 
(Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made), Interpretation No. 
42, "Transfers of Assets in Which a Not-for-Profit Organization Acts as an Agent, 
Trustee, or Intermediary". In accordance with Interpretation No. 42, funds received 
from donors which are designated by the donor to be transferred to third parties are 
accounted for as liability transactions. The "Rest of The Family" contributions quali­
fies as a liability transaction and accordingly, the fmancial statements have been 
restated as follows to conform to these requirements. 

Funds Held 
for Other 
Denomi· Total 
national Net Total Costs and 
Agencies A$sets Revenues Exveoses 

To determine earliest reported net asset balance: 
1997 balances as reported as of 1998 $ 0 391,327 N/A N/A 

Net transactions as of December 31, 1997 7,096 (7,096) N/A N/A 

Restated balances as of December 31, 1 C£J7 $ 7,096 384,231 N/A N/A 

To determine 1998 comparative amounts: 
1998 amounts as reported as of 1998 $ 0 382,237 633,639 642,729 
Net transactions as of 1997 - see above 7,096 (7,096) N/A N/A 
Net transactions as of December 31, 1998 816 (816) (9,585) (8,769) 

Restated balances as of December 31, 1998 $ 7,912 374,325 624,054 633,960 
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2001 
Executive Office Budget 

1999 2000 

Administrative 
Convention 
Contuct 
Totals 

$379 000.00 $372,000.00 
138:358.15. 179,326.88 •• 
87.000.00 90.400.00 

$604,358.15 $641,726.88 

•1998 
••1999 

···2000 

2001 
Administrative Budget 

1999 2000 
Proieded Expenses s 153,999.95 s 145,242.39 

So~ries 42,000.00 41,000.00 Housirg 23,000.00 22,204.54 Social Serurity 
7,350.42 6,89857 

Retirement 24,410.47 Employees Insurance (llefml Hospilol, Ufe, Trow!) 26,684.91 
5,000.00 AudmfV:V'l.egol 5,00l.OO 

10,237 56 Aulorrobile loose (2 (lJ~) 11,536.15 
7,000.00 

Compuler Supplies 5•000·00 
3,843.71 Copiet lease 3,928.40 
3,000.00 Equipment IOOintenooce 3,000.00 4,000.00 Equipment !Udw/Computef 4,00l.OO 
8,000.00 fxerutive (llmmittee 1 0, 000.00 
4,000.00 

Generollnsuronce 4•000·00 
1,200.00 lrerl!lird FerkwMp d Fire w~ Boptst OllltOOs 1,200.00 
2,000.00 leadership Confefence 2,000.00 

29,892.00 Ol!ice Ren1tll ($1 .00 per~- ft. x 2,491) 29,892.00 
7,000.00 Office Suppl~1'6e 7,000.00 2,00l.OO OtOOr 1,703.63 
1,500.00 Postage 2, 000.00 
3,000.00 Prin~ng 3,000.00 
3,000.00 Promotion 4,000.00 
3,000.00 Subsai~~u~~istrotions 2,000.00 3,000.00 

Telephone 3•000·00 
1,500.00 TIX]ether Way PlorVStev«Jrdship Ed001tion 1,500.00 

25,000.00 Trove! 24,000.00 
1,695.71 Ovistrnos Bonus(Extto Wid: s So~ry) .00 
1,579.59 &no W~ Retirement in lieu of 4th week vocation .00 

beginning Vtith the 16th yoor of SllMce. s 379,000.00 s 372,000.00 
Totals 

Proiected Income 
The Togetifr Way Pion s 239,000.00 s 272,000.00 
Cooperative ~ 

140,000.00 100,000.00 
Oesig~QI5 s 379,000.00 s 372,000.00 

Totals 
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2001 
$390,000.00 
217,535.25··· 

93.105.00 
$700,640.25 

2001 
s 149,732.99 

45,000.00 
22,778.72 

7,108.49 
28,60410 
5,00l.OO 

10,355.56 
7,00l.OO 
4,500.00 
3,000.00 
4,00l.OO 

10,000.00 
5,00l.OO 
2,400.00 
2,00l.OO 

29,892.00 
7,500.00 
1,728.64 
1,500.00 
3,000.00 
3,00l.OO 
3,000.00 
4,00l.OO 
1,500.00 

25,000.00 
1,763.55 
1,635.85 

s 390,000.00 

S 300,00l.OO 
90,000.00 

s 390,000.00 



Executive Secretary 
So lory 
Housing and Utilities 
Social Security 
Retirement 
Insurance 

Salary Breakdown 

1999 
$27,949.57 (4%) 
25,000.00 (4%) 
8,101.28 (15.30%) 
1,397.48 (5%) 
3,585.68 

2000 
$29,067.55 (4%) 
26,000.00 (4%) 
8,425.34 (15.30%) 
1,453.38 (5%) 
3,585.68 

2001 
$29,270.25 (4%) 

TroveVUfP/Disobility 
Hospital 
Oenrul 

NOTE: Office cor furnished. 

s 815.56 
2,547.50 

222.62 

s 815.56 
2,547.50 

211.62 

s 894.49 
3,116.12 

238.00 

28,000.00 (4%) 
8,762.35 (15.30%) 
1,463.51 (5%) 
4,248.61 

566.034.01 

Administrative Assistant/Contact Editor 
Salary $26,305.85 ( 4%) 
Housing and Utilities 16,000.00 (4%) 
Social Security 6,472.80 (15.30%) 
Retirement 1,315.29 (5%) 
Insurance 6,303.60 

568.531.95 

$27,998.08 (4%) 
16,000.00 (4%) 
6,731.71 (l 5.300AI) 
1,399.90 (5%) 
6,303.60 T roveV!iWtlisobility $ 7 62.48 

Hospirul 5,132.88 
Dental 408.24 

NOTE: Office cor furnished. 

$ 762.48 
5,132.88 

408.24 

$ 807.54 
5,925.48 

436.39 

Bookkeeper 
Salary 
SOOol Security 
Retirement 
Insurance 

Uf~sobitrty 
Hospital 
Dental 

$ 381 .12 
4,844.28 

40824 

Editorial Assistant/Secretary 
Salary 
Social Security 
Retirement 
Insurance 

Lifi'/Disobility 
Hosp~ol 
Dental 

$ 362.04 
2,699.28 

222.60 

556.397 54 

$26,323.67 ( 4%) 
2,013.76 (7.65%) 
1,316.18 (5%) 
5,633.64 

535.287.25 

$ 381.12 
4,844.28 

40824 

$25,735.11 (4%) 
1,968.74 (7.65%) 
1,286.76 (5%) 
3,283.92 

$ 362.04 
2,699.28 

222.60 

$58.433 29 

$27,376.62 (4%) 
2,094.31 (7.65%) 
1,368.83 (5%) 
5,633.64 

536.473.40 

s 381.12 
5,925.48 

436 39 

$26,764.51 (4%) 
2,047.49 (7.65%) 
1,338.23 (5%) 
3,283.92 

532.274.53 533.434.15 

s 362.04 
3,116.12 

238,00 

Yearbook Coordinator/Secretary 
Salary s 25,253.61 ( 4%) s .00 
Social Security 1,931.90 (7.65%) .00 
Retirement 1,262.68 (5%) .00 
Insurance 3,084.96 .00 

lif~isobility $314.88 $0.00 
Hosp~ol 2,547. 48 .00 
Denrul 222 60 oo 

$3) 53315 s ()() 
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$.00 
.00 
()() 

571.744.72 

$28,758.00 (4%) 
17,000.00 (4%) 
7,000.97 (15.30%) 
1,437.90 (5%) 
7,169.41 

561.366.28 

$28,471.68 (4%) 
2,178.08 (7.65%) 
1,423.58 (5%) 
6,742.99 

538.816,33 

$27,835.09 (4%) 
2,129.38 (7.65%) 
1,391.75 (5%) 
3,716.16 

$35.072.38 

$.00 
.00 
.00 
.00 

$()() 

1999 
d C·rculation Manager/ Yearbook Coordinator Con/a 1 60% 

Salary 
Social Security 
Retirement 
Insurance (60%) 

Uft'Disobility 
Hospital 
Oenrul 

Part-time Worker 
Soloty (104 ~) 
Social Security 

s 226.73 
4,21 4.59 

351 79 

$15,440.68 (4%) 
1,181.21 (7.65%) 

772.03 (5%) 
4,793.11 ' 

522.187.03 

s 351.11 
4,844.28 

408.24 

$6,991.46 ($8.40 hr.) 
534.85 0.65%) 

$7.526.31 

2000 

$26,764.51 (4%) 
2,047.49 (7.65%) 
1,338.23 (5%) 
5,603.63 

$35.753.86 

s 365.16 
5,925.48 

436 39 

s 7,271.12 ($8.74 hr.) 
556.24 0.65%) 

57.827.36 

Convention Budget 

2001 

$27,835.09 (4%) 
2,129.38 (7.65%) 
1,391.75 (5%) 
6,727.03 

538.083.25 

$7,562.88 ($9.09 hr.) 
578.56 0.65%) 

$8.141.44 

National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. 
July 16-22, 2000 

Anaheim, California 

Proieded Expenditures 1998 1999 
Tulsa Atlanta 

Aud'ttorium $47,550.00 $59,500.00 
PrinfiJJJ ooo Prolootioo 28,139.70 29,332.75 
Convenfioo Office 18,074.00 19,891.00 
Comenoon Pmomel 10,789.89 10,038.85 

Moob 2,280.00 2,376.00 
Travel 3,421.50 2,682.00 
Lodg~ 5,088.39 4,980.85 

Convenfioo Officio~ 7,619.81 12,492.28 
Hooororilms 1,350.00 2,900.00 
0eroro1or Services 6,176.00 22,147.00 
Mool FunctK!rri 1,858.75 2,925.00 
ExooJiiYe Convnittee Mool 000 /k1el Experries 1,800.00 2,100.00 
Pre-Convention bpensffi 15,000.00 18,000.00 

Total S138 358.15 sm 326 88 

Projeded Receipts Sll 
650 00 

$24,075.00 
Booth Fees I • 050 00 
Slole Am. RBJlfesenloOOn Fees ($50 pee chlrch) 62,350.00 56, · 
Locol Owrch Delegale Fees (SSO) 1,600.00 1,700.00 
Host Slole (ColibnKI) 12,000.00 30•000·00 
Ol!ri 44,758.15 67,501 .88 

Total rgs $138.358.15 $179.326.88 
Coaveatioa Budget 
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2000 
Anaheim 
$67,350.00 

28,997.00 
36,600.00 
16,022.00 

2,805.00 
8,404.50 
4,812.50 

14,184.50 
2,900.00 

17,103.00 
3,128.75 
3,150.00 

28,100.00 
S2lZ 535.25 

$11,050.00 
123,800.00 

2,500.00 
15,000.00 
65,185.25 

$217.535.25 



National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. 
July 16-20, 2000 

Anaheim, California 
Proieded Receipts 1998 1999 

Booth Fees s 17,650.00 s 2000 
Slate~.~ Foos (SSO llEJ moo) 62,350.00 24,075.00 S 11,050.00 
local ChurdJ Delegate Fees ($50) 1,600.00 

5f:~~:~ 123,800.00 
~.smte (wlibrnXI) 12,ooo.oo 2,500.00 
VI!!:OIYJS 44 758 J$ 30,000.00 )5,000.00 

T~J ----~S~J38~J~58.~15~----~67~:50~1.8~8 ______ ~6~~18~5.25 
' ' $179.326.88 $217.535.25 

Proieded Expenditures 
Auditorium 

T~l 

Renml 
Meeting Rooms 
wnvenfion 8ollllef 
flo\wts 
Police Security 
Convention Topes 
Other 

Music Slooo Rentol (Decorator) 
Souoo Systerr{AV Equipment 
Usle Badges 
li'lb.,AS(AP, BMI,Ins. 
First AA1 SIDff 
Courtesy (or 

Offering Budets 
Signs 
Union PeM!ne/ 

Printing and Promotion 
Publicity and Art Work 
Photos 
Convention Nmerio~ 

350.00 
20,000.00 

200.00 
800.00 

1,500.00 
150.00 
100.00 
250.00 

.00 

$15,400.00 
4,600.00 

300.00 
150.00 

3,500.00 
250.00 

23,350.00 

$47.550.00 

Prc.:lrom 3,625.00 
Song SOOeWCQJ Ucense 502.20 

$13,000.00 
700.00 

11,439.70 

Digest ci RefXJfls 7,312.50 

$26,500.00 
.00 
.00 

150.00 
5,000.00 

250.00 
27,600.00 

1,800.00 
24,000.00 

200.00 
1,000.00 

0.00 
150.00 
200.00 
250.00 

.00 

2,800.25 
1,000.00 
7,532.50 

$59.500.00 

$14,000.00 
500.00 

11,332.75 

200.00 
25,000.00 

200.00 
1,000.00 
1,500.00 

150.00 
0.00 

400.00 
13,000.00 

$20,500.00 
.00 
.00 

150.00 
5,000.00 

250.00 
41,450.00 

$67.350.00 

$16,000.00 
200.00 

9,297.00 

Pre-Convention Printing 
(s ndo 3,000.00 3 500 00 3 500 00 
u y (News pre-prin~, coeier reimb.) ' . ' . 

1,955.00 
500.00 

6,842.00 

1~1 ~~ssn2aUJ39~.7on-----~~~-----=~-
S29.332.75 $28,997.00 

Convention Office 
Convention Manager 
Pre-Registration CoordinoiOr 
Registrofforv'Pre-Reg. (Supptles, Pstg.) 
Regislrotion Computerv'Printers 
Poper ooo Printing Supplies 
Equipment Renmls 

Copiers (2yPoper 2,000.00 

(o
T)1leM'iters (2) I 00.00 

mputers, Printers-
OffiWRegistrolion 1,000.00 

KI~WTmsh Cons, et (OIIKB) 424.00 

$ .00 
.00 

3,000.00 
3,000.00 
2,000.00 
3,524.00 

1,700.00 
200.00 

1,000.00 
1,316.00 

A- 46 

$ .00 
.00 

5,000.00 
3,000.00 
1,000.00 
4,216.00 

2,100.00 
.00 

500.00 
1,400.00 

$12,000.00 
3,000.00 
7,500.00 
3,000.00 

400.00 
4,000.00 

-

1998 
Tdepoone 600.00 

During Convention (Office) 300.00 
Pr~st Convenoon 300.00 

Office ExpenWSuppfies 2,500.00 
Posloge 800.00 
Musical Instruments Renlol and Service 2,650.00 

500.00 
300.00 

1999 
800.00 

3,500.00 
800.00 

1,575.00 

500.00 
300.00 

P'KJn<Yfuning 1,600.00 425.00 425.00 
forklift I 50.00 150.00 175.00 
Organ Shipping 600.00 .00 700.00 

2000 
800.00 

3,500.00 
800.00 

1,600.00 

~( --=300~.00~~~--~1=000=.00~~~---=300=.00~~~ 
~ =====$~18~.07~4.00~====~$1~9.8~91~.00~=====~~6~.@~.00~ 

Convention Personnel 
Meals 
~ri Goodfellow (24 roools@ $11 .00 ooch) $270.00 $264.00 $264.00 
Melody Hood (33 rooo~ @ $11.00 eoch) 300.00 330.00 363.00 
Steve Pote (24 meals@ $11.00 ooch) 210.00 198.00 264.00 
Cheri Hom {27 mools@ $11.00 eoch) 300.00 297.00 297.00 
5ooJity Officer (27 moo~@ $11.00 ooch) .00 .00 297.00 

Doonoo Hollifield (21 moo~ @ $11.00 ooch) 180.00 198.00 231.00 
Jock Williams (36 mools@ $11.00 each) 360.00 396.00 396.00 
AMe WorlhiiYJIOn (27 roook@ $11.00 ooch) 300.00 297.00 297.00 
Melvin Worthington (36 mook @ $11.00 ooch) ~360~.00~------~39~6.=00 ______ --.,.....!!39~6.~00 

T~ ~~~.28~0.00~======~$2~.37~6.~00======~~~.W~5.~00 
Travel 
~ri ~fellow $396.50 $186.00 $209.00 
Melody Ho00 193.00 186.00 230.00 
Marilyn Pritchard 193.00 186.00 .00 
5ooKity Officer .00 .00 230.00 
Press Olficef .00 .00 .-_ 214.50 
Stwe Pute~rons.Coord.,rentoO 2,000.00 1,500.00 6,fXXl.OO 
MoteVMoo~ on rood (21 mools@ $11 .00 ooch) 60.00 66.00 831.00 

Jod: WiltKJms 193.00 186.00 230.00 
Ame Worthing1on 193.00 186.00 230.00 
MeMn Worthington _____.,!1=93=.00:....__ ______ __:1=86=.00::__ ______ __:2=30=.00 

T~ ~~~.42~1.~50=======5~2.~~2~.00======~~~,40~4.~50 

Lodging 
Don Goodfellow (9 n~hts@ $137.50) $803.43 $1,277.01 $1,237.50 
Melody Ho00 (10 n~hls@ $137.50) 803.43 1,418.90 1,375.00 
Slt\te fute (8 ~his@ $137.50) 714.16 1,007.93 1,100.00 
<heri Hom (8 !Vghts@ $137.50) 803.43 1,277.01 1,100.00 
Jock Williams 981.97 .00 .00 
MeMn WorlhiiYJion ~98::.:-:.1.~97 ______ ----=-~·:;:::00 ______ ---=-~~·00 

Total (lrxit.des oppt~mble m orx1 IX!rking) ~$5~.08~8.3~9 =======$4~.9~80~.85~=======$4~.81~2.50~ 

Convention Officials 
Modetalor- Cnri Cheshier $1,216.00 

TM {3,000 rn1es@ $.32518 lliE) 97.50 
(Fmn<Wmo Gtf, (l m Mll8m (A) 
Meols (30 mools@ $11.00 eoch) 210.00 
llxlging (10 rights@ $137.50) 508.50 
Hooororium 400.00 
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$2,252.94 
620.00 

297.00 
935.94 
400.00 

$3,080.00 
975.00 

330.00 
1,375.00 

400.00 



1998 1999 2000 1998 1999 2000 Clerk - Keith Burden 1,216.00 2,252.94 3,080.00 Meal Functions T~ (3,(00 miks@ S.3251XJ mif) 97.r:J.J 620.00 975.00 Exocufive Convnittee $580.00 $838.50 s 1,000.00 
(Fmn Tlf.o, OK kl/rol8m (A) 

Coffee Blools (2) 250.00 250.00 250.00 
Meo~ (30 mook@ $11.00 eod!) 210.00 297.00 330.00 luochoon (30 ~@ $25.00) 330.00 588.50 750.00 lodging (1 0 nighls @ $137.50) 508.50 935.94 1,375.00 GeoeroiBoord Brookfost (55 ~~ @ $1615) 536.25 882.75 893.75 Hooororium 400.00 400.00 400.00 SIOie Leode!S Brooki:Jst (45 poople @ $1615) 438.75 722.25 731.25 Assistant Moderator -Tim York 789.96 1,133.94 1,193.50 SIOte Exec.Soc/Promo.Oirocrors' Brooki:Jst 243.75 401 .25 406.25 
Meo~ (21 mook @ $11.00 eoch) 180.00 198.00 231.00 (25 poo~e@ $16.25) lodging (} n~hls@ $137.50) IIJ9.96 935.94 962.50 Presidoots' Brookbst (6 poople @ $16.25) IIJ.OO 80.25 97.50 Assistant Clerk -John Hibbard 641.04 1,133.94 1,193.50 Total S1.858.75 S2,925.oo $3.128.75 
Meals (21 moo~ @ $11.00 eoch) 180.00 198.00 231 .00 
lodging (7 n~hls@ $137.50) 461.04 935.94 962.50 Executive Committee Usher Coordinator - Raymond lee 535.62 923.94 962.50 Mool And Motel &penses (For the Executive Committee Meeting prior 10 the 2000 Nalioool Convention) . Lodging (7 n~hls @ $137.50) Gene Norris $300.00 Gene Norris $350.00 Gene Norns $350.00 Music Coordinator - Randy Sawyer 593.25 461 .97 1,100.00 Nothon Rub~ 300.00 Nothon Rub~ 350.00 Nathan Ruble 350.00 Lodging (8 n~hls @ $137.50) 

Jad Ricflet 300.00 Jod Ridley 350.00 Jod: Richty 350.00 Pianist-Jerry Carraway IIJ9.96 923.94 687.50 Goo Johnson 300.00 Delmar Sporls 350.00 Delmar Sparks 350.00 lodging (5 n~hls @ $137 .50) 
llovid Joslin 300.00 IXJVid Joslin 350.00 lmMl Joslin 350.00 Organist-Jamie Patrick 508.30 769.95 1,100.00 COOrles Th~poo 300.00 COOrles Thigpoo 350.00 COOrles Th~pen 350.00 lodging (5 n~hls @ $153. 99) J. L Gore 350.00 RegistraHon Coordinator lodging 624.89 1,077.93 .00 Millard SaSSE~ 350.00 Press Offimr -lorry Hampton 461.04 851.34 962.50 ~celkNtster 350.00 lodging (} n~hls@ $137.50) 

Total Sl.800.00 S2.JOO.oo $.3, 150.00 Photographer- Eddie Payne 423.75 709.45 825.00 lodging (6 n~hls@ $137.50) 
Pre-Convention Expenses 

$10,000.00 
Total (lndOOes applicable lax and parking) SZ.619.81 Sl2.~22.28 SJ4.184,50 Exocutive Convnitlee 

Honorariums Gerry Ritrhie $150.00 John M~l $2,000.00 H. B. loodoo $2,000.00 Nominating Committee 1,500.00 
14,000.00 lD~ l.odloor 150.00 Tim Thompson 150.00 Paul Kennedy 150.00 Pre-Convention Meeting~te lnspedioos 
2.600.00 Rardy Wilson 150.00 Oiff Donoho 150.00 Winslon Sv.wney 150.00 Advance Convention Center Deposi1s 

$18,000.00 s 28,100.00 OovidTa~r 150.00 Donny Wilnams 150.00 Ed Cook 150.00 Total $15 000.00 
Edy,;n Hayes 150.00 Kent Barwick 150.00 Ooug~ng 150.00 
Eugene Waddell 150.00 Roger Hogan 150.00 Tim (}.wn 150.00 
George lynn 150.00 Rob Morgan 150.00 Oovid Shores 150.00 
J. L Gore 150.00 
Thurmon Murphy 150.00 

Total S1,350.oo Suoo.oo $2,900.00 

Decorator Services 
Boofls (81) lnslol~ T~"fj H~ ~ $2,059.00 $14,455.00 $2,600.00 Stoge 2,056.00 2,248.00 10,139.00 
~Sd-U~ 974.00 1,600.00 8,539.00 
Slirtal TobleVCOOirs 94.00 148.00 200.00 Corpet 667.00 .00 900.00 Hanging Bomer .00 500.00 500.00 UsOO.. Room Renlol 321.00 .00 .00 Exhibitor Badges 300.00 300.00 300.00 Conventioo Office ~~\WV radio) .00 1,344.00 1,334.00 Registration 1,761.00 3,800.00 2,730.00 Desks 175.00 1, 920.00 500.00 Skirted Tables 390.00 880.00 800.00 COO irs 600.00 500.00 850.00 Electrioly/Mosking Drope 300.00 300.00 300.00 EaseiVTrosh Ca~rpet 296.00 200.00 280.00 Total S6, 176.00 S22,147.oo s 17.103.00 
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2001 2000 
Contact Budget Gift Goals for Executive OHice 

Proieded Expenses 1999 2000 2001 Printing $42,000.00 $50,000.00 $50,000.00 Postage 17,000.00 13,000.00 15,000.00 Art 1,500.00 2,000.00 1,500.00 Writers' Fees and Photos 4,000.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 Promotion 3,500.00 3,500.00 3,000.00 Computer Service~Supplies 3,500.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 Moil Services 6,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 Telephone 200.00 200.00 200.00 Office Supplies 3,600.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 Travel 2,500.00 2,000.00 3,000.00 
BooWDueyRegistrotion~Bound Copies 1,000.00 2,000.00 2,500.00 Audit 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 Other 1,200.00 1,200.00 1,205.00 Convention Truck .00 .00 200.00 Total Expenses 587~000.00 590~400.00 593,105.00 

States Membership Gift Goals 
Alabama 17,447 $ 31 ,606.11 
Arizona 310 561 .58 
Arkansas 19,657 35,609.64 
California 3,244 5,876.67 
Canada 263 476.44 
Colorado 159 288.04 
Florida 5,846 10,590.32 
Georgia 9,429 17,081.11 
Hawaii 54 97.82 
Idaho 268 485.50 
Illinois 3,334 6,039.71 
Indiana 975 1,766.26 
Kansas 131 237.31 
Kentucky 16,994 30,785.48 
louisiana 65 117.75 
Maryland 1,935 3,505.35 

Proieded Income 
Convention coverage $12,000.00 $13,000.00 $15,000.00" Subscriptions 75,000.00 77,400.00 78,1 05.oo·· Total Income 587,000.00 590,400.00 S93, 105.00 

Mexico 0 .00 
Michigan 3,536 6,405.64 
Mississippi 3,391 6,142.97 
Missouri 15,299 27,714.90 
Montana 14 25.36 

"Three issues 
• • Based on 5,207 subscriptions @ $15.00 per year 

New Jersey 0 .00 
New Mexico 72 130.43 
North Carolina 20,411 36,975.55 
Northeast Assoc. 150 271 .73 
Northwest Assoc. 328 594.19 
Ohio 10,058 18,220.57 
Oklahoma 24,048 43,564.16 
Puerto Rico 20 36.23 
South Carolina 8,793 15,928.96 
South Dakota 0 .00 
Tennessee 22,726 41 ,169.29 
Texas 2,053 3,719.11 
Virgin Islands 200 362.31 
Virginia 4,793 8,682.76 
West Virg inia 9,304 16,854.66 
Wisconsin 42 76.09 

Totals 205,349 $372,000.00 

Gift Goals Per Person $1.81 
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B'IW~ Hill, Harper & Associates 
l ~ Certiii.ed Public Accountants 

Terry A Hill 
Emesl R. Harper 

Independent Auditors' Report 

Executive Committee of the 
General Board of the National 
Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. Rrentwood E•ecuhv<' C('nl.., 

761 Old Hk kory Bnul .. ,·~rd 
Suo~P JO.'l 
R~ntwood, TN .17027 
TEL: 615/377-~85 We have audited the statements of financial position of Building Services 

Fund of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. as of December 
31, 1999 and 1998, and the related statements of activities and changes in net 
assets and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are 
the responsibility of the Fund's management. Our responsibility is to express 
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free 
of material misstatement. An -audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis 
for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of the Building Services Fund of the 
National Association of Free WiiJ Baptists, Inc. as of December 31, 1999 and 
1998, and its changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. 

May 3, 2000 
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BUILDING SERVICES FUND OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 

Statements of Financial Position 

Assets 

Cash and interest bearing deposits 

Accounts receivable 

Prepaid expenses 

Property and equipment: 
Land and land improvements 
Building 
Building services equipment 
Departmental workstations 
Departmental van 

Less accumulated depreciation 

Net property and equipment 

Loan costs, net of amortization 

liabilities and Net Assets 

Notes payable and long-term debt 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 

Total liabilities 

1999 

$ 25,000 

10,596 

2,168 

209,671 
1,309,865 

70,140 
64,135 
131769 

1,667,580 
584,461 

1,083,119 

0 

$ 1,120,883 

$ 68,251 
228 

68,479 

1998 

617 

120,954 

1,623 

209,671 
1,309,865 

69,441 
64,135 
13,769 

1,666,881 
507,230 

1,159,651 

2,889 

1,285,734 

229,619 
5,971 

235,590 

Net assets: 37,536 117,223 
Operations . 932 921 
Net investment in property, plant and eqwpment ___.:1:..!..,0:...:1:......::4~,8:.=6..:..8 ------=-' _ 

Total net assets I ,052,404 1 ,050,144 

$ 1,120,883 1 ,285, 734 
See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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BUilDING SERVICES flJND OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WilL BAPTISTS INC. 

Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Ass~ts 
For the years ended December 3 I, I 999 and I 998 

1998 
Revenues: 
Totals 

Building rental and other revenues 
Sole of property: (note 3) 

Interest income 
Gain recognized 

Contributions, net of campaign expenses 
Reimbursement from departments 
Other 
Recovery of doubtful accounts 
Net assets released from restrictions 

ond departmental reimbursements 

Expenses: 
Net revenues 

Expenses incurred for departments: 
Employee benefits 
The Together Way Plan 
leadership Conference 
Property and liability insurance 
Telephone 
Mailroom and other 
Interest expense - telephone 

Building operating expenses: 
Salaries 
Payroll taxes 
Employee benefits 
Janitorial services 
Depreciation 
Amorfizotion of loon costs 
Audit and legal 
General insurance 
Interest expense 
Supplies and office expense 
Utilities I telephone 
Repairs and maintenance 
Mailroom and other 

Total expenses 
Increase in net assets 
Net assets at beginning of year 
Net assets at ena of year 

Unrestricted fynds 
Semces for 

OpemtjonJ Pepqrtments 

s 243,948 0 

0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 326,471 

1,492 0 
0 0 

333.352 (326.471) 
578,792 0 

173,499 0 
11,940 0 
21,206 0 
22,827 0 
19,530 0 
58,863 0 
3.246 0 

311.111 0 

48,651 0 
3,453 0 

13,240 0 
25,546 0 
77,231 0 
2,889 0 
5,087 0 

14,731 0 
6,838 0 
7,133 0 

23,269 0 
21,472 0 
15.881 0 

265.421 0 
576.532 0 

2,260 0 
1.050.144 0 s 1,052,404 0 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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Capital 
Stewardship 1999 

(amDOian Totals 

0 243,948 243,948 

0 
0 

6,881 
0 
0 
0 

0 
0 

6,881 
326,471 

1,492 
0 

0 
0 

11,430 
334,055 

4,924 
97,500 

(6.881) 0 0 
0 578,792 691,857 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

173,499 
11,940 
21,206 
22,827 
19,530 
58,863 
3.246 

311,111 

181,269 
23,855 
23,397 
32,449 
16,427 
68,552 
1.392 

347,341 

0 48,651 37,010 
0 3,453 2,831 
0 13,240 12,544 
0 25,546 2 4,139 
0 77,231 73,100 
0 2,889 325 
0 5,087 5,853 
0 14,731 12,210 
0 6,838 18,092 
0 7,133 5,973 
0 23,269 25,313 
0 21,472 16,623 
0 15.881 11.226 
0 265.421 245.239 
0 57 6.532 592.580 
0 . 2,260 99,277 
0 1 .050.1 44 950.867 
0 1,052,404 1,050,144 

BUILDING SERVICES flJND OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE Will. BAPTISTS, INC. 

Statements of Cash Flows 
Years ended December 3I, I 999 and I 998 

1999 
Cash Flows from Operatma Activities 
Net increase in net assets $ 2,260 

Adjustments to reconcile net increase in net assets to net cash 
provided (used) by operating activities : 

Depreciation and amortization 
Amortization of loan costs 
Recovery of doubtful accounts 
(Increase) decrease in: 

Receivables 
Prepaid expenses 

Increase (decrease) in: 
Accounts payable and accruals 
Rents collected in advance 

Net operating activities 
Cash Flows from Invesfina Activities 
Purchase of equipment 

Net investing activities 
Ca.t•h Flows from Finaptina Activities 
Proceeds from debt related to telephone system 
Repayment of debt 

Net financing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash 
Cash and cash equivalents, at beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents, at end of year 

Supplemental disclosures: 
Interest paid 

See accompanying notes to fmancial statements. 
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77,231 
2,889 

0 

110,358 
(545) 

(5,743) 
0 

186,450 

(699) 

(699) 

0 
(161,368) 

(161,368) 

24,383 
617 

$ 25,000 

$ 10,084 

1998 

99,277 

73,100 
325 

(97,500) 

5,172 
0 

3,310 
(6, 114) 

77.570 

(52,770) 

(52,770) 

44,003 
(96,553) 

(52,550) 

(27,750) 
28,367 

617 

20,230 



BUilDING SERVICES FlJND OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WilL BAPTISTS, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31, 1999 and 1998 

The Fund operates under the auspices of the National Association of Free Will 
Baptists, Inc. and is governed by a management committee which is chaired by 
the Executive Secretary of the National Assocation of Free Will Baptists, Inc. The 
management committee is composed of the directors of the Departments 
which occupy the National Offices Facility. 

(1) Summary of Silnificant Accountina Policies 

Basis of Presentation 
The financial statements of the Fund have been prepared on the accrual 
basis of accounting. 

The Fund adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 
117, "Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations". Under SFAS No. 
I I 7, the Fund is required to report information regarding its financial posi­
tion and activities according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted net 
assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently restricted net 
assets. In addition, the Fund is required to present a statement of cash 
flows. As permitted by this new statement, the Fund has I discontinued its 
use of fund accounting and has, accordingly, reclassified its financial state­
ments to present the dasses of net assets required. Further, the Fund adopt­
ed SFAS No. I I 6, '~ccounting for Contributions Received and Contributions 
Made," as is required. In accordance with SFAS No. I 16, contributions 
received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or perma­
nently restricted support depending on the existence and I or nature of any 
donor restrictions. 

Property and EQuipment 
Property and equipment are stated at cost Expenditures for maintenance 
and repairs, renewals, and betterments that do not significantly extend the 
useful Jives of assets are expensed as incurred. 

Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method. 

Income Taxes 
The Fund is exempt from Federal and state income taxes; accordingly, no 
provision for income taxes is made in the accounts. 

Cash and Cash Eguiyalents 
For pUipOses of the statement of cash flows, the Fund considers all cash 
funds, cash bank accounts and I highly liquid debt instruments purchased 
with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash and cash equiva­
lents. 

Use of Mtimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accept­
ed accounting principles requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the fmancial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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WING SERVICES FUND OF THE 
B~TIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WilL BAPTISTS, INC. 
~tes to Fmancial Statements, continued 

(I) Summarv of Si&nificant Accountlni Policies. continued 

Compensated Absences titled to aid vacation, paid sick days and personal days off, 
Employ~es of~~ ~~~::f~~~n, Ieng~ of service and other factors. It is ~ractic~l~ .to 
deJ?endin~ on JO t of compensation for future absences, and accordmgly! n~ liability 
estimate e amo~ accom an ·ng financial statements. The Fund's policy IS to rec-
~~:~;~~~d~fdc~:~nsated ~bs~nces when actually paid to employees. 

(2) Notes Payable and Loni-tenn Debt debt and .talized lease obligations is as follows: 
A summary of notes payable and long-term capl 

Notes payable and long-term debt consist of the folio~: 
8 5% mortgage note to the Free Will Baptists Home M1ss1ons Ch~ch 
~tension Loan Fund, Inc secured by a first mortg~e on the National. 
Office Facility, and by the furniture held by the vanous. depa.r_b:lents 
within the National Office Facility. This mortgage req~es rrururn_~ 
monthly payments of $11 ,970 including principal and mter~~: nal 
fmal payment scheduled for June 2000. The Fund makes a <;>d 
principal payments as cash flow permits. Further, the note proVI es 
for revision of the interest rate annually. 

1999 1998 

$ 34,225 188,006 

8.5% installment note to the Free Will ~p~st Foun?ation secured by 
telephone system. This installment obhgauon reqUJr~s monthly 
payments of $903 including principal and interest, With fmal payment 34,026 41,613 
scheduled for August 2003. 

Less scheduled current maturites of notes payable, 
long-term debt 

Long- term portion 

68,251 229,619 

42,483 135,563 
$ 25,768 94,056 

The foUowing is a schedule, by years, of maturities of long term debt as of D~=~ • 1 999· 

2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 

Total maturities of notes payable and long-term debt 

6 
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Debt 
$ 42,483 

8,988 
9,781 
6,999 

$ 68,251 



BUILDING SERVICES FlJND OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 

Notes to Fmancial Statements, continued 

(3) Pension 

·The Fund participates in the master defined contribution pension plan of the 
Board of Retirement and Insurance of the National Association of Free Will 
Baptists, Inc. The plan is contributory and is matched up to a maximum of 
5o/o of earned compensation. Employees may participate at date of 
I employment. Pension expenses amounted to $2,358 in 1999 and $1 ,591 in 
1998. Under the plan, an account is maintained for each participant and 
upon retirement the participant can either receive a lump-sum distribution 
or purchase one of several types of annuity contracts. 

( 4) Accounts Receiyable and Allowance for Master's Men Outstandina Balance 

In prior years an allowance for doubtful collection of amounts owed by the 
Master's Men was recorded I in the financial statements for services provid­
ed, such as monthly rent, insurance and other costs of operations. In April 
of 1999 Master's Men paid their obligation to the Fund in full, accordingly the 
remaining allowance has been reversed as of December 31, 1998 and taken 
into revenues. No additional allowance for potential uncollectible accounts 
is considered necessary. 

(5) Presentation of Financial Statements 

Certain amounts as reported in the 1998 fmancial statements have been 
reclassified to conform to I current year presentation. 

7 
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PROJECTED INCOME 

2001 
Proieded 

Building Services Budget 

1999 2000 

Sqoore foologe (20.329 @ Sl.OO = S20,32t OO 100.) $243,948.00 s 243£948.00 

$243,948.00 $243,948.00 
To4allncome 

PROJECTED EXPENSES $6,000.00 S\0,000.00 
Audit & Legol 3,500.00 3,500.00 Geoerol Supp6es \8,000.00 \3,000.00 lnsurora (Plant) 25,000.00 2\,000.00 Janitorial Services 2,500.00 2,500.00 Joniloriol Supptles 6,500.00 6,500.00 
MoU Room 3,000.00 3,500.00 
Moillnd 30,000.00 
Moinlerooce (GmoV&oorgeocy) \5,000.00 

3,066.55 3,8\3.25 
Poy!~l Taxes (Employer's S.S.) \,000.00 \,000.00 !Wage Meier/UPS \,946.94 \,654.85 Reliremoot 49,846.36 
Salaries 40,085.70 

4,500.00 4,500.00 
Teteprone 28,797.27 25,000.00 Ulilities 
Home hns' Note ~ble 

86,473.75 36,963.92 
Prioo~X~I & lnlefest ~ 

Prind~X~I 70,549.97 34,225.85 
2,738.07 

Interest (8.0%) \5,923.78 
ll,\67.\5 l\,259.55 

lnsurooce (Emp.) 4,000.00 .00 Nel\wrk Expense 
.00 900.00 

Olristnm BonWExtro Wrd: s Solory 
.00 2,420.7\ 

Olha 

Total &penses $243,948.00 $243!948.00 
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2001 

S243t948.00 

$243,948.00 

s \0,000.00 
5,000.00 

\8,000.00 
30,000.00 

2,500.00 
\2,000.00 
3,000.00 

37,086.0\ 
4,395.\5 
\,500.00 
2,305.43 

57,452.97 
4,500.00 

29,000.00 

.00 
.00 
.00 

\2,745.88 
\0,000.00 
l,\04.86 
3£357.70 

s 243£948.00 



BUILDING SERVICES 
SALARY BREAKDOWN 

1999 
Maintenance Superintendent 

2000 

Salary 
Social Security 
Insurance 

Dental 586.22 

$22,803.12 (4%) 
1,744.44 (7.65%) 
7,971.74 

$23,71 5.24 (4%) 
1,814.22 (7.65%) 
7,971 .74 

2001 

$24,663.85 (4%) 
1,886.78 (7.65%) 
9,097.36 

Health 7,024.32 
lif&I'Oisobility 361.20 

Retirement 1, 140.16 5%) 
33,659.46 

586.22 
7,024.32 
361 .20 

626.87 
8,109.29 

361.20 

Receptionist 
40% 

Salary SIO 
Social Security •293.78 ( 4%) 
Insurance 787.47 (7·65%) 

3,195.41 

1,185.76 5% 
34,686.96 

Sl 5,223.60 (4%) 
I, I 64.61 (7.65%) 
3,287.81 Dental 234.53 

Health 2,809.73 222.42 238.00 
or..m,·sob,.l,·ty 151.15 2,77l.28 3 I 16 12 

R 
' I~ U 288.11 1 

• 

1 ,233. I 9 (5%) 
36,881.18 

$21,444.80 (4%) 
1,640.53 (7.65%) 
3,648.52 

ettrement 514.69 (S%) 294.40 
-~S1~~~79fJ.3~5~~--~~76tl.I~8J(~S%~l----~1.~07~2.2~4j(~S%~)--

~Q437.M ~~M~M 

Receptionist 
Salary (52 days) 
Social Security 

Part-time Worker 
Salary (I 04 days) 

Social Security 

S.OO (4o/cV8.40 hr.) 
. 00 (7.65%) 

$.00 
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$3,635.84 ( 4o/cV8.7 4 hr.) 
.00 (7.65%) 

$3,913.98 

3,781.44 (49(¥9.09 hr.) 
289.28 

$4,070.72 

Master's Men Report 
Jesus challenges us to open our eyes to the fields and see the oppor­

tunities of harvest (John 4:35). That is especially true when the need of 
winning men to the Lord is considered. In America there are approxi­
mately 94 million males age 18 and older. Of that number only about 26 
million attend a church service on a typical weekend. Research also indi­
cates that only about 27 million men read some portion of the Bible each 
week. The other 67 million do not open God's word even though 80o/o of 
them own at least one Bible. Only 30 million of those men profess to be 
born again Christians. That leaves 60 million plus American men who 
need to be reached with the gospel of Jesus Christ. 

Many believe that a tremendous revival has taken place in the decade 
of the 90's among American men. Data gathered by the Barna Research 
Group tells a different story. Since 1991 their surveys indicate that church 
attendance, Bible reading, Sunday School attendance, volunteering at 
church, and giving to the church has all decreased among men. Though 
some men individually have made significant progress in their spiritual 
growth, current trends demonstrate that the majority is in spiritual decline. 

Perhaps one of the greatest challenges of the twenty-first century church 
will be effectively reaching out to and winning American men to Jesus. 
Failure to make the evangelism of men a priority will continue to have a detri­
mental effect on our homes, communities, churches, and denomination If 
current trends continue in our society, millions of children will grow up with­
out having the influence of a godly father in their home or a godly man in 
their life. Future generations of Free Will Baptist will face a serious shortfall 
of leadership unless men are evangelized and equipped to serve the Savior . 

That is why Master's Men Ministry is needed. Our department seeks 
to assist our pastors, churches, and national departments to do all that we 
can to reach men and their families with the gospel. 

This year marks the forty-fifth year of the existence of the Department 
of Master's Men. As we continue to labor we are seeking to accomplish 
several things. First, we are working hard to raise the awareness of our 
pastors and churches of the great need to develop and implement local 
church ministries and strategies that will result in the winning of men to 
Christ. Secondly, we are providing opportunities for the training of leaders 
through workshops and published resources. Thirdly, we are continuing 
to develop Bible study materials for our local churches to use in then spir­
itual development of their men. In 1999 the first two Bible studies of the 
Direction Bible Study Series were released. The studies entitled, "Become 
A Man Who Prays" and "Pure Man" have been very well received. The 
third in this series has just been completed. It is titled, "Winning Men," 
and focusing on equipping our men to do personal evangeHsm. 

This past year (I 999) has been busy but blessed. In March of 1999 the 
Master's Men Department achieved debt free status by paying off our 
indebtedness to Free Will Baptist Building Services. In October the 
National Master's Men Department launched "Operation Saturation" in 
Pittsburgh, Pa. Men from five states rallied to assist missionary Tom Jones 
in placing the gospel in approximately 2500 homes. The event not only 
encouraged the missionary and mission church, it also challenged the 
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men from the participating churches to see their responsibility in reaching 
out to their own communities with the gospel. One pastor wrote and said: 

"Our men are eager to do something like this here in our community 
now. In the weeks before "Roll Call Sunday," we are going to have our 
own "Operation Saturation" and reach every home in our area with the 
gospel. Thank you for this wonderful opportunity. We received far more 
out of it than we put into it." 

I believe the potential of "Operation Saturation" is tremendous. On 
September 30, 2000 we are planning a National Operation Saturation event. 
This event is for every Free Will Baptist. Simultaneously at Home Missions 
Sites we will be saturating communities with packets of materials about 
our missionary churches along with a clear presentation of the gospel. 

Because of the Lord's provision, Master's Men has recently increased its 
staff. Mr. Kenneth Akers has been employed to serve as the Director of 
Ministry Development He will be responsible to work closely with pastors 
and seek to enlist new churches into the National Master's Men program. He 
will also be available to provide training sessions for pastors and key laymen 
to equip them to start and implement men's ministry in the local church. 

Finally, let me say that we praise the Lord for His abundant blessings 
in this past year and we sincerely appreciate each one who supported 
Master's Men. 

Serving the Master, 
Tom Dooley 
General Director 

Summary of 1999 Board Activity 
March 30, 1999 

The board of Master's Men met at the offices of Master's Men. The board 
voted to pay off the debt owed to Free Will Baptist Building Services 
($93,480.34). A recess was taken to bring Executive Secretary Melvin 
Worthington to our office and officially present him with a check for 
$95,000. The Budget for 2000 was presented and approved. 

July 21, 1999 
The board of Master's Men met at the National Convention in Atlanta, 

Georgia. The board approved the beginning of a new "Build A House" 
project to be directed by board m ember John Fowlkes. A job description 
for the position of Director of Ministry Development was presented and 
approved by the board. 

December 8, 1999 

The board of Master's Men met at the offices of Master's Men. The 
board of Master's Men officially endorsed the National Operation 
Saturation. Reports were heard concerning the Direction Bible Study 
Series, Family Enrichment Conferences, and the Pittsburgh Operation 
Saturation event. 
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• 

MICHAEL JOHNSTON 

The Board of Directors 

Certified Public Accountant 

13166 Lake Benton Road 
Benton, Illinois 62812 

Telephone: (618)439-0610 

The Master's Men, a Department of the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists 
Antioch, Tennessee 

I have audited the accompanying balance sheets of The Master's Men, a 
Department of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, as of 
December 31, 1999 and 1998, and the related statements of activity and 
changes in fund balance and cash flows for the years then ended. These 
financial statements are the responsibility of the Board of Directors. My 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based 
on my audit. 

I conducted my audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing stan­
dards. Those standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evi­
dence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and signif­
icant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation. I believe that my audit provides a reason­
able basis for my opinion. 

In my opinion, the aforementioned financial statements present fairly the 
financial position of The Master's Men, a Department of the National 
Association of Free Will Baptists, at December 31 , 1999 and 1998 and the 
results of its operations and the cash flows for the years then ended, in con­
formity with generally accepted accounting principles applied on a consis­
tent basis. 

Benton, Illinois 
May 15, 2000 

Certified Public Accountant 

Member of American Institute of Certified Public Accountants 
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'S MEN A DEPARTMENT OF THE 
NA~~:~~;:OCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

BALANCE SHEET 
December 31, 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash · 
Trust account - Build A House cam~algn 
Trust account- Lifetime membership 

Investments . 
Accrued interest rece1vable 
Inventories . 
Cash value of endowment Insurance 

Total current assets 

NOTES RECEIVABLE (Note 4) 

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net (Note 2) 

CAPITALIZED LEASE, net (Note 3) 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 
Deferred revenue (Note 5) 
Accrued expenses 

Total current liabilities 

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT) (Note 6) 
Unrestricted 
Restricted 

1999 

$ 5,849 
869 

103,563 
206,474 

539 
0 

3,794 

$321 ,088 

53,000 

9,560 

2,310 

$385,958 

$3,098 
1,560 

514 

$5,172 

$206,567 
174,219 

1998 

$ 3,189 
15.774 

101,992 
146,088 

4,129 
0 

4,085 

$275,257 

17,000 

8,671 

2,511 

$303,439 

$93,379 
796 
144 

$94,319 

$47,897 
161 ,223 

Total capital 
$380,786 $209,120 

Total liabilities and capital 
$385,958 $303,439 

. notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
The accompanying 
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NA~~~~~~~~:i.~: g~~~~~~~[ ~=:i:~TS 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITY AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

Years ended December 31 
' 

REVENUE 
Dues from members 
Cooperative program 
Merchandise sales 
Interest and dividend income 
G~in (loss) on sale of investments 
G1fts and other income 

EXPENSES 
Salaries and wages 
Payroll taxes and employee benefits 
Cost of sales and printing 
Travel expense 
Conferences and conventions 
Office expense 
Postage 
Promotion expense 
Rent expense 
Professional fees 
Bookkeeping expense 
Depreciation 
Amortization 
Interest expense 
Insurance expense 
Dues, subscriptions and fees 
M~s~er's Hands construction expense 
M1ss1ons projects 

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENSES 
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT) AT BEGINNING 

OF YEAR 

RETAINED EARNINGS, ENDING 

Unrestricted Restricted 
1999 
Total 

1998 
Thml-

$ 11,118 $ 0 $ 11,118 $ 9,230 
57,925 0 57,925 55,037 

987 0 987 449 
15,172 0 15,172 7,054 
59,890 0 59,890 2,854 

171,151 15,235 186,386 191,638 

$316,243 $ 15,235 $331 ,478 $266,262 

$ 61 ,631 $ 0 $ 61 ,631 $ 33,374 
12,640 0 12,640 6,069 
8,419 0 8,419 6,059 

15,039 0 15,039 6,288 
4,610 0 4,610 4,491 
5,217 0 5,217 2,282 
2,939 0 2,939 1,054 

22,582 0 22,582 17,961 
20,292 0 20,292 16,910 

675 0 675 950 
975 0 975 825 

1,531 0 1,531 976 
201 0 201 201 

0 0 0 0 
0 291 291 0 

822 0 822 2,569 
0 0 0 0 
0 1,948 1,948 0 

$157,573 $ 2,239 $159,812 $100,009 

$158,670 $ 12,996 $171 ,666 $166,253 

47,897 161 ,223 209,120 42,867 

$206,567 $174,219 $380,786 $209,120 

The accompanying n t . o es are an Integral part of the financial statements. 
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THE MASTER'S MEN, A DEPARTMENT OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
Years ended December 31, 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Revenue over (under) expenses 
Adjustments to reconcile to net cash 
Depreciation 
Amortization 
Gain on sale of investments 
Changes in assets and liabilities 
Change in inventories 
Change in accrued interest receivable 
Change in accounts payable 
Change in deferred revenue 
Change in accrued expenses 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

1999 

$171 ,666 

1,531 
201 

(59,890) 

0 
3,590 

(90,281) 
764 
370 

$27,951 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Reductions (additions) to trust accounts $13,334 
Additions to investments (125, 121) 
Sales of investments 124,625 
Reductions (additions) to cash value of insurance 291 

1998 

$166,253 

976 
201 

(2,854) 

540 
(1 ,530) 

(19,576) 
(810) 
(907) 

$142,293 

$5,323 
(166,076) 

22,842 
(324) 

(1 ,390) Additions to property and equipment (2,420) -------------------
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) 

INVESTING ACTIVITIES $ 10,709 $(139,625) 
----~------~----~ 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Addition to notes receivable $(53,000) 
Proceeds from notes receivable 17,000 

----~-------------

$ 0 
0 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES $(36,000) $ 0 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH 
EQUIVALENTS $ 2,660 $ 2,668 

CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 3,189 521 

CASH AT END OF YEAR $ 5,849 $ 3,189 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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THE MASTER'S MEN, A DEPARTMENT OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31 , 1999 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Following is a summary of the significant accounting policies of The Master's Men, a 
Department of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, hereafter referred to as the 
Department. 

GOVERNMENT -The Department operates under the auspices of the National Association of 
Free Will Baptists and is governed by a Board of Directors. 

RECEIVABLES AND ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFULACCOUNTS- Receivables are present­
ed in the financial statements at the amount deemed collectible by management. Any provision 
for doubtful accounts is recognized using the direct wr~e-off method. 

INVESTMENTS- The investments are valued at the lower of cost or market. For gifts, the cost 
is determined by the fair market value of the security at the time of the gift. 

INVENTORIES -The inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market, with cost being 
determined by using the first-in, first-out method. 

PROPERTY, EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION - Property and equipment are presented in 
the financial statements at cost and are depreciated by the straight-line method over the esti­
mated useful lives of the assets of 3-20 years. 

INCOME TAXES -The Department is exempt from federal and state income taxes; accordingly, 
no provision for income taxes is made in the financial statements. 

NOTE 2 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

The following is a summary of property and equipment owned by the Department at December 31 ,: 

Equipment and furniture 
Less: accumulated depreciation 
Property and equipment, net 

NOTE 3 - CAPITALIZED LEASES 

1999 
$27,460 

17,900 
$ 9,560 

1998 
$25,040 

16,369 
$ 8,671 

The National Association of Free Will Baptists purchased an office building to house various 
departments and agencies of the denomination. The Board of Directors has entered into an 
agreement to lease space in this new building and agreed to contribute to the debt service costs 
during the construction period and to continue until the debt has been retired. The construction 
period costs of $4,018 were capitalized and will be amortized over a period of twenty years. 
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HE MASTER'S MEN, A DEPARTMENT OF THE 
NA~IONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31 , 1999 

NOTE 4 _ NOTES RECEIVABLE 

. . mary of the Department's notes receivable at December 31 ,: 
Follow1ng 1s a sum 

1999 1998 

Note receivable from John Fowlkes, Vilonia, 
Arkansas; 7%; dated 11/8/99; due on demand 

Note receivable from John Fowlkes, Vilonia, 
Arkansas; 9%; dated 4/21/95; due on demand 

NOTE 5 - DEFERRED REVENUE 

$53,000 

0 
$53.000 

$ 0 

17.000 
$17.000 

. t f dues golf tournament fees, and meal tickets received for future 
Deferred revenue cons1s s o • 
years as of December 31, 1999 and 1998. 

NOTE 6- RESTRICTED FU.ND BALANdCE. ted for specific projects and consists of the fol-
The restricted fund balance IS revenue eslgna 
lowing as of December 31, : 

Mission projects 
Build A House campaign 
Lifetime Membership 
Master's Hands projects 
Endowment insurance 

-6-
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1999 
$ 6,648 

48,676 
105,808 

12,450 
637 

$174,219 

1998 
$ 8,566 

33,556 
105,723 

12,450 
928 

$161 ,223 



Proposed Budget for 2001 
Expenses 

Assistant Diredor 
Office ·operations Solory 

Rent $20,292 Retirement 
Equipment and Supplies Insurance 8,000 
Telephon~ 3,000 Total 
Postage 2,800 Office Staff Total $34,092 Salaries 

Accounting FICA 
Bookkeeping s 900 Medicare 
Audit 1,500 Insurance 

Total Toto I s 2,400 
Total Salaries 

Resource Development 
Attock Newsletter s 8,400 Ministry Development 
Direction Bible Studies 4,000 Convention Booth 
Printed Materials Family Enrichment Conference 2,600 
Postage 3,400 Moster's Men Leadership Training 

Total $18,400 Total 
Total Expenses Travel 

Travel $16,300 
Boord Trove/ Income 3,000 Total Dues Income $19,300 

Rest of the Fomily Offering Salaries The Together Woy 
General Director Softball 

So lory $30,600 
Golf 

Housing 19,800 
Gifts 

Retirement 2,460 Family Enrichment Conference 
Insurance Promotional Soles 

8,400 Total Resource Soles 
$61,260 Endo~ent Income 

Total Income 

Salary Breakdown 
Diredor 
So lory 
Housing 
Retirement 
Insurance 
Social Se<Urily 
Total 

1999 
$39,911 

0 
1,945 
8,925 
2,921 

$53,702 

2000 
$28,200 
19,800 
2,400 
8,000 

0 
$58,400 

2001 
$30,600 

19,800 
2,460 
8,400 

0 
$61,260 
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s 43,200 
2,160 
81400 

s 53,760 

s 22,500 
1,395 

330 
0 

s 24)25 
$138,045 

s 1,000 
1,000 
3,000 

s 5,000 
$218,437 

s 40,000 
1,000 

64,200 
4,000 
4,000 

89,900 
2,000 
2,000 
2,000 
9,337 

$218,437 

Greetings: 

Home Missions 
Report on 1 999 

The year 1999 has surpassed all previous years in the history of the 
National Home Missions Department. The following twenty-one couples 
were sent to the field: Chang Hyo Choo, Baldwin Park, CA; Alexandre 
Drozdov, Rockford, IL; Gary Elder, Madison, MS; Chris Fannin, Puerto Rico; 
Clayton Hampton, Clarksville, TN; Ki Sun Hwang, Los Angeles, CA; Gustavo 
Jasso, Memphis, TN; Woo-Jong Kang, Gardena, CA; Sun Gug Kim, Los 
Angeles, CA; Soon Young Lee, Glen Burnie, MD; Tim Lewis, Ogden, UT; 
Charles Lotz, Northglenn, CO; Dr. Thomas Marberry, Reynosa, MX; Rick 
Morris, Chandler, AZ; David Roy, Puerto Rico; Vitali Rozhko, Santa Barbara, 
CA; Todd Smith, Aiken, SC; Dr. Mark Braisher, Overland Park, KS; Dr. Andrei 
Chirine, Philadelphia, PA; Victor Nafatyuk, Charlotte, NC; Duck-Chun Lee, 
Atlanta, GA. To God be the glory! 

* The Home Missions Department established a new income record of 
$4,311 ' 131.77. 

* This was the first year for our new magazine, AIM (Advancing in 
Missions). 

* The Foreign Missions Department and the Home Missions Department 
joined together in printing a world prayer guide. The two departments 
also jointly sponsored a speaker, Ron Owen, at the national conven­
tion who lifted and challenged our hearts to worship. 

* We had another great missionary training conference of approxi­
mately 130 missionaries and pastors attending. 

* We had the following five missionary churches to go self-supporting: Ron 
MacMillan, Plymouth, MA; Mark Thomas, Greeley, CO; Odis Whitehead, 
Jacksonville, FL; Cliff Donoho, Davenport, lA; Curtis Alligood, Pinellas 
Park, FL. 

* C.E.L.F. approved twenty-three new loans totaling $3,838,846.42! 
* Goals for 2000 - * Rev. Richard Atwood has accepted the post of Director 

of Ministry and Helps and will be assisting our pastors and churches. His 
first assignment will be to launch a new program, I 000 In 2000, to place 
the gospel in one million homes in 2000. He will also assist in Operation 
Saturation, a project that will be of tremendous help in every home mis­
sions church. 

* The Home Missions Department and Free Will Baptist College will be 
joining forces in starting a mission church in Nashville, Tennessee, to 
help train future pastors and church planters. 

The Home Missions Department needs your prayers and financial help as 
we continue to advance in the cross-cultural ministry. Presently, we have 
twelve Korean and five Russian Free Will Baptist mission churches, plus a host 
of Hispanic churches. We must keep advancing on all fronts. Church planting 
must be a priority. It is our greatest method of fulfilling the Great Commission. 

In His service, 

Trymon Messer 
General Director 
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A Synopsis of Minutes of 
Home Missions Board Meetings for 1999 

May4, 1999 
MSC that the Home Missions Department sponsor the video "VVho Are 

Free Will Baptists?" with the Media Commission for a cost of approximate­
ly $5,000. The commission also has a promotional video that our mission­
aries can use to help in promoting their work. 

MSC that the Board discussed starting a Division of Ministry and Helps 
and to begin researching and collecting ideas for developing a plan to min­
ister to our pastors and churches. 

July 21, 1999 
MSC to approve Soon Lee as Korean cross-cultural missionary to Glen 

Burnie, MD. 

September 22, 1999 
Director Tryrnon Messer discussed the flood situation in North Carolina 

as a result of Hurricane Floyd. A motion was made by Lynn Wood and sec­
onded by Ken Dodson to send $5,000 from Home Missions to Jim Marcum, 
Promotional Secretary for North Carolina. The money is to be given to the 
Free Will Baptists who were victims of the flood. The motion was carried. 

December 6, 1 999 
MSC to accept the two recommendations of the Personnel Committee 

as follows: Appoint Mark Braisher as missionary to Overland Park, Kansas. 
Appoint Duck Chun Lee as missionary to Atlanta, Georgia, pending approval 
of license by his local conference. 

MSC to accept Victor Nafatyuk as missionary to Charlotte, North Carolina, 
and that he join Goshen Free Will Baptist Church, be licensed to preach and 
come under the watch care, guidance, and training of Harold Blankenship. 

MSC that the Board send letters of commendation to the following six 
missionaries for their leadership and hard work in establishing a self-sup­
porting Free Will Baptist church: 

Tom Hunt March 2000 
Danny Keen April 2000 
Ron MacMillan January 2000 
Jose Rodriguez March 2000 
Mark Thomas January 2000 
Odis Whitehead February 2000 

MSC to approve Vitali Rozhko as a cross-cultural joint project with 
California. As per our Board meeting of May 3-5, 1999, he was sent back to 
California for their approval and was approved. 

MSC to send a letter of appreciation and commendation to Thomas 
and Wilma Marberry for the great job they are doing in the transition as 
President of the Seminary of the Cross in Reynosa, Mexico. 

MSC to commend the Oklahoma TSP for including Home Missions in 
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their program. d D Paul Park for his hard work as Representative of 
MSC to commen r. . . s and for his good report. Also, we need 

the Korean cro_ss-;ulturhi altrrruan~a~n of the Free Will Baptist Treatise as well 
mmend him .or s 

~ ~~ 13 follow-up lessons i~o:~~r~~n ~:n~~~~ding work that he is 
MSC to commen? Leoru o ian cross-cultural ministry and for the 

doing as Representa~~~~e~~ ~:sBoard. Also, we need to c~mmend him 
good: report th~t he fsth Free Will Baptist Treatise into the Russian language. 
for his translation o e 

BOARD OF HQMB MISSIONS OF IHE 
NATicmN: ~s0CIATION OF FREE WILL BAPIISTS 

OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMSRICA. INC. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Trustees of the 
Board of Home Missions of the National 
Association of Free Will Baptists of the 
united States of America, Inc . 

Antioch, Tennessee 

We have audited the accompanying statements of financial position of the 
Board of Home Missions of the National Association of Free Will Baptists of 
the United States of America, Inc. (a nonprofit organization) as of December 
31, 1999 and 1998, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for 
the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of 
the Organization's management. OUr responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance wit.h generally accepted auditing 
standards . Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement . An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements . An audit 
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management , as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statements presentation. we believe that our audits provide a reasonable 
basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present 
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Board of Home 
Missions of the National Association of Free Will Baptists of the united 
States of America, Inc. as of December 31, 1999 and 1998 and the changes in 
its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles . 

BOARD OF HQMB MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIO~~QCIATIQN OF FREB WILL BAPTISTS 

wMIDnTEP STATES OF IOOlRI~~ INC . 
s;:t;;;nts of Financial Pos~tion 

December 31~ 1999 and 1998 

assETs 

p.ssetli! 
cash - Note 9 

- Note 6 

Investments 
Investments in Church Extension 

Loan Fund - Note 6 
Accounts receivable - related party 
Inventory - Note 1 
Property and equipment , at cost 
less accumulated depreciation of $96 , 992 

($82 , 918 in 1998) - Notes 1 & 2 
Capitalized lease - Note 3 

LiaBILITIES AND HET A§SEIS 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Deferred compensation - Note 4 

Total liabilities 

Commitments - Notes 7 & 8 

Net aasete 
Unrestricted 
Temporarily restricted - Note 5 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

$ 

1999 

2,856 
415, 626 

1,448,050 
108,000 

5,129 

152,206 
2. 9l4 

S2~ 1U~ 7§l 

$ 19 ,728 
1581981 

178 I 702 

876 , 494 
110791578 

1. 956 I 072 

$211)41781 

See accountants ' report and accompanying 
February 15, 2000 notes to the financial statements . 

- 2 -
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$ 

1998 

269,123 
18,511 

1,263,060 
150,000 

4 , 95 7 

157,520 
51829 

U~869.000 

$ 32,395 
1231475 

1551870 

392,273 
11320.857 

1171).130 

$1.8691000 



BQARD OF HOMB MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL A$SQCIATION OF fREE WILL BAPTISTS 

OF THE UNITED STAtES OF AMERICA. INC. 
Statements of Activities 

For the Years Ended December 3 1 , 1999 and 
1998 

UnreS'tricted 
Revenue : 

Cooperative program 
Designated contributions 
Management fees - Note 6 
Interest income 
Donation of stock 
Gain on sale of investment 
Gain on value of investment 
Gain (loss) on disposal of property 

and equipment 

Net assets released from restrictions: 
Restrictions satisfied by payments 

Total revenue 

Expenses: 

Administrative expenses 
Missionary expenses 

Total expenses 

Increase in unrestricted net assets 

Temporarily restricted 
Revenue : 

Cooperative program 
Designated contributions 
Net assets released from restrictions: 

Restrictions satisfied by payments 

Increase (decrease) in temporarily 
restricted net assets 

Total increase in net assets 

Net assets - beginning of year 

Net assets - end of year 

See accountants' report and accompanying 
notes to the financial statements. 
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-3-

1999 

$ 120,665 
537,384 
120,000 
105,561 
252,194 

96,210 
46 ,518 

3 « 600.214 

4.878 .74§ 

794,311 
3.600.214 

4.394.525 

484.221 

718,172 
2,640,763 

( 3 « 600. 214) 

( 241.279) 

242,942 

1.713.130 

Sl. 956 « 072 

1998 

$ 183,245 
521, 053 
107,816 

82. 929 
270,251 
26,228 

8,708 

118 

2.775.328 

3.975.676 

l, 097,208 
2.775.328 

3.872.536 

103. UQ 

811,055 
2,264,645 

( 2. 775. 328) 

300.372 

403 ,512 

1.309.618 

SL 713. po 

BOARD OF HOM8 MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL A§SQCIATION OF fREE WILL BAPTISTS 

OF THE QNITBD SIATBS OF AMSRICA. INC . 
Statements of Cash Flows 

For the Years Ended Pecember 31. 1999 and 1998 

Operating activities 
Increase in net assets 
Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets to 
net cash provided (used) by operating activities: 

Depreciation 
AmOrtization 
Donation of investment 
(Gain) loss on disposal of property and equipment 
(Gain) loss on disposal of investment 
(Gain) loss on value of investment 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 

(Increase) decrease in receivables 
(Increase) decrease in inventories 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and 
accrued expenses 

Increase (decrease) in deferred compensation 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

Investing activities 
Redemption of investments 
Acquisition of investments 
Proceeds on sale of property and equipment 
Purchases of property and equipment 

Net cash used by investing activities 

Financing activities 

Net cash used by financing activities 

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of years 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of years 

See accountants' report and accompanying 
notes to the financial statements. 

- 4 -
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1999 

$ 242,942 

18,235 
2,915 

( 252,194) 

( 96,210) 
( 46,518) 

42,000 
( 172) 

( 12,667 ) 

( 

( 

35.506 

66.163 ) 

736,477 
923,660) 

( _ _,11U2...,._..9""2~1) 

( 200.104) 

-0-

-0-

( 266,267) 

269.123 

$ 2.856 

1998 

$ 4 03,512 

16,292 
2, 914 

( 118) 
( 26,228) 
( 8,708) 

( 60,000) 
3,569 

7,280 
( 32.809) 

305.704 

( 

422,921 
640,431) 

118 
( __ _.6 .... .:2""6..._3) 

( 223.655) 

-0-

-0-

82,049 

187.074 

$ 2§9.123 



Note 1 -

BOARJ) OF HOMB MISSIONS OF lliB 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF fRBB WILL BAPTISTS 

OF TRB QNITED STATES OF AMERICA. INC . 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

peceffiber 31. 1999 and 1998 

Organization and summary of significant accounting policies 

The Board of Home Missions of the National Association of Free 
Will Baptists of the United States of America, Inc. is a nonprofit 
organization affiliated with the National Association of Free Will 
~aptists loc~ted in Antioch, Tennessee. The purpose of the Organization 
1s to establ1sh and support Free Will Baptist Mission churches in the 
United States (including U.S. Virgin Islands and Puerto Rico) and 
Mexico. The Organization's support comes primarily from donor 
contributions. 

The Organization is exempt from federal income tax under section 
501(c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code under a group exemption of the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. In addition, the 
Organization has been determined by the Internal Revenue Service not to 
be a "private foundation" within the meaning of 509(a) of the Internal 
Revenue Code. There was no unrelated business income for 1999. 

The following significant accounting policies have been followed 
in the preparation of the financial statements: 

Basis of accounting 

The Organization prepares its financial statements using the 
accrual basis of accounting, which involves the application of generally 
accepted accounting principles; consequently, revenues and gains are 
recognized when earned , a.nd expenses and losses are recognized when 
incurred. 

Basis of presentation 

Financial statements presentation follows the recommendations of 
the Financial Accounting Standards Board in its Statements of Financial 
Accounting Standards (S FAS) No . 117, Financial Statements of Not-for­
Profit Organizations. under SFAS No. 117, the Organization is required 
to report information regarding its financial position and activities 
according to three classes of net assets ; unrestricted net assets, 
temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently restricted net 
assets . 

Use of estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles includes the use o f estimates 
that affect the financial statements . Accordingly, actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

- 5 -
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Note 1 -

BOARD OF HQME MISSIONS OF IHE 
NATIONAL A§SOCIATION OF fREE WILL BAPTISTS 

OF '1'HB QNITBP STAIBS OF AMI?RICA INC· 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

pecember 31. 1999 and 1998 

Organization and summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 

Investments in Church gxtension Loan Fund 

Investments consist of investments in the Church Extension 
Fund. Investments are stated at cost, which approximates market 
at December 31, 1999 and 1998 . 

Contributions 

Loan 
value 

The organization accounts for contributions in accorda~ce with the 
recommendations of the Financial Accounting Standards Board 1n SFAS No. 

116 Accounting tor contributions Received and Contributions Made . In 
acc~rdance with SFAS No. 116, contributions received are recorded as 
unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently re~tr~cted support, 
depending on the existence or nature of any donor restr1ct1ons . 

All donor-restricted support is reported as an increase in 
temporarily or permanently restricted net assets depending on the nature 
of the restriction. When a restriction expires (that is, when a 
stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is 

mplished) temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to acco , . . . 
unrestricted net assets and reported in the statements of act1v1t1es as 
net assets released from restrictions. The Organization has no 
permanently restricted net assets. 

Property and equipment and depreciation 

The organization follows the practice of capitalizing, at cost, 
all expenditures for property and equipment in excess of $500 and an 
estimated useful life of at least two years. Depreciation is computed 
on a straight-line basis over the useful lives of the assets generally 

as follows. 

Automobile 
Office furniture and equipment 

5 years 
3 - 20 years 

The net property and equipment balance 
component in unrestricted net assets. 

has been recorded as a separate 

Cash equivalents 

The organization considers all highly liquid investments with a 
h 1 ~hen purchased to be cash equivalents . 

maturity of three mont s or ess w 

Inventory 

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost (first in, 

method) or market . 

Investments 

first out 

Investments are composed of equity securities and are valued at 

fair value. 

-6-
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Note 2 -

Note 3 -

Note 4 -

BOJ\JU) OF BOMB MISSIONS or D1B 
NATIONaL A8SQCIATIQN OF FRBB WILL BAPIISTS 

or TBB UNITBQ STATBS or AMERICA INC I 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
pecember 31~ 1999 and 1998 

Property and equipment 

A summary of property and equipment is as follows: 

Land - Puerto Rico 
Automobile 
Office furniture & equipment 

Less: Accumulated depreciation ( 

1992 
$105,000 

36,222 
1Q7,27§ 
249,198 

26,922) 

U~i.20§ 

Capitalized leases and change in accounting estimate 

1228 
$105,000 

36,222 
22.~16 

240,438 
( !!~.218) 

~1~7.~20 

The National Association of Free Will Baptists purchased an office 
building to house various departments and agencies of the denomination. 
The Board has entered into an agreeme.nt to lease space in this new 
building and agreed to contribute to the debt service costs during the 
construction period and to continue until the debt has been retired. 
The construction period costs of $18,802 were capitalized in 1991 and 
were to be amortized over a period of twenty years. The Board of Home 
Missions voted to begin amortizing the remaining balance after a period 
of five years, beginning in 1996 . Amortization expense for the years 
amounted to $2,915 ($2,914 in 1998) . 

peferred compensation 

The Board of Home Missions provides deferred compensation for each 
employee based on a formula combining a percent of salary and years of 
service I The compensation is payable to the employee when employment is 
terminated. The following is a summary of the deferred compensation 
account. 

1922 1298 
Balance at beginning of the year $123,475 $156,284 
Contribution for the year: 

Missionaries 27,954 27,602 
Administrative employees 13 ,389 12 ,624 

Transfer and terminations ( 13 ,226) ( 73,035) 
Adjustment 7' J!!2 
Balance at end of the year ~158.981 ~123,475 

-7-
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Note 5 -

Note 6 -

BQARD OF RQMB MISSIQNS OF THE 
NATIONl\L ASSQCIATION OP FREB WII~I, BAPIISTS 

OF THB QNIIEP STAIBS OP AMERICA INC I 

N9tes to the Financial Statements 
peceffiber 31, 1222 and 1298 

Restrictions on net assets 

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the 

following purposes: 

Missionaries 
Church Extension Loan Fund 

1299 
$1,079,573 

§1.079.578 

1228 
$1,319,716 

L14l 

$1.320.857 

These net assets are restricted due to donor restrictions. 

l d h the donor restriction is satisfied . They are re ease w en 

Related party transactions 

The aoard of Home Missions provides office space for and pays 
the salaries of the employees of a related party, the Church 
Extension Loan Fund . During the year, the Church Extension Loan Fund 
paid the Board of Home Missions a management fee of $120, 000 
($1 07,816 at December 31, 1998) to reimburse the cost of the office . 
space and salaries . The Board of Home Missions has invested ~ney ~n 
a demand note of the Church Extension Loan Fund . The balance ~n th~s 
investment at year end was $1 , 448 , 050 ($1 ,263,060 at December 31, 
1998) . This investment is uncollateralized. The Board of Hom~ 
Missions' management constantly scrutinizes the monthly fin~c~al 
statements of the Loan Fund to make sure that the Loan Fund ~s. 
solvent and to minimize the credit risk of the investment . This 
investment is short term in nature and the interest can be changed, 
therefore cost approximates fair value. 

The Board of Home Missions has a receivable from the Church 
Extension Loan Fund for unrestricted earnings during the year. The 
balance on this receivable at year end was $108,000 ($150,000 at 

December 31, 1998) . 

- 8 -
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90MD OF HQME MISSIONS QP THB 
NATIONAL A$SOCIA1ION OF PRQ WILL sr;;;;sTS 

OF THE QNITRP STAIRS OF AMRRICA I I 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
Pecember 31. 1999 and 1998 

Note 7 - · Lease 

Note 8 -

Note 9 -

The Board of Home Missions entered into a lease agreement on 
October 1 , 1990 with the National Association of Free Will Baptists , 
Inc. for office and storage space . The rent expense for the year 
amounted to $50 , 220 ($50 , 220 in 1998 ). The term o f the lease will 
expire when all mortgages on the building are satisfied, which 
approximates nine years . 

The future minimum lease payments are as follows : 

CO!!!!\i.tments 

2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 
2004 
Thereafter 

$ 50 , 220 
50 , 220 
50 , 220 
50 , 220 
50,220 

154.845 
§105. 915 

The Board has pledged its property and equipment as collateral on 
a mortgage note that the National Association of Free Will Baptists , 
Inc . has with the Church Extension Loan Fund . 

Concentration of credit risk 

The Board maintains cash deposits in excess of the federally 
insured amo~t of $100,000 . At December 31, 1999, the excess amount 
over the federally insured limit was $ - 0 - ($169,123 in 1998) . The Board 
has a cash management agreement with a local bank which invests any 
excess cash overnight in u . s . Government Securities under a repurchase 
agreement . Any cash not insured should , under the terms of this 
agreement , be collateralized by U.S. Government Securities . 

The Board also has $1 , 448 , 0 50 ($1, 263,060 in 1998) invested in a 
demand note of the Church Extension Loan Fund . This note is uni nsured . 

- 9 -
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Note 10 -

Note 11 -

BOARD OF HOME MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONaL A$SQCIATION Of fRBB WILL BAPIISTS 

Of THE QNIIED STAtES OF AMERICA. INC . 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

oeceffiber 31. 1999 and 1998 

Fair values of financ ial instruments 

The following methods and assumptions .were used 
. t ' n 1· n estimating its fa i r value d1sclosures Organ1za 10 

instruments: 

by the 
for financial 

cash, cash equivalents, ~nv;~:m::!s ~~gc:~:::t~;:p~:d in 
receivables and pa~ables. it ' ~approximate fair values 
the statement of f1nancial pos 10 . ts 
because of the short maturities of those 1nstrumen . 

Investments: The fair value of investments 
market price for those investments. 

is based on quoted 

Investments 

are Stated at fai r value and consist of equity Investments 
securities: 

Equity securities 
Cost 

$3691108 

fair 
Value 

$4151626 

Investment return is summarized as follows : 

Net realized and unrealized income 

- 10-
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Unrealized 
Appreciation 

(Depreciation) 
s 461518 

$1421128 
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INDEPENDENI' AUDITOR 'S REPORT 
ON SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

To the Board of Trustees of 
the Board of Home Mi ssions of the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists 
o f the United States of America , Inc . 

Our report on our audits of the basic financial statements of the 
Board of Home Missions for 1999 and 1998 appears on page 1 . We conducted 
our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards for the 
purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a 
whole . The schedule of functional expenses ia presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial 
statements . Such information has been subj ected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audits of the basic financial statements and , in our 
opinion, is fairly stated in all material respec ts in relation to the basic 
f inancial statement s taken a s a whol e . 

February 1 5, 2000 

A - 90 

BOARD OF HQME MISSIONS OF THE 
NAtiONAL A$SQCIAtlQN Of fRBB WILL BAPIISTS 

OF IHB UNITED STATES OF J\MERICA. INC. 
schedule of fUnctional Expenses 

For the Years Ended pecember 31. 1999 and 1998 

Administrative expenses 
salaries and wages 
Payroll taxes 
Housing allowanc e and employee benefi ts 
Employee savings 
cost of literature 
Promotion expense 
Utilities 
office expense 
Printing and postage 
Rent expense 
Professional fees 
Auto and travel expense 
Board meeting expense 
Insurance expense 
Telephone 
Amortization 
Together Way Office 
Miscellaneous 
Depreciation 
Build My Church 

Total administrative expenses 

Mi ssionary expenses 
Salary and wages 
Employee savings 
Promotion expense 
Printing and postage 
Literature 
Auto and trave1 expense 
Insurance expense 
Missionary land & buildings 
Desi gnated contributi ons 
Miscellaneous other expense 

Total miss ionary expenses 

Total expenses 

See accountants' report on suppl ementary information . 

- 12-

A - 91 

1999 

$ 223 , 386 
11,213 
73 , 211 
19, 778 
1,161 

33 , 119 
9 , 325 

25,290 
163,0'8 

50,220 
8,963 

50 , 013 
1 4 ,612 
39,104 
11,953 

2,915 
7 , 522 

31,243 
18 , 235 

794.311 

2 , 467 , 734 
27 ,785 
10, 292 

106 , 642 
48 , 272 

244,739 
46,851 

494 , 933 
79 , 365 
73 . 601 

3 . 600,214 

~4,394,525 

1998 

$ 2 06 , 336 
8 , 809 

84 ,71 0 
12,624 
3,,62 

, 0 , 564 
8,582 

25,068 
109,055 

50 , 220 
22 , 65 5 
50 , 6'9 
17,927 
34 , 666 
9,689 
2 , 914 
7,,51 

18 , 816 
16 , 292 

366,719 

1, OlP, ~Q§ 

1 , 959 , 720 
27,602 

3 , 556 
78 , 831 
50,627 

230 , 319 
70 , 77 9 

2 08 , 011 
76 , 55 7 
69 . 326 

2.775,328 

~3 .§72, 536 



Home Missions Department Salaries 
1999 2000 2001 Proposed Faith Budget for 2001 General Director 

$47,927.04 $55,053.47 $57,495.60 Salary 2000 2001 Housing 10,800.00 6,000.00 6,000.00 
1,588.61 1,650.00 1,700.00 Missionary Maintenance Uhfities 
3,007.60 3,052.67 3,174.78 Sovirgs Salaries $2,213,400.00 $2,500,000.00 

Insurance: Travel & Promotion 230,000.00 240,000.00 Travel 60.00 60.00 60.00 Employee Savings 30,000.00 31,000.00 life 283.20 283.20 283.20 Postage And Printing 50,000.00 85,000.00 
Hoolth 4,898.70 5,386.80 5,494.53 Miscellaneous 40,000.00 20,000.00 Dentol 375.12 396.72 404.65 Land & Building fund 520,000.00 500,000.00 Totals $68,940.27 $71,882.86 $74,612.76 Total $3,083,400.00 $3,37 6,000.00 Office cor furnished Missionary Assistance 

Director of Development: Printing & Postage s 135,000.00 140,000.00 Solory $31,827.00 $28,953.31 $30,975.45 Telephone 9,600.00 10,000.00 Housing 16,800.00 21,600.00 21,600.00 Boord Member Expense 15,200.00 15,000.00 Unlities 1,894.07 1,900.00 2,000.00 Auditing & legal 20,000.00 13,000.00 
Sovirgs 2,480.77 2,527.66 2,628.77 Literature 2,000.00 2,000.00 Insurance: Together Way Office 9,000.00 4,000.00 Trawl 60.00 60.00 60.00 Supplies 25,000.00 25,000.00 life 283.20 283.20 283.20 Missionary Training 20,000.00 20,000.00 Hoolth 3,159.40 3,577.20 3,648.74 Total $235,800.00 $229,000.00 Demo I 20~ 56 216 36 22068 Administration Totals $56,70900 $59,117.73 $59,117.73 

Salaries $245,900.00 $265,000.00 Office cor furrMOO 
Housing 40,800.00 55,000.00 Director of Missionary Assistance: Payroll Taxes 9,000.00 10,000.00 Solory $35,427.00 $36,153.31 $38,175.44 Employee Savings 12,000.00 14,000.00 Housing 13,200.00 14,400.00 14,400.00 Insurance 40,000.00 45,000.00 Utilities 2,736.57 2,850.00 2,950.00 Utilities 8,000.00 10,000.00 Savings 992.26 1,011.06 1,051.50 Total $355,700.00 $399,000.00 Insurance: 

Evangelism and Church Growth Travel 60.00 60.00 60.00 
Ufe 283.20 283.20 283.20 Auto & Travel $50,000.00 50,000.00 
Hoolth 6,704.08 7,372.08 7,519.52 Promotion 40,000.00 45,000.00 
Dental 509.92 569.88 581.27 Revivals 12,000.00 20,000.00 

Totals $59,913.03 $62,699.53 $62,699.53 Roll Call Sunday 1,500.00 1,500.00 
Office cor furnished Total s 103,500.00 $116,500.00 

Plant Director of Ministry Helps: 
$27,948.62 $35,775.44 Office Space $48,600.00 Solol'f 50,220.00 

14,600.00 16,800.00 Equipment & Supplies 15,000.00 15,000.00 HousirvJ 
2,800.00 2,900.00 Depreciation 20,000.00 19,280.00 Uhlities 

850.97 1,051.50 Savings Total $83,600.00 $84,500.00 
Insurance: 

Cross-Cultural Ministry Travel 60.00 60.00 $220,000.00 $295,000.00 
life 212.40 283.20 

Total faith Budget $4,100,000.00 $4,500,000.00 Hoolth 3,686.04 7,519.32 
Dento! 28~ 2~ S812Z 

Totals • 
Office cor furnished 

$50,442.97 $64,970.73 

·nom Mor(h 15, 2000 
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Bookkeeper: 1999 2000 2001 Proposed State Goals for 2001 Salary $30,665.31 $31,830.72 $33,103.94 Home Missions Department Po)foll Taxes 5,752.78 5,686.45 5,977.45 
State 2001 Goal ~ 1,597.07 1,591.53 1,655.19 

lnsurooce: 
Alabama $ 375,000 life 193.10 193.20 193.20 
Alaska 10,000 Hoolth 2,576.14 2,832.84 2,889.49 Arizona 30,000 Denio I 204.56 216.36 220.68 Arkansas 275,000 Totals $40,989.06 $42,351.10 $44,039.95 California 145,000 

Publications Editor: Canada 4,000 
CELF 95,000 Salary 23,171.90 24,985.76 25,985.19 Colorado 85,000 Payroll Taxes 4,350.54 4,353.38 4,664.36 Florida 110,000 Savings 1,186.25 1,249.28 1,299.25 fWB Foundation 7,000 

Insurance: Georgia 130,000 
life 193.20 193.20 193.20 Hawaii 500 

Idaho 10,000 Hoolth 2,576.14 2,832.84 2,889.49 
Dlinois 85,000 Dentol 204.56 216.36 220 68 
Indiana 50,000 Totals $31,682.59 $33,830.82 $35,152.17 Iowa 1,500 

Loan Fund Secretary: Kansas 25,000 
Kentucky 70,000 So lory $20,653.40 $21,371.35 $21,22610 

80,000 Louisiana Payroll Taxes 5,961.97 5,974.02 6,152.30 Maine 5,000 S!Mngs 1,056.36 1,068.56 1,ll1.31 Maryland 45,000 Insurance: 
Massachusetts 5,000 life 19310 193.20 193.20 Michigan 125,000 Hoolth 3,159.40 3,577.20 3,648.74 Mississippi 75,000 

Dentol 204.56 216.36 220,68 Missouri 210,000 
1,000 Totals $31,228.89 $32,400.69 $33,552.43 Montana 

New Hampshire 1,000 Secretary: 
New Jersey 1,000 

Salary S1 2, 419.82 $13,090.56 $24,014.18 New Mexico 15,000 
North Carolina 320,000 Payroll Taxes 1,752.94 3,895.15 4,301 .58 
Ohio 130,000 Savings 228.29 461.81 48018 
Oklahoma 350,000 Insurance: 
Oregon 25,000 life 96.60 193.20 193.20 
Other Income 250,000 Hoolth 1,313.74 2,832.84 2,889.49 Other States 5,000 Dentol 103.46 216.36 220.68 Pennsylvania 75,000 Totals $15,914.85. $30,689.92 $32,099.41 Puerto Rico 7,000 ·from J IJile, 1999 
South Carolina 175,000 
South Dakota 1,000 Secretary/CELF Bookkeeper: 
Tennessee 565,000 SoloJY $28,824.94 $30,337.99 $31,551.50 Texas 75,000 Payroll Taxes 5,831.00 6,133.60 6,388.61 Utah 2,000 Savings 1,496.50 1,516.89 1,577.57 Vrrginia 135,000 

Insurance: Vrrgin Islands 55,000 
life 193.20 193.20 193.20 Vvashington 4,000 

West Virginia 75,000 Hoolth 2,576.14 2,832.84 2,889.49 
20,000 Wisconsin Dentol 204.56 216.36 220.68 

WNAC 125,000 Totals $39,126.34 $41,230.88 $42,821.05 Wyoming 35,000 
Total $4,500,000 
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INDEPKNDE:NT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Trustees of the 
Church Extension Loan Fund 
Antioch, Tennessee 

We have audited the a ccompanying statements of f inancial position of the 
Church Extension Loan Fund (a nonprofit organization) as of December 31, 1999 
and 1998 , and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the 
years then ended . These financial statements are the responsibility of the 
Organization's management . OUr responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards . Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement . An audit includes examining , on a test basis , evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements . An audit 
also inc ludes assessing the accounting princ iples used and significant 
estimates made by management , as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis 
for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present 
fairly , in all material respec ts , the financial position o f the Church 
Extension Loan Fund as of December 31, 1999 and 1998 and the changes in its 
net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity wi th 
generally accepted accounting principles . 

February 15, 200 0 

A- 97 



CHPRQI EXTENSION LOAN fUND 
Statements of PinMcial Position 

DecemPer 31. 1999 and 1998 

Assets 
Cash - Note 6 

Notes receivable - Notes 1 4 ~ 8 
Bonds receivable ' 

ASSBIS 

Accrued interest receivable 
Investments in Pree Will Ba tist 
Notes 1 & 4 P Foundation -

Investments 

Property and equipment - at cost 1 
accumulated depreciation of $17:68~ss 
($12,737 in 1998) - Notes 1 ~ 2 

Total assets 

LIA8ILITIBS AND NBT A§SBIS 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable _ 
Accounts payable _ 
Accrued interest 

related party _ Note 4 
Build by Church Project 

Revocable Md irrevocable trusts 
Deferred compensation - Note 10 
Notes payable - Notes 3, 4 ~ 8 

- Note 9 

Total liabilities 

Net assets 
Unrestricted 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

See accquntanta' reoort and accomcanyina 
notes to the financial stateme~~ 

-2-
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1999 

$ 515,253 
12,685,795 

77,575 
102,154 

1,546,823 

12. 481 

su, 940, 081 

$ 108,000 
70,000 

131,653 
1,668,490 

374,417 
1l. 027, 549 

1.3.380.109 

1.559.972 

l. 559,972 

Sl1.240.081 

1998 -
$ 1, 583 .13) 
10,653,920 

71,379 
85. sao 

332,062 

S12.71J.50§ 

$ 150,000 

118,880 
659,058 
318, 472 

10.008.985 

11.255.395 

l., 488.110 

1.488.110 

S12, 71). 505 

CHQRCH EXtENSION LOAN FUND 
Statements of Activities 

For the Years §nded oecemker 31. 1999 and 1928 

Revenue : 
Designated contributions - Note 5 
Investment income 
Interest income on notes receivable 
Gain on value of investments 
Management fee 

Bxpenaes : 
Interest expense 
Office expense 
Auto Md travel 
Management fee - Note 4 
Promotion 
Postage 
Professional fees 
Depreciation 
Build My Church Project expense 
Transfer to Free Will Baptists Home Missions 

Increase in net assets 

Net assets - beginning of year 

Net assets - end of year 

See accountants' report and accompanying 
notes to the financial statements. 
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Unrestricted 
1999 1998 

$ 71, 564 $ 445,006 
120,829 69,061 

1,101,914 955,599 
55,344 

7 017 4.408 

J,,~Q;!.,324 J.,::i29,~I~ 

862,261 700,152 
13,123 9, 934 
34,761 20,406 

120,000 104,000 
5,019 19,919 
2,198 1,675 
9,150 5,665 
4,950 5,659 

70,000 
1Q8,QOO 150.QOQ 

1.229,462 J,,017,41Q 

71,862 512,008 

l. 488,110 976,122 

§1.552.272 ~1.488.112 



CHURCH EXTENSION LOAN FUND 
Statements of cash Plows 

For the Years Ended December 31. 1999 and 1998 

Operating activities 
Increase in net assets 
Adjustments to reconcile · 1ncrease in net assets 
to net cash provided by operating activities: 

Depreciation 

Gain on value of investments 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 
(Increase) decrease in accrued 'nterest 
I ~ receivable 
ncrease (decrease) in accounts payable 

Increase (deer ) · ease 1n accrued interest payable 
Increase (decrease) in deferred compensation 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Investing activities 
Donated stock received 
Proceeds from sale of investments 
Purchase of investments 
Collection on notes receivable 
Additions to notes and bonds receivable 

Net cash used in invest'"g · ~· act1vities 

Financing activities 
Addition to trusts 
Termination of trusts 
Additions to notes payable 
Repayment of notes payable 

Net cash provided by f'"anc 'ng ~· ~ a ctivities 

Increase (deer ) i ease n cash and cash . 1 equ1va ents 

Cash and cash equivalents at 

Cash and cash equivalents at 

Supplemental disclosures 
Interest received 

Interest paid 

beginning of year 

end of year 

See accountants• report and accompanying 
notes to the financial statements. 

-4 -
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1999 
1998 -

$ 71,862 $ 512. ooa 

4,950 
5,659 

( 55. 344 

( 16,574) ( 9. 666) 
28,000 60, ooo 
12,773 22. 741 
55.945 57.8U 

156.956 593.m 

( 

332,062 
276, 719) 

( 1,546,823) 
1,824,955 1,031,019 

( 3.863.026) ( 2. 264 .pol 

( ~.~~2,832) ( 1' ~Q2' 870) 

1,011,123 13,602 
( 1, 691) ( 1 , 412) 

2,276,404 2,14 7, 639 
( L 257, 840) ( 754 '862) 

2,Q27,996 L4Q4,2§7 

( 1,067,880) 488,310 

L 583,133 1.094,823 

~ 51~,253 ~1~~~3,133 

§1,199.973 S1.0o9 122J 

$ 849,488 $ 677,411 

Note 1 -

CHURCH BXTENSION LOJ\N FUND 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 1992 and 1928 

organization and summary of significant accounting policies 

The Church Extension Loan Fund is a nonprofit organization 
under the direction of the Board of Home Missions of the National 
Association of Free Will Baptists of the United States of America, 
Inc. located in Antioch, Tennessee . The purpose of the Fund is to 
loan money to Free Will Baptist Churches, primarily Home Mission 
Churches, for purchase of land and buildings. The Organization's 
support comes primarily from interest on notes receivable. 

The Fund is exempt from federal income tax under section 
501(c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code under a group exemption of the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. In addition, the 
Fund has been determined by the Internal Revenue Service not to be a 
•private foundation• within the meaning of Section S09(a) of the 
Internal Revenue Code. There was no unrelated business income for 
1999. 

The following signif icant accounting policies have been 
followed in the preparation of the financial statements: 

aasis of accounting 

The Fund prepares its financial statements using the accrual 
method of accounting which involves the application of generally 
accepted accounting principles; consequently, revenues and gains are 
recognized when earned, and expenses and losses are recognized when 
incurred. 

Basis of presentation 

Financia l statement p resentation follows the recommendations of 
the Financial Accounting Standards Board in its Statements of 
Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 117, Financial Statements 
ol Not-lor-Profit Organizations. Under SFAS No. 117, the Fund is 
required to report information regarding its financial position and 
activities according to three classes of net assets; unrestricted net 
assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently restricted 
net assets. 

Use of estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles includes the use of 
estimates that affect the financial statements. Accordingly, actual 
results could differ from those estimates. 

-5-
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Note 1 -

CHURCH BXIBNSION LOAN FUN[) 
Noten to the Financial Statements 

pecember 31. 1999 and 1298 

Organi;atiOn and summary of significant accounting policies (Contin~l 

Contributions 

The Fund accounts for contributions in accordance with the 
recommendations of the Financial Accounting Standards Board in SFAS ~. 
116, Accounting for Contributions Received and Cont:ributions Made. In 
accordance with SPAS No. 116, contributions received are recorded as 
unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted 
support, depending on the existence or nature of any donor 
restrictions. 

All donor-restricted support is reported as an increase in 
temporarily or permanently restricted net assets depending on the 
nature of the restriction. When a restriction expires (that is, whena 
stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is 
accomplished), temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to 
unrestricted net assets and reported in the statements of activities u 
net assets released from restrictions . The Fund has no temporarily 
restricted or permanently restricted net assets . 

Property and equipment and depreciation 

The Fund follows the practice of capitalizing, at cost, all 
expenditures for property and equipment in excess of $500 with a us~fw 
life of at least two years. Depreciation is computed on a straight­
line basis over the useful lives of the assets generally as follows: 

Automobile 
Office equipment 

5 years 
5 years 

The net property and equipment balance has been recorded as a separate 
component in unrestricted net assets. 

Investments 

Investments are composed of equity securities 'and are valued at 
quoted market price. 

Investments in free Will Baptist Foundation 

Investments in Free Will Baptist Foundation are composed 
money market type trust accounts maintained by the Foundation . 
trust accounts are comprised of U.S . Government securities . 

-6 -
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of chr~e 
These 

Note 1 -

Note 2 -

gmRCH R.XTBNSION LON! FUND 
Note;lto the p1gancial Statements 

pecember 31, 1292 and 1928 

organization and summary of 
sianificant accounting policies (Continued) 

Notes receiv&ble 
P e Will Baptist Churches, primarily 

The Fund loans money t~e r:rchase of land and buildings. ~ach 
Home Mission Churches, :or t fi~st mortgage on the property or s1gn a 
church is required to g1ve a the loans is payable monthly 

. . 1 and interest on d 
deed of trust. Pr1nC1pa riod except for churches still un er 
at 9.5t over a fifteen year .pe to ay interest only . The Board of 
construction which are requ1red P t receivable as other interest 

the rate on these no es ket 
Trustees changes 1 f these loans approximates mar 
rates change. The carrying vat ~e t~oughout the united States . 
value. The churches are loca e 

The aggregate maturities 
of these notes are as follows : 

2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 
2004 
Thereafter 

$ 556,214 
611.,417 
672,099 
738,803 
812,128 

2·225,134 
U2.§85,795 

A1lowance for dgubtful account& 

. ounts and notes receivable to b~ fully 
Management cono1ders ace f d ubtful accounts 1S 

accordingly, no allowance or o 
collectible; 
required. 

cash equiyalente 
liquid investments with a maturity 

The Fund considers all highly d t be cash equivalents . 
of three months or less when purchase o 

Property and equipment 

A summary of property 
and equipment follows : 

1222 1298 

$ 18,200 $ 18,200 
Automobile u.2n 11,968 
office equipment 30,168 30,168 

( ;1.7 I §§7) ( 12,737) 
Accumulated depreciation s 2;i,·U1 s 17.431 

- 7 -

A - 103 



Note 3 -

Note 4 -

Note 5 -

Notes payable 

CHURCH BXIBNSION LOAN FUND 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

DeCember 31. 1999 and 1998 

Notes payable · cons1st of 5 1/2 - 7t unsecured de 
individuals and churches. The roce ds mand notes froca 
to churches to help them purcha:e la~d a:! ~~~~~·notes are then loaned 
Trustees change the interest rat 1ngs. The Board of 
interest rates change. es on these notes payable as other 

Related party transactions 

The Fund paid the Board of H M' i 
Association of Free Will Ba tis ome 1ss ons of the National 
($104,000 at December 31, 1;98) t:~ !:~~~management fee of $120,000 
for salary, rent and other expenses paidu~set~he Board of Home Missio~ 
Home Missions has invested in th t y e Board. The Board of 
balance of this t e no e payable of the Fund. The 

no e payable to the Board of H · . 
was $677,867 ($705,130 at December 31 1 ome Ml.SS1ons at year end 
payable to the Board of Home Missi , i 99h8) . The Fund had accounts 
($150 one n t e amount of $108 00 ,000 at December 31 , 1998). , 0 

The Fund holds a not. e receivable from the National ~-soc1'ation of 
Free Will Baptists, Inc. ~ 
3 . . l.n the amount of $34,226 ($188,006 at Dece~r 
1, 1998). This note 1S secured by a deed of trust note. 

trust The Fund also has $1,546,823 ($-0- in 1998) invested in three 
accounts of the Free Will Baptist Foundatl.'on 

uncollateralized. · This investment ia 

oesiqnated contributions 

The designated contributi 
Church• program. The monies . ons are amounts given to the "Build My 
churches in the same manne t~1;en to this program are loaned to 
The total amount given forrth afiother funds are loaned to churches. 
program has reached $1 000 00~ ~at phase of the Build My Church 
the program payments t~taling S70 ~o~ccordance with the provisions of 
to the land funds of two Home Mis~io ,were made subsequent to year end 
earned on loans made with . n a Churches from the interest 
for these payments has b Build Mdy Church contributions. The liability 

een recor ed on this fi · 1 
second phase of the Build My Ch h nanc1a statement . A 
amount given through the second ur~s program has begun· When the total 
reaches $1 000 000 then th i p e of Build My Church program 

' ' , e nterest earn d f the program will be d e rom the loans made with 
Home Mi . use to assist the Cross CUltural Ministry and the 

ss1ons General Fund. The total . 
the year is $1,522 055 ($

1 450 
~ 9 amount g1ven through the end of 

, , ,, 1 at December 31, 1998) . 

-8 -
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Note 6 -

Note 7 -

Note 8 -

CHURCH BXIENS ION LOAN ruNt> 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31. 1999 and 1998 

concentration of credit risk 

The Fund maintains cash deposits in excess of the federally 
insured amount of $100,000 . At Dece~er 31, 1999, the excess amount 
over the federally insured limit was $415,253 ($1,483,133 in 1998) . 
The Fund has a cash management agreement with a local bank which 
invests any excess cash overnight in U.S. Government Securities under a 
repurchase agreement. Any cash not insured should, under the terms of 
this agreement, be collateralized by U.S. Government Securities. 

The Fund also has $1,546,823 ($ - 0- in 1998) invested in three 
trust accounts of the Free Will Baptist Foundation. These trust 
accounts are unsecured. 

Fair value of financial instruments 

The following methods and assumptions were used by the 
Organization in estimating its fair value disclosures for financial 
instruments: 

cash, accrued interest receivable, investment in Free Will 
Baptist Foundation, payables, accrued interest payable and 
deferred compensation: The carrying amounts reported in 
the statement of financial position approximate fair values 
because of the short maturities of those instruments. 

Notes receivable and bonds receivable: Based on 
current inte.rest rates, the carrying value 
approximates the fair value of the notes receivable 
and bonds receivable at December 31, 1999 and 1998. 

Notes payable and trusts: Based on current interest 
rates, the carrying value approximates the fair value 
of the notes payable and trusts at December 31, 1999 
and 1998. 

Concentration 

loans 
1998) . 

Included in notes receivable at December 31 , 1999 are twelve 
which total $4,633,363 (nine loans which total $3 , 511,353 in 

This one balance represents 36.52\ (32 . 96\ in 1998 ) of total 
notes receivable. 

Notes payable include forty- seven notes which total $7,375,384 or 
66.88\ (forty notes which total $6,198,061 or 61 . 92\ in 1998 ) of total 
notes payable. Of these forty - seven (forty in 1998) notes payable, two 
total $1,177,867 or 10 . 68\ (two notes total $1 , 205,130 or 12.04\ in 
1998) of total notes payable. 

- 9 -
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Note 9 -

Note 10 -

Note 11 -

CHURCH EXTENSION LOAN roND 
Noti! to the Financial Sta~nts 

cernber 31 . 1999 and WQ 

Revocable and irrevocable trusts 

. Ten irrevocable and fou 
pay ~nterest at 6-9\ pe r revocable charitable remaind 
to make mortgage loa r year. The principal of these t er tnats 
3 ns · Interest e rusts was 
1, 1999 amounted to $109,741 ($55 :i;"se for the year ended Dece~~ 

Peferred compensation 
• at December 31, 1998). r 

Deferred compensation 
the Board of Home . represents savings trusts 
Baptists for the ~=;~~nsf of t~e National Associat ion t~;n;:;rre~ fr~ 
retirement or departure f~omt:~~r p~in~ipal employees upon tb:i:~ll 
at a rate of lOt me H ss~ons. These tru 
December 31 1999per year. Interest expense for the sts pay interest 

• was $34,196 ($28 378 t D year ended 

Investment§ 
• a ecember 31, 1998) . 

. Investments at December 31 
cons~sted of equity securities : • 1998 were stated at fair vlaue and 

Equity securities Cost 
S276 I 719 

Investment return was 
summarized as follows: 

Net unrealized gain 

-10-
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Fair 
Value 

$332,062 

Unrealized 
Appreciation 

CPepreciationl 
s 55,341 

$ §5, 344 

Board of Retirement & Insurance 
Every year is a journey of faith for the Board of Retirement. How will 

prospective participants respond to th~ plan? What ~II mar~et pressures 
do to our investments? How many will choose to retire dunng the year? 
Wlll Congress change the rules affecting our operation? 

Our journey was blessed again throughout 1999. New enrollees matched 
last year's totals of 108, a tie for record-high enrollments. A little more than one 
out of four participants in the plan have joined during the last five years ( 408 
out of 1599). That is certainly moving in the right direction. However there are 
still a large number of our church and agency employees who are not part of 
the plan. We must continue adding new members by challenging individu­
als and their employers to join us in preparing for retirement 

Contributions and earnings continued to increase at significant rates 
bringing our total assets to just over $21 million. This growth occurred 
while we paid out more than $915,000 in various types of settlements. 

Our stock portfolio had moderate gains through the year but bonds were 
racked by the worst market experienced in years. They pushed earnings down for 
each period, especially the second, so \lYe credited 12.5% and 9% for Plan 1 partici­
pants, producing an ann ~alized return of 11.03%. Our historic returns have been: 

One Year, 1999- 11 .031% 
3 Yrs. 1997-99- 11 .233% 
5 Yrs. 1995-99- 13.573% 

I 0 Yrs. 1990-99- 9.624% 
Life of Plan, 1969-99- 8.936% 

More partidpants are choosing life-time annuities as their settlement choice. 
That is the result of understanding the operation of our annuity program. 
Everyone who takes a settlement should consider the pro's and con's of each of 
our ten settlement choices. If you are contemplating a settlement please call the 
office toll free at (877) 767-7738 for a full explanation of your choices. 

Our goal is to provide the best retirement plan, the best service expe­
rience, and the best settlement options to each individual in our program. 

Respectfully, 

William W Evans 
Director 

Summary of Board Meetings 

April 27-28, 1999 
All members present except Roger Harwell. The director's report and 

financial report were accepted. The 2000 budget was approved. The Board 
reviewed the performance of the money managers. The Board elected offi­
cers and commended the members who were retiring from the board. 

December 8, 1999 
All members were present except Ron Barber. The director's report 

was accepted. The Board reviewed the financial operations and perform­
ance of the money managers year to date. 
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Independent Auditors' Report 

The Board of Directors 
Board of Retirement and Insurance of the 
National Association ofFree Will Baptists 

We have audited the accompanying statements of financial position of the Board of Retirement 
and Insurance of the National .Association of Free Will Baptists (the "Board") as of 
December 31, 1999 and 1998, and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets 
and cash flows for the yean then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the 
Board's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements 
based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly. in all material respects, 
the financial position of the Board of Retirement and Insurance of the National Association of 
Free Will Baptists as ofDecember 31, 1999 and 1998, and the changes in its net assets and its 
cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. 

-V ">v.Q .e. i ~I C! ~~~Q,....I"""'" 

February 21, 2000 

M~ml-..·r Tlw M, l) l,..lll•\ )-..,., wnrL 
WurfJ,. ,J~ !'<·" '""' flunu~:h RSM lnh·m,llh<n.•l 
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BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND INSURANCE OF 
1HE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

OPERATING ASSETS 
Ca.sh and cash cquivaJents 

ASSETS 

Funds invested with the Free Will Baptist Foundation 
Accounts receivable 

Total operating assets 

RETIREMENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivaJents 
Investment in marketable securities and instruments, 
at fair marlcet value {Note C) 

Acaued investment income receivable 
Notes receivable, net of allowance for doubtful 
~{Note B) 

Total retirement asseta 

OFFICE FtJRN11'URE. EQUIPMENT AND 
AtiTOMOBn.ES, at cost. net of ICCUmulated 
depreciation {Note D) 

T otaJ a.ssets 
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December 3 I. 
1999 1998 

s 22,434 
18,915 

41.349 

386,673 

19,381,693 
138,420 

1.192.575 
21.099.361 

38.513 

$21 179 22J 

s 23,525 
14,989 

355 
38.862 

797,713 

15,786,939 
86,648 

2.216.586 
18.887,886 

54145 

SIS 281,500 

LlABU..ITIES AND NET ASSETS 

LJABn..ITIES 
Annuities payable (Note F) 

Unearned loa.n origination fees other liabilities 
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and 

Total liabilities 

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted: 
Operations: 
Opentins funds 

Designated for future asset purchases 
Net invested in equipment 

Operatina net ISsdS 

Retirement aa:ounts: 
Net assets available for participants 
Designated as reserve funds 
Designated as annuity reserve funds 

Retirement net assets 

T ota1 net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

December 31. 
1999 1998 

$ 1,274,925 
18,751 
12.590 

1,306,266 

14,837 
18,915 
38,512 
72,264 

19,769,902 
20,791 
lO,QQO 

12,800.693 

19,872.957 

$ 961,564 
26,751 
18,791 

1.007.106 

9,580 
14,989 
54,745 
79.314 

17,865,415 
21,665 

8000 
17.895.080 

17.974.394 

$21 179 223 SI8,98L500 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND INSURANCE OF 
THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999 AND 1998 

1999 
Retirement 

Accounts Operations Totaj 

SUPPORT, REVENUE AND OTHER 
ADD mONS 
Contributions from participants s 1,694,541 s s 1,694,541 

Investment income: 
Gains of investment portfolio: 
Net realized gains 505,207 505,207 Net unrealized gains (losses) 599.805 599.805 

1,105,012 1,105,012 Interest and dividends from 
investments (net of investment fees): 1H.B8~ 114,886 Total investment income 1,819,898 1,819,898 

Income earned from interest bearing notes: 
Interest income 165,471 165,471 Loan origination fees earned 8.000 8.000 T otaJ income earned from interest 

and loan origination fees 1V.411 1V.471 

Forfeitures and late charges 1,268 1,268 Gifts 
60,578 60,578 Reimbursement from Free W'tll 

Baptist Foundation 
27,000 27,000 Miscellaneous income 668 4.214 5,582 Total Additions 3,689,846 92,492 3,782,338 Allocation for operations ( 25256Q) 2S2.560 

Net additions after allocation for operations l.43Z,286 J45,052 3,782,338 
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1228 
Retirement 
Accounts OWJtions Total 

s 1,527,119 s s 1,527,119 

1,505,032 1,505,032 

( 212.S2S) ( 212.525) 

594,501 594,501 

SJ6.~1l 536.~7J 
1,130,980 1,130,980 

276,592 276,592 

B.52J 8.S2J 

285.025 285,02S 

1,187 1,187 
57,342 57,342 

22,000 22,000 
4,116 4,116 

2,944,381 83,458 3,027,839 
( 254.311) 254,371 
2,690,010 J37,829 3,027,832 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND INSURANCE OF 
TilE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - Continued 
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999 AND I 998 

1999 
Retirement 
Accounts Qperations TotaJ 

EXPENSES AND OTIIER DEDUCilONS 
Withdrawals by participants $ 1,395,436 $ $ 1,395,436 Insurance deductions from participants accounts 47,043 47,043 Income allocated to annuitant obligations 86,558 86,558 Salaries 

101,824 101,824 Housing 
47,840 47,840 Fringe benefits 
56,229 56,229 Travel and promotional 
17,009 17,009 Office supplies and expense 
27,779 27,n9 Occupancy 
50,199 50,199 Board members expense 13,770 13,770 Legal and auditing 
13,929 13,929 Depreciation 
18,794 18,794 Miscellaneous 

:l.~J~ ~.722 7,J6S Total deductions 1.531.673 352.102 t.883,ns 

Increase (decrease) in net assets 1,905,613 ( 7,050) 1,898,563 

Net assets It beginning of year 17.895.080 72.314 17.974,J94 

Net assets at end of year 112.122 ~J I ~~~ Sl2172 257 
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1998 
Retirement 
Accounts OJ)erations Total 

s 1,246,487 $ s 1,246,487 
44,359 44,359 
61,582 61,582 

98,191 98,191 
45,999 45,~ 
53,461 53,461 
17,498 17,498 
21,414 21,414 
49,070 49,070 
11,392 11,392 
12.431 12.431 
17,153 17,153 

2,212 6034 1.2~J 
I.JSS,347 332.643 1.617,990 

1,334,663 5,186 1,339,849 

16.560.417 74,128 16,634,545 

sp.89S,oso ~ Z2.JH JIZ.2Z~.J~ 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND INSURANCE OF 
TilE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WllL BAPTISTS 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999 AND 1998 

1999 
Retirement 

Accounta OperatioN 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING 
ACTIVITIES 
Cash received from: 

ContributioN from participants and employers s 1,694,541 s Gifb 
60,578 

Income earned from interest and loan 
origination fees 165,471 

Investment income 663,114 
Forfeitures and late clw-ges 1,268 
Reimbursement ftom Free Will 
Baptist Foundation 

27,000 
Miscellaneous income 668 5,269 Cash paid for: 
Supplies and employees ( 49,178) (340,010) 
Withdrawal of funds by participants ( 1,395,436) 
Income allocated to annitant obligations ( 86.558) 

Net cash provided (used} by 
opetating activities 993.890 (247.163) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING 
ACTIVITIES 

IQlll 

s 1,694,541 
60,578 

165,471 
663,114 

1,268 

27,000 
5,937 

( 389,188) 
( 1,395,436) 
( 86.558) 

746.m 

Purchases of office furniture and equipment 
Investmenta: 

( 2,562) ( 2,562) 

Purchases of investment seauities (19,839,665) (19,839,665) Funds invested with Free Will 
Baptist Foundation ( 200,000) ( 3,926) ( 203,926) Proceeds from sale of investment 
securities 

Notes receivable: 
17,549,923 17,549,923 

New loans made ( 107,003) ( 107,003) Collection of notes receivable l.lli.OH 1.131.014 
Net cash used by investing activities ( 1.4§5,V1) ( 6,488) ( 1,472,219) 
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1998 

Retirement 
Accounts Operations Total 

$ 1,527,119 $ s 1,527,119 
57,342 57,342 

276,592 276,592 
529,311 529,311 

1,187 1,187 

22,000 22,000 
3,031 3,031 

( 49,635) (312,739) ( 362,374) 
( 1,246,487) ( 1,246,487) 
( 64.501) ( 64.501) 

973.586 (230.366) 743.220 

( 29,010) ( 29,010) 

(21,138,947) (21,138,947) 

( 3,730) ( 3,730) 

19,772,185 19,772,185 

( 117,814) ( 117,814) 
701.710 701.710 

( 782,8~ ( 32.740) ( 81~.~) 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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BOARD OF R.ET1REMENT AND INSURANCE OF 

1HE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS- Continued 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999 AND 1998 

1999 
Retirement 

Accounts Operations TotaJ 
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING 

ACTIVITIES 
Allocation for operations (252,560) 252,560 
Net additions to annuities payable 

1U.J61 313.361 Net cash provided by financing activities 60,801 252560 313.J61 

Net increase (deaease) in cash (411,040) ( 1,091) (412,131) 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 79Z713 23,525 821.231 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year s 386,673 s 23434 s 409 107 

RECONCILIATION OF INCREASE 
(DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS TO CASH 
FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Increase in net nsetJ s 1,905,613 $( 7,050) s 1,898,563 Adjustments to reconcile ina-ease (decrease) 
in net assets to net cash provided (used) by 
operating activities 
Depreciation and amortization 18,794 18,794 Allocation for operations 252,560 (252,560) 
Gains on investment transactions (1,105,012) (1, 105,012) Decrease in accounts receivable 

355 355 Dec:rease (mcrease) in accrued investment . 
( 51,772) ( 51,772) 

mcome 

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable, 
accrued expenses and othtr SOl ( 6,702) ( 6,201) Decrease in loan origination fees ( 8,00Q) ( 8.000) Total adjustments ( 911.123) £240,113) ( 1,151,836) 

Net cash provided {used) by 
operating activities s 993 890 S(241,16J) s '746 121 
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199~ 

Retirement 
Accounts Operations Total 

( 254,371) 254,371 
12~.1~3 J2~.1~l 

254.371 J25.163 1~.192 

331,512 ( 8,735) 322,777 

466.201 32,260 428,461 

s 121.1Jl s 2J,525 s 821 2J8 

$ 1,334,663 s 5,186 s 1,339,849 

17,153 17,153 
254,371 (254,371) 

( 594,507) ( 594,501) 
( 355) ( 355) 

( 7,162) ( 7,162) 

( 5,216) 2,021 ( 3,255) 
( I.~QJ) ( 8,50J) 
( 361.077) (235,522) ( 596.629) 

s 21J.~~~ $(230,366) s 143 220 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

- 11-

A- 119 



..... 

A. 

BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND INSURANCE OF 
1liE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 1999 AND 1998 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Organization 

The Board of Retirement and lnsuran f th . 
(the "Board") is o~ted und th ce 0 . e National ~ation of Free Will Bap•; ... 
B · r-- er e ausp1ces of the National Associ · --a 

aptists, Inc. The purpose of the Board is to . . . atJon of Free Wall 
for licensed or ordained . . . mamtatn contnbutory retirement accounts 

denominational agencies of =~:o,:rs ~=ployeesf F of church~ schools and 
Board maintains thi . . on o ree Will Baptists, Inc '""· s retu'ement pcllSlon plan t S . . u~e 
Revenue Code of 1986 which · pursuan to ectton 403(b) of the Internal 

, IS an exempt church plan under the provisions of the cod e. 

Accrual Basis and Fmancial Statement Presentation 

The financial statements of the Board 
accounting. have been prepared on the accruaJ basis of 

The Board classifies its revenue, . 
•ssets based on the existence ab ~ g~ and losses into three classes of net 
Board and ... t. ... ~ •L- . or ~of donor-unposed restrictions. Net assets of the 

.... IQI~es wgem are classified as foUows: 

~=cted net assets - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed 
ons. 

Temporarily restricted net assets - N . . 
stipulations that rna . . et assets subJect to donor-101posed 
passage of time. y or will be met either by actions of the Board and/or the 

Pennanently restricted net assets _ N . . 
stipulations that are maintained et assets subJect to donor-unposed 
of these assets · permanently by the Board. Generally, the donors 
related investm:muts r-. t theeraJBoard to ~se a1J or part of the income earned on the 

•or gen or specific purposes. 

- 12-
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BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND INSURANCE OF 
niE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE Will BAPTISTS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 1999 AND 1998 

A. sUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

The amount for each of these classes of net assets is presented in the statements of 
financial position. and the amount of change in each class of net assets is displayed in the 
statements of activities and changes in net assets. The Board had no temporarily or 
pemwlCDlly restricted net assets at December 31, 1999 and 1998. 

Further, contn'butions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or 
permanently restricted support depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor 
restrictions. 

Retirement Pension Plan 

Under the terms of the retirement pension plan which the Board maintain'. contnlrutions 
may be made to the Plan through employer contn'butions, salary reduction contn'butions, 
voluntary employee contn'butions and general contn'butions. The participant may elect 
from two plan types. Plan 1 requires employer contn'butions for such employee to be at 
least S% of the employee's compensation. Plan 2 requires the total of employer 
contn'butions, salary reduction and voluntary employee contributions to be at least 3% of 
the employee's compensation. A third plan exists that members may enter initialJy upon 
employment or when they lose elig~'bility to participate in Plan 1 or 2. Minimum 
contn'butions required by this plan are $10 per month and can be made by any of the 
plan's contn'bution means. Total employer contributions and salary reduction 
contn'butions that may be made for a participant in any year shall not exceed the limits 
imposed by IRS Code Sections 402(g), 403(b) and 415. 

Each participant's account is credited with contributions made by and on behalf of the 
participant. Allocations of Plan earnings are based on account balances and the plan 
elections made by each participant, as defined in the Plan, on the last day of each 
adjustment period. The benefit to which a participant is entitled is the benefit that can be 
provided from the participant's account. 

On retirement, death or disability, participants receive payment of their individual vested 
account balances based on options and provisions as defined in the Plan. Benefits are 
recorded when paid. 

Although it has not expressed any intent to do so, the Board has the right under the Plan, 
with the approval of the Association, to terminate the Plan. In the event of Plan 
termination. participants will become 1 0<>-/e vested in their accounts. 

- 13 -
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BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND INSURANCE OF 
THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE Wll..L BAPTISTS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 1999 AND 1998 

A SUMMARY OF SIGNlFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

Investments 

Investments in marketable securities are reported at fair value with gains and losses 
included in the statement of activities and changes in net assets. Investrne:nu in 
marketable securities are valued at current quoted or estimated market value. Noo­
nwicetable investments are carried at cost unless a permanent loss of value has occurred. 

Office Furniture. Equipment and Automobiles 

Office furniture, equipment and automobiles are recorded at cost. Depreciation is 
provided on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective 
assets. generally 6 years for automobiles and S - 10 years for furniture and equipment. 

Income Taxes 

The Board is exempt from income taxes; accordingly, no provision for income taxes has 
been made in the accompanying financial statements. 

Cash and Cash EQuivalents 

For purposes of the statements of cash flows. the Board considet"S all cash on hand. 
deposits in financial institutions and highly liquid debt instruments with an original 
maturity of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents. 

Loan Origination Fees 

A one-time origination fee for 4% for each new church loan is charged to borrowers to 
cover service fees throughout the life of the Joan. These loan origination fees are 
amortized to revenue over the life of the related loan. 

Uses of Estimates in tbe PreJ)aration ofFinancial Statements 

Judgment and estimation is exercised by management in certain areas of the preparation 
of financial statements. The more significant areas include the coUectibility of notes 
receivable, the detennination of fair value of investments, and the recovery period for 
office furniture, equipment and automobiles. Management believes that such estimates 
have been based ~n reasonable assumptions and that such estimates are adequate. Actual 
results could differ from those estimates. 

- 14-
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BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND INSURANCE OF 
TilE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE Wll.L BAPTISTS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 1999 AND 1998 

B. NOTES RECEIVABLE 

FoUowing is a summary of notes receivable: 

1999 1998 

Participant notes (net) secured by retirement 
account balances 

Churches and agency notes secured by related 
real property 

Less allowance for doubtful accounts 

$ 30,456 

1.192.119 
1.222,575 

( 30.000) 

$ 92,959 

2.153.627 
2,246,586 

( 30.000) 

s 1 192.575 s 2.216 586 

The notes bear interest at various rates from 3. 00/o to 1 5% and mature at various dates 
from 2001 through 2012. 

C. INVESTMENTS IN MARKETABLE SECURITIES AND INSTRUMENTS 

A summary of investments at market value and cost, is as foUows: 

1999 
Market 

Yalue ~ Appreciation 

Investments: 
Certificate of deposit s 35,000 $ 35,000 $ 
Mutual funds 2,632,633 2,670,768 ( 38,135} 
Common stocks 9,153,974 8,033,768 1,120,206 
U.S. Government issues 7,311,241 7,651,451 ( 340,210} 
Fixed income bonds 48,845 116,031 ( 67, 186) 
Investment with Foundation 200.000 200.000 

Total Investments Sl2.l81.!i2J Sl8.ZQZ.Qla s !iZ~ fiZ~ 

For 1999, total investment income relating to marketable securities and instruments 
amounted to $1,819,898 and consisted of investment gains of$1,105,012 and interest and 
dividends of $714,886. Investment income represented yields of 10.35% and 10.58% 
based on the average market value and average cost of such investments for 1999. 

- IS-

A- 124 

Market 
value 

$ 35,000 
2,092,543 
5,762,172 
7,871,999 

25,225 

s 15,186,932 

1998 

$ 35,000 
2,008,029 
6,145,354 
7,498,383 

25,032 

SIS Zll.728 

Appreciation 

$ 
84,514 

(383,182) 
373,616 

193 

s 75 141 
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BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND INSURANCE OF 

TilE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WR.L BAPTISTS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 3 I. I 999 AND I 998 

C. INVESTMENTS IN MAJlKETARI .fi SECURITIES 
AND INSTRUMENTS - Continued 

Total investment income relating to nwtcetable securities and instruments &mounted 
$1,130,980 for 1998 and consisted of investment a•in• of $594 507 and · 

1 
to 

d. 'd d f $53 · -- • 10 erest llld Jvt en so 6,473. Investment income represents yields of 7.63% and 7.92% based 
on the average marlcet value and average cost of such investments for 1998. 

Inv~ent and brokerage ~ces. totaling $1~ •. 846 and $102,615 for tm and 1998, 
respccbvcJy, were netted agamst mtcrcst and d.ivtdends from investments. 

D. OffiCE Ft1RNIJ1JRK EOUIPMmft AND AUIQMOBU.ES 

A summary of office furniture, equipment and automobiles is as foUows: 

Office furniture and fixtures 
Computer equipment 
Automobiles 

AcoJmulated depreciation 

E. IJ:;ASB AND OCCUPANCY EXPENSE 

1999 

$ 40,685 
55,167 
19.500 

115,952 
C TI.439) 

s 38.513 

1998 

$ 40,562 
59,626 
19.500 

119,688 
( 64.943) 

s 54.745 

Under the terms of a lease agJeement with an affiliate, the Board leases 3,933 feet of 
offi~ and storage space for S 1. 00 per square foot per month. The lease can only be 
tcrnunated aftet: ~ and aD mortgages ue paid in fuU on the premises. In addition, the 
Board pays ~d.ibonaJ expenses related to their share of operating and maintenance costs 
of the building. Total lease payments and additional operating and maintenance costs 
related to the lease were $50, I 99 and $49 070 for the years ended December 31 1999 and 
1998. • • 
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BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND INSURANCE OF 
1HE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WilL BAPTISTS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 3 I , I 999 AND 1998 

F. ftNNUlllhS PAYABLE 

G. 

Upon attaining retirement age. the retiree bas th~ option, among o~. to ~n~crt _his 
participant account into an annuity to provide r~ent benefits .o~ his_ remauung life. 
The periodic benefit is calculated based on mortality tables conSJdcnng life expectancy. 
AJ of December 31, 1999 and 1998, the recorded liability amounted to $1,274,925 and 
$961,564, respectively. which management believes is sufficient to provide benefits over 
the life -expectancy of the annuitants. 

INFORMATION REGARDING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

The Board has an accounting risk of loss in the areas of cash and cash equivalents, 
investments and notes receivable to the extent cash funds are not insured by a 
govemmental agency, or notes receivable and investments ue not seaued by mortgages 
or guaranteed by the United States Government. 

The following table summarizes the Boud's accounting risk of loss as of December 31, 
1999: 

Amount Amount of 
Account Insured/ Accounting 
Balance Secured Risk ofLoss 

Notes receivable. net of allowance 
for doubtful collections s 1,192,575 s 1,192,575 s 

Cash and cash equivalents 216,041 203,031 13,010 
Funds invested with the Free Will 

Baptist Foundation 17,989 17,989 
Fixed income bonds 45,845 45,845 
Short-term liquid investments 193,067 193,067 
Short-term note with Free Will 
Baptist Foundation 200,000 200,000 

Certificates of deposit 35,000 35,000 
Mutual funds 2,632,633 2,632,633 

Common stocks 9,153,974 9,153,974 
U.S. Treasury notes and bills 7.311.241 7.311.241 

~2 221l~~ S2.U,,22l Ill~~~~' 
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BOARD OF RETIREMENT 
TilE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION~ ~~CE OF Board of Retirement and Insurance 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTSBAPTISTS 
DECEMBER 31, 1999 AND 1998 

Proposed Budget for 2001 

H. RELATED PART¥ TRANSACTIONS 

1998 1998 1999 1999 2000 2001 
Budget Actual Budget Actual Approved Proposed 

The ;Board provided office space and certain . . . . Sli111s 
s 96,465 s 98,191 s 97,105 $101,825 $106,147 $110,642 

Baptist Foundation. Inc. The Foundation reimbursed~ semces to the Free WiD Em~ Benefits 51,200 53,461 53,569 56,229 59,233 62,382 

these services during the years ended December 31 199 Board $27,000 ~d $22,000 for Housing 46,000 46,000 47,840 47,840 49,754 51,744 

• 9 and 1998, respectiVely. TnMVPromolion 17,000 17,137 19,000 15,213 19,250 19,250 

~ Mornteoonce 1,000 1,307 1,000 1,796 1,500 1,500 

Future Purchoses 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 

Hor!H«JrPISoft'Mlre Future Purchases 0 0 0 0 0 12,000 

Plant Fund 53,000 49,070 53,000 50,199 53,000 53,000 

OOiceE~ 26,000 19,168 26,000 25,118 26,000 28,000 

Equipment 30,000 29,009 10,000 2,562 10,000 4,000 

Pub5cations 10,000 2,950 10,000 0 12,250 12,250 

Dej(s Shore of Ins. Ptemium 0 0 0 15 0 0 

Boord &pense 12,500 12,139 14,000 13,770 15,000 15,000 

Together Way 1,000 1,098 1,000 749 1,400 1,400 

~I 16,000 12,651 18,000 13,929 18,000 3,500 

Aldimg 
12,000 

MiscliloneM Operoting Expenses 1,500 1,362 2,500 1,800 1,100 2,000 

Edu<Diior/T roini!!!J 4,000 3,286 51000 21661 61500 8,000 

TM!I $368,665 $349,828 $361,014 $336,705 $382,134 $399,668 
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B~a~d of Retirement and Insurance 
a ary and Benefits Breakdown 

Bill Evans: 
Salary 
Housi~fflifies 
Social SecurifYM~icore 
Retirement 
Insurance 

Ufe 
Hospi!olizotion 
Dentol 
Disability 

Note: Office Cor Fumishfd 
Total 

Ray Lewis 
Salary 
Housi~filifies 
ScriJISoctKif1Mooicore 
Retirement 
Insurance 

Ufe 
Hospi!olizotion 
Dentol 
Disability 

·Note: Office Cor Fumishoo 
Total 

David Brown 
Salary 
Social ~MOOicore 

Retiremoot 
Insurance 

Ufe 
Hospitolizofun 
Oentol 
Oisobitrty 

Total 

Diana Harris 
Salary 
Sockll SoowitiMooicore 
Relirement 
Insurance 

life 
Hospilotaotioo 
Dentol 
Disability 

Total 
.. Disobirrty lnsuro001 ~ .059 pet $100 

1999 
$25,518.57 
22,880.00 
8,742.60 
3,387.90 
5,888.04 

739.20 
4,534.08 

340.20 
274.56 

$66,417.11 

$17,756.88 
24,960.00 
7,716.27 
2,990.18 
3,377.52 

565.20 
2,384.40 

185.52 
242.40 

$56,800.85 

$33,205.35 
5,998.13 
2,324.37 
6, 936.12 

403.20 
5,856.00 
488.52 
188.40 

$48,463.98 

$20,623.95 
1,708.43 
1,443.68 
3,055.80 

361.20 

2000 
$26,539.32 
23,795.20 
9,092.30 
3,523.42 
6,742.31 

739.20 
5,281 .20 

407.88 
314.03 

$70,835.37 

SIB, 467.15 
25,958.40 
8,079.18 
3,109.79 
3,937.92 

660.96 
2,777.28 

222.48 
277.20 

• 

$60,564.13 

$34,533.57 
6,379.69 
2,417.35 
8,432.04 

403.20 
7,227.48 

585.84 
215.52 

$52,546.72 

$23,920.00 
1,829.88 
1,674.40 
3,858.12 

361.20 

2001 
$28,789.43 
24,747.01 
9,456.00 
3,664.35 
7,312.57 

841.20 
5,710.01 

396.72 
364.64 

$73,969.36 

$20,254.85 
26,996.74 
8,345.92 
3,161.50 
4,201.97 

660.96 
3,002.81 

216.36 
321.84 

• 

$62,960.97 

$36,730.34 
6,487.58 
2,51 4.04 
9,037.65 

403.20 
7,814.40 

569.88 
250.17 

$54,769.61 

$24,867.60 
1,866.48 
1,674.40 
3,724.32 

2,384.40 361.20 
2,777.28 

193.20 3,002.81 
585.84 

IIZ.OO 216.36 
133.00 143.95 $26,831.86 $31,742.40 $32,132.80 
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Free Will Baptist Foundation 
The Free Will Baptist Foundation is a ministry of helps. During the past 

year we we~e .as~ed to assist several individuals, families, local churches 
and other rrurustnes. 

A lady wanted to provide a gift to her widow ed sister. This sister and 
her husband had spent their working years serving Free Will Baptists. The 
widow's retirement income w as limited. Though in her 70's, she worked 
regularly to provide a few of the extras so pleasant in life. The caller could 
not provide a large gift, and feared the little she could provide would be 
totally consumed if special care or other needs arose. After some consid­
eration a plan was put into action which accomplished the following: 

The caller received 
• A tax deduction for the charitable gift portion of the transfer. 
• Assurance that the stream of income will go to her sister as long as 

she lives. 
• Assurance that the principal of the gift cannot be attached for health 

needs. 

The widow receives 
• A regular quarterly income ("gift" from her sister) for life, of which the 

majority is tax free. 
• A constant reminder of her family's love and the power of God to pro­

vide. 

Free Will Baptists receive 
• The remainder following the widow's death (benefits will be distrib­

uted according to the donor's directions) 
A pastor called requesting help managing surplus funds by his church. 

As with many of our churches their surplus was small and they could never 
tell when some or all of it might be needed. Bank COs were not suitable for 
them and savings account interest was very low. Could the Foundation 
help them ? We suggested an arrangement which provided them: 

• An agreement invested in government-backed guaranteed invest-
ments 

• An attractive rate of interest 
• Quick access with no withdrawal penalty 
• The opportunity to add any amount at any time and as often as they 

wished, earning the same rate 
• Assurance that the service cost goes to a Free Will Baptist ministry 
The Foundation exists to help our people and ministries achieve their God­

given purpose, both today and in the future. Those needs are unique and personal 
for each. The Foundation seeks to tailor a solution for each individual need 

The financial report indicated a significant growth this year. However, 
much of that is due to short term funds added to the revocable trust fund. 

Our field representative, Brother Frank Giunta, retired in June of last 
Year. As projected when Frank came on board, w e did slip into red ink 
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after three years, not nearly as qwckly as expected. Since his retirement 
we have maintained the operation with office staff only. Several have 
sought the position since his retirement. 

At present I am seeking to develop a semi-voluntary staff of key individuak 
who can be mobilized to help spread the word and explain various gift options. 

Leroy and Lou Schudder from northeast Arkansas and William (Buddy) 
and Martha Morris of Statesboro, Georgia have stepped forward already. 
They came for two days of intensive training earlier this month. Fred 'Muner 

' representative of Foreign Mission attended also. 
From $0 to $8.3 million in the first 20 years. If the vision for what the 

Foundation can do for and through our people and ministries continues to 
take hold we have not seen anything yet. I want to reach $1 0 million by year 
end and hopefuJJy $25,000,000 within the next five. 

Will you help us help your church, friends and family in this great task? 

Apri/26, 1999 

Free Will Baptist Foundation 
Summary of Board Meeting 

Annual Meeting-All members or proxies present except Roger 
Harwell. The director's report and financial report were accepted. The 
2000 budget was approved. The Board discussed changes in the endow­
ment allocations. The board elected officers and commended the mem­
bers who were retiring from the board. 
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lndq>endent Auditors' Re,port 

The Board of Directors 
Free Will Baptist Foundation, Inc. 

We have audited the accompanying statements of financial position of the Free Will Baptist 
Foundation, Inc. (the "Foundation") u of December 31, 1999 utd 1998, and the related 
statements of activities utd cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are 
the responsibility of the Foundation's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion 
on these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the Free Will Baptist Foundation, Inc., as of December 31, 1999 and 
1998, utd the changes in its net assets utd its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity 
with generally accepted accounting principles. 

Match I, 2000 

"-1,.,n1 ~ r Tho.: MolibJrn N,.,,..,,L 
\X1uriJ,.Ill<' ::Ot'l\'ot<'' Thn>HJ!h R~M lnro·rn.tll,.ol.ll 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST FOUNDATION INC 
STATEMENTs OF FINANCIAL rosmaN· 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Accrued earnings receivable 
Other accounts receivable 

ASSETS 

Inv~ents, at fair market value (Note B): 
Certificates of deposit 
U.S. Government instruments 
Common stocks 
Real estate investments 
Mutual funds 
Corporate bonds 
Resale estate held for resale 
Unimproved land held for resale 

Total Investments 

Notes receivable (Note C) 

T otaJ assets 

- 2 -
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December 31. 
1999 1998 

$ 228,436 

86,062 
1,687 

281,559 
5,901,897 

781,393 
567,010 
398,977 

93,798 

8.030.634 

38.737 

S8.385 5S6 

s 513,267 

48,630 

347,000 
3,596,996 

526,467 
515,464 
231,174 
20,280 
75,000 

2.0QQ 

5.314,381 

62.410 

ss 938 688 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

UABILITIES 
Liabilities to beneficial owners: 
Interest bearing revocable and savings trusts (Note D) 
Future gift interests payable (Note E) 
Funds held for Free Will Baptist Foreign Missions 
Accrued earnings payable 

Total liabilities 

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted 
Pcnnanently restricted (endowment) (Note F) 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

December 3 I, 
1999 1998 

$6,280,027 
877,350 

6,754 

7.164,131 

50,320 
1.171.105 
1.221.425 

$8 385.556 

$4,058,678 
881,621 

6,706 
6 757 

4.953.762 

18,367 
966.559 
984,926 

$5 938 688 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

-3-
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FREE Wll..L BAPTIST FOUNDATION, INC 
STATEMENTS OF ACTMTIES 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999 AND 1998 

1999 
Permanently -

Unrestricted Restricted TotAI 
REVENUE AND SUPPORT 

Investment income: 
lnteTest and dividends, net of investment fees s 395,547 s s 395,547 ReaJized net gains on sale of investments 66,602 

66,602 UnreaJized net gains (losses) from investments 44,967 
44,967 Earnings added to permanently 

restricted endowments 
( 22,535) 22.535 Total Investment Income 
484,581 22.535 5Q7.1J~ 

Support through "The Together Way" 
Plan and Other Contributions 

25,215 182,0ll 207,286 Interest income - notes receivable 
3,920 3,920 Endowment income 

562 562 Miscellaneous 
183 183 T otaJ Revenue and Support 514.521 204,546 719.067 

Allocations of earnings to revocable trusts, 
savings trusts. beneficiaries and annuitants (4Q1.l2Q) (407.390) Revenue and Support 

after Allocations 107,131 204,546 311.677 
EXPENSES 

Reimbursement to the Board ofRetirement of 
National Association ofFree Will Baptists 27,000 27,000 Salaries 

19,675 19,675 Equipment expense 
1,295 1,295 Travel and promotion 

14,739 14,739 Office expense 
1,708 1,708 Publications 

740 140 Training and education 
1,075 1,075 Legal and auditing 
6,851 6,851 Interest expense 

667 667 Miscellaneous 
1.428 1 428 Total Expenses 

75,178 75 178 

Increase (deaease) in Net assets 31,953 204,546 236,499 

Net Assets at Beginning of Year 
18,367 966.559 984 926 

Net Assets at End of Year s 50 320 SJ 171 105 SJ 221.425 

-4-
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1228 
Permanently 

JJnmtJicted Restricted Total 

$325,084 s s 325,084 

170,422 170,422 
(128,027) (128,027) 

( 1.QJQ) 7,0JO 
361.419 36(),449 7,030 

23,906 34,878 58,784 

1,990 1,990 
195 195 

S2 52 
386.599 41.908 428,507 

(lQQ.l~8) (300,368) 

86,231 41.908 128,139 

22,000 22,000 
43,613 43,613 
13,134 13,134 
12,405 12,405 
3,794 3,794 
1,718 1,718 
5,201 5,201 
6,500 6,500 

2.164 2,164 
11Q,522 11Q,522 

( 24,298) 41,908 17,610 

42.665 924,651 967,316 

s 18,367 $9§6.559 s 984,926 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST FOUNDATION INC 
STATEMENTs OF CASH FLows · 

Year Ende<f Dr&rmber 
31 1999 1998 

CASH FLO~S FOR OPERATING Ar-rnn-rn. ... 
Cash rcoetVcd for. '- 0 0 

y I I ~ 

Cootributions 
Interest aod dividends 
Other income 

Cash ~d to suppliers aod employees 
~oos of earnings to revocable trusts 

S&VUJgS trusts. beneficiaries and anouita.n'ts 
Net cash used by opeFating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM PERM.ANEN"JLy RESTRICfED 
(ENDoWMENT) ACJlVrriEs 
Cootributioos 
Investmen . 
~~reinvested. net of realized aod 

p.ans or losses on ~.~ transacti 
Net cash Provided by ~ .. J . • OQS 

(cudowmeot) activiti~ restricted 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVrn:Es 
NO(cs receivable advances p . . 
noapaJ paymcob received em n()(cs R:Ceivable 

Proceeds from sale of investment securiti 
Pure&ases of invcstJneot scc:uritics cs 

Net cash used by investing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACJlVrriEs 
Pgiftrocc_:ds 1rom additions, Dct of withdrawals, to future 

UJtcrcst. revocable and savings trusts 
Net ~nge in funds bcld for FRC Will Baptist 
Foretgo Missioas 

Net cash provided by fiDaDciog activities 

Net(~) increase in cash 

Cash aod cash cquivalcots at beginning of year 

Cash aod cash equivalents at cod of year 

RECONCIUA TION OF INCREASE IN NET ASSETS 
TO CAS~ FLOWS FROM OPERATING Ar-rnn-rn-... 
Increase m oct assets "• • " 1 1 ~ 
Less . . . 

.IDCI'ease m Dct assets C:OO.Stdercd capital addi . 
Rta.lizcd and UIU"CaJizcd . . boos 
Decrease (' . gam.s 00 mvestmeot transactions 

mcrease)_m accrued invescmeot income 
ln<:rea.se (dcaeasc) m accrued earnings payable 

( 

I 

$ 25,275 
358,115 

4,665 
( 81,935) 

( 407.390) 
( 101.270) 

182,011 

182.01J 

23,673 
2.215,146 

(4.88I.S 11) 
(2.582.698) 

2,217,078 

~8 
2.21Z12~ 

284,831) 

513.267 

UU ~ZQ 

$ 236,499 
( 182,011) 
( 111,569) 
( 37,432) 
( 101.270) 

Net cash used by operating activities 
Sl 123 80S) 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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$ 
( 
( 
( 
( 

Sl 

-

$ 23,906 
316,904 

2,244 
( 145,910) 

( 300.368) 
( 103.224) 

34,878 

7.030 

41.908 

( 41,613) 
17,162 

2,127,538 
C2.644A10) 
( 541.323) 

165,904 

7~~) 
765.169 

162,530 

350.737 

Ul~~z 

17,610 
41,908) 
42,395) 
8, 180) 

28.351) 

IQJ 22~) 

FREE WILL BAPTIST FOUNDATION, INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 1999 AND 1998 

A sUMMARY OF SlGNlFICANI ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Free Will Baptist Foundation, Inc. (the Foundation) is operated under the auspices of the 
National Association ofFree Will Baptists, Inc. 

Accrual Basis and Financial Statement Presentation 

The financial statements of the Foundation have been prepared using the accrual basis of 
accounting. 

The Foundation classifies its reverwe, contributions, expenses. gains. and losses into 
three cJas.ses of net assets based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed 
restrictions. Net assets of the Foundation and changes therein are classified as foUows: 

Unrestricted net assets - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed 
stipulations. 

Temporarily restricted net wets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed 
stipulations that may or will be met either by actions of the Foundation and/or the 
passage of time. 

Permanently restricted net assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed 
stipulations that they be maintained permanently by the Foundation. Generally, 
the donors of these assets permit the Foundation to use aD or part of the income 
earned on related investments for general or specific purposes. 

The amount for each of these classes of net assets is presented in the statement of 
financial position and the amount of clw\ge in each class of net assets is displayed in the 
statement of activities. The Foundation had no temporarily restricted net assets at 
December 31, 1999 and 1998. 

-7-
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FREE Wll..L BAPTIST FOUNDATION, INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 1999 AND 1998 

A SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

Income Taxes 

The Foundation is exempt from income taxes. 

Cash and Cash JWJiya)ents 

For purposes of the statement of cash Oows. the Foundation considers aD cash on hand, 
deposits in financial institutions and highly liquid debt instruments with an original 
maturity of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents. 

Use of Estimates in tbe Preparation ofYmancial Statements 

Judgment and estimation is eleercised by management in certain areas of the preparation 
of financial statements. The more significant areas include the coDectibility of notes 
receivable and determination of fair value of investments. Management believes that 
such estimates have been based on reasonable assumptions and that such estimates are 
adequate. Actual results could di1fer from those estimates. 

Investments 

Investments in marketable securities are reported at fair value with gains and losses 
included in the statement of actMties. Investments in marketable securities are valued at 
current quoted or estimated market value. Nonmarketable investments are carried at cost 
unless a permanent Joss of value has OCCWTed. 

Liabilities to Beneficial Owners 

The Foundation has recorded liabilities for assets they held as trustee, intermediary, 
custodian or agent for beneficial owners of income or remainder interests. Generally, 
the Foundation's liability is limited to assets held within a specific trust or account. 

-8 -
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B. 

FREE WILL BAPTIST FOUNDATION, INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 1999 AND 1998 

INYESIMENTS 

A summary of investments at marlcet value and cost, is as foUows: 

1999 
Market/ 
Stated 
value 

Investments: 
Marketable Securities: 

Certificate of deposits s 281,559 s 250,171 U.S. Govenunent instruments 5,907,897 6,266,245 Common stocks 781,393 752,720 MutuaJ funds 398,977 312,296 Corporate bonds 93,798 98,552 ReaJ estate investment trust S6Z010 500.<)00 
Total Marketable Securities 8.030.634 8.179.984 

Other Investments: 
Real estate held for resale 
Unimproved land held for resale 

Total Other Iuvestmenu 

T otaJ Investments ~~ QJQ.~J~ ~1.122 2~ 

Appreciation 
(dq>reciatiog) 

s 31,388 
(358,348) 

28,673 
86,681 

( 4,754) 
67.010 

049.350) 

$(142,350) 

TotaJ investment income amounted to $507,116 for 1999, consisting of investment gains 
of $1 I 1,569 and interest and dividends of $395,547. This investment income represents 
yields of 7.6<>-/e and 7.57'-/e based on the average market value and average cost of such 
investments for 1999. 

TotaJ investment income amounted to $367,479 for 1998, consisting of investment gains 
of $42,395 and interest and dividends of $325,084. This investment income represents 
yields of 7.290/e and 7.49-/e based on the average market value and average cost of such 
investments for I 998. 

-9-
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1998 

Market 
Stated Appreciation 
Value (dwreciation) 

s 347,000 $ 347,000 $ 
3,596,996 3,422,125 174,871 

( 89,057) 526,461 615,524 
231,174 221,508 9,666 

20.280 20,254 26 
51S,464 500.000 1S.464 

5.237.381 5.126.411 110.970 

75,000 80,000 ( S,OOO) 
2.()QQ 2.000 

77.000 82.000 ( S.OOQ) 

ss 314 381 $5 208 411 s 105 970 
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C. 

D. 

E. 

FREE WD.L BAPTIST FOUNDATION INC 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST A T:£M:ENrs . 

DECEMBER 31, 1999 AND 1998 

NOTES RECEIVABLE 

Notes receivable consists of obligations from related parties as follows: 

1999 

1.125% to 9:ooe.!. notes receivable relating to the 
St. Sebastem church development project in France 
guaranteed by the Foreign Missions Board of the 
National Association ofFrec Will Baptists and 
pajd in full during 1999. s 

11.5% note receivable due in monthly installments 
of$230 through 2001, relating to the purdwe 
of a copy machine by the Board of Retirement and 
Insurance of the National Association of Free Will 
Baptists. 4,711 

8.5% note receivable due in monthly insta1Jments of 
$903 through 2003, relating to the purclwe of a 
phone system by the National Association of the 
Free Will Baptists, Inc. 34.026 

IJI.ZJZ 

IN IEREST BEARING REYOCABI.B AND SAVING TRUSTS 

$14,000 

6,797 

41.613 

1§2,410 

The Foundati · · on maintlins revoc:able trusts and savings trusts which totaled $6 210 ~7 ::;t $4,058,678 ~~bet 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively. The trusts pay u;ter~ to 
~~ benefiCW'Ies. ~ rate of interest pajd is dependent upon the amount of income 

m the rel1ted mvestments. Withdrawal from the ICCOUDlS, hich · 
a 90 day noti~ is without penalty, and the trusts are without maturity. w may reqUlR 

FUTURE Giff INTERESTS PAYABLE 

The Foundation maintains charitabl · . . . . e unrtrusts amounting to $276,451 and $285,006 and 
gift ~tles IJDOUl\ttn8 to ~,899 and $596,615 u ofDeccmber 31, 1999 and 1998, 
respectively. These future gift 11\terests pay intecest at specified rates ranging from 5.0% 
to 8.7'.1.. 

-II-
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f. 

G. 

H. 

FREE wn.L BAPTIST FOUNDATION, INC. 
NOTESTOFINANC~STA~S 

DECEMBER 31, 1999 AND 1998 

fEI>WNENJLY RESIRlCfED NET ASSETS -ENDOWMENT 

penna,nently resUicted net assets (endowment) are subj~ to r~ctions ~y the do~or 
requiring that the principal, and in certain~ _earrungs. be mvested m perpetlllty, 
and only the income be distributed to the benefiaan~ of the endowment. The rate of 
· terest paid is dependent upon the amount of mcome earned from the related 
:vestments. As of December 31, 1999 and 1998, the permanently restricted endowment 

funds totaled $1,171,105 and $966,559, respectively. 

R£LAIED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The Board of Retirement and Insurance of the National Association of Free Will Baptists 
provided office space and certain administrative services to the Foundation for fees of 

$27,000 and $22,000 for 1999 and 1998, respectively. 

INFORMATION REGARDING FINANC~ INSIRTTMFNIS 

The Foundation has an ac:oounting risk of Joss in the areas of cash and cash equivalents 
and investments to the extent they are not insured or guaranteed by a governmental 
agency. The Foundation may ~so be at risk of~oss with respect _to ~e mark~ val~es of 
other investments. The followmg table sununanz.es the Foundation s a.ccountmg nsk of 

loss at December 31, 1999: 

Amount Amount of 

Account Insured! Accounting 

Balance Secured RiskofLoss 

Cash and cash equivalents s 110,479 s 100,000 s 10,479 

Short term liquid investments 117,956 117,956 

Certificates of deposit 
281,559 281 ,559 

U.S . Government instruments 5,907,898 5,907,898 

Common stock 
781,393 

781,393 

Mutual funds 
398,977 

398,977 

Corporate bonds 93,797 
93,797 

Real estate investment 567,010 
567,010 

IB ~~2.~2 ~ ~QZ ~ll ~~ B~l !i~!i 

- 12-
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Free Will Baptist Foundation Budget 

Actual Approved Actual Approved 1998 1999 1999 2000 Income 
The Jogether Way $12,899 $21,000 $24_310 $24,000 Gifts 1,007 1,200 Interest Income 965 1,000 3,109 4,500 2,720 Endowment 2,500 195 600 Miscellaneous 562 300 59 100 Management Fees 183 100 _50,685 ZQ.OOQ Total $77,954 Z8.32l ZQ.QOO $97,400 $107, 131 $97,900 

Expenses 
Salaries & Benefits $61,613 $47,700 $19,675 Salary Reimbursement $45,000 0 12,000 Travel & Promotion 12,405 

22,000 32,000 
20,000 Office Expense 3,794 

14,740 20,000 
Rent 5,000 1,708 5,000 4,000 5,000 Printing 500 

5,000 8,000 
Publications 5,000 0 6,000 
Training & Education 

1,718 J,200 738 
5,201 1,200 

Auditing 6,500 
5,000 1,075 5,000 
6,825 Legal 6,825 7,000 

Equipment 
0 600 27 

13,134 1,000 
Miscellaneous 0 1,295 1,000 1.155 1,000 Total 2,095 1,000 $110,020 $11 9,325 $75,178 $132,200 (32,066) (21,925) (34,300) 
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$29,150 
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20,000 
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6,000 
7,500 

250 
I,OOJ 
1,000 

$116,100 

Free Will Baptist Foreign Missions 
Digest of Reports- 2000 

By James Forlines, General Director 

The River 
a song recorded by Steve Green 

The River calls we can't deny, a step of faith is our reply. 
We feel the Spirit draw us in. The water's swift. We're forced to swim. 
We're out of control, and we go where He flows. 

Danger awaits at every turn. We choose a course. We live and learn. 
As we surrender to His will, we're at peace, but we're seldom still. 
He is in control, and we go where He flows. 

There 's a River ever flowing, widening, never slowing. 
And all who wade out in are swept away. 
When it ends and where it's going, like the wind no way of knowing, 
Until we answer the call to risk it all and enter in. 

CCLI# 1421101 

The heart of God is to redeem to Himself those from every people 
group on earth (Revelation 5:9). The call to take a step of faith was not 
given only to Abraham, Moses, and the prophets of old. God is calling us. 
He is calling us to quit playing it safe and simply depend on Him to use us 
to make a difference in this world-a difference far greater than any we 
could ever make on our own. 

1999- A Year of Progress 
By the end of 1999 Free Will Baptist Foreign Missions was working in 

some way in 15 countries. In 11 of them we have missionaries: Brazil, Central 
Asia (precise country not named for security reasons), France, India, Ivory 
Coas~ Japan, Panama, Russia, Spain, South Korea and Uruguay. In two coun­
tries (Cuba and Nepal) we have no missionaries, but we work closely with 
national pastors. In two restricted access countries (Mongolia and China) we 
use creative means to place Christian servants among them. 

We currently support 114 missionaries. They are joined by 150 ordained 
national pastors and 236 licensed and lay pastors. At the end of 1999 we were 
sponsoring seven Bible institutes (Brazil-two, Cuba, France, Ivory Coas~ Panama 
~Russia). A total of 111 students are studying for ministry opportunities. Already 
m the first half of 2000 we have begun new training institutions in India and South 
Korea We are truly multiplying our effectiveness. The swelling ranks of national 
Workers bode well for Free Will Baptist works around the world. 
. We can now report 202 organized churches (1 06 in 1998) and 335 mis­

Sion works (258 in 1998). A total of 1 ,344 conversions were reported and an 
average Sunday attendance of 12,314 (a 9% increase over 1998). That aver­
age represented a decade of growth of 114o/o over the 5, 7 44 average in 1990. 
Free Will Baptists on foreign mission fields did actually double in a decade! 

Exciting things and spiritual warfare are occurring in Panama. Two 
couples, the Eddie Bowerrnans and the Justin Banks, have been appoint­
ed to reach the Kuna Indian tribe there. The Panamanian Association 

A- 149 



Figure 1 
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appointed a Panamanian cou le R ul . 
effort. This marks the first timepa ~ro a :d :lamans Sanes, to join the 
Free Will Baptists to reach an unr ss-e tur team has been formed by 
needed for this team. Struggles andeac~ed :eople group .. Mu~h prayer is 

The Cuban church saw nearl se ac s threaten their rmssion. 
The total attendance remains abJ 

40~ &~ople make professions of faith. 
for their annual convention A sec ve ' and ov~r ?OO people gathered 
was started at the Cedars of Lebanond B~~ss ;or ~atrung national workers 
since its ~eopening two classes are 0~ e emmary, so for the first time 

Brazil reported 
144 

. ng concurrently. 
new infusion of missio~:::rt;~n 1999· The field council is bracing for a 
before the end of 2000 A n · ee new ~ouples should be on the field 
oped to reach this fifth I ew compre~ensive field strategy is being devel-
schoolteacher from Ar~::~ c~:~ m the world .. Fern Phillips, a retired 
school and assist in the church planti d to frelo S Ho':lzonte, Brazil, to teach 
breed of professional volunteers Man ng eth ort. he IS an example of a new 

The countries of s · u · Y 0 ers should follow her example. 
resistant to the gospel fr~~w:gua~, France,. and Japan continue to be 
in these darkest of pl~ces Last Baptis~ are still resolved to shine the light 
Free Will Baptist ministry i~ thes:ear . people accept:d Christ through 
moving. "For the weapons of o counm;s. The ground IS shaking. God is 
through G d th ur war.are are not carnal but m ·ghty 

0 to e puJling down of strong holds" (2 c · thi' 
1 

The church in Ivory Coast continues. o~ ans 1 0:4). 
The Bible institute had six duates Its ~~ toward maturity~ autonomy. 
who have pushed the gra · ~ JOm the ranks of national workers 
3,000. The hospital in ~~=~:~:~~e~ ~urches in COte d'I~oire to almost 

0 c on well under Ivonan leadership. 
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sf()ther Carlisle Hanna maintains a ministry in India which began nearly half 
a ceniU'Y ago (1952). The faithful service of Carlisle and his wife Marie, who died 
in !998. (as weD as that of others who labored in India) has been richly reward­
ed We oow have 4,436 people worshipping each week in Free Will Baptist 
ctueheS in India In 1999 alone 47 4 people accepted Christ and were baptized 

Historical firsts were attained by Free Will Baptist Foreign Missions in 
1999. Free Will Baptists responded to the needs of the 1.2 billion people in 
the Muslim world. Kevin Stacy and Charity Van Winkle were the frrst to 
answer the call to a difficult assignment in a completely Muslim culture. 
We trUSt many others will follow their example. 

Mike and Cathy Corley are the initial missionaries from Free Will Baptist 
Foreign Missions to go to Russia Their facilitating ministry is proving very valu­
able. Over 350 young people attended the youth conference in Chelyabinsk, and 
Russian pastors used a helicopter to take the gospel to the Khanty in the per­
mafrost region of Siberia. Dr. Garnett Reid became the first American professor 
to teach at the Bible institute in Chelyabinsk sponsored by Free Will Baptists. 

On January 1, 1999, Drs. John and Esther Chang became the first Korean Free 
Will Baptist foreign missionaries. Dr. John's goals are to build a Free Will Baptist 
church in Seoul, coordinate the founding of a Free Will Baptist denomination in 
Korea, and establish the Asia Free Will Baptist Theological Seminary to train work­
ers for Korea and unreached areas of Asia We thank the Lord for his vision 

1999 - Financial Summary 
. During 1999 our Free Will Baptist people responded to God's prompt­
mg to financially support foreign missions efforts by giving $5,380,656.84. 
Of this amount, 63% was given through 1,582 churches. 

figure 2 Income for 1999 
$5,380,656 

1.9% 
Interest/Gains _.....,. 

$100,790 
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Figure 3 
4.5% 

Missionary Stateside 
Ministry 

$232,669 

6.5% 
Information and 

Promotion 
$334,550 

11.8% 
Supporting 
Services 
$608,525 

1.&-/o 
Department ---.; .... 
Travel and 

Board 
$80,677 

2% 
MK Education 

$104,928 

5.r;. 
Missionary Auto 

and Transportation 6.5% 
$265,317 Missionary Social 

Security and Retirement 
$334,638 

Total 
Expenditures 

1999 
$5,137,012 

7.9'/. 
Missionary 
edical and 

Insurance 
$408,290 

2.5% 
Missionary Tfhll 

and Shippinl 
$128,171 

8.8•;. 
Missionary Field Housing 

$449,987 

8% 
Missionary Projects 

$410,503 

Through the cooperation of our missionari 
keep our expenses at $5, I 3? 0 I 3.24 rru es and staff we .were able to 
$243,643.60 more than our ~nse · . ~ means that our mcome was 
that giving was $96 I ,5 I 4.26 ~er b~·~t IS noteworthy when it is realized 

We are thankful for all 1 582 h h · 
year. They are all-important' me~b~c e; :J:a~supported <?ur ministry last 
pay special tribute to those ve s 0 e ody of Christ. We want to 
than $IO,OOO in I999. ry generous churches which gave more 

62 Churches Gave Over $1 0,000 in 1999 
Donelson FWB Church . 
Central FWB Ch h Nashville, TN $80 675 40 urc Ro I 0 k ' . 
Norman First FWB Church N yo 0 o' Ml $63,361.16 
limestone FWB Church . ormon, K $59,859.71 
First FWB Church llmesto~e, TN $58,599.70 
Unity FWB Church Russell~llle, AR $56,087.43 
Piney Grove FWB Church gn~en;tle, NC $50,950.62 
First FWB Church um, $38,906.81 
Bethany FWB Church Albany, GA $32,047.77 
Cofer's Chapel FWB Church ~o~e~IIArrTow, OK $28,174.30 
Fellowship FWB Church .as VI e, N $28, 110.05 
Horse Branch FWB Church Kmgsp.ort, TN $27,749.78 
Cross Timbers FWB Church Turbev.llle, SC $25,772.70 
Boy Branch FWB Church ~ashville, .TN $23,513.48 

T1mmonsv11le, SC $22,027.00 
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Heritage FWB Church 
Calvary Fellowship FWB Church 
Ina FWB Church 
Peace FWB Church 
Hannon FWB Church 
Bethany FWB Church 
Bethel FWB Church 
First FWB Church 
Immanuel FWB Church 
Gamer FWB Church 
Westside FWB Church 
First FWB Church 
Sherwood Forest FWB Church 
Unity FWB Church 
AJien Chapel FWB Church 
First FWB Church 
Bethel FWB Church 
First FWB Church 
Rejoice FWB Church 
Faith FWB Church 
First FWB Church 
Fellowship FWB Church 
Free Will Baptist Church 
Winfield First FWB Church 
First FWB Church 
Mt. Olive FWB Church 
Parker's Chapel FWB Church 
Oak Pork FWB Church 
Tippett's Chapel FWB Church 
Verdello FWB Church 
Piney Grove FWB Church 
Bethlehem FWB Church 
New Hope FWB Church 
First FWB Church 
First FWB Church 
Poplar Spring FWB Church 
Sand Hill FWB Church 
Fulton FWB Church 
First FWB Church 
Phillip's Chapel FWB Church 
First FWB Church 
Mt. Zion FWB Church 
New Hoven FWB Church 
Bellview FWB Church 
Temple FWB Church 
Temple FWB Church 
Good Springs FWB Church 
Heritage Temple FWB Church 

Gilbert, AZ 
Fenton, MO 
Ina, ll 
Florence, SC 
liberal, MO 
Timmonsville, SC 
Kinston, NC 
Ado, OK 
Durham, NC 
Gamer, NC 
Johnsonville, SC 
Jacksonville, NC 
New Bern, NC 
Smithfield, NC 
Batesville, AR 
N. little Rock, AR 
South Roxana, ll 
Star City, AR 
Owosso, OK 
Goldsboro, NC 
Beaufort, NC 
Pork Hills, MO 
Townsend, DE 
Winfield, Al 
Florence, SC 
Guin, AL 
Greenville, NC 
Pine Bluff, AR 
Clayton, NC 
liberal, MO 
Chipley, Fl 
Ashland City, TN 
Joelton, TN 
Farmington, MO 
locust Grove, OK 
luko, MS 
Coward, SC 
Fulton, MS 
Vernon, Al 
Northport, AL 
Darlington, SC 
Pell City, Al 
Ernul, NC 
Colquitt, GA 
Greenville, NC 
Darlington, SC 
Pleasant View, TN 
Ashland, KY 

$21 ,500.00 
$21,431 .31 
$20,700.00 
$19,560.00 
$19,365.87 
$19,228.38 
$18,674.00 
$17,626.44 
$17,537.00 
$17,494.88 
$17,247.16 
$16,993.94 
$16,854.89 
$15,761.55 
$15,620.04 
$15,298.29 
$15,286.21 
$15,177.24 
$14,900.13 
$14,781.12 
$14,218.82 
$14,205.37 
$13,438.98 
$13,094.98 
$12,798.35 
$12,651.48 
$12,645.50 
$12,619.61 
$12,617.77 
$12,547.88 
$12,452 .29 
$12,438.40 
$12,124.93 
$11 ,900.00 
$11,785.66 
$11 ,544.90 
$11,517.76 
$11 ,368.14 
$11 ,288.98 
$11,210.61 
$11 ,033.00 
$10,922.94 
$10,743.67 
$10,669.62 
$10,497.50 
$10,475.00 
$10,208.71 
$10,120.38 

Special recognition also is due the top 10 states in giving to Free Will 
Baptist Foreign Missions: 
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1 . Tennessee 
2 . North Carolina 
3. Missouri 
4. Arkansas 
5. Oklahoma 
6 . South Carolina 
7. Mississippi 
8. Alabama 
9. Georgia 

1 0. Michigan 

$734,505.12 
$615,901.99 
$469,701.94 
$449,974.51 
$426,771 .58 
$349,807.07 
$336,508.07 
$325,110.32 
$241 1942 .36 
$161 ,001.29 

These states are to be commend d [! . 
suggested goals in I 999: e or reaching or surpassing their 

1. Nebraska 
2. Mississippi 
3. Alabama 
4 . Arkansas 
5 . West Virginia 
6. Missouri 
7. Maryland 
8 . Georgia 
9. South Carolina 

10. Texas 
11 . Florida 

$ 8,088.10 
$336,508.07 
$325,110.32 
$449,974.51 
$132,803.00 
$469,701 .94 
$ 60,454.25 
$24.11942.36 
$349,807.07 
$ 87,839.03 
$130,797.94 

588.2% 
407.9% 
144.8% 
138.3% 
111.4% 
111.4% 
109.9% 
105.6% 
101 .8% 
100.9% 
100.5% 

1999 - Stateside Developments 
RumbHngs of the stirring pow f th H .. 

over the world. Som e of His er ~uJ e <?IY Spmt are being heard all 
~nited States, amon us! Free power r:noVJng IS felt right. here. in the 
JOined together in 1 9~9 to prod~laB~o~~~ ~me an~ Fore1gn Missions 
prayer according to an Acts 1.8 d 

1
. ayer Gwde. It encourages 

Samaria and the end · mo e · for your Jerusalem , Judea, 
tributed.' s of the earth. To date nearly 10,000 have been dis-

Perhaps no greater demonstration of the unity exisnnn between th d part 
ments could be seen than in the . las '-U '5 ese e -
"Uniting Our Vision Thro ~ t Yea: ~t the National Association, 
Missions). Reverend Ron~ Pray~nsored JOmtly by Home and Foreign 
that our desire for world ev~:s~ must~w~. message. H~ reminded us 

Within the administration f F . roo . m our ~orship of God. 
staff reorganization has occurr~d r~ ~ll Baptist Foreign Missions major 
retoul the hom e office for a ma·o. e o_ard. has already taken steps to 
evangeHsm . The vision is simpl~: r denorrunational m obilization for world 

(1) Challenge a whole gener f f F . 
to find their role in God's ap~oann oto reehWt•hll Bapt_ist young people 

reac e nahons. 

1
2

) ~~~:~ ;:~[~:!~~;/ GV~unteer N'f,tworks for ?dults ocross the 
the unreached. o can use t em and the•r careers to reach 

(3) Provide the channel for a surging number of rP.tirees to make an 
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eternal difference in the sunset years of life by personally getting 
involved in God's plan to reach every people group with the gospel. 

(4) Mobilize churches which have not yet sensed the call to be 
involved in reaching the untold millions with the gospel. 

(5) Double the Free Will Baptist missionary force around the world 
through such mobilization efforts. 

Figure 4 below shows the growth of mission~ J?ersonnel i~ five-y~ar 
increments since Laura Belle Barnard w ent to Indta m 1935. Penods of sig­
nificant advancement and seasons of retreat are noticeable. May God grant 
us and future generations (should the Lord tarry His coming) the privilege 
to look back on the first decade of the 21 st century and praise God for a 
unique period of profound advancem ent 

The board concluded that such a major mobilization effort couldn't be 
accomplished without a refocusing of the home office staff. This includes 
hiring additional personnel and increasing the administrative budget to 
$1,380,201.07. If adopted, this would be 18.4% of the total 2001 mission 
budget. The board feels that this pivotal investment is essential to create 
the dynamic for a fundamental change in perception among Free Will 
Baptists. That involves clarifying the global mandate and the urgency for 
each person to find his or her role in accomplishing it. 

This budget wiD not be met without a quantum leap in funding for Support 
Services. If our job is done effectively, the denomination wiD see the vital role 
the home office plays in world evangelism and will be willing to fund it. 

Figure 4 • • 
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In the past 1 0 years the average April World Missions Offering has been 
under $75,000. To underwrite the entire Support Services bud 
$ 1 ,380,2~1.?7 it is es~ated that $200,000 will be needed from the 2001~ of 
World Missions Otfenng. Someone once said, '~ttempt something so ril 
for God tha~ if H~ is not in it, it will fail." This is our attempt great 

Below IS a hst of churches which gave over $500 in the World Mis · 
Offering in 1999. Sions 

Churches Giving Over $500 to WMO in 1999 
Forest Valley FWB Church 
Unity FWB Church 
Fellowship FWB Church 
Cool Springs FWB Church 
White Oak Hill FWB Church 
Double Branch FWB Church 
West Tulsa FWB Church 
Limestone FWB Church 
Cross Timbers FWB Church 
First FWB Church 
East Nashville FWB Church 
Peace FWB Church 
Cofer's Chapel FWB Church 
Horton Heights FWB Church 
Bethlehem FWB Church 
Calvary FWB Church 
First FWB Church 
Porter FWB Church 
Free Will Baptist Church 
Cedar Springs FWB Church 
Springfield FWB Church 
Kendale Acres FWB Church 
First Bible FWB Church 
Other Churches 1999 
Other Sources 1999 
Grand Total 1 999 

Springfield, OH 
Greenville, NC 
Kingsport, TN 
Norman Pork, GA 
Bailey, NC 
Unadilla, GA 
Tulsa, OK 
Limestone, TN 
Nashville, TN 
Ypsilanti, Ml 
Nashville, TN 
Wilson, NC 
Nashville, TN 
Nashville, TN 
Ashland City, TN 
Salem, IL 
Tampa, FL 
Portsmouth, OH 
Christiansted, VI 
Jakin, GA 
Springfield, OH 
Sanford, NC 
New Castle, IN 

$6,353.60 
$4,064.10 
$2,422.79 
$1,278.00 
$1 ,053.37 
$1 ,000.00 
$1 ,000.00 
$1 ,000.00 

$873.00 
$850.00 
$741.00 
$695.82 
$675.05 
$653.00 
$646.05 
$645.00 
$564.55 
$527.00 
$520.43 
$500.00 
$500.00 
$500.00 
$500.00 

$15, 188.93 
$23.849.23 
$68,599.92 

An~ s~stained growth and expansion must have a strong and sizeable 
underpmrung . . Endowment~ ~d Planned Giving will be a vital ingredient if 
Free Will Baptists make a sig~ficant contribution for world evangelism in 
the 21st century. Below you will see a three-year running record of endow­
ments to benefit Fre~ ~ll Baptist Foreign Missions. A special and heartfelt 
thanks go~s to the VJSI<?nary people who included Foreign Missions with 
planned gif~, stocks, wills, ~st~, and other contributions to undergird the 
future: ~ this type of support IS mcreased, the true potential of a sustained 
and. Sigruficant global expansion will be realized. If you would like infor­
mation on how your gift can continue to make an impact long after your 
death, please contact our Director of Stateside Development, Fred Warner. 
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Endowments to the Benefit of Foreign Missions 

Year 
1997 
1998 
1999 

Unrealized Anticipated 
Total Planned 

Endowments Gifts 
$282,753.65 $239,532.08 

287,091 .86 235,717.96 
325,837.93 230,225.07 

Total 
Endowments 

$522,285.73 
522,809.82 
556,063.00 

Tribute to a Dedicated Staff 

Annual 
Earnings 

$28,888.54 
21,180.00 
29,462.29 

The role of the home office staff is two-fold ~d ve~ s~pl~: (1) take care 
r many details as possible to allow our frontline rrussionanes to con~~n­
~~ on reaching people for Christ and building His Churc~ ~d (2) mo~ilize 
the denomination to take seriously God's call for each Christian to find his or 
her role in taking the gospel to the ends of the earth. xour board and home 
office staff take these responsibilities seriously. We exiSt to serve you as a 
denomination as well as our missionaries. 

No one c~uld ever have a better staff than we have in the Departm~nt 
of Foreign Missions. We are I 00% dedicated to being a ~art of a worldWide 
evangelistic team which is making a difference for ~hrist 

I would like to close this portion of my report by paymg .tribute ~o thr~ .cou­
ples who have made a profound impact on Free Will Baptist Foreign Missi~ns. 

Bill Reagan finishes his 12th year as a me~ber of the Board of Foreign 
Missions this year. He and Lois have been an mseJ?arable tecu:n. TheY: have 
encouraged missionaries and home office staff alike. They Will ~e ffilssed. 

In August of 1999 Ken Eagleton passed away. He and MarVJs ~ent to 
Brazil in the year I was born. They s~rved f?r over 41 years With the 
Mission and their impact wilJ be felt until etem1ty. . 

Finally, Jimmy and Janie Aldridge served for 22 years m lvo~ _Coast, 
West Africa. For the next 15 years Jimmy served in the posJtion of 
Overseas Secretary. He retired in January of this year. . . 

May God send us other couples with an equal desire and commit­
ment to world evangelism. 

As a Fellow Laborer, 

James F. Forlines, General Director 
Free WiD Baptist Foreign Missions . . 

The succeeding summaries will show board action over the penod 
since the last National Association. 

Board Meetings and Actions 

Missions Retreat Meeting - August 9-12, 1999 
The board met at Free Will Baptist Bible College in conj~ction with ~e 

annual Foreign Missions Retreat. ~embers present were Bill J?nes, ~hair­
man· Milton Worthington, vice-chairman; B1ll Van Winkle, DaVId Williford, 
Doug Little, and Terry Eagleton. The following ac.tion~ w~re t~en:. 

The board approved the funding to open a Bible Institute m Corrnbatore, 

A- 157 



-
Tamil Nadu, India. 

. Leaves .of absence were granted to PauJ and Tammy Gent 
Gmger Hamson through August 31, 2000. uso and 

~e ?oard asked th~ Gen~ral Director to communicate to Free 
Baptist Bible College the1r des1re for consideration of a name chan Win 
the coJlege. TJ_lis would facilitate the placement of graduates in res~e tor 
access countries around the world. c ed 

Semi-Annual Meeting - December 8-9, 1999 

The semi-annual meeting of the board was held at the National 
Offices building. All board members were present. 

They appointed David and Annette Aycock and Andy and Andf 
Moore to serve as career missionaries to Brazil ea 

,. Kim Z~gelien was appointed as a career o~erseas associate to JCA in 
Cote d'Jvorre. 

The board approved Justin and Leslie Banks to serve for one year in Panama 
They granted overseas assistant status to Shane Davison for a two­

year term to ICA in Cote d 'Ivoire. 

Micah Derby was granted overseas assistant status for a one-year term 
to France. 

. The board approved 17 college students to serve as overseas appren-
ti~es for the summer. Thirty-one high school students were selected to serve 
With 'ff:AM (Teens Equipped and Active in Missions). Two TEAMs will be sent 
to Brazil and one will go to Panama . 

. The board approved the recommendation of GeneJaJ Director James 
Forlines f?r a comprehe~~ ~taff reorganization The following were appointed: 

Director of Mobilization and Recruitment: Eddie Payne 
D~rector of Stateside Development: Fred Warner 
D~rector of ~blic Relations: Don Robirds 
D~rector of F~nancial Operations: Rob Conley 
D~rector of Field Operations: To be named later 
Director of Member Care: To be named later 

A. one-year leave of absence was granted to Robert and Judy Bryan 
effective August 1, 2000. 

. The board approved a plan to allocate the Info'Promo deficit to eligible mis­
Sionary accounts through 1 2 montJ:llY installments in the 2000 calendar year. 

The board accepted the retirement of Jimmy Aldridge as Overseas 
Secretary. They also expressed their appreciation for 22 years of mission­
ary service in Cote d'lvoire and over 15 years as Overseas Secretary. 

Called Meeting -January 17-18, 2000 

. A called meeting was held by the board at the National Offices build-
mg. All members were present. 

Steve Lytle was appointed as Director of Field Operations. 
~e board .delegated to the administrative staff the responsibiJity to 

proVIde health msurance for all eligible missionaries. 

T~~ board interviewed Bobby and Geneva Poole concerning the field 
council s development of a comprehensive field strategy in Brazil. 
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1'6on• Conference - February 9, 2000 
A nference call of the board was held with the following members on 

. . ~0Jones, chairman; Milton Worthington, vice-chairman; David Shores, 
~R an David Williford, Bill Van Wmkle, Doug Little, and Terry Eagleton. 
Bill =y ~pproved the purchase of two buildi~s in Kyo~ggi-do, ~outh 
Korea (east of SeouJ), for the Asia Free Will Baptist Theological Seminary. 

Phone Conference - March 1, 2000 
A conference call of the board was held with the following me!flbers 

on line: Bill Jones, chairman; David Shores, Sherwood Lee, Bill Van 
Winkle and Doug Little. 

Th~ men approved a contract between Free Wil~ Baptist Foreign 
Missions and the Free Will Baptist Mission of Korea relative to the proper­
ty purchased in Kyonggi-do, South Korea. 

Annual Meeting - May 1-4, 2000 
The annual meeting of the board was held at the National Offices 

building. Sherwood Lee had to leave early due to a death in his church. 
AIJ other board members were present. 

The board approved Heather Hasty for a two-year assignment in 
China in connection with ChinaSource. 

Charolette Tallent was reassigned to France as a career missionary. 
The board approved Tonya Blanchard and Shannon Little as overseas 

assistants for one year in Japan. 
The resignation of Dr. Paul and Tammy Gentuso was accepted. 
The board accepted a Memorandum of Understanding between Free 

Win Baptist Foreign Missions and Free Will Baptist ~ible CoDE:g~ concer:n­
ing mutual involvement in developing a new paradigm of miSSions ~am­
ing. This will involve a missionary in residence at FWBBC to be proVIded 
by FWBFM. Criteria were adopted for Free Will Baptist Foreign Missions to 
provide a missionary in residence to other Free Will Baptist colleges. 

The board accepted the wording of a cooperative a?reement 
between Free Will Baptist Foreign Missions and Global ~undation. . . 

The General Director was authorized to obtain funding and subsidize 
the attendance of official delegates to the International Fellowship of Free 
Will Baptists in Nashville in 2001. These funds will be channeled through 
the International Fellowship. 

The board accepted the 1999 audit as presented by Hinton, Warren, 
Denney and Wallace, CPAs. . . 

The board agreed to combine the Information and Promotion f~d 
With the Support Services fund. They merged the current 7% Informa~on 
and Promotion assessment with an additional 2% for Support SeTVJces 
beginning in January of 2001. Thus, 9% of the eligible career missionary 
accounts will be equally allocated for Support Services. 

The board established the Professional Volunteers Fund and the 
French Pastoral Training Fund. . 

They adopted a year 2001 budget of $7,090,003.26 plus VISION proJ­
ects of $864,500 for a total budget of $7,954,503.26. 
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The ~o~d ~xpressed their deep appreciation 
years of distingwshed service as a board memb to BiJI Reagan for )2 

The. board elected the following officers. er. 
Chairman- Doug Little · 
Vice-Chairman - Milton Worthington 
Secretary - David Shores 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Directors of the 
Board of Foreign Missions of the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists 

Antioch, Tennessee 

-~ AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF 
CERTIFIED PU8UC ACCOUNTAHTS 

TENNESSEE SOCIETY OF 
CERTIFIED PU8UC ACCOUNTANTS 

We have audited the accompanying s tatements of financial position of the Board of 
Foreign Missions of the National Association of Free Will Baptists (a nonprofit organization) a s of 
December 31, 1999 and 1998, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the 
years then ended. These fmancial statements are the responsibility of the Organization 's 
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on 
our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the fmancial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the fmancial 
statements. An a udit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well a s e·.raluating the overall financial statement 
presentation . We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the fmancial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the fmancial position of the Board of Foreign Missions of the National Association of 
Free Will Baptists as of December 31 , 1999 and 1998 and the changes in its net assets and its 
cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with generally accepted accou nting principles. 

March 27. 2000 
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BOARD OF FOREIGN MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Statement§ of Financial Position 
December 31. 1999 and 1998 

Cash and cash equivalents - Notes 1 & 2 
Investments in trusts - Notes 1 & 2 
Investments - Notes 2 & 10 
Accounts receivable from employees and 
missionaries - Note 2 

ASSETS 

Other receivables, net of allowance for doubtful 
accounts of $33,738 ($33, 738 in 1998) 

Property and equipment, at cost, net of accumulated 
depreciation - Notes 1 & 3 

Deposit- Korea building 
Prepaid expenses 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES ANQ NET ASSETS 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Supplemental retirement insurance payable 
Accrued severance pay payable 

Total liabilities 

Commitments - Notes 7 & 8 

Net assets (deficit): 
Unrestricted 

1999 
$ 905,025 
1, 121,988 

168,300 

162,637 

116,775 
351,200 

3.304 

$2,829.229 

$ 305,505 
293,279 
154.111 

752,§95 

$ 

192ft 
$1,031,179 

1,089,814 
91,596 

199,458 

4,091 

205,051 

6.67j 

309,357 
260,504 
152.692 

722.~~ 

Temporarily restricted - Note 4 
Permanently restricted- Note 4 

( 209,434) 
2,284,558 

1.210 

( 174,451) 

Total 

Total liabilities and net assets 

See accountant!' report and accompanying 
notes to the fmancial statements, 
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2,078,557 
1.210 

2,076,334 1.905.310 

BOARDQF FOREIGN MISSIONS OE ~~ISTS 
TIONALJ.SSOCIATION OFF~,~ WJL 

NA Statements of Activtties d 1998 
E ded December 3 L 1999 an For the Years n 

tricted 
YDR!~, 

R~ntributions - Notes 1 & 5 
Investment income 

Gain on md' ,vepos~e::~roperty & equipment 
Gain on 1s ' ti' s · I sed from restnc on . Net assets re ea , ents 

Restrictions satisfied by paym 

Total revenue 

~nses: ti' naJ 
"""'!"" ti' na1 and promo o lnforma o 

Travel and board 
Administrative 
Missionaries 
VISION campaign 

Total expenses 

Decrease in unrestricted net assets 

Temoorarily restricted 
Revenue: 

Contributions - Notes 1 & S . , . 
leased from restnctions. Net assets re , ents 

Restrictions satisfied by paym 

Increase in temporarily restricted net assets 

Permanently restricted 
Revenue: 

Contributions- Notes 1 & 4 

tl tricted net assets Increase in permanen Y res 

Total increase in net assets 

Net assets - beginning of year 

Net assets - end of year 

. d accompanying See accountants reoort an 
notes to the fmancial statements. 
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1999 199§ 

$ 895,926 $ 786,195 
25,247 102,083 
76,704 31,099 
19,286 5,355 

4.177,940 4 .222,§80 

5.195.103 5.147,612 

165,389 149,246 
87,384 90,524 

799,367 764,670 
4,035,622 3,969,324 

142.318 253,556 

5.230.080 5,2~7.320 

( 34.977) ( 79.7081 

4,383,941 4 558,846 • 

( 4.177 .940) ( 4.222.8801 

206,001 

171,024 

1.905.310 

335.966 

1.210 

1.210 

257,468 

1.647,842 

$2,076,334 $1.905,310 



BOARP OF FOREIG 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATI vN Mwrws OF THE 

ON OFRE WILL BAPTism 
..,. th Y Statements of Cash Flows 
ror e ears Ended Oece be 

m r 31. 1999 and 1998 

Ooerating activities 
Increase in net assets 

Adjustments to reconcil · . 
net cash provided ( ~ mcrease ~ net assets to 

Depreciation u ) by operating activities: 
Bad debts 
Gain on investments 
Gain on disposal f 
Chan · ~ property and equipment 

ges Ill operating assets and liab 'li•~ . 
Decrea (' . I ues. 
0 se ~crease) m accounts receivable :;::::a (mcrease) in prepaid expenses and 

~~ccrused(decrease) in accounts payable and 
e expenses 

Net cash provided ( 
Used) by operating activities 

Investing activities 
Purchases of equipment 

Pu
Procee<ts from sale of equipment 

rchases of investment 
Proceeds of investment redeemed 

Net cash provid d ( . e used) by mvesting activities 

financing activities 

Net cash p 'ded by 
roVJ financing activities 

Increase(de~ ) · 
se Ill cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at be.n .... ;.. f ..... ~ .... go year 
Cash and cash · eqwvalents at end of year 

Supplemental noncash . . 
Investing and fmancjp . (l . 

~ accountants' reoort d . 
.notes to the fmancia) sta't: a=mpannng me s. 
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( 
( 

( 

$ 

1999 

171,024 

57,277 

76,704) 
19,286) 

40,912 

347,830) 

30.342 

1998 -
$ 257,4«;8 

53,469 

( 
7,738 

31,099J 
( 5,3SSJ 

( 131,881) 

( 2,259J 

85.7a2 

( 144.2651 23~.~a2 

( 

( 

( 

I 

76,738) ( 
127,023 
32,174) ( 

128,098) 
26,500 

334,588) 
69,818 

18. Ill ( 366,3681 

-0- .Q. 

126,154) ( 132,548) 

1.031.179 1.163.727 

2Q~.Q~~ ll ,Q~1 .1Z~ 

$ 76,738 
-0-

$ 128,098 
-o-

I 76 73ij 1 t2ij,()98 

Note 1 -

BOARD OF FOREIGN MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31. 1999 and 1998 

Organization and summary of significant accounting oolicies 

The Board of Foreign Missions of the National Association of Free Will 
Baptists is a nonprofit organization affiliated with the National Association of Free 
Will Baptists, located in Antioch, Tennessee. The purpose of the Organization is to 
establish and support Free Will Baptist Mission Churches throughout the world. 
The Organization's support comes primarily from donor contributions. 

The Organization is exempt from federal income tax under section 50 1 (c)(3) 
of the Internal Revenue Code under a group exemption of the National Association 
of Free Will Baptists. In addition, the Organization has been determined by the 
Internal Revenue Service not to be a "private foundation· within the meaning of 
509(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. There was no unrelated business income for 
1999 and 1998. 

The following significant accounting policies have been followed in the 
preparation of the fmancial statements: 

Basis of accounting 

The Organization prepares its financial statements using the accrual basis 
of accounting, which involves the application of generally accepted accounting 
principles; consequently, revenues and gains are recogniu:d when earned, and 
expenses and losses are recognized when incurred. 

Basis of presentation 

Financial Statements presentation follows the recommendations of the 
Financial Accounting Standards Board in its Statements of Financial Accounting 
Standards (SFAS) No. 117, Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations. 
Under SFAS No. 117, the Organization is required to report information regarding 
its fmancial position and activities according to three cla.sses of net assets; 
unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently 
restricted net assets. 

Use of estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles includes the use of estimates that affect the 
fmancial statements. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Contributions 

The Organization accounts for contributions in accordance with the 
recommendations of the Financial Accounting Standards Board in SFAS No. 116, 
Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made. In accordance 
with SFAS No. 116, contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, 
temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted support, depending on the 
existence or nature of any donor restrictions. 
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Note 1 - Organization and su . 
mmary of Slmificant accounting oolicies (Co tin 

Contributions (continued) n Ued) 

All donor-restricted sup rt . 
permanently restricted net ass:' IS ~rted as an increase in tem . 
When a restriction expires (th t ~ dependmg ?n the nature of the r ~~ or 
purpose restriction is accom ~ IS, when a stipulated time restricti~s Ction. 
reclassilied to unrestricted p shed), temporarily restricted net a n ends or 
as net t net assets and reported . ssets are 

asse s released from restrictions. m the Statements of ActiVities 

Prooerty and equipment and depreciation 

!he Organization follows the . 
expenditures for property and . prac~ce of capitalizing, at cost au 
useful life of at least two ears equtpme~t ?1 excess of $500 and an ~s . 
over the useful lives of thy . Deprec~ation is computed on a Straightim~ted 

e assets generally as follows: t-line basis 

Automobiles 
Office furniture and equipment 3 105 years 

- years 
The net property and equi 
compo · pment balance has bee 

nent m unrestricted net assets. n recorded as a separate 

Investments 

Investments are com sed . 
market price po of equity securities and are valued t · a quoted 

Investments in Trust§ 

. _Investments in Trusts are com 
mamtamed by the Free Will Ba tis posed ~f five trusts established and 
largest trusts in debt 8eeuritiesp an~ Fo~ndation. The Foundation invests the two 
market value. The remain· pre erred stock and values th tru 
valued t mg trusts are invested . e sts at 

a cost, which approximates mark m government securities and 
et value. 

Cash and cash equivalents 

For purposes of th s 
on deposit e tatements of Cash Flow th 
of th • money market funds and highl li 'd s, e Board considers aU cash 

ree months or less when purchased t:beQUI debt _instruments with maturity 
cash equtvalents. 

-6-
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Note 2-

BOARD OF FOREIGN MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31. 1999 and 1998 

summary of significant concentrations of financial instruments 
., 

As of December 31. 1999 and 1998, the Board had deposits with a fmancial 
institution located in the United States and the Board of Retirement and Insurance of 
the National Association of Free Will Baptists located in Antioch, Tennessee. 
Accounts at the financial institution are insured up to $100,000 by the Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation. The Board has a cash management agreement with a 
local bank which invests any excess cash overnight in U.S. Government securities 
under a repurchase agreement. Any cash not insured should, under the terms of this 
agreement, be collateralized by U.S. Government securities. 
Accounts at the Board of Retirement and Insurance of the National Association of Free 
Will Baptists are uninsured. The Board also has accounts receivable from employees 
and missionaries and other receivables which are uninsured. The following is a 
summary of those deposits, accounts receivable and the corresponding risk of 
accounting loss: 

Interest bearing deposit accounts 

Account 
Balance 

December 31. 1999 
Amount Amount of 

Insured/ Accounting 
Ses:ured Risk of Loss 

with financial institution $ 905.025 $100.000 $ 805.025 

Total cash and cash equivalents 

Interest bearing deposits on account 
with the Board of Retirement and 
Insurance of the National Association 

905.025 

of Free Will Baptists 1,121,988 
Common stock 168.300 

Total investments 1.290.288 
Accounts receivable from employees 
and missionaries 162.637 

Total $2,357,950 

Account 
Balan!<~ 

Interest bearing deposit accounts 
with financial institution $1.031.179 

Total cash and cash equivalents l,Q31,179 

Interest bearing deposits on account 
with the Board of Retirement and 
Insurance of the National Association 
of Free Will Baptists 1,089,814 
Common stock 91.596 

Total investments 1.181,410 

Accounts receivable from employees 
and missionaries 

Other receivables 

Total 

199,458 
4,091 

203,549 
$2,416,138 
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100.000 

S100,00Q 

805.025 

1,121,988 
168.300 

1.290.288 

162.637 
$2,257,950 

December 31. 1998 
Amount 

Insured/ 
S~:yre~ 

$100.000 

100,000 

$100,900 

Amount of 
Accounting 

Risk of Loss 

$ 931.179 

931,179 

1,089,814 
91,596 

Ll81.41Q 

199,458 
4,091 

203,549 
$2 ,316,138 



Note 3-

Note 4-

Note 5-

Note 6 -

BOARD OF FOREIGN MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL A$SOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31. 1999 and 1998 

Property and equipment 

A summary of property and equipment is as follows: 

Office furniture and equipment 
Cameras and projectors 
Automobiles 
Computer equipment 

Less: Accumulated depreciation 

1999 1998 
$ 55,952 $ 55,951 

85,293 94,464 
82,300 150,200 
61.186 105.990 

284,731 406,605 
( 167.956) ( 201.554) 
$116.775 $2051051 

Depreciation expense, computed utilizin I • 

amounted to $57,277 ($53,469 in 1998)~ g the straight-line method 

Restrictions on net assets 

Temporarily I restncted net assets are available for the ~ouo I '' wmg purposes: 

Missionaries 
VISION campaign 

1999 1998 
$2,165,526 $1,907,513 

119.032 171.044 
$212841558 $210781557 

These net assets are restricted due to dono I I 

when the donor restriction is satisfied. r restrictions. They are released 

Permanently restricted assets are restricted to: 

MK Scholarship Endowment $ 1.210 '--l~~o~..Q - -·--- - . 1 

Informational and promotional material and eouipment transfers 

The Board charges a fee against th (i · unrestricted net assets for in(io ti' e . oretgn field accounts to reimburse the rma on semce production Th 
are presented as transfers from the tern rari1 . expenses. ese fees 
unrestricted net assets. po Y restncted net assets to the 

Pension plan 

The Board participates in them . 
Retirement and Insurance of the Nationaster pe~st~n plan of the Board of 
Board contributes 5% of gross sal f, al ~SS?Ciati.on of Free Will Baptists. The 
employees. Employees are allowedary or mt~slonartes and administrative 
contribute. Employees with two yC:s ~p:;;::te but are ~o~ required to 
expenses amounted to $86 

196 
($8

1 9 
. ce may partiCipate. Pension 

contribution plan. Under the plan :m58 10 199~) . T~e ~nsion plan is a defined 
and upon retirement the partici ' acc~unt IS m.amtained for each participant 
purchase one of several types ofpanannt ~ty either receiVe a lump-sum distribution or 

Ul contracts. 
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Note 7-

Note 8-

BOA-t_D OF FOREIGN MISSIONS OF THE 
NATlONAJSSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31. 1999 and 1998 

Lease 
The Board entered into a lease agreement on October 1, 1990 with the 

National Association of Free Will Baptists for office and storage space. The term of 
the lease is until all mortgages on the building are satisfied, which is 
approximately eight years. The rent expense for the year was $74,988 ($74,988 in 

1998). 

The future minimum lease payments are as follows: 

2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 
2004 

$ 74,988 
74,988 
74,988 
74,988 
74,988 

Thereafter (estimated) 231.213 
$6()6,153 

Commitments 
The Board bas pledged its furniture and fixtures as collateral on a mortgage 

note that the National Association of Free Will Baptists has with the Church 

Extension Loan Fund. 

The Board provides health insurance for its 95 (88 in 1998) employees on a 
self-insured basis. The Board has a stop loss policy with Boston Mutual Life 
Insurance for individual claims in excess of $25,000. During the year the Board 
paid $337,093 ($233,221 in 1998) in benefit payments and $85,855 ($67 ,209 in 

1998) in stop loss premiums. 

The Board has entered into an Indemnity and Hold Harmless Agreement 
with First American National Bank. As part of the agreement, First American 
National Bank will guarantee to Citibank that it will honor checks written on the 
Board of Foreign Missions' First American National Bank account by the Board of 
Foreign Missions' Cote d'Ivoire Mission employees up to $20,000 per check. In 
exchange, the Board of Foreign Missions will indemnify and hold harmless First 
American National Bank from any and all claims, liabilities, actions or causes of 
action that arise as a result of First American National Bank's agreement to 

guarantee checks to Citibank. 
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Note 9-

Note 10 -

·-----

BOARD OF FOREIGN MISSIONS OFT 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL B~mSTS 

Notes to the financial Statements 
December 31. 1999 and 1998 

Fair values of financial instruments 

. !he following methods and as . 
estimating its fair value disci ~ sumptiona were used by the Board . 

osures .or fmancial instruments: m 

Cash, cash equivalents, investments in . 
The canying amounts reported . th trusts, receavables and payablea· 
approximate fair values beca mf e statements of financial position . 
instruments. use o the short maturities of those 

Investments: The fair value of investme t . 
for those investments. n s as based on quoted market Price 

Investments 

Investments are stated at fair . value and constst of equity securities: 

December 31. 1999 

fair 

Equity securities 
Cost Value 

s 65.775 $168.300 

Investment return is summft...:--..o ~ ll ............. as .o ow a: 

Net realized and un--"---> . ·~mcome 

Unrealiud 
Appreciation 

IDepreciationl 
$102.525 

$76.704 

December 31. 1998 

fair 

Equity securities 
Cost Value 

$ 65-775 $ 91.596 

Investment return is summanze· d ~ ll as .o ows: 

Net realized and u ... -al•~·d . ............. 1ncome 
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Unrealized 
Appreciation 

(Depreciation! 
$25.821 

$31,099 

,_, 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

HINTON. WARREN. 

D ENNEY & WALLA CE 
CERTIFIED PUBUC ACCOUNTANTS 
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SUITE 100 

319 PI.US PARK 8lVO 
NASHVIUE. TN 37217· 100S 

(615) 366-5100 
... _._ 

04'110 C HIHTON. CPA 
AOIEAT RAY WAAAEN. CPA 
WUIAM H OENNEY. CPA 
lNIIIY 8AUCE WAUACE. CPA 

AAI£RICAN INSTffiJTE OF 
CERTIFIED Pl./6liC ACCOUNTANTS 

TENNESSEE SOCIETY OF 
CERTlAED PUBUC ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

Board of Direc tors of the 
Board of Foreign Missions of the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists 

Antioch, Tennessee 

Our report on our audits of the basic finan cial statements of the Board of Foreign 
Missions of the National Association of Free Will Baptists for 1999 and 1998 appears on page 1. 
Those audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic fmancial statements 
taken as a whole. The schedule of functional expenses is presented for the purpose of additional 
araalysis and is not a required part of the basic fmancial statements. Such information has been 
~ubjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the basic fmancial statements and, 
m our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respec ts in relation to the basic financial statements 

taken as a whole. 

March 27, 2000 
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BOARD OF FOREIGN MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Schedule of Functional Expenses 
For the Years Ended December 3L 1999 and 199~ 

Informational and promotional expenses: 
Video and audio visual 
Heartbeat 
Other publications expense 
Postage 
Publicity 
Telephone 
Dues 
Paper and supplies 
Togather Way Program 
Retreat 
Tracts and books 
Seminar and training 
Convention expense 

Total informational and promotional expenses 

Travel and board expenses: 
Department auto 
Board members 
Administrative - overseas travel 
Department insurance 
Department travel 
Travel insurance 
Honorariums 
Missions promotion 
Recruiting and candidate expense 

Total travel and board expenses 

See accountants' reoort on supplementary information. 
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1999 

$ 8,630 
31 ,652 
16,343 
42,088 
23,458 
11,615 

280 
8,155 
5,778 
7,163 
3,572 
2,025 
4,630 

165.389 

21,682 
14,903 
5,984 
3,234 

33,575 
248 
500 

5,950 
1,30~ 

~7,384 

199§ -
$ 5,768 

40,776 

36,569 
32,934 
7,012 

282 
1,518 

7,826 
6,643 
5,335 
4,W 

149.246 

2 1,083 
15,294 

2,169 
45,164 

372 
891 

1,453 
4,098 

90.524 

BOARD OF FOREIGN MJSSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Schedule of Functional Expenses 
For the Years Ended December 31. 1999 and 1998 

Ad~Jlinistrative expenses: 
Salaries 
Housing 
Social Security 
Employer payroll taxes 
Retirement 
Hospitalization 
Office travel allowance 
Legal and professional 
Office rent 
00'-site storage expense 
computer software expense 
Office equipment 
Maintenance of office equipment 
Office supplies 
Estate expenses 
Bank service charges 
Office help 
Staff recognition 
COLA indexes 
Benevolence 
Staff retreat 
Miscellaneous 
Depreciation 
Bad debts 
Info-promo transfers 
Project expenses 

Total administrative expense 

Missionary expenses: 
Ivory Coast 
France 
India 
Brazil 
Japan 
Panama 
Spain 
Uruguay 
Commonwealth of Independent States 
Unreached people 
Korea 
Overseas Apprentices 
Other projects 
Missionary medical 

Total missionary expenses 

VlSION campaign expenses 
Project expenses 

Total VISION campaign expenses 

Total expenses 

See accountants' reoort on suPPlementary infounation. 

- 13-
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1999 

$ 327,094 
94,600 
27,500 
16,078 
20,224 
41 , 160 

1,490 
9,187 

74,988 
1,351 
5,599 
3,718 
2,403 

17,826 

3,333 
963 

1,735 
6,450 

136 
203 

8,309 
57,277 

77 ,74'J. 
799,367 

856,566 
389,204 
200,070 
629,859 
496,117 
317,316 
313,3~8 
323,625 

99,806 
65,241 

126,398 
67,889 
56,431 
93,712 

4,035,622 

142,318 
142,318 

~~.~;lg,gag 

1998 

$ 345,738 
84,000 
20,758 
13,590 
20,069 
42,217 

7 ,346 
74,988 

5,608 
4,337 
1,920 

10,740 
3,810 
1,077 

485 

28,247 
53,469 

7 ,738 
5,483 

3'J_,050 
764,670 

1,053,485 
374,384 
176,002 
695,747 
443,085 
257,603 
364,392 
283,023 

82,835 
47,783 

117,379 
64,695 

8911 
3.969,324 

253,556 
253,556 

~~.22Z,J~!l 



Free Will Baptist Foreign Missions 
2001 Budget Summary 

Fields and Proieds 
IVOI'f Coast 
Brazil 
fro nee 
Indio 
Japan 
Koroo 
CI.S. 
Unreoched peoples 
Pcnaroo 
Spain 
Uruguoy 
Cuba 
Other fields 
PrajectOO missionary appointments 
RetirEd missionaries 
Other anlidpal!d opportunities 

Total fields and projeds 

Administrative 

S I ,383, 406.17 
847,505.98 
481,299.23 
207,873.42 
711,800.86 
482,821 .07 
120,392.63 
65,673.35 

359,488.11 
441,405.64 
392,835.71 
25,000.00 

145,000.00 
200,000.00 

2,400.00 
250.()00.00 

$6,116,902.17 

Admnistroron 1,300,201.07 
less: missionory/projed allocotioos- 9% (407,099.99) 

Net Administrofion 973,101.08 

Total Operational $7,090,003.26 
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Additional Approved VISION Proiects 
France -d'.lrrh buildi!WJ ot Nantes S 93,1XM) 00 
Indio -d'.lrch buildings BO,IXMl.OO 
Cuoo - churchw'rest home SO,IXMl oo 
Pcnaroo -down fX¥TleOf oo lxluse 7,500.00 
Uruguay - new chtKch properly ISO,IXMl.OO 
Uruguay -MoMn 70,001.00 
Brazil -Borlxlceno 50,001.00 
Brazil -Belo Horizonte 15,001.00 
Brazil -Morince~ 25,001.00 
Brazil -Ewngelondio 20,001.00 
Brazil -Sao Jose 30,001.00 
Brozil -llovid Ayrod church ~ant 50,001.00 
Brazil -lor Now Vida 15,001.00 
Russi! -Seminary BuildiDJ l 05,001.00 
Russi! -Seminary Vldoo Equiprooot 4,001.00 
AdmnistrotiYe - Proieds 50,001.00 
Anfidpotoo opparftRlities 50,001.00 

Total VISION $864,500.00 

Total Budget 57,954,50316 

Note: Btdgets for foreign ~rtures ore subjed 1o dKmg& m 
extreme floctootions in the wlue of the dollar occur. 

Salary Breakdown . . 
. d No Historical Companson Posstble Stoff Reorgomze 

&e~eral Director _ Vehicle Provided 
Solory I' . 
Housing ond Uti ities 
SQOOI Se<urily 
Retuement 
Insurance 

lalal Dept. Expense to Employ 

1999 2000 

33,438 
20,000 
8,617 
2,672 
5,430 

70 157 

31 ,576 
24,000 
8,962 
2,779 
5,974 

73 291 

2001 

32,839 
24,960 
9,321 
2,890 
8,099 

78,109 

Director of Public Relations - Vehicle Provided 28,600 32,07 6 33,359 
Salary 11,400 12,000 12,480 
Housing and U@ties 6,450 7,108 7,392 
Social Se<urily 2,000 2,204 2,292 

8 099 8,099 Retirement _17~,36~3----7~' f&-----63.623 
Insurance ~5~5~81~3===d61~.4~87======63=,62=3 lalal Dept. Expense to Employ :::: ' 

Director of Field Operations -Vehicle Provided 29,077 30,240 
25,000 15,600 

Salary d u 'l't: 15,000 15,00008 7 392 Housing on li hoes 6 450 7,1 ' 
Social Se<urily 2• 000 2,204 2,292 
Retirement -~5•4.43~0 ___ ---i8~,0fii99i-___ ~8[6,0"U99 
Insurance =~53~88~0===:::461~.4~88~======63=.6=23 Total Dept. Expense to Employ · 

Director of Stateside Delelopment -Vehicle Provided 
29

,
077 

30,240 
26,800 5 600 Solory 13 200 15,000 1 , 2 

Housing and Ufilities 6• 450 7,108 7,39 
Social Securily z' 000 2,204 2,292 
Retirement ~5·~43~0 ----ic5~,9~74:-___ 

61
5,Ai97ij"4 

Insurance 1-5~3~~88~0====:=?:159~.3~62=======61=,49=8 Total Dept. Expense to Employ ::::: • 

Dlredor of Financial Operations - Vehicle Provided 
44

,
081 

45,844 
Sol 40,000 7,305 ory 6 373 7,024 
Social Securily z' 000 2,204 2,292 

Retirement _27·~363~----},8~,0~99~----tJ8ts,094o9 
Insurance - 5~5·~73~6===:461~.4~08~=====63=.54===0 lotal Dept. Expense to Employ = · 

Director of Recruitment & Mobilization - Vehicle Provided 
29

,
076 

30,240 

Solory 21 ~,64~ 15,000 15,60092 
H · d U l . "• 7,3 auStngan limes 2902 7,108 

2
•
292 Social Securily 1' 800 2,204 

Refirement _ _J£~82~7 ___ ---(3~, 1fijj10~---Si3~, 1:M10 
Insurance =4~3~52~9===~56~,4~98~======58=,6=34 lotal Dept. Expense to Employ ' 

Director of Member Care - Vehide Provided 
So lory 
Housing and Utilities 
Social Security 
Retirement 
Insurance 

Total Dept. Expense to Employ 

.00 

.00 

.00 

.00 

.00 

.00 
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29,076 
15,000 
7,108 
2,204 
5,974 

59.362 

30,240 
15,600 
7,392 
2,292 
5,974 

61.498 



Free Will Baptist Bible College Report 
Free Will Baptist Bible College closed a good year with 42 seniors 

graduating on May II. This year's graduating class represented 18 states 
and one foreign country. The testimonies of five of the graduates were 
honoring to the Lord and each expressed a deep appreciation for the 
impact the College had made on their lives. 

Two high school graduates, Miss Nicole Crowe and Miss Suzanne 
McVay, were awarded the Presidential Honors Scholarship for high 
achievement in high school. These scholarships total $8,000, with $2,000 
awarded each year for four years. Scholarships were also awarded to 
eight pastoral students. Scholarships were awarded to students in mis­
sions, music, business and other majors. The total awards this year 
amounted to more than $42,000. These scholarships have been made 
possible by the many friends of the College. 

The College had a higher than expected number of incoming fresh­
men for the fall semester of 1999. Present numbers indicate another good 
year for enrollment. 

Exciting things are happening, not only in student's lives, but also in 
the area of relocation. We now have a buyer for the present campus and 
hope to finalize the sale by the end of this year. If the sale is fmalized by 
year-end, construction will begin in January or February 2001, with plans 
to be on the new campus for the opening of school in 2002. 

These are exciting and demanding days for your College. We need your 
support and encouragement for the task Thank you for standing with us. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Tom Malone, President 

Free Will Baptist Bible Colle~e Board of Trustees 
Synopsis of M1nutes 

December 8-9, 1999 

The Board of Trustees of fWBBC met on campus December 8 and 9. 
AJI members were present. The Board reviewed reports from all depart­
ment heads, with special attention to the capital campaign report from the 
Office of Stewardship Development. 

The Board met with the Missionary TECH Team concerning plans, draw­
ings, proposals, etc., for the new campus. The Relocation Cormnittee gave an 
update on recent developments, cost projections, time line, etc. for the 
upcoming relocation. 

The Board gave considerable time and discussion to the possibility of 
a new name. It was unanimously adopted to propose a name change: 
Palmer Col~ege - the Free Will Baptist Bible College. 
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Jay 8· 10, 2000 us Ma 8-1 o The President 
The College Board of ~rustee~:~~~ ~~ar re~rt. Th~ Board adopt­

and each department hea ~ave f ra er with each person reporting. The 
ed each report and spent a time ~ f M; Ben Franklin in the English depart­
soard approved the emp1oymen o ~ho resigned to pursue a doctorate. 
men~ replacing Mr .. Michthael ~~~~sftnancial statements and approved the 

The Board receiVed e . ve sitive as announcement 
200()-2001 budget The relocation report wass ~e~e is conditioned on the 
was made of ~e sale of the fp~esen~ghbcar ~~uf~r his proposed development. 
developer getting approval o e net 

Financial Aid Report 
A Comparison of Data 

Program 

Institutional Loans 
College-Administered Scholarships 
Federal Pell Grants 
Federal SEOG Grants 
Federal Work-Study 
Federal Stafford Loans (Sub) 
Federal Stafford Loans (Unsub) 
Federal Plus Loans 
TSAA Grants 
Robert C. Byrd Honors 
Campus Workers 
Alternative Loans 

Total 

1998-1999 
Number Amount 

98 s 108,706.60 
83 57,208.54 

128 206,640.00 
46 22,240.00 
18 19,987.44 

169 550,540.74 
42 141,385.00 
23 108,044.91 

6 10,179.00 

80 136,700.00 
Not re orted 1998-99 

1,328,732.23 
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1999-2000 
Number Amount 

94 s 139,036.27 
106 64,307.68 
115 206,006.00 

24 16,655.00 
10 16,987.44 

181 570,758.50 
38 103,311 .00 
33 182,802.07 
11 22,269.00 

1 1,500.00 
78 103,800.00 

6 18,168.00 
1,445,600.96 



Registration Report 
Annual Report, 1999-2000 

Enrollment 

By State 
Alabama .... 24 
Arizona . . .. 1 
Arkansas ... 29 
California .... 2 
Florida . . . . 11 
Georgia ...... 25 
Illinois ....... 33 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ..... 367 

Enrollment Breakdowns 

Oklahoma ...... .7 
South Carolina ... 13 
South Dakota ..... 2 
Tennessee ....... 89 
Texas . . . . ...... .4 
Virginia ........ .7 

Kansas ............ 2 

Indiana ..... 8 West Virginia ..... 2 

Kentucky . . . . . . . . . 11 
louisiana . . . . . . . .. 2 
Michigan . . . . . . . . 1 7 
Mississippi . . . . . . . . 5 
Missouri . . . . . . . . . 1 7 
New Mexico . . . . . . . . 1 
North Carolina ..... 29 

Iowa .. . ...... 1 Ohio ......... . .. .7 Foreign (1 0) • 
(The student body represents 25 stotes and 10 foreign countries.) .... 18 

By Classification 

Freshmen .... 149 Juniors .......... 60 Special ........ a•• 
Sophomores .. . 91 Seniors ..... : .... 59 

[ .. lndOOes those ..00 how not grodooted from high sdlool, college grodooles ..00 ore lolcing additional 001rnes, eft) 

Other Categories 
New ......... 98 
Continuing ... 185 
Returning ..... 28 
Transfer ..... .48 
Other ......... 8 

*Foreign (18) 
Albania 
Bahamas 
Brazil ... 
Canada . 

. . . . . . 1 
.. 3 
.. 1 
..3 

Male ........... 186 
Female .......... 181 
Ministerial ........ *61 
Missionary ........ 32 
Free Will Baptist ... 328 
Other ............ 39 
(* Includes PT and YM) 

Cote d'lvoire ........ 3 
Japan . . . . . . . . . . .. 1 
Korea ............ 2 

FT . . . . . . . . . . .298 
PT . . . . . . . . . . . . 69 
Single ........ 312 
Married .... . ... 55 
Dormitory . . .. 250 
Town ......... 11 7 

Panama . ........ 2 
Russia . . . . . . . . .. 1 
S . 1 p01n . . . . . . . . ... 

Welch Library 
Total books, bound volumes, microforms, sound recordings, 

video-cassettes, instructional materials, etc. . ........... 95,400 
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Free Will Baptist 
Bible College 
3606 West End Avenue 

Nashville, Tennessee 37205 ... 
615/383-1340 

Fax; 615/269-6028 
www.twbbc.edu 

~- Hill. Harper" Auociattcs l i1J.i C • mfl.-.1 I'v.bbc .~.:cow\lanu 

lndepcode nt Auditors' Report 

.........,"'""t~""''c~ Tbe Board of Trustees , •. N tlrlon .,.....,..., 

Free Will Baptist Bible Collece: :::.,.: ... " .-.:-

n L· '' ~·~· 
lio&Dnol pouoon of Frtt Will BaptiSt 

\\'e ""'e al>dll~ tho IUI~<mc~ of and 1999 &Jid the related suotnn<Dtl of 
Bilk CoDcae u of "l;'Y >L nd cash ' nc,..'S for the ~cars thu ended . 
ICII\ities and ChaDJCI Ill D<t US<IS. 

1 ilil.cn- of the (olleJc 's 
Thae lill.tnaal sutancou art the rospom . tllesc fi.a.aacial 

Ov -~._ a to express ID opiiiiOD OD -~cmeaL r rapo -r 
SI&ICDKDll bucd 00 0111 aadiU. 

• rcl&nce ,.ith Jtnentllv acnpted audltiaf 
We conducted ow al>diU 

111 ~ ..... ~ and F~ tho auchts to 
~ ..undatds rcqurrt .._ n P • fret 

IUOndanh. I .. lldller tho lilwloal 1111..-- ate . 
obuiD reuoa.lhk Ulllta~ abou . iDdud tDOtiD.iDJ. 

00 
a tcsl bua. 

of mat<naJ tnml&leii\Cnt. An I Udll d.' ,_OS • tht filia-l Sl&lei!IUll. 
. h IJnOuJlll and ISC .... ura ID 

nidenco supporun1 I t . - 1cs used aad sipifiraat 
Aa auclll abo todudos 'llotftlll tile-=-~~ the o--cra8 filii-.! 

lllmUS lllade by m&UftJM81. u u nabk basis 
::..temnt prcseotatioe. We bt lic>-c tb.\1 our audns pi'O\'Ide I reuo 
for our opulioa. 

llatn!ICOII rdcrred to at.o--c prestDl fair~. ia aD 
In our opuuoa. tbe fiaaanal IOD of Free WiU Baptat Bibk Collcae u 
matcnal rcsp«U. tbc 6111ocsal posit . nd cub new. .. for tbe 

2000 IJid 1999 aad iu clurnaa m net weu • 
of May 31. • . raiJo pted acmuatiDJ pnnopla. 
~un thn rndcd ia coaformtty ... lth JCDC • l<tt 

, 1 ~it{- .. & 
I~ 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 

Statements of Financial Position 

May 31, 2000 and 1999 

Current assets: 
Olsh and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable: 

Assets 

Student accounts, net of aUowance for doubtful 
accounts of $6,000 in 1999 and 1998 

Pledges 
Employee and o ther 

Prepaid expenses 
Inventories 

Total current assets 
Non current assets: 

Cash restricted for endowments 
Cash restricted for student loans 
Cash h~ld under life income agreements 
Campatgn pledges 
Investment securities, at market value 
Loans to students 1 u ' ess a owance for doubtful loans of S 15,000 

Total non current assets 

Property, pbnt and equipment: 
:nvestment in property, plant and equipment 
.n.ccumulated depreciation 

Net property, pbnt and equipment 

Total assets 

Liabilities and Net Ass ts 
Current liabilities: e 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Notes payable to individuals 
Student deposits and agency funds 
Accrued salaries 
Deferred revenues - summer school and other 

Total current liabilites 

Net assets: 
Unrestricted funds 
Temporarily restricted funds 
Permanently restricted funds 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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2000 

s 332,872 

30,273 
33,700 
34,910 
10,.120 
41,012 

483,087 

484,787 
548,182 

5,000 
411,800 
132,670 
191.158 

I,TT3S97 

6,117,135 
2,669,860 

3,447,275 

$ ~.703.2~9 

$ 171,431 
165,543 
52,312 

112,656 
20~64 

522,506 

3,514,497 
479,151 

1,187,805 

5,181,453 

$ 5,703.959 

1999 
--.;. 

203,93~ 

22.386 
42,6so 
40,489 

6,994 
41,7~ 

~~8.1~ 

436.844 
m,7Io 

S,IXX) 
36S~ 
138.496 
214.m 

1,678,91J 

.5,78.1,031 
2,499,658 

3.283r:m 

~cl20.42,~ 

83,029 
163,89~ 

43,1W 
102,439 

9,388 

402,556 

3,410,685 
366,536 

1,140,716 

4,917,931_ 

.51:1~49! 

FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 

Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets 

For the years ended May 31, 2000 and 1999 

2000 
Temporarily Permanently 

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total Total 

Funds Funds Funds 2000 1999 

Revenues: 
Tuuion and fees s 1,706,782 1,706,782 1,516.238 

Federal grants and contracts 33,756 33,756 32,386 

Private gifts 917,732 332,835 50,241 1~100,808 l~'i86,860 

Endowment income 5,761 17,444 2..1,205 21,326 

ln"estment income 12,038 55 7,763 19,856 19,981 

Unrealized gain (loss) on investments (5,826) (5,826) 47,349 

Sales and services of 
auxiliary enterprises 1,047,490 1,047,490 960r154 

Other sources 18,879 (5,089) 13,790 34,561 

3,708.682 384,090 47,089 4,139,861 4,219,055 

Net assets released from restrictions 271,475 {271,475} 

Total revenues 3,980,157 112,615 47,089 4,139,861 4,219,055 

Expenditures: 

Educational and general: 
Instruction 1,043,004 1,043,004 936r118 

Academic support 308,362 308~162 295,622 

Student services 376,198 376,198 373,163 

Operation and maintenance of plant 376,597 376,597 395,150 

Institutional support 866,835 866,835 944,598 

Scholarships and fellowships 76,354 76,354 65,470 

Total educational and general 

expenditures 3,047,350 3,047,350 3,010,321 

Auxiliary enterprises: 

Dormitories 281,683 281,683 289,294 

Dining hall 430,820 430,820 401.357 

Bookstore 104,417 104,417 96,416 

Sna.:ltshop 12,075 12,075 22,808 

Total auxiliary enterprises 

expenditures 828,995 828,995 809,875 

Total e~penditores 3,876,345 3,876r145 3,820,196 

locrease in net assets 103,812 112,615 47,089 263,516 398,859 

Net assets at beginning of year 3,410,685 366,536 1,140,716 4,917,937 4,519,078 

Net assets at end of year s 3~14,497 479,151 1,187,805 5,181,453 4,917,937 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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F R EE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 

Statements of Cash Flows 

For the years ended May 31, 2000 and 1999 
2000 

Temporarily Permanently 
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted TotaJ 

2000 Funds Funds Funds 
Cash flows from operating activities 

Cash collected from students S 2, 766,066 
Federal grants 
Pell grants considered to be agency 

fund transactions 
Private gifts and grants 
Endowment income 
Investment income 
Other revenues 
Casb paid for scholarships, to vendors 

and for payroll 
Casb paid for Pell grants 

926,682 
5,761 

12,038 
25,544 

(3,518,807) 

Net operating activities cash flows 217,284 
Cash flows from investing activities 

Expended for plant assets (153,976) 
Student notes receivable advances 
Student note receivable collections 

Net investing activities cash flows (153,976) 
Cash flows from capital activities 

Campaign pledges receivable collected 
Gifts received for: 

Endowments and student loans 
Proposed new campus 

Other student loan transactions: 
Interest income on student loans 
Investment income 

32,670 

203,031 
42,641 
17,444 

55 

-
2,766,066 

32,670 

203,031 
969,323 
23,205 
12,093 
25,544 

2.461J7! 
lUI 

-991,775 
21,3! 
I~?S 
23,314 

(185,361) (3,704,168) 
(203,031) ---- (203,031) -~~ 

(92,55 I ) ---- _ ___;U:;;;;4""'", 73-'-• ..:...3 - ""=.;;; 

(86,114) 
(44,453) 
59,472 

(240,090) 
(44,453) 
59,472 

(86,114) _ __;:15::;.!,0:::.;1:.:..9 (225,071) _.>..:..:.,;..::;.;..;. 

64,840 64,840 

50,241 
179,454 

50,241 121~ 

179,454 176)l 

7,404 7,404 24'6S 
7,763 7,763 8,230 Collection costs and other transactions 

Net capital activities cash flows 
---- ---- _.__.(.:;.&3,=662) _ .__.(.:;.&3,=662) _ _.....(8""",7fJJ_j 

Cash flows from fina ncing activities 
Retirement of notes payable and long tenn debt: 

Related to plant assets 
lnterfund activities 65,629 
Notes payable for student loans 

Net financing activities cash flows 
Net increase in cash 

and cash equivlllents 
Cash and cash equivalents at 

beginning or year 
Cash and cash equivalents at 

at end of year S 

65,629 

128,937 

203,935 

332,872 
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244,294 

(65,629) 

61,746 306,040 342,6!1 

1,650 1,650 

(7,7011 

{8.34§] 

(65,629) __ .;;,:.1,6;:..:_5.;;..0 ---'..!.1,6.;_5_0 (16.~ 

95~ 78,415 207,352 

5,000 954,554 1,163,489 l,Q68.28Q 

5,000 1,032,969 1,370,841 1,163.~ 

FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 

Statements of Cash Flows, continued 

For the years ended May 31, 2000 and 1999 
2000 

Unrestricted 
Funds 

Temporarily Permanently 
Restricted Restricted 

Funds Funds 

d b equivalents consist of the following: 
Casll an cas s 332,872 

Current assets 
Non current assets: 

Cash restricted {or endowments 
Cash restricted for student loans 
Cash beld under life income 

agreements 
5,000 

Total cash and cash equivalents S ~~2.872 ==:=:::!5,=000= . ==·'=·'===== . 
Rec:oncilation of increase in net assets to 
act operating activities cash flows 

lacruse in net assets s 
TransactiOns considered to be capital additions: 

Gifts for endowments and student loans 
Proposed new campus 
Campaign pledges receivable collected 
Change in Campaign pledges receivable 
Net other transactions [rom 

student loan funds 
Depreciation 
Unrealized (gain) loss on investments 
Net interfund transfers 
(Increase) decrease in current assets: 

Accounts receivable: 
Student accounts, net of allowance 
Pledges 
Employee and other 

Inventories 
Prepaid expenses 

Increase (decrease) in current liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 

(Net of plant asset liabilities) 
Student deposits and agency funds 

Accrued salaries 
Deferred revenues 

103,812 

170,202 

(86,114) 

(7,887) 
8,950 
6,665 

731 
(3,326) 

(5,647) 
8,505 

10,217 
11,176 

112.615 

(179,454) 
(64,840) 
(45,900) 

86,114 

(1,086) 

484,i87 
548,182 

1,032,969 

47,089 

(50,2~1) 

(2.709) 

5,826 

Total 
2000 

:n2,872 

484,787 
548,182 

5,000 

1,370,841 

263,516 

(50,2~1) 

(179.454) 
(64,840) 

(45,900) 

(2,709) 
170,202 

5,826 

(7,887) 
8,950 
5,..'i79 

731 
(3,326) 

(5,612) 
8,505 

10,217 
11,176 

Net operating activities cash flows S 217,284 (92ii51} ==== =~·==24:::!:,7=3=3 

See accompanying notes to fmancial statements. 
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Total 
1999 

zm.935 

436,844 
517,710 

5,000 

1,163,489 

398,859 

( 121,690) 
( 176,206) 

(22,889) 
(264,400) 

(13,039) 
163,.320 
(47,349) 

615 
(9,900) 
(6,446) 

(575) 
2,910 

(14,438) 
(9,443) 
(3,499) 

807 

{123,363} 



FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 

Notes to Financial Statements 

May JJ, 2000 and 1999 

The Free Will B t' B'bl 
8 . 3P 151 

I e College operates under the auspices f h 
aptiSts,lnc. and is governed by a Board of Trustees. o t e National Association of Free liij; 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Basis of Financial Statement Presentation 
The financial Sllltements f lh Coll 

o e ege have been prepared on the accrual bas as· f . 
I de o accounr10g 
n or r to ensure observance of limilations and restrictions laced . 

the College, the accounts of the College a . . . p on the use of resources available ro 
. • re mamtamed ID accordance . h h 

accountmg . This is the procedure by wh . h . wn t e principles of ·r..c 
Pu . tc resources for vanous purposes 1 'fi 

rposes mlo funds thai are in accordance wi . . . . . are c assl ed for liCCoualtllr 
accordance with regulations restrictions or I' · ·~ thr· act~VJltes or obJeCitves as specified by donon, •• 

• • mu ... tons unposed by so . .. 
accordance with directions issued by the governing board urces outside the instliUIJon, or m 

These financial stare ts h 
men • owever, have been prepared to focus b . 

transactions according to the exisre bs on I e enllty as a whole and lo Preattt 
S nee or a ense of donor-imposed . . 

llllements of Financial Accounting Slandards (SFAS N " ~eslriciJons in conformity willl 
and Contributions Made" and No 117 "F' . I S ) o. 116 Accountmg for Contributions Rec:eMd 
by the Fmancial Accounting Slan~ds a:a;c.ta J tatements of Not-for-Profit Organizations• adopled 
fund transactions into three catego . r fIll une 1993. This has been accomplished by cl2...;r..;... 
d nes o net assets· unr t · d -N, .... 

onor-imposed restrictions temporarily tr ' d . es ncle net assets which ha~ DO 

h . ' . res tete net assets which ha do . 1 at exptre in the future and 1 . ve nor-unposed restticlioas 
hi • permanent y restncted net assets whi h ha 

w ch do not expire, as follows: c ve donor imposed restriclioas 

Reporting prior to 
SFAS No. 116 and 117 

Fund Group 
Unrestricted current funds 
Restricted current funds 

Annuity (life income) funds 
Loan funds 

Endowment funds: 
True 

Scholarship 
Quasi 

Plant funds: 

Unexpended plant funds 
Net investment in plant 

Agency funds 

Expiration of Donor Imposed Restrictions 

Reporting in compliance with 
SFAS No. 116 and J17 

Net Asset Group 
Unrestricted 

Temporarily restricted 
Temporarily restricted 
Permanently restricted 

PermanentJy restricted 

Permanently restricted 
Unrestricted 

Temporarily restricted 
Unrestricted 

Unrestricted liability 

The expiration of a donor-imposed restriction . . 
restriction expires and at that tun' h on a contributiOn as recognized in the period in which the 

. . e t e related resources are lass iii d . 
restnctton expires when the Stl'p 1 t d . h rec e to unrestncled net assets. A 

u a e tune as elapsed, wh h . 
resource was restricted has be f Ifill d en t e Stipulated purpose for which the en u e , or both. 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

(I) Summarv of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

Pledges Receivable (note 8) 

These amounts, less an appropriate reserve, are recorded at their estimated fair value with amounts due 

later than one year at I he present value of estimated future cash Oows. 

Property, Plant and Equipment 

Plant assets, consisting of land, buildings, other land improvements, equipment and furnishings, library 
books, and construction in progress are stated at cost or estimated fair value at date of gift. Expenditures 

for acquistion of assets in excess of $250 are capitalized as investment in plant. 

Depreciable assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets, 
ranging from 5 to 50 years. The current provision for depreciation is reported as an expenditure of the 

College. 

Inventories 

I~otories, consisting of books and supply items, are valued at cost, with cosl being determined on the 
first-in, first-out method 

Investments 

Investments are reported at market value to comply with Financial Accounting Standards No. 124, 

"Accounting for Certain Investments of Not for Profit Organizations." 

&timates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ 
from those estimates. 

Income Taxes 

The College is exempt from income taxes under Internal Revenue Code Section 501(c)(3); accordingly, 

no provision for taxes has been made in the accompanying financial statements. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For Purposes of the statement of cash Oows, the College considers all cash o n hand, deposits in financial 

institutions and highly liquid debt instruments with an original maturity of three months or less to be 
cash and cash equivalents. 

Compensated Absences 

Employees of the College are entitled to paid vacation, paid sick days and personal days off, depending 
on job classification, length of service and other factors. It is impracticable to estimate the amount of 

compensation for future absences, and accordingly, no liability has been recorded in the accompanying 

financial s tatements. The College's policy is to recognize the cost of compensated absences when 
actually paid to employees. 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

( 1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

The carrying value of cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses approxurutc bir 
value because of the short maturity of these instruments. The carrying values of liabilities are DC! 

materially different from the estimated fair values of these instruments. 

Financial Statement Presentation 

Certain reclassifications have been made to the amounts as reported in the prior year to conform 
10 current year presentation. These reclassifications had no effect on reported net assets. 

(2) Investments - Marketable Securities 

Investment securities are stated at market value. The following table summarizes by type tbt 
re lationship between carrying value and market value of the inves tment assets. 

Carrying 
Value 

Excess of Unrealized 
Marke t Market Over Cumulative 
Value (Under) Cost Gains 

Balance May 31, 2000 
Common s tocks 

Balance May 31, 1999 
Common stocks 

$= ===38::::!:,12==4 ==1=3=2,6=70= ===9::::!:4,446==== = ==94::::!:446===:: 

s=====38=,12==4 ==1=38=.4=96= ===='=oo=.m==== =='=oo:::!:.2=12= 
Unrealized loss due to change in the cummulative 

change in market value pools 

(3) Net Assets Released From Restrictions 
$===:!:(=5,8=2::::!6) 

Donor imposed restrictions expired on temporarily restricted net assets as foHows: 
Expenditures made for donor imposed restrictions: 

Private scholarships 

Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant 
College Work Study Program 
Equipment capitalized 

O ther instructional and institutional 
Proposed new campus related costs: 

Capitalized expenditures 

New campus land maintenance and expense 
Campaign office expense 

Allocation to unrestricted gifts (see no te 8) 

Net assets released from restrictions 

s 86,114 
4,504 

89,554 

s 

s 

47,199 
17,762 
15,994 
3,911 
6,437 

180,172 

271,475 

Pell grants to students amounting to $203,031 and $202,865 fo r 2000 and 1999, respet:tively, are not 

included in expenditures or net assets released (rom restric tions, as scheduled above. Pell grants are 
considered to be an agency transaction in that the student payments are entitlements and the funds are 
no t under the control of the College. 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

. . Net Assets of Temporarily Restricted Funds 
(4) Rematmng . es· 

. . d funds a re available fo r the foUowmg purpos . 
Net assets of temporarily restncte 

Proposed new campus 

Scholarships 
Life income funds 

s 
2000 1999 
411,800 301,779 

48,419 43,985 
4,72.'i 4,725 

14,207 16,04/ 
O ther instructional and institutiona l 

$===4=79~1=5=1 ====3~~.5=36= 

(S) Net Assets 
1 . of May 31 2000 and 1999: 

Net assets of the College consist of the fol owmg as . • 2000 

Operations 
Net investment in plant assets 

Life income funds 
Unexpended funds restricted for: 

Operating purposes 
Plant facilities 

Student loan funds 
True endowment funds 
Scholarship endowment funds 

Total net assets 

Temporarily Permanently 

Unrestricted Restricted Restric ted 

s 161,236 
3,353,261 

4,725 

62,626 
411,800 

570,348 
184,628 
432,829 

s 3,514,497 479,151 I.I87,805 

. t d Capitalized Leases (6) Property, Plant and Equtpmen an . 
. d ca italized leases a re as follows . 

Components of property, plant and eqwpment an p 

s 
Land 
Land and costs incurred, proposed new campus 

Buildings 
Equipment 
Library Books 

Accumulated depreciation and amortization s 

Total 
161,236 

3,353,261 
4,725 

62,626 
411,800 
570,348 
184,628 
432,829 

5,181,453 

2000 
296,519 
664,834 

3,412,885 
1,284.882 

458,015 
6,117,135 
2,669,860 
3,447,275 

1999 
T otal 

127,312 
3,283,.173 

4,72.'5 

60,032 
301,779 
565 ,.116 
190,454 
384,886 

4,917,937 

1999 
296,519 
42.1,970 

3,.197,385 
1,242,677 

422,480 
5,783,031 
2,499,658 
3.2.S:P73 

Net investment in plant 

Depreciation and amortization charged 

1999, respectively. 

to expenditures was $170,202 and $163,320 in 2000 and 

(7) Notes Payable to Individuals 

Pe rmanently Restric ted Funds - Student Loan Funds 

5% de.mand notes payable to individuals 
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65 543 163.893 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

(9) Pension Plan, continued 
Net periodic benefit cost: 

Service cost at end of year 

Interest cost on projected benefit obligation 
Expected return on plan assets 

Amortization of transition obligation 
Amortization of prior service costs 
Amortization of net loss 

Net periodic benefit cost 

As~~~ptions. IUed for determioalion of net pension cost: 
"'""umed discount rate 

Rate of compensation increase 
Expected long-term rate of return 
Actuarial valuation method 

$ 

s 

2000 ----. 
77,426 

141,724 
(1~5.900) 
(24,911) 
21,631 

59,970 

7.50% 
4.00% 
8.50% 

·~ ~ 
71~ 

127JJ 
040.21 

C24.91 
21.631 
lJ36 

59!: 

7.Q1i 
4.~ 

&.sot 
Projected Projecled 
Unit Credit Unit Ctq Assumptions used for d t . . 

Assum d disc e enru.oatJon of end of year obligations· 
e ount rate · 

8.50% 7..50i 
4.00% 4~ 

N/A N/A 

Rate of compensation increase 

Expected long-tenn rate of return 
Actuarial valuation met.hod 

Projected Projccttd 
Unit Credit Unit Credit ( 1 O) Concentration of Credit Risk 

The College is the institution of higher educatio . 
and offers Bible based educatiooaJ . n of the Nahonal Association of Free Will Baptists, I~ 
credit in certain instances to studentss~~'ICesd to .meml bers of the denomination. The College eXIcllds 
F ds Th r e ucauona costs and mak I 

un · e College also mainta' . es oans to students from the Lou 
telephone charges etc The Conms cerlstam accounts for sponsored groups, staff purchases stodtal 
· ' · ege a o bas a ubsta · 1 ' 

dis~rsed among numereous supporters of the eou: e nua amount of pledges receivable which arc 
subJect to accounting risk of loss amounti I h g ·. These aceounts are not collateralized and art 

ng o I e outstanding balance at any point . , . 
Further the G U In tme. 
1 ' 0 ege has cash fwlds invested at several fina iaJ · · · 
ass for funds amounting to approximately $961 500 . oc JDSlllul.lons and has risk of accouniJJII 

greater than the insurable limit Tb C U ' smce the balance at certain fmancia1 institutions IS 

subject to accounting risk of Joss e . o ege also owns marketable securities received by gifts which art 
amounung to the recorded balance. 
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

This summary is pro\'ided to help the denomination better understand the overall financial 
condition of Free Will Baptist Bible College. 

Unrestricted Funds Surplus Budget 

Total Unrestricted Funds Revenues for the year ending May 31, 2000, amounted to $3.980,157. 
Total Expenditures were 53,876,345, providing a S 103,812 surplus of income O\'er expenses. 

Casb Flow Statement 

The combined cash flow of the College's operating, investing, capital and financial acti\'ities 
showed cash and cash equivalents increasing $128,937 in Unrestricted Funds, no change in 
Temporarily Restricted Funds, and increasing $78,415 in Pennanently Restricted Funds for a 
cumulative cash flow increase of$207,352. 

Unrestricted Giving 

Private gifts provided $917,732 in Unrestricted Funds Revenues. Ofthat amount, $905,072 was 
provided from General Fund gifts, S 11 ,905 from Estate gifts, and $755 from special gifts. 

General Fund Giving Keeps Tuition Costs Down 

Because of above-mentioned General Fund gifts, FWBBC students were in essence "awarded" 
S 110 for every semester hour taken in 1999-2000. Or, unrestricted General Fund gifts kept the 
cost of tuition per semester hour at $189, instead of $299. This gift subsidy sa,·ed each student 
taking 30 semester hours ( 15 hours per semester) a total of $3,300 this past academic year. 

Financial Obligations 

The College is free of long-tenn debt. Notes Payable to Individuals (the proceeds are restricted 
for the purpose of providing low-interest student loans) amounts to $165,543. The College has 
sufficient cash and savings in the student Joan program to completely liquidate these notes, but 
chooses to keep the funds available as part of its financial aid program. 

Assets to Debt Ratio 

~WBBC's assets to debt ratio is extremely good. Total assets amount to $5,703.959. Our 
liability {listed in "Financial Obligations" above) comes to $165,543, giving a 3~ .46 to 1 ratio. 
Adding aU other liabilities brings the total to $522,506, and gives a 10.92 to 1 ratio. 

THIS INFORMATION IS NOT PART OF THE AUDITOR'S REPORT 
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SUI\IMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION (continued) 

Relocation Campaign Update 

ln March, 1998, the college entered into a five-year, S 12 million capital campaign for the Plll)lose 
o f providing $6 million in operating (General Fund/Unrestricted Fund) revenues and S6 mtllion 
for relocating and constructing a new campus in Joelton, Tennessee. 

Since March, 1998, the campaign has raised $4,829,331 in cash, pledges and commitments (bo!b 
written and verbal). Of that amount, $2,529,331 has been expended to operate the school, create 
and fund the campaign office, retain a campaign consultant, an architect, various engineers, etc. 
The remaining $2,300,000 is in the form of campaign pledges and commitments (of which gross 
pledges as recorded in the financial statements amount to $604,300 (see Note 8), and non­
recorded, wrinen and verbal commitments of approximately $1, 700,000). 

The $12 million campaign is a combined endeavor: 

The first part of the campaign goal is $6 million necessary for the operational funding of 
FWBBC. Even without the campaign, the college would budget S 1.2 million per year in 
unrestricted gifts. In order to avoid competition for operating (Unrestricted Fund) gifts, the 
college established one-half of the campaign total to be available for up to S I ,200,000 per year, 
for 5 years, in unrestricted funds. In 1999-00, the total came to only $905,072, with no 
allocation from campaign funds. 

The second part of the campaign goal is to raise another 56 million for the relocation and 
construction of the new Joelton campus. These funds, along with the future sale of the West End 
A venue campus, are designed to provide sufficient capital for the move. 

SPECIAL NOTE- URGENT NEED: 

Heavy construction is scheduled to begin in early 2001. The Bible College is deeply appreciative 
for over $500,000 in cash gifts received toward the $6 million goal. However, because this time 
period is less than a year away, there is an urgent need for a massive infusion of cash gifts to 
meet construction costs. According to estimates, a minimum $2,000,000 cash is needed in the 
next few months in order to remain on schedule and work toward Phase I construction. 

THIS INFORJ\IATION IS NOT PART OF THE AUDITOR'S REPORT 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 
Proposed Budget for the Year Ending May 31, 200 I 

As Compared to 

I S mman. zed for the Year Ended May 31, 2000 Actua as u 

Current Unrestricted Funds 

Revenues: 

Tuttion & fees 
Gifts: . 

Together/Capital Campatgn 
Estates & Misc. 

Endo~entincorne 
Investment income . 
Sales and services of auxiliary enterpnses 

Other sources 
Net Assets Released From Restrictions 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 

Educational & general: 
Instruction 
Academic support 
Student services 
Operation and maintenance of plant 
Institutional support 

Scholarships/Contingency . 
Total educational and general expendttures 

Auxtliary enterprises: 

Expenditures: 

Total expenditures 

Swplus/(Deficit) 

Proposed 
Budget 

May 31, 
2001 

2,030,939 

1,200,000 
21,000 

8,000 
16,000 

1,085,000 

0 
120,000 

4,480,939 

1,141,546 
458,640 
465,888 
490,533 

1,049,713 
0 

3,606,320 

874,619 

4,480,939 

Actual 
May 31, 

2000 

1,706,782 

905,072 
12,660 

5,761 
12,038 

l ,047,490 

18,879 
271,475 

3,980,157 

1,043,004 
308,362 
376,198 
376,597 
866,835 

76,354 
3,047,350 

828,995 

3,876,345 

0 103 812 

THE AUDITOR'S REPORT THIS 11\TORl\lATION IS NOT PART OF 
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General Fund Gift Goals - 2000-200 I 
State 

Alabama (AL) 
Alaska (AK) · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · .$ 

Arizona (AZ) 
Arkansas (AR) · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 
California ( CA) · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . 
Colorado (CO) : : : · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . 
Connecticut (C1) ················ 
Delaware (DE) · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ... 
Florida (FL) . . . . . · · · · · · · · · · · . . . 
Georgia ( GA) · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . . 
Hawaii (HI) · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ... 
Idaho (fD) 
lllinois (IL) · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . . . 
Indiana (IN) · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ... . . 
Iowa (lA) · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . . . . 
Kansas (KS) 

. . . . . . . . . . . 
• • • 0 • • • • 

Kentucky (KY) · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · .... 
Louisiana (LA) · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . . .. 
Maine (ME) ...... · · · · · · · · · · · .. 
Maryland (MD) : .......... · · · · · · · · 
M~ssachusetts (MA) · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 
~chigan (MI) . . .. : : · · · · · · · · · · · · . 
~~esota (MN) · · · · · · · · · · · · · 

Goals 

72,600.00 

1,560.00 
84,960.00 

7,080.00 
720.00 

1,560.00 
3,240.00 

34,920.00 
92,520.00 

100.00 
32,640.00 
9,000.00 

720.00 
360.00 

17,160.00 
2,520.00 
1,680.00 

600.00 
120.00 

32,280.00 

M!SSISSippi (MS) ... 
MISsouri (MO) ..... · · · · · · · · · · 22,080.00 
Montana (MT) · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 50,760.00 
Nebraska (NE) 
Nevada (NV) · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . . . 

New Hampshire (NH) 
New Jersey (NJ) 
New Mexico (NM) 
New v.ork (NY) · · · · · ,, . . . . . . . . . . . 

360.00 

360.00 

North Carolina (NC) 
North Dakota (ND) . .. .. · · · · · · · · · · 258,710.00 
Ohio (OH) 
Oklahoma (OK) · : · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 21,840.00 
Oregon (OR) · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 22,560.00 
Pennsylvania (PA) . .. . 
Rhode Island (Rl) · · · · · · · · · · · · · 
South Carolina (SC) 
South Dakota (SO) . .. · · · · · · · · · · ... 
Tennessee (TN) · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . 
11exas (TX) 

. . . . . . . . . . . . 
0 • • 0 • • • 

Utah CUT) 
.. . ..... . 

• • • 0 • • • • 0 • 

Vermont (VT) 
Virginia (VA) 
Washington (WA) · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 
West Vrrginia (WV). · · · · · · · · · · · · · ... 
Wisconsin (WI) . · · · · · · · · · · · · · . . . 
\V)torning (WY) · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · .. 

600.00 

65,640.00 
100.00 

282,480.00 
13,200.00 

23,280.00 
840.00 

8,520.00 
50.00 

Canada 
Virgin Islands (VI)" : · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 840.00 
WNAC. . .... · · · · · · · · · · · 1,440.00 
Other · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 5,520.00 
Total · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . 24,480.00 

.. . .. . .. .. . .. .. . . . $ 1,200,000.00 

A- 194 

free Will Baptist Bible College Salary Breakdown 

1998-99 1999-00 2000-01 

,.,sidtnt • $54,354 $56,354 59 ,172 
Salary 
Social Security 

4 ,1 58 4,311 4,526 

Retirement 
2,718 2,536 2,958 

Medical Insurance 2,400 2,107 2,528 

Life Insurance 240 240 240 

$63,870 $65,548 $69,424 

Acadtmic Dean 
Salary $43,015 $45,0 15 47,266 

Social Security 3,291 3,444 3,616 

Retirement 2 ,1 51 2 ,026 2 ,363 

Medical Insurance 2 ,400 2,1 07 2 ,528 

Life Insurance 240 240 240 

$51,097 $52,832 $56,0 13 

Advancement Director Relocation Campaign 
Salary $36,208 $38,208 40,11 8 

Social Security 2 ,770 2,923 3,069 

Retirement 1,8 10 1,719 2 ,006 

Medical Insurance 2,400 2,107 2,528 

Life Insurance 240 2~Q 2~0 

$43,428 $45,197 $4 7,961 

Stewardship Development Director 
Salary $31,01 3 $35,000 $36,225 

Social Security 2,372 2,678 2,77 1 

Retirement 1,551 1,575 1,811 

Medical Insurance 2,400 2,107 2,528 

life Insurance 240 240 240 

$37,576 $4 1,600 $43,575 

Treasurer 
Salary $41,607 $43,607 $45,787 

Social Security 3,1 83 3,336 3,503 

Retarement 2,080 1,962 2,289 

Medical Insurance 2,400 2,107 2,528 

Life Insurance 240 240 240 

$49,51 0 $51,252 $54,347 

Salary includes housing allowance where applicable. 
• vehicle provided 
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Sunday School and Church Training Report 
This year has been another busy year in the ministry of develo . 

and publishing Free Will Baptist Sunday school literature. Plllg 
We recently purchased a new imagesetter which will enhance OUr 

graphics and production departments. 
Our presence on the Internet is showing an increase in inquiries and 

sales. Both Free Will Baptists and non-Free Will Baptists are responding to 
our web page at www.randallhouse.com 

We continue to work with other national departments and print two or 
our national magazines. We print stewardship materials and The Free Will 
Baptist Yearbook complimentary for our Free Will Baptist churches. We have 
committed to print 300,000 pieces of material for Operation Saturation, set 
for September 30, 2000, and will be sharing in the promotion of this project 

This year we began to give our own Spanish curriculum to our Spanish Free 
Will Baptist churches that serve under the Home and Foreign Mission 
Departments and other Spanish speaking Free Will Baptist churches in our 
denomination We have budgeted free printing for our new Russian and Korean 
churches. We have signed letters of pennission for them to print about 15 of our 
books. We have been given pennission to reprint 5 of Dr. Hack Bong Chung's 
books for the Korean market in the U.SA. Dr. Qmng is a professor at our new 
seminary in Korea under the direction of the Foreign Missions Department 

It is has been my desire to print and mail a book on doctrine or growth, 
free of charge once a year, to every Free Will Baptist minister. We want to do 
our part in keeping our doctrine pure, increasing our convictions set forth in 
our Treatise. Since we do not have the resources at Randall House Publications 
alone, we have established a Trust so churches and individuals can contribute 
to this project Contributions may be sent to the Randall Minister's Fund, Free 
Will Baptist Foundation, P. 0. Box 5002, Antioch, TN 37011-5002, earmarked for 
this fund. It is our desire for this fund to be well established and self-perpetu­
ating from its interest income enabling its purpose. 

We have established the Dr. Roger C. Reeds Scholarship Fund which 
will be a part of the Heritage Fndowment Fund at Free Will Baptist Bible 
College to honor his years of dedicated service to Randall House Publications 
and our denomination. Friends may also contribute to this scholarship fund by 
contacting Mrs. Peggy Hampton at Free Will Baptist Bible College, P. 0. Box 
50117, Nashville, TN 37205. 

This year we will release The Quest for 1iuth written by F. Leroy Forlines 
and an updated version of the Free Will Baptist History by Dr. Bill Davidson enti­
tled A Free Will Baptist History. AJso, Two Views of the Millennium, one boOk 
containing The Apocalypse by Douglas Simpson and The Unsealed Book by 
Wide Jernigan has been released. The remaining Randall Commentary series 
has been assigned to writers. We are excited about our new endeavor with 
Lightning Source, a division of Ingram-the world's largest distributor of books, 
which will enable us to fill many requests for titles that have been out of print 
We will bring back about 87 books such as Romans by Dr. Robert Pidrilli, 
Biblical Systematics by F. Leroy Forlines, and The Future by Dr. Cecil Sanders. 
We also put Biblical Systematics (printed in Russian), about thirty of our 
Spanish teacher guides, and five Korean books from Dr. Hack Bong Chung into 
our American market This company is a print-on-demand company able to 
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r boOk remaining the same. 
thirtY-five etc. with the cost pe . ·th this method. 

bOOk or ' h a large mventory W1 
~~not have to print and sto~e besucadded to the databases of Spring Arbor, 
we ww nabl our products lo arkehna area. . will also e e . . us a much larger m U> roo 
1l1iS and Noble, and ~azon, givmg for Sunday school and church growth, 
aarnes full-eolor magazlne, Outreach church. It continues to be we~ ac~ep~-

our .th·cteas and helps for the l<>?li 'ful d ·~ronnative publication lS . filled Wl I • ti This beauti an 11 u . . 
IS hout our denoffilna on. h and interested indivtdual. 
ed ~ f charge to every pastor, churc , tir this next year so pray that 
sent~~~ see a nuf!1ber of ~mplo~~ ~~di~ated as these people have 

meir reRplac5eanm;~~ ~~ ~~ ~~~fa~hic artists, cwnon~ti~ngue~~on~~\~ $t~~g~·o 
l)een. ay ' bl ar but we are 

have had a profita e ye ' · · f the future. 
. Wode ct which will enable us to repositiOnturesor and continue to progress. 
1Il pr u , 'or us as we investigate new ven 

PleaSe pray l ' 

Alton E. Loveless 
General Director 

1999-2000 Minutes Sr~hrr~~ing Board 
of the Sunday School ~ndt. Ch~f Free Will Baptists 
of the National Assocaa aon . thi 

. . Board met three times s 
The Sunday School and Ch~chAtlTrattrua ~eorgia during the mee~g of 

fi ting was m an , d. mrruttee past year. Our rst mee d officers and stan mg co 
the National Association of FWB. B?ar ear Dean Jones gave a report. on 
members were elected for. U:~ c~:r~ey we~k. He noted that the requrre-
the youth services and activtties e of our young people. . 
ment for narnetags added to the s~ ty hvill TN following the Leadership 

Our second meeting took place m ~~neraleDirector, Creative Director (f?r-
Conference. yve h~d reports fromd o~C Director. The Board voted .to ~tabli~h 
merly Editor-m ChieO, Treasurer an . r of Dr Roger Reeds. ThiS Will begm 
a$1000 scholarship fund at fWBBC m hon~ the p~chaSe of computer to I?lat~ 
in the year 2000. The Board ~so approve roximately $150,000. Several mdi­
eqt tinment The cost was proJected to be appd ew boOk was approved for 

, ..... y ·~ for RHP an one n . 
viduals were approved as wn ers roved at this meeting. . 
printing. Speakers for the 2000 NYC wereO~~oma FWB State Office Buil~, 

Our third meeting took pla~e at the The theme for the 200 ~ ~n-
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma April 17 an~ 1 ~~f the Youth Ministries DMSion 
istry ear and NYC was adopted and e . . . (serving young people and 
was Ychanged to Children and Student ~~~~!ed the auditor's .report c;md 
those who work wi~ ~em). The :: lete write-off of the Sparush curncu­
voted to accept it This mcluded a ~ The 2001 proposed budget was 
lum and other items of dinSthaig:~~a~~f proposed budgets be changd ~~~ 
adopted The Board vote . n Wl. th past, present an 

• A1nl1 and companso th pproved 
enhance ease of reauu '5 . dividuals were added to e a: . d 
expense records and budgets. Two m . ent of a truSt fund to pnnt an 
writers list The Board approved ~~ ~:~s~ge. The Board approved a 4% 
mail a book annually to ~ch Pa;; d housing. 
increase in the General Drrector s salary an 
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Sui re 303 
Brentwood. TN :l7027 
TEL: 615/Jn-3485 

We have audited the balance sheet of Sunday School and Church Training Board and 
Randall House Publications as of December 31, 1999, and the related statements of 
activity and changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial 
statements are the responsibility of the Board's management. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit 

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting 
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management. as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We 
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in aU material 
respects, the financial position of Sunday School and Church Training Board and 
Randall House Publications as of December 31, 1999, and changes in its net assets and 
cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles. 

March 15, 2000 
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SUNDAY SCHOOL AND OIUROI TRAINING BOARD 
AND RANDAIJ . HOUSE PUBUCATIONS 

Balance Sheet 

Deamber 31, 1999 

Ourent assets: 

Cash and inla'e.st bearing deposits 
Certificates of deposit 

Cash invested with the Free Will Baptist Foundatiat 
Accounts receivable: 

Trade, net of alhwance for doubtful accounts 
oC$7,000 

Employees and other 

Total receivables 

Inventory, at lower of cost (first-in, firSk>ut method) or market 
Oefem:d charges and prepaid expenses 

Total C\llTellt assets 

Property, plant and equipment and capitalized leases, at cost 
Land 

Buildln& 
Printing service equipment 
OCfice and administrative equipment 
Automobiles and trucks 

Less accwwJ.ated dqncciatioo and amortization 

Net property, plant and equipment and capitalized leases 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

CUrrent liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 
Due to affiliated organization 

Long term debt 
Note payable 

TotaJ current liabilities 

Total long term debt 

Unrestricted net assets 

Commitments 

See accompanying notes to fmancial statements. 
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387.014 
so~ 

ISO,~ 

12S,602 
3,.143 

128,745 

422,336 
13,464 

1,l.Sl,SS9 

ll0,34J 
712,470 
471,336 
551,060 
51,698 

1,896,90S 
1,33{),816 

566,089 

1,717,648 

70,783 
40,610 
t,4n 

112,865 

95,000 

95,000 

1,509,783 

1,717.648 

sUNDAy SCHOOL AND CHURCH TRAINING BOARD 
AND RANDALL HOUSE PUBUCATIONS 

Statement of Activity and Changes in Net Assets 

For tbe Year EMr.d Deeember 31, 1999 

Revenues: 
Net sales: 

Quriculwn 
Randall House books 
Metchandisc 
Vacation Bible School 
Bookstore 
Printing 
Other sales 

Net sales 
Freight and handling 
Other income . 
Youth income from conferences and related sei'Vloes 
Interest incane 
Cornrnmioo income on hymnal sales 

Expenses: 
Cost of sales: 

Inventory at beginning of year 
Mercbandi.se pW"Chases 
Depreciation 
Editorial 
Printing production 
Spanish deportment 

Less inventory at end of year 

Selling, general and administrative: 
Administrative 
Bookstore 
Bookkeeping 
Building 
Sales and promotDil 
Shipping 
General 
Youth department: 

Conferences and related services 
General and administrative 

Depreciation 
Intel'e$t expense, including fmanoe charges 

Total expenses 
Decrease in net assets 

Net assets, beginning of year 

Net assets, end of year 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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1,967,311 
67,386 
32,121 
29,024 

368,098 
157,197 
49,812 

2,670,949 
118,272 
61,249 

154,401 
9,732 

42,434 
3,057,037 

909,780 
247,629 

48,000 
361,865 
791,037 

24.,159 

2,382,670 
4221:136 

1,960.,134 

12.1,593 
120,434 
230,824 
142,115 
149,698 
211,765 
178,010 

134,671 
124,349 
57r1 11 

718 

1,473,488 

3,433,822 
(376,785) 

1,886.568 

1.509.783 



SUNDAY SCHOOL AND OIURCH TRAININ 
AND RANDALL HOUSE PUBUCATio~:OARD 

Statement of Cash FJows 

For the Year Faded December 31, 1999 

Cash Flows from OpentiJlg Activities 

Decrease in net assets 

Adjus~ts to reconcile decrease in net assets to net 
operatmg activities 

Depreciation and ama1ization 
(Increase) decrease in: 

Receivables 
Inventories 

Deferred charges and prepaid expenses 
Increase (decrease) in: 

Accounts payable 

Accrued expenses 

Due to affiliated organization 

Net operating activities 

Cash FJows from lnvcstmg Activities 

Cash invested with Free WiU Baptists FoundatX>n. 
Proceeds from certificate of deposit 
Purchase of equipment 

Net investing activities 

Cash FJows from Fmanc:mg Activities 

Proceeds from long term debt 

Net financing activities 

Net increase in cash 

Cash at beginning of year 

\ ..ash at end o f year 

Supplemental disclosures: 

Interest, including finance charges paid 

Seeacmmpa · nymg notes to financial statements. 
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(376,78S) 

105,311 

40,2.ll 
487,~ 

210 

(26,698) 
(10,6SS) 

1,043 

220,103 

(50,000) 
50,000 

(34,102) 

(34,102) 

95,000 

95,000 

281,001 

106,013 

387,014 

718 

SUNDAY SCHOOL AND aruROI TRAINING BOARD 
AND RANDALL HOUSE PUBUCATIONS 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 1999 

The Board operates under the auspices of the National Association o f Free WiU Baptists and is governed by a 

Board of Directors. 

(I) Sommarv of Significant Accounting Policies 

The Board adopted Statement of Fmancial Standards (SFAS) No. 117 "Fmancial Statements of 

Nol-{or-Profrt Organizations". Under SFAS No. 11 7, the Board is required to Jepot1 info rmation 

regarding its financial position and activities accading to three c lasses of net assets: unrestricted nc:t 
assets; tempomily restricted net assets; and permanently restricted net assets, if any. In additio n, the 

Board is required to present a statement or cash nows. As permitted by this new statement, the lloard 

discontinued its use of fund acmunting and bas, accordingly, reclassified its financial statements to 

present the classes of net assets required. 

Accrual Basis 

The fmancial statements of the Board have been prepared on the accrual basis of acmunting. 

Inventories 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or marlcel, with cost being determined by use of the first-in, firsH:>ut 

method. 

Property, Plant and Equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Expenditwes for maintenance and repairs, renewals, and 

bettcnnents that do DO( significantly extend the useful lives o r 35$Cts are expensed as incum:d. Depreciatia:l is 

provided using the straighHine method 

Income Taxes 

1be Board is exe~ from Federal and state inocme taxes; accordingly, no provision for inocme taxes is made 

in the accounts. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Board considers all cash funds, cash bank accounts and 

highly liquid debt instruments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash and 
cash equivalents. 

Estimates 

1be preparation o f financial state.ments in conformity with generally accq>ted accounting principles 

requires management to make estimates and assumptions that a[[ec:t certain reported a mounts and 

disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from lhose estimates. 

5 
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SUNDAY S{HOOL AND QIURQI TRAINING BOARD 
AND RANDALL HOUSE PUBUCATIONS 

Notes to Fina.ocial Statements, continued 

Fair Value of Fina.ocial Instruments 

The carrying value of cash, aa::ounts receivable, inYelltory, acoounts payable and acaued eXJ~eo~es 

approximate fair value because of the short maturity of the instruments. The carrying values of liabilita 
are not materially different from the estimated f.air value of these ins!JWIIcnts. 

Compensated Absences 

Employees of the Board are entitled to paid sick days and personal days off, depending on job 
classification, length of service and other factors. It is impractical to estimate the cuoount of compensa!Joa 
for future absences, and acoordingly, no liability bas been recorded in the acoompanying famncial 
statements. The Board's policy is to recognize the oost of these COD'l!C:nsated absences wben actually paid 

to employees. 

(2) Concentration of Credit Risk 

(3) 

The Board is a distnbutor of Bible based Sunday school and church training curricuhm, and other 
denominational puliications. The Board extends aedit to its customen which consist primarily of Free 
Will Baptist chwclles and religious bookmres. These acoounts are not collateralized and are subject to 
acoounting risk of Joss aiOOU.Dting to the oulstaoding baJanoe at auy poi.m in time. F\uther, funds invested 
with the Free WiU Baptist Foundation in 1he aiOOU.Dt of $100,000 are subje<:t to risk of acoounting loss. 
Cash and certificates of deposit deposited in a local bank are inswed by the FD.I.C up to a maxinnun o( 

$100,000. 

with 

During 1he year ended November 30, 1995 the Board agreed to warehouse and distribute hymnals for the 
Executive Board of 1he National Association of Free Will Baptists. There are two types of hymnals beinl 
warehoused and distributed by 1he Board; The Free WiU Baptist Hymn Book, Rejoice, and The Rejoice 
Hymn Book for the Olurcb at Worship. 

The Free Will Baptist HtWD Boot, Rejoice 

The Board will in~ice the custon'lez, coiled fun<k and remit $632 to the Executive Board N oC 
Decemlu 31, 1999 the Board was warehousing approximately 34,000 hymnals with an estimated 
replacement value of $442,000. The following SU11IDla!'i1l:s the transactions under this agxeement as of 
December 31, 1999. 

Amount due to Executive Office at beginning of period S 
Total sales of hymnals 
Less total fees earned 
Less remittances made to the ExecutiYe Office 

Anx>unt due to (from) Executive Office at end of period S ==::::!::=== 

The Rejoic:e Hymn Book for the Churda of Worship 

The Board will warehouse and distribute these hymnals and receive a commission of S% plus costs of 
shipping per hymnal. As of Dec=lber 31, 1999 the Board was warehousing approximately 10,000 
hymnals with au estimated replaoeznent value of S 100,000. 
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CHURCH TRAINING BOARD 
sUND~=:UouSE pUBUCATIONS 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

(4) pension . f the Board of Retirement and InsuranCX: of the 
- . the master pc:J1S101l plan o bed to a maxunum of 
The Board participateS m . 1be !an is contnbutory and is mate up ted 

(5) 

(6) 

. iation of Free Will Baptlsts. P . · · te. Pension expense amoun 
Natjonal Asg;>C • Empk>yees with two yeMS of seMce may ~apa defioed contribution plan. Under 
5% of compensau<>n. mber 31 1999. 1be pension plan ts a ' . . can either 

$32 833 for the year ended Oece · ' . . t aod upon retiranent the partJCtpanl 
to . • • . taioed for each paructpan 
the plan. an account lS mam f ral types of annuity contr.~cts. 

. di tribution or purchase one o seve 
reoove a lumJHlum s 

Inventory de nnioed that inventory previously classified as 
. ded December 31, 1999 the Board . te · ~--~ pnman' ' ly of Spanish and other 

During the year en Thi tDVentory cons•:.~ ted 
bad becorre without significant value. .s ted to $394 871 and is reflec as 

long tenn . effect of writing o£f this mventory amoun • 
miscellaneOUS ttems. The . . te:menl.S. 
costs of goods sold in the accotupanymg finanaal sta 

Note Payable . . ble in monthly installments of $1,932 

The 
"--_. bas a note payable with interest at 8.00%. which .•s pasec~ by a certificate of deposit. The 
DUOU" . ber 2004 1be note IS 

· · I aod interest) until [)ecem · · t 
(pnnc~ ·n be used to purchase a piece of eqwrmen . 
proceeds (rom the note wt 

A summary of maturities is as follows: 
Yeareodcd 

l)ec:ember 31 

.., 
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2001 
2002 
2003 
2004 

Amouut 

16,164 
17,506 
18,959 
20,533 
21,838 

95 000 



Budget Budget 2001 
Sunday School Literature 2001 

Revenues Quantity Description Cost Revenue 

16,391.80 4.10 Total Sales $3,147,603.85 
3,998 Nursery Teacher 

2.45 41 ,735.75 Other Income 
17,035 Make N Do 

2.45 34,966.40 Freight & Handling 130,000.00 
14,272 My Bible Lesson Cards 

9.99 46,783.17 Commission on Hymnals 75,000.00 
4,683 Nursery-Preschool Flannelgraph 

9.99 26,353.62 Youth Division 174,500.00 
2,638 Nursery-Preschool Teaching Pictures 

4.10 34,690.10 Miscellaneous Income 20,000.00 
8,461 Preschool Teacher 

2.45 59,263.05 
24,189 Preschool Student 

2.45 87,224.90 Total Revenues $3,547,103.85 
35,602 Preschool Companion 

2.45 59,547.25 
24,305 Picture Lesson Cards 

2.79 19,725.30 Cost of Sales 
7,070 Bible Times 

4.10 40,089.80 Cost of Outside Purchases $397,000.00 
9,778 Primary Teacher 

2.45 93,692.90 Editorial/Graphic Arts 413,900.00 
38,242 Primary Student 

2.45 124,550.65 Printing Production 762,400.00 
50,837 Primary Companion 

9.50 29,003.50 Spanish 28,100.00 
3,053 Memory Verse Packet 

2.79 25,330.41 
9,079 Primary Days 

9.99 36,373.59 Total Cost of Sales Expenses $1 ,601 ,400.00 
3,641 Primary-Junior Flann~lgra~h 

9.99 37,702.26 
3,774 Primary-Junior Teaching Pictures 

4.10 50,040.50 General Expenses 
12,205 Junior Teacher 

2.45 136,403.75 Youth Division $294,317.00 
55,675 Junior Student 

2.45 128,321.20 Sales Division 208,500.00 
52,376 Junior Companion 

2.79 24,613.38 Bookstore 128,300.00 
8,822 Junior Counselor 

4.10 22,135.90 Denominational Ministries 128,000.00 
5,399 Turning Point Teacher 

9.99 21,238.74 Administration 138,850.00 
2,126 Turning Point Packet 

2.45 61 ,335.75 Accounting 252,900.00 
25,035 Turning Point Student 

2.79 35,290.71 Shipping 239,700.00 
12,649 Teen Power 

4.10 31,738.10 Building 168,030.00 
7,741 Horizon Teacher 

9.99 24,385.59 General Expenses 311 ,500.00 
2,441 Horizon Packet 

2.45 91,728.00 
37,440 Horizon Student 

4.10 162,934.00 Total General Expenses $1 ,870,097.00 
39,740 Bible Teacher 

2.45 34,527.85 
14,093 Bible Challenge 

2.45 46,003.65 Grand Total of all Expenses $3,471 ,497.00 
18,777 Visitor's Lesson Leaflets 

2.79 14,351.76 
5,144 Power For Living 

2.45 44,031.40 Total Revenues $3,547, 103.85 
17,972 Depth 

2.45 252,465.15 
103,047 Bible Scholar 

2.60 588,455.40 Working Capital $ 75,606.85 
226,329 Bible Scholar LP 

19.99 7,556.22 
378 Bible Teacher Cassette 

Total Sunday School Literature Sales 
$2,590,981.50 
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C. tS. Literature 

Quantity Description Cost Revenue 
-

358 Helpers Leader's Guide 
932 Helpers Pocket 
705 Discovers Leader's Guide 

2,097 Discovers Pocket 
631 Learners Leader's Guide 

2,550 Learners Student 
555 Adventurers Leader's Guide 

3,319 Adventurers Student 

4.10 
4.10 
4.1 0 
5.40 
4.10 
2.45 
4.10 
2.45 900 Destination Reality 

8,857 Focus Student 
7, 91 6 Lifeline Student 

Total C. tS. literature Sales 
Total Sunday School & C. tS. Sales 
Less Discounts to Bookstores 
Grand Total Literature Sales 

Other Sales and Income 
Spanish Curriculum 
RHP Books 
Merchandise 
Bulletin Service 
Bookstore Sales 
Printing Sales 
Miscellaneous Sales 
Total Other Sales & Income 

Total All Sales 

Other Income 
Freight & Handling 
Commission on Hymnals 
Youth Division 
Miscellaneous Income 

Total Other Income 

TOTAL REVENUE 

A - 208 

14.95 
2.60 
2.45 

$35,000.00 
85,000.00 
50,000.00 
32,000.00 

400,000.00 
180,000.00 
120,000.00 

$130,000.00 
75,000.00 

174,500.00 
20,000.00 

1,467.80 
3,821.20 
2,890.50 

11,323.80 
2,587.1 0 
6,247.50 
2,275.50 
8,131.55 

13,455.00 
23,028.20 
19,394.20 

$ 94,622.35 
$2,685,603.85 
$ (440.000.00) 
$2,245,603.85 

$ 902,000.00 

$3,147,603.85 

$ 399,500.00 

$3,547,103.85 

-

Expenses 
Cost of Outside Purchases 

Curriculum 
Merchandise 
Bookstore 
Depreciation 

EditorioVGrophic Arts 
Salaries 
Hou~ng 

Travel 
Supplies 
Curriculum Development 
Writer's Fees 
Equipment Maintenance 
Color SeporoHons 
Freelance Artwork 
Convennons & Seminars 
Dues & SubscripHons 
Postage 
Telephone 
FICA 
Retirement 
Insurance 
Miscellaneous 

Printing Production 
Salaries 
Travel 

$62,000.00 
15,000.00 

250,000.00 
70,000.00 

$397,000.00 

5250,000.00 
33,000.00 
2,000.00 

10,000.00 
tOOO.OO 

35,000.00 
1,000.00 

12,500.00 
6,000.00 
2,500.00 

300.00 
100.00 

1,000.00 
15,000.00 
9,200.00 

35,000.00 
300.00 

$413,900.00 

S21 0,000.00 
tOOO.OO 

Presswom Supplies 22,000·00 
Pressroom Equipmeot 1Minteoonci¥'Ports 12,000.00 
Pressroom Stock 120,000.00 
Pressroom Ink 9~500 ·00 
Bindery Supplies 4,000.00 
Bindery Maintenanc&-'Ports 3,500.00 
Outside PrinHng 410,000.00 
Telephone tOOO.OO 
FICA 1 5,000.00 
Retirement 
Insurance 
Camero Supplies 
Camero Maintenance 
Camero Film-NegaHves 
Plates 
In House PrinHng 
Dues & SubscripHons 
Miscellaneous 

Spanish 
Salaries 
Travel 
Supplies 
Equipment Maintenance 

8,000.00 
28,000.00 

6,000.00 
500.00 

2,500.00 
9,000.00 

(1 00,000.00) 
100.00 
300.00 

$762,400.00 

$16,000.00 
400.00 
300.00 
300.00 

In House Prinnng 
Translation 
Postage 
Telephone 
FICA 
Renrement 
Insurance 
Dues &. Subscripnons 
Miscellaneous 

Total Cost of Sales 

General Expenses 
Youth Division 

Salaries 
Hou~ng Allowonce 
Entertoinment 
Travel 
Supplies 
In House PrinHng 
NYC 2001 
Truth &. Peace 2001 
NYET 2001 

100.00 
1,000.00 

400.00 
2,200.00 
1,400.00 

800.00 
5,000.00 
100.00 
100.00 

s 28,100.00 
$1,601,400.00 

s 78,000.00 
16,000.00 

500.00 
10,000.00 
3,000.00 
5,000.00 

70,000.00 
42,000.00 
5,000.00 

Fund Raising Expense 3~500·00 
Nanonol Youth Workers' Retreots 2001 17,250.00 
Conventions &. Seminars 300·00 
Dues &. SubscripHons 400·00 

4,000.00 Postage 2 500 00 
Telephone 5:867:oo 
FICA 4,000.00 Renrement 
Insurance 14•000·00 
Miscellaneous 4,000.00 
Truth&. Peoce2 2001 9,000.00 

Soles Division 
Salaries 
Housing 
Entertninment 
Travel 
Supplies 
Advemsing &. PromoHon 
Printing &. Color SeparaHons 
In House PrinHng 
Dues &. Subscriptions 
Postage 
Telephone 
FICA 
R®rement 
Insurance 
Conventions&. Seminars 
Miscellaneous 

$294,317.00 

s 48,000.00 
12,000.00 

200.00 
5,000.00 
7,000.00 

35,000.00 
6,000.00 

35,000.00 
1,500.00 

36,000.00 
1,000.00 
2,200.00 
1,600.00 

10,000.00 
6,000.00 
2,000.00 

$208,500.00 
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Bookstore Postoge 
Solories s 90,000.00 

4,000.00 

Entertainment 
Telephone 

Salaries 

100.00 FICA 
16,000.00 

Trove! 
12,000.00 

2,500.00 Retirement 
Supplies 1,500.00 Insurance 

3,500.00 General Director 
1999 2000 2001 

In House Printing 1,000.00 Travel 
30,000.00 Salary 

$36,341.63 $37,795.34 $39,307.15 

Equipment Rental 3,000.00 In House Printing 
1,500.00 Housing ond Utilities 22,504.87 23,405.06 24,341.26 

Postage 
400.00 

600.00 Miscellaneous 
Social Security 4,499.46 4,681.83 4,869.10 

Telephone 
300.00 

1,500.00 
Retirement 

3,117.40 3,117.40 3,117.40 

FICA 
$252,900.00 

7,000.00 
Insurance: 

Retirement 
Shipping 

2,000.00 
Medical 5,805.00 6,140.70 375.12 

Insurance 14,000.00 
Salaries s 85,000.00 

Dental 581.88 765.36 6,140.70 

Advertising & Promotion 
Supplies 

4,500.00 
19,000.00 

Disability 
375.12 765.36 

Dues & Subscriptions 
Equipment Maintenance 

400.00 
3,400.00 

$72,850.24 $76,280.81 $78,916.09 

Miscellaneous 200.00 
Equipment Rentol 7,000.00 

(The Boord either pays mileage or furnishes a travel cor.) 

$128,300.00 
Freight 95,000.00 

Denominational Ministries 
Postoge 7,000.00 Editor-in-chief 
Telephone 

Outreach Magazine s 30,000.00 
1,000.00 Salary $24,374.62 $25,186.29 $25,941.88 

FICA 
Church Directory 25,000.00 Retirement 

6,000.00 Housing Allowance 17,139.20 17,709.93 18,241 .23 

Spanish Uteroture Gifts 
2,000.00 Social Security 3,175.81 3,281.56 3,380.01 

20,000.00 Insurance 
Stewardship Lessons 15,000.00 Miscellaneous 

14,000.00 Retirement 2,015.00 2,015.00 2,015.00 

Together Way Printing 7,000.00 
300.00 Insurance: 

Koreon Printing 2,000.00 
$239,700.00 Life 164.76 164.76 164.76 

Russian Printing 2,000.00 
Building 

Medical 5,805.00 6,140.70 6,500.00 

Scholarships 2,000.00 
Salaries s 55,000.00 

Dental 581.88 765.36 765.36 

RHP Ministers' Fund 25,000.00 
Housing .00 

Disability 213.00 270.24 270.00 

$128,000.00 
Supplies 10,000.00 

$53,469.27 $55,533.84 $57,278.24 

Administrative 
Equipment Maintenance 3,500.00 

Salaries s 73,000.00 
Building Maintenance 11 ,000.00 

Youth Division Director 

Housing Allowance 
Utilities 50,000.00 

Salary $17,736.00 $18,806.12 $19,370.30 

In House Printing 
26,000.00 lnsuronce(Building) 21,000.00 

Housing Allowance 14,400.00 14,400.00 14,832.00 

200.00 Telephone 
Social Security 2,458.40 2,540.26 2,616.47 

Entertainment 1,200.00 
830.00 

Travel 
FICA 4,000.00 

Retirement 1,560.00 1,560.00 1,560.00 

Auto Expense 
12,000.00 Retirement 2,400.00 

Insurance: 

1,000.00 lnsuron<e 
Life 85.20 85.20 85.20 

Auto lease 
10,000.00 

Supplies 
5,600.00 Miscellaneous 300.00 

Medical 5,805.00 6,140.70 6,500.00 

Equipment Maintenance 
2,000.00 $168,030.00 

Dental 581.00 765.36 765.36 

100.00 
Long-term Core 18.00 18.00 18.00 

Equipment Rental 1,750.00 
General Expenses 

Conventions & Seminars 
Auto Expense 

Disability 165.00 217.92 217.92 

300.00 
s 3,500.00 

$42,808.60 $44,533.56 $45,965.25 

Dues & Subscriptions 300.00 
Supplies 1,000.00 

Postoge 500.00 
Equipment Maintenance 10,500.00 

Telephone 1,200.00 
Equipment Rentol 7,000.00 

FICA 1,900.00 
EquiprnenVLeow1'urchose 100,000.00 

Retirement 5,000.00 
Bod Debt 3,500.00 

lnsuronce 
Boord Trove! & Expense 

6,500.00 
13,000.00 

Miscellaneous 300.00 
legal & Auditing 10,000.00 

$138,850.00 
Taxes 13,000.00 
Payroll Servic'&S 5,500.00 

Customer ServicP/Accoun1in!VBusiness Office Interest Expense 
Solari~ S 165,000.00 

8,500.00 
Debt Retirement 

R~lties 10,000.00 
50,000.00 

Service Charge Expense 
EqUip~t Rental 400_00 

8,000.00 
Depreciation 

Sup~hes 6,000.00 
60,000.00 

Miscellaneous 
Equtpment Maintenance 3 SOO.OO 

18,000.00 

Dues & Subscriptions '300 .OO To1al General Expenses 
s 311,500.00 
$1 ,870,097.00 
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Nutsery Teacher 
Teacher's Resource Pocket 
Pupil's Handwork 
Bible lesson Cords 
Preschool Teacher 
Teacher's Resource Pocket 
Preschool Student 
Preschool Workbook 
Picture lesson Cords 
Primary Teacher 
Visual Pocket 
Primary Student 
Primary Workbook 
·Memory Verse Pocket 
Junior Teacher 
Visual Pocket 
Junior Student 
Junior Workbook 
Teen Teacher 
Visual Pocket 
Teen Student 
Teen Workbook 
High Teen Teacher 
Visual Pocket 
High Teen Student 
High Teen Workbook 
Ufeline (Teen Devotional) 
Bible Teacher (Young Adult) 
Bible Challenge 
Bible Teacher 
Bible Scholar 
Bible Scholar lnrge Print 
Depth (Adult Devotional) 
Visual Pocket 
Visitor's lesson Leaflet 

SP = Scripture Press 
ST = Standard 

Cost Comparisons 2000 
SP GL ST **UGP 

4.89 
AY 

4.99 4.69 1.45 
9.99 10.99 4.89 

9.99 6.25 10.99 2.79 2.79 2.69 1.45 
2.59 2.79 

.00 .DO .85 2.79 4.89 4.99 4.69 1.45 4.89 9.99 10.99 10.99 6.25 l0.99 2.79 .DO .DO 1.45 .00 2.79 2.79 2.69 .DO .00 .DO 1.99 
2.79 

.85 2.79 4.89 4.99 4.69 1.45 9.99 10.99 10.99 
4.89 

2.79 
6.25 10.99 

.DO .DO 1.45 .00 2.79 2.79 
2.69 1.35 2.79 .DO .00 .00 .DO .00 4.89 4.99 4.69 

9.99 10.99 
1.45 3.85 

10.99 6.25 .DO 2.79 .DO .00 1.70 3.10 .00 2.79 
4.89 

2.69 1.70 3.00 16.99 4.69 1.55 9.99 4.85 
.00 10.99 

2.79 
.DO .DO .00 3.19 

.00 1.70 3.10 
.00 .00 . DO .00 4.89 16.99 4.69 1.75 4.85 .00 .00 10.99 .00 .00 4.89 .00 3.19 

.00 1.70 3.JO 
.00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 

.00 .00 .00 
.00 1.85 4.85 .00 .00 .00 0.00 .00 4.99 19.99 4.69 3.80 2.79 4.85 

6.99 2.69 1.85 3.89 .00 3.49 
3.45 

.00 4.JO .00 .00 1.99 
9.99 .00 .00 

.00 10.99 .00 .00 .00 .00 .DO .00 2.85 

Gl = Gospel Ught 
AY = free Will Baptist Press .. UGP = Union Gospel Press 

DCC = David C Cook 
'Produced only by Randall House. RHP = Randall House Publications 

• ' In order foro price comparison to be occurote one needs to make . I . 

DCC RHP 
4.89 3.90 

10.99 9.99 
2.79 2 25 
.00 225 

4.89 3.90 
10.99 9.99 
2.79 2.25 
2.79 2 25 

.DO 2.25 
4.89 3.90 

10.99 9.99 
2.79 2.25 
2.79 2.25 
.00 8.99 

4.89 3.90 
10.99 9.99 
2.79 2.25 
.00 2.25 

4.89 3.90 
l0.99 9.99 
2.79 2.40 
.00 ···.oo 

4.89 3.90 
10.99 9.99 
2.79 2.40 
.00 ···.oo 
.00 '2.25 

4.99 3.90 
.00 2.30 

4.99 3.90 
2.79 2.30 
2.99 2.45 
2.79 '2.30 

10.99 .00 
2.79 2.30 

For inslooce it may oppoor tOOt Union Gospd Press has lower . 100 o vtSUo componson. 
• • • pnces n us or orlm, but 11v.y !JOOOO!Ily 1\Jl qlile 0 t'W JXJges slnttJ illfer ~ 

The Teen course student book contoins both the former student book and handbook. Th. . b .L. boo 
15 grves ~u Ou1 ks for the price of one. 

Please note thot most compan · h · fu d . res ore c orgrng r more fur their products than Randall H Publ" . 
serve soun doonne by purchasing ~ur literature from Randall House Publicoffons. ouse rcahons. Save money, receive quality, and pre-
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Commission for Theological Integrity Report 
The purpose of this corrunission is: (1) To alert our people of theological 

trends that could threaten our theological integrity as a denomination, (2) To pre~ 
pare materials that will contribute to the continued preservation of the theologi­
cal integrity of the denomination, and (3) As need and opportunity arise, to con­
duct seminars on subjects which are pertinent to the purpose of the corrunission 

On November 4-5, 1999, we sponsored our fourth annual Theological 
Symposium. It met at Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College, Moore, Oklahoma. 
Papers were read on a variety of subjects. The interest was good. There was 
a lively, healthy interaction during the meeting. Many said, "This was the best 
symposium that we have had." This year's Theological Symposium will be 
conducted at Free Will Baptist Bible College in Nashville, Termessee. It will 
begin Thursday nigh~ November 2, and go through Friday night, November 3. 

At this year's National Association we wilJ conduct a seminar on "The 
Four Views of the Lord's Supper." It will be conducted by Thomas 
Marberry, president of The Way of the Cross Seminary in Mexico. 

We are happy to armounce that as we enter this new century and new 
millennium, we have produced the first issue of our theological journal 
which is entitled Integrity: A Journal of Christian Thought. As an introduc­
tion to you, the "Preface" to the journal will be printed below. 

We thank you for the privilege of serving you . 

In His Service, 

Leroy Forlines, Chairman 
Paul Harrison, Secretary 
Daryl Ellis 
Jeff Manning 
Matt Pinson 

Preface 

The first Theological Symposium met on October 25-26, 1996, at Free Will 
Baptist Bible College in Nashville, Termessee. We were greatly encouraged by 
the attendance, the interest and the quality of the papers that were read. We 
made a decision to continue these meetings annually. On alternate years we 
have met at Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College in Moore, Oklahoma. Our fourth 
Theological Symposium convened at Hillsdale on November 4-5, 1999. 

The papers that have been presented and the interest that has been shown 
have convinced us that we have many among us who are well equipped to wres­
tle with difficult subjects and deal with important issues. Yet few people will do in­
depth research and struggle with difficult ideas and issues if they do not have an 
opportunity to present their findings to others. Until the present time, the annual 
Theological Symposium has been the only forrnat in our denomination for a per­
son to present researched papers and have them critiqued by others. 

As we reflected upon the interest manifested by those who have attend­
ed our annual Theological Symposium and the quality of the papers that were 
presented, the members of the Corrunission for Theological Integrity became 
convinced that the time has arrived for us to publish a theological journal. This 
will provide another format for sharing the benefits of those who pay the price 
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of doing .in-dep~ research and thinking. The journal will help us connect to a 
~uch WI?er audienc~ than we have been able to in the past We want to fur­
rush pertinen.t matenal for ~tors, ~ose in leadership positions and those 
among ~e ~aity who woul? l!ke to be informed and stay in touch with what is 
happerung m the field of biblical and theological life and thought 

The publication of this journal is a joint venture of the Commission for 
The~logical Integrity, Free Will Baptist Bible College, Hillsdale Free Will 
B~ptist College and ~an.dal~ House Publications. The Commission is great­
ly mdebted to these Institutions for their cooperation and support. Without 
their help the publication of this journal would not be possible. 

Free Will Baptists have a rich heritage. We are greatly indebted to those 
who have made it possible for us to reach the present time with a sound 
biblically based theology. God has used some of His choicest servants t~ 
help us stay on the right course while many in the theological world were 
led astray. The present time is presenting us with new and difficult chal­
lenges. We must equip ourselves for these challenges. 

When the church in the Western \\brld entered the twentieth century, it was 
challenged by secular modernism and theological liberalism The twentieth cen­
tury was a time of both losses and gains for conservative Christianity. Modernism, 
with its denial of divine revelation and its denial of a place for mirades in world­
view thinking, influenced many in the direction of naturalism As modernism 
influenced the theological world, many moved toward theological liberalism. As 
a result of the influence of modernism, theological liberalism denied special 
divine revelation and the possibility of mira des. There was no place for the Bible 
to be viewed as an objective, authoritative, divine revelation. There was no place 
for the miraculous virgin birth of Chris~ no place for the deity of Chris~ no place 
for Jesus' rnirades and no place for the miraculous bodily resurrection of Christ 

Many theological institutions became seriously corrupted by liberalism. In 
the 1920s it became evident that theological liberalism had devastated many 
theological seminaries. Ministerial students found it increasingly difficult to find 
conservative seminaries to attend In order to meet this challenge, God raised 
up leaders who founded many Bible Colleges, Christian liberal arts colleges and 
theological seminaries that were committed to the fundamentals of the faith. 

The results of the devastating influence of theological liberalism could 
be seen by a visit to a library. I can remember the experience that I had as a 
student at Free Will Baptist Bible College from 1948-1952. I noticed that most 
of the scholarly, conservative theological works had been written in the pre­
vious century. That has changed, however. I will illustrate in two areas. More 
good academic works defending biblical inerrancy and the biblical view of 
creation have been produced since 1970 than had been produced in the his­
tory of the world before 1970. Many good, sound theological schools now 
exist that a ministerial student can attend for his ministerial training. 

It seemed that just as the Christian theological world was about ready to 
be able to deal effectively with secular modernism and theological liberalism, 
the battle strategy of the enemy changed. As we look back now we know that 
thi~ change J:>egan to ~e seen on the grass roots level about 196o. A paradigm 
shift was ~ place m the secular world. Modernism was being replaced by 
postmoderrusm. By 1990 postmodernism had become the major secular 
force that shapes our culture. Modernism is not absent from our culture but it 
is no longer reigning as king in secular thought and life. ' 
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ln dealing with postmodernism, we have to learn to present Christian 
th to those who do not believe that truth exists. We have t? up~old the Jaw 

~non-contradiction convincingly to those who do not ~eheve It. 'W_e. must 
be convincing about sin, guilt, judgment, hell, the necess1ty and proVIsion of 
atonement through Christ if people are t~ be saved. We mu~t persuade even 
thOse who reject the concept that there IS moral truth that Judges people to 
be guilty and condemned. We must convi~~ingly s~o~ these sam~ people 
that this atonement is applied on the condition of faith m J~sus Chn~t alone 
and that this is the only way that this atonement can and will be appli.ed. We 
must aJso uphold the ideals of beauty and excellence to those w~o think that 
beauty exists only in the eye of the beho~der. We must. not capitulate to the 
idea that one thing is as good as another m the area of Ideal.s. We must ~on­
vincingly present the fact that Christi~ty is a ratio~ly consistent wor~dVl~W 
and that it is the only rationally consistent worldvie~. We must do this With 
those who reject the possibility of a rational worldVlew. We must stand for 
the truth with conviction and compassion and in a respectful manner. 

The era from 1960-1990 was a transition in the secular culture from 
modernism to postmodernism. It was a time <;>f coru:usion. It took us a 
while to come to grips with the fact that a paradigm shift had ~en place. 
As we enter the twenty-first century, it is clear that we have a different set 
of problems than was the case when we entered the twentieth century. 

Were it not for the fact that Jesus Christ has told us, "I will build my church" 
(Matthew 16:18), we might be in despair. But we are on the winning team 
When we stand for God's truth, we have God the Father, God the Son, God the 
Holy Spirit, the Word of God and the fact that we ar~ speaking to those who 
are in the image of God on our side. For those who ~n. hear the bad ~e"':'s ~~ 
human beings are under the wrath of God for therr sms CRorfla!ls 1.18, 3.23, 
6:23; Revelation 21:8), we have the good news that Jes~ C!IDst has made 
atonement for their sins (Romans 3:25-26), and that salvation IS offered freely 
to everyone on the condition of faith (John 3: 16, 18, 36; Acts 16:31 ; Romans 
3:28; Ephesians 2:8-9). We have th~ message of G?<~'s .truth to minister to~ 
pie's emptiness, their lostness, their hurts and therrp~n .. 

We are living in times when Free Will Baptist distinctiVes shoul~ be ta~t 
and emphasized The last half of the twentieth century has bee':l a time d~ 
which Calvinism has strengthened its hand in the conservatiVe theol<>?Ical 
world. 1 believe that the time has come for Classical Anninianism to make Itself 
known and its influence felt in the theological world. We must let people know 
that "free-will theism" (with its God who is less than omniscient) is a departure 
from Classical Anninianism and Scripture. We must present well-researche? 
and well-thought out works that present the Classical Arminian .'?ew of co~­
tionaJ election unlimited atonement, resistible grace and conditional secunty. 
We must al~ renew our commitment to our doctrine of the church and 
encourage scholarship that affirms it and helps us better unders~d it 

It is our hope and our prayer that God has. called In_tegnty: A Journal 
of Christian Thought into existence for such a time as ~s. We encourage 
you to read, evaluate and think critically about the articles. Let us know 
what your observations are. Pray for us. 

Commission for Theological Integrity 
Leroy Forlines, Chairman 
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Commission for Theological Integrity 
200 I Proposed Budget 

Income 
Together Way Plan 
Miscellaneous Gifts 
Interest on Bank Account 

Total Income 

Expenses 
Bookkeeper 
Office Supplies 
Annual Meeting 
Seminars 

Total Expenses 

$ 2,500.00 
240.00 
60.00 

$ 2,800.00 

$ 200.00 
75.00 

1,125.00 
I ,400.00 

$ 2,800.00 

Commission for Theological Integrity 
January - December 31, 1999 

Financial Report 

Bank Balance - January 1 , 1999 
Income 

Total Income 

Expenses 

Total Expenses 

Gifts/The Together Way/Rest of the Family Offering 
Alabama $ 30.09 
Arizona 0.71 
Arkansas 503.82 
California 36.67 
Canada 0.47 
Florida 38.45 
Georgia 79.62 
Illinois 87.92 
Indiana 212.08 
Iowa 7.83 
Kansas 0.95 
Kentucky 1 7.31 
Louisiana 0.11 
Maryland 26.51 
Michigan 94.95 
Mississippi 17.01 
Missouri 410.7 6 
New Mexico 1 .34 
North Carolina 73.69 
Ohio 97.19 
Oklahoma 346.17 
South Carolina 1.66 
Tennessee 2 4 9.20 
Texas 41.82 
Virginia 0.21 
Washington 0.13 
West Virginia 21 0.44 

Interest on Bank Account 
"Integrity-A Journal of Christian Thought" Gifts 
Hillsdale Symposium Registration/Papers 
Symposium Papers Purchased 

Bookkeeping 
Digest of Reports 
Convention Seminar 
Hillsdale Symposium 
Journal Planning Meeting 
Miscellaneous Office 

$2)42.25 

$2,587.11 
18.50 

1,11 0.83 
305.00 
182.50 

$4,203.94 

$ 200.00 
114.64 
586.49 

2,559.47 
1,605.52 

18.06 
$5,084.18 

Bank Balance - December 31, 1999 $1,862.01 
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Media Commission 
To advance the cause of Chris~ the Media Commission seiVes churches and 

denominational agencies by providing access to and assistance with profession­
al quality media tools for communication, evangelization and edification 

Your Media Commission prayerfully adopted this purpose statement in 
December 1998. Hours of researching past documents, interviewing denom­
inational leaders and prayerful consideration of direction were poured into 
that statement. The Commission feels this is an honorable and worthy rep­
resentation of the goals our denomination would have us seek to fulfi11. 

Shortly after the Commission adopted this statement of pUipOse, a concept 
was created to help the local church in its outreach ministry. The Church Video 
Brochure is an idea that could immediately introduce who Free Will Baptists are 
and improve the possible preconceived images of a guest in our churches. 

At that point funding was the major setback. Thanks to the National 
Home Missions Department, we were able to produce the core video and at 
the National Convention in Atlanta began taping pastors' footage for this proj­
ect. To date, more than 40 videos have been produced! To God be the glory! 

Additionally, inquiries about other services have increased dramatically 
over the last year. Because all of the Commission members seiVe as volun­
teers, and as yet we have no paid staff, we again find ourselves at a crossroad. 

In order to adequately and effectively assist our churches, associa­
tions and agencies, we feel it is time to hire a staff. We feel that a small 
staff is both prudent and productive. 

Currently, the Media Commission receives one half of one percent 
(.So/o) of the undesignated gifts that reach the National Offices. During the 
ten-year period from 1989-98, the average Together Way funds have been 
$837.47 annually. While this is helpful, we are grossly mistaken if we feel 
that media can be helpful with such few resources. 

The Media Commission feels we can be self-supporting in a period of 
three years. In other words, the Media Commission would begin to pro­
duce and sell our own products; both within our denomination and with· 
out, just as Randall House does. 

In order to accomplish this, we are beginning a campaign to Raise 
The Standard of Free Will Baptists everywhere! We can be proud of who 
we are, where we have come from and where we are going! Please con· 
sider ways to help us further the cause of Christ and raise the standard and 
banner of Free Will Baptists through our various media resources. 

Because of Christ, 

Steve Faison, Chairman (GA) 
Doug Kite, Secretary/Treasurer (NC) 
Bil1 Gardner (TN) 
Ron Hunter (FL) 
Mike Jones (SC) 
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Media Commission 
1999 Financial Report 

Income 
Together Way 

Alabama 
Arkansas 
Arizona 
California 
Florida 
Georgia 
illinois 
Indiana 
Iowa 
Kansas 
Kentucky 
Louisiana 
Maryland 
Michigan 
Missouri 
Mississippi 
North Carolina 
New Mexico 
Ohio 
Oklahoma 
South Carolina 
Tennessee 
Texas 
Virginia 
West Virginia 
Canada 

Total Together Way 
Church Video 

$ 29.42 
503.50 

.59 
36.67 
38.32 
57.83 
66.96 

7.59 
7.83 

.95 
17.19 

.11 
26.51 
94.41 

408.67 
17.01 
71.67 

1.25 
96.31 

345.00 
.90 

212.28 
41 .83 

.17 
210.35 

.44 

Other Donations/Projects 
Interest 

Total Income 

Expenditures 
Church Video Project 
Convention Expenses 
Digest of Reports 
Postage 
Printing 
Production 
Promotion 
Telephone 
Commission Expenses 

Total Expenditures 
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$ 2,293.76 
10,125.00 

809.05 
136.74 

$ 13,364.55 

$ 5,078.37 
910.41 

76.43 
20.47 

325.00 
195.00 
395.00 
886.32 

32.10 
$ 7,919.10 



Media Commission 
Proposed 2001 Budget 

Salaries 
Director 
Graphic Artist (Part Time) 
Office Manager 

Auto Lease or Purchase/Insurance 
Travel 
Copier Lease 
Postage 
Self Promotion 
Rent 
Telephone 
Resource MateriaVSubscriptions 
Seminars 
Office Supplies 
Commission Member Travel 
National Expense 
Misc. 

Total 

Music Commission 

112,000 

6,000 
15,000 
1,800 
7,000 

31,000 
6,000 
6,000 
1,000 
2,000 
3,000 
4,000 
3,000 
2,200 

$200,000 

The Free Will Baptist Music Commission is responsible for helping to meet the music 
and worship needs of our denominational churches around the globe. This involves the train­
ing of musicians, holding music workshops, leading worship and providing music publica· 
tions for our churches. 

The Music Commission continues to sponsor an annual Music Workshop at the 
national convention (Wednesday at 1 :30 pm). Participants at this workshop receive 
more than $200 in free m usic and recordings. This is the I Oth year we have sponsored 
a booth and sold music specifically targeted to the needs of our local churches. 

We are pleased to announce the creation of a partnership between the Free Will 
Baptist Music Commission and Candela Music Press, a division of the Lorenz 
Publishing Company, Dayton, OH. At our annual meeting in August 1999, the Music 
Commission met with Reiff Lorenz of The Lorenz Corporation for the purpose of inves· 
tigating possibilities of joint publishing efforts between the two groups. After consider­
able discussion, it was agreed that the Free Will Baptist Music Commission would 
endorse Candela Music as the official music publisher for our denomination. As such, 
the Music Commission has complete creative and artistic control over anything pub­
lished by Candela Music Press for our denomination. Our first publication was Worthy 
of Praise. We have plans to publish two mini-musicals this year: "Thanksgiving Praise" 
(a relatively simple SATB work for orchestra and choir) and "I Will Be the One," a com· 
mitrnent to world missions and evangelism 

We praise God for what He is doing. Please continue to pray for our ministry and 
support our labors by making available to your congregation our publications and train· 
ing workshops. 

Sincerely, 

Randy Sawyer 
Vernon Whaley 
Bill Gardner 

Scott Bullman 
Doug Little 
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Music Commission 

Financial Statement 

January - December 1999 

Beginning Balance $4,913.09 

Income 
Co-op 
Family Ministry Offering 
Music Sales 
Reimbursement Income 

States and Churches 
Alabama 
Mississippi 
South Carolina 
Texas 

28.60 
10.00 

.73 
44.40 

Fellowship Church, TN 197.19 
Roaring Creek Church, NC 6.81 

$1,863.49 
50.59 

17,292.84 
150.00 

287.73 
15,000.00 Loan F.W.B. Foundation 

Total Income $39,557.74 

Expenses 
National Convention 
Music Commission Meeting 
National Building Expense 
Music Project 98 
Music Project 99 

Loan Payment 
Office Expense 

Total Expenses 

Ending Balance 

2,500.00 
18,445.33 

1,950.33 
1,621.87 
1,046.23 

20,945.33 
8,240.73 

324.80 
(34, 129.29) 

$ 5,428.45 

Proposed Budget for 2001 

Income 
Co-op S 2,000.00 
Family MinistJy Offering 25.00 
Music Soles 2,000.00 
Stoles ond Olurches 350.00 
Tracks ond CD soles 27,000.00 
loon 15.000.00 

Expenses 
Notional Convention 
Purchase of Music 
Boord Meetings 
Office Expense 
Loon Payment 
Notional Oloir Project 

Total lncome $46,375.00 Total Expenses 
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s 1,000.00 
2,725.00 
1,500.00 

650.00 
15,500.00 
25,000.00 

$46,375.00 



b 

2000 Historical Commission Report 
The Corrunission's current major project is to publish a Free Will Baptist his­

torical guidebook Dr. Darrell Holley will coordinate the multi-year project The 
guidebook will indude places of historical interes~ resources and other data 

One of the Commission's on-going projects is to heJp furnish a "histo­
ry" room on the new campus at Free WiJJ Baptist BibJe CoUege. We are 
coordinating that effort with the FWBBC librarian. 

We are aJso preparing guidelines for grants by individuals who are 
doing historical research regarding Free WiH Baptists. The guidelines will 
be in pJace by the 2001 national convention. 

We encourage associational derks, both state and clistric~ to send copies 
of minutes to the Historical Collection at Free Will Baptist BibJe College. 

Free Will Baptist Historical Commission 
Fmancial Report, 1999 

Ba lance on hand Dece m ber 3 1 
1 

1998 $181615.65 

Deposits for 1999: 
Together Way (Designated and Undesignoted) $2, 157.58* 
Interest (First American Notional Bonk) 598.05 
Arkansas State Association (toward repaying loon) 1 

1 
1 00.00 

Total $ 3,855.63 
*checks deposited were for October 1998 through September 1999 

Expe nditu res for 1999: 
Check 1 029: Enterprise Travel (Marberry travel) 
Check 1 030: Thomas Marberry (travel) 
Check 1 031 : Paul Kennedy (travel) 
Check 1032: Executive Office (Digest Fee) 

Total 

Balance in bank December 31 
1 

1999 

2001 Budget 
Income 

Gifts (The Together Way) 
Interest (First American Bank) 
Loan Repayment (Arkansas State Assoc.) 
Total 

Expenses 
Books, materials, labor for 

Historical Commission 
Historical Guidebook Project 
Research Grant 
Travel 
Executive Office (Digest Fee) 
Total 
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206.50 
154.33 
655.31 

38.21 

$2,000.00 
800.00 

2,000.00 
$4,800.00 

$2,000.00 
500.00 

1,000.00 
1,250.00 

50.00 
$4,800.00 

$ 11054.35 

$21,416.93 

Minutes 

of the 

Sixty-Fifth Annual Session 

of the 

Women Nationally Active 
for Christ 

Convention 
of the 

National Association 
of 

Free Will Baptists 

when convened in 

Anaheim, California 
July 17-18, 2000 
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WNAC 
P. 0. Box 5002 

Antioch, TN 37011-5002 

Executive Committee 

President 
Debe Taylor 

I 03 Chisholm Trail 
Hot Springs, AR 7I9I3 
Phone: SOI-760-4824 

e-mail: taylorgolf@juno.com 

Vice President 
Joanne King 

426 Woodlawn Extension 
Cramerton, NC 28032 
Phone: 704-827-9772 

Secretary 
Diana Bryant 

2156 54th Avenue 
Vero Beach,FL 32966 
Phone: 56I-567-1956 

e-mail: 
dbryant4@compuserve.com 

Members at Large 

Yvonne Brown 
4881 East Normal 
Fresno, CA 93703 

Phone: 559-456-2879 
e-mail: 

yvonnebrown2000@cs.com 

Debbie Burden 
P. 0. Box 183 

Locust Grove, OK 7 4352 
Phone: 918-479-2584 

e-mail: lgfwb@sstelco.com 

Dawn Sweeney 
I 00 1 Lisa Drive 

Church Hill, TN 37642 
Phone: 423-357-5420 

e-mail: dswee3243 7 @aol. com 

Executive Secretary-Treasurer 
Marjorie Workman 

1408 Revenna Court North 
Antioch, TN 370 I3 

Phone: 6IS-366-05 73 
e-mail: Marjorie@nafwb.org 

Theme: Opportunities: A Door Ajar 
Scripture: Revelation 3:8 

Hymn: ''Anywhere With Jesus" 
Music Coordinator: Sue Myers 

Pianist: Donna VanHorn 
Organist: Sue Huntley 

Proceedings 
WNAC Seminars 

Monday, July 17, 2000 

Jo~nna Fe.lts spoke at the WNAC seminar held at the Hilton 
~nahe1m, Cal1fornia Pavilion on Monday afternoon at 1 :30. 126 

omen attended as she spoke about her experience with cancer. 
She offered encouragement and instruction for dealing with this 

A- 224 

common and overwhelming disease. Dawn Sweeney presided. 
Marjorie Workman presided at the 3:00 WNAC Leaders 

Meeting. 67 state, district, and local officers met to hear Judy 
Posner, Deborah Honeycutt, and Rhonda Hodges share ideas and 
"how to's" for planning women's retreats. 

Tuesday Morning Business Session 
July 18, 2000 

President Debe Taylor welcomed women to the 65th Annual 
Session of the Women Nationally Active for Christ. Sue Myers led the 
congregation in singing "Count Your Blessings," '~esus Christ Our 
Lord," and "He is Lord." She then presented a solo, '~ust Be There." 

Debbie Burden introduced missionary Elaine Holland for the morn­
ing devotion. Elaine spoke about "Doors of Opportunity" and noted 
that when we are given open doors of opportunity to share Christ we 
have the choice to close the door, peek in, or boldly go through. She 
shared some ways that the women in Bouna are witnessing in their area. 

California President Melba Hibbard welcomed the women to 
California. She asked the California Executive Committee to stand, and 
thanked all the women of California for their hard work. 

CoLaborer Editor Rhonda McReynolds presented the Creative 

Arts awards. They are: 

Poetry 
1st Place 
2nd Place 
3rd Place 
4th Place 

Articles 
1st Place 
2nd Place 
3rd Place 
4th Place 

Programs 
1st Place 
2nd Place 
3rd Place 
4th Place 

Clutter 
Reaching 
Missionary Traveling Song 
Sunday Ahernoon Prayer 

The Chef 
Ready Set Go 
Tropical Depression 
Serena Grace 

Five Nobodies 
Getting Out Those Tough Stains 
Woman Evangelist 
Reflections of God's Grace 

Freeda Lucas 
Beulah Morlan 
V.G. Bucchold 
Ruth Bivens 

Alice Grant 
Cheryl Akers 
Carla Fannin 
Karen Collier 

Cheryl Akers 
Ruth Bivens 
Joan Warren 
Pam Hackett 

Cromona, KY 
Monett, MO 
Osteen, FL 
Puerto Rico 

Lancaster, OH 
Jacksonville, FL 
Puerto Rico 
Fair Grove, MO 

Jacksonville, FL 
Puerto Rico 
Oilton, OK 
Boiling Springs, SC 

Plays 
1st Place A Friend Uke No Other Sara Kilgore limestone, TN 
2nd Place Gossip Zone Lori Marshall Glendale, A1 
3rd Place Salvation to the World Lori Marshall Glendale, A1 
4th Place Naomi's God Rachel Sekulich Brunswick, GA 

Joanne King led in prayer to open the business session. She 
gave the Credentials Committee report. MSC to receive the report 

and seat the delegates. 
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Marjorie Workman gave the Executive Secretary's report Sh 
also introduced the new WNAC full-color brochure. MSC to re.ceiv e 
her report. e 

MSC to. accept the Resolutions Committee report given by Laurie 
Home, chatrman, and to vote on it item by item. 

MSC to adopt item 1 . 
MSC to adopt item 2. 
0SC to ~dopt item 3. (Note that the adoption of this item 

requtred that 1t be tabled until next year.) 
MSC to adopt the Appreciation Committee Report given by 

Mary Neal. 
MSC to adopt the report of the Registration Committee given by 

Delois Loveless. 
Business session was adjourned. 

WNAC Missionary Service 
Tuesday, July 18, 11 :00 a.m. 

Sue Myers led the congregational singing, and the Sunrise Quartet 
from the First FWB Church in Fresno, CA brought the special music. 
Annette Aycock, Missionary to Brazil, brought the morning message. 
S~e .relat~d a series of events that happened to her on the way to the 
m1ss1on f1eld and in her first few months there. She related these events 
to the question, "What is your level of commitment to missions?" She 
challenged everyone with the statement, "Nothing is ever good enough 
until we are all going." 

The annual WNAC Fellowship Luncheon followed the service and 
was held in the Pacific A Room of the Hilton Anaheim. Pat Clary spoke 
and challenged the men and women present to consider the life of Esther 
and to be surrendered and willing to let God do big things in their lives. 

Committee Re·ports 
Credentials Committee Report 

.we the Credentials .committee submit the following report: The fol­
lowing 19 state conventions have submitted reports and paid dues: Ala­
~m~, Arkan~a~, <:=ali!ornia, Florida, Georgia, Illinois, Indiana, Kentucky, 
M1ch1gan, ~ISSISs1pp1, Missouri, North Carolina, Ohio, Oklahoma, 
So~th Carol1na, Tennessee, Texas, Virginia, and West Virginia. The fol­
lowtng ~ree distri.cts wi!h no state conventions have submitted reports 
and pa1d dues: Ftrst ~zona,. K~nsas, and New Mexico. The following 
three local groups wtth no dtstnct or state conventions have submitted 
reports and paid dues: Kennewick, Washington; St Croix, Virgin Islands; 
Buhl, Idaho. In addition, there were 44 delegates from local groups who 
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ore in good standing with their representing higher body (district or state) 

and have paid a representation fee of $5 each. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Joanne King, Chairman, NC 
Phyllis York, KY 
Melba Hibbard, CA 
Pam Flannagin, FL 

Resolutions Committee Report 
1 . We recommend that WNAC decorate and furnish the Mission 

House to be built by the Foreign Missions and Master's Men 
Departments on the campus of Free Will Baptist Bible College. 

2. We recommend that we grant up to three scholarships of 
$1 000 each from the Cleo Pursell Foreign Student Scholarship Fund 
whenever the Foreign Missions Department makes the request. 

3. Whereas our constitution does not specify the number of years 
a WNAC Executive Committee member may serve: 

Be it resolved that: 
A member of the WNAC Executive Committee may: 
Serve a total of four terms (eight years} 
Be re-elected after a period of one term (two years} 
(WNAC Executive Committee members' terms of service will 

begin at the adoption of this resolution.) 
We further recommend that this resolution be tabled until 2001 . 
(Resolution Number 3 submitted by the 2000 Nominating Committee.} 

Respectfully submitted: 

Laurie Home, Chairman, NC 
Judy Puckett, OK 
Becky Gwartney, MO 
Dianne Worthington, Ml 
Sandy Mounts, OH 

Appreciation Committee Report 
We the Appreciation Committee submit the following recommen­

dations: 
We wish to express our sincere thanks to the following people 

whose efforts will make this year's convention and sessions a success: 

1. The Executive Committee 
2. The WNAC staff: Marjorie Workman, Yvonne Hampton, 

Rhonda McReynolds, and Martha Harris 
3. Our hostesses, the California Women Active for Christ, 
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and f~r their generous hospitality. We appreciate the fel­
lowship luncheon and the centerpieces. 

4. The musicians. 

5. Our speake~: Joanna Felts for the seminar, Elaine Holland 
for the devotion, Annette Aycock, our Missionary Speaker. 
and Pat Clary for speaking at the WNAC Fellowshi ' 
Luncheon. p 

Respectfully submitted, 

Mary Neal, C hairman, IN 
Tina Williams, AL 
Brenda Housley, AR 
Suzanne Lewis, IL 
Judy Posner, TX 

Registration CommiHee Report 

We your Registration Committee submit the following partial report· 
Number of Persons Registered: · 

WNAC Na~onal Officers (Standing Delegates) .......... 6 
State Pres1dents (Standing Delegates) ............... 13 
State Field Workers (Standing Delegates) ............. 2 
State Delegates (Elected by State, District or local) ...... 85 
local WNAC Delegates pa~ng representation fee of $5 44 
TOTAl DElEGATES ......................... : : l SO 
Visitors ................................... 394 
Home and Foreign Missionaries ................... 27 

Grand Total Registered .......................... 571 
Respectfully submitted, 

Delois Loveless, Chairman, TN 
Barbara Samms, VN 

Synopsis of Minutes of 
WNAC Executive CommiHee 

Sunday, July 16, 2000 

. The Executive Committee of Women Nationally Active for Christ met 
1n the Manhattan Room of the Hilton Anaheim on Sunday, July 16 
2~00. T~e committee members present were: President Debe Taylo:, 
V1ce ~res1dent Joanne King, Secretary Diana Bryant, Members at Large 
Debbie Burden, Dawn Sweeney, and Yvonne Brown and Executive 

Y
Secretary Ma~orie Workman. Also present was Admini~rative Assistant 

vonne Hampton. 

After the meal, Yvonne Hampton brought the devotion based 
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on the Miracles in the Gospel of John, pointing out that God takes 
the ordinary and does extraordinary things with them. 

Marjorie presented the new WNAC brochure to the board, gave 
her report and reviewed the agenda for the week. There was dis­
cussion concerning dues and ideas for supporting the work. 

MSC that we present the following resolutions to the Resolutions 
Committee and recommend that it be presented to the body: 

We recommend that WNAC decorate and furnish the Missions 
House to be built by the Foreign Missions and Master's Men 
Departments on the campus of Free Will Baptist Bible College. 

We recommend that we grant up to three scholarships of 
$1 000 each from the Cleo Pursell Foreign Student Scholarship 
Fund whenever Foreign Missions makes the request. 

The June financial reports were examined. 
MSC to use the WNAC logo on the brochure as our permanent logo. 
We decided on the amount of the honorariums for the lunch-

eon and seminar speakers. We agreed to decide on seminar speak­
er honorariums on a yearly basis. We discussed speakers for the 
2001 National Convention in Detroit. 

Tuesday and Wednesday, December 7-8, 1999 

The Executive Committee met at the Regal Maxwell House Hotel 
in Nashville, TN at 3:30 p.m. All members of the Committee were 
present except Dawn Sweeney. The Western Retreat was discussed. 

The meeting re-convened at the WNAC conference room on 
Wednesday with all Executive Committee members present: Ma~orie 
Workman, Debe Taylor, Joanne King, Diana Bryant, Debbie Burden, 
Dawn Sweeney, and Yvonne Brown. Joanne King gave a devotion on 
our theme for the coming year, "Sharing Hope and Healing." She 
used John 11, "I am the Resurrection and the Life." In this passage 
she noted the unbearable situation of the family, the unchanging love 
of the Savior, and the unparalleled power of God. We can depend 
on God's power to help us share hope and healing. 

Marjorie Workman gave her report. 
The committee approved CoLaborer editor Rhonda McReynolds 

and Ma~orie Workman to attend the EPA Convention in May, 2000. 
The committee endorsed participation in "Operation Saturation" in 

cooperation with Home Missions and Master's Men in September of 

2000. 
The Executive Secretary was authorized and encouraged to accept 

invitations from cross cultural or foreign works as funds are available. 
.The committee discussed the idea of regional workshops. A 
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pilot leadership workshop will be pursued. 
The 2001 budgets was approved. 

The Executive Secretary was authorized to pay, at her dis f 
employee severence pay. ere ron, 

Honorariums were set for convention speakers 
Convention and retreat budgets were approved 

"N TheHfo~lowing themes were adopted under the g~neral theme of 
ew onzons:" 

2001 Sharing Hope and Healing Colossians 1 :27 
2002 For Such a Time as This Esther 4: 14 
2003 Lifting Up Our Eyes Psalm 121:1 
2004 Great Expectations Psalm 62·5 
2005 Let Us Pursue Hosea 6 :3 

Plans were made for the 2000 convention in Anaheim Cal·~ . 
The theme. will be ."Sharing Hope and Healing," (Colos;ians 'f~~}· 
Speakers wrll be Elarne Holland, Annette Aycock and Pat Clary. . 

Plans were made for the WNAC Ridgecrest retreat September 
14-16, 2000. The.theme will be "Keys for Growth," (I( Peter 3: 18) 
Guest speakers wrll be Gail Smith, Ft. Lauderdale Fl .d d 
Rebecca Pugh, Millington, Tennessee. , on a an 
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Report of Women Nationally Active for Christ 

to the National Association of Free Will Baptists 
in the Digest of Reports, July 2000 

By Marjorie Workman, Executive Secretary-Treasurer 

Rejoicing is always better than lamenting. Psalm 86:12, ul will praise 
thee, 0 Lord my God, with all my heart: and I will glorify thy name for ever­
more." We have some reasons to rejoice. 
We rejoice that in 1999: 

• Giving through WNAC to Home Missions was up. 
• Giving to the Cleo Pursell Foreign Student Scholarship Fund was up. 
• You gave $49,271 in gifts to the Missionary Provision Closet. 
• Forty-three inquiries came for new or reorganizing groups. Another 

sixteen have come since the beginning of the new millennium. 
• 632 local groups reported 6,499 dues paying members. 
• The number of inquiries for materials for Actionette groups grew. We 

want our young girls and teens prepared and trained for missions 
outreach. We will have materials ready for these young groups for 
the year 2001. Thanks to Dr. Mary Ruth Wisehart, retired Executive 
Secretary-Treasurer of WNAC, for coordinating these materials. 

• The Lord sent Rhonda McReynolds as the new CoLaborer magazine 
editor. The best way to encourage her is to pray for her and sub­
scribe to the magazine. Currently 9,484 of you do subscribe. 

Check out our new full color brochure for attracting women to part­
ner with WNAC for a global outreach. The design is especially targeted to 
appeal to the younger woman. 

Though I would rather rejoice, there are some things to lament We lament 
• That many women in their twenties and thirties are not a part of WNAC. 
• That there are many women who do not subscribe to the CoLaborer 

magazine, the only Free Will Baptist magazine for women. 
• The loss of Suzanne Franks who served faithfully as editor of CoLaborer 

magazine for the past five years. We wish her well in her ministry at 
Randall House Publications. 

• That all avenues of income to support the WNAC office are down. 
• That many women who remain active in local ministry do not see 

the benefit of paying their national dues. 
But as Paul said to the Corinthian believers, I can also say, "I rejoice 

therefore that I have confidence in you in all things" (II Corinthians 7: 16). 
I am confident that making you aware of these things will give you reasons 
to rejoice and, at the same time, challenge you to take a more active role 
in sharing the responsibilities of keeping WNAC alive and well. 
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WW.LIAM t4. DENNEY, CPA 
Vl'flfY SAUCE WALLACE. CPA 

Hli\'TOi\'. WARREi\'. 
D ENNEY & WALLACE 

CEAT1FlEO I'IJ8UC ACCOUNTANTS 
'THE V(XUNTEER IIUlG 

SUITE 100 
319 PLUS PARK BI.VO 

NASHVILLE. TN 3n 11 -•oos 
(115) 36e·SIOO 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Executive Committee of the 
women Nationally Active for Christ 

"'...-...n 
AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF 

CEAIIFIEO PU8LIC ACCOUNTANTS 
TENNESSEE SOCIETY OF 

CERTIFIED P\JBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

We have audited the accompanying statements of financial position of the 
Women Nationally Active for Christ (an auxiliary of the National Association 
of Free Will Baptists) (a nonprofit organization) as of December 31, 1999 and 
1998, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the years 
then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the 
Organization's management. our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in a ccordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatements. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by ~gement, as well as evaluating the overall 
financial statements presentation. We believe that our audits provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present 
fairly, in a~l material respects, the financial position of the Women 
Nationally Act ive for Christ as of December 31, 1999 and 1998 and the changes 
in its net assets and its cash flows f or the years then ended in conformity 
with generally accepted accounting principles. 

February 11, 2000 
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(An Auxiliary 
WQMEN NATIONAJ·' ·X AC]'IVB FOR CHRIST 

of the National AsSOciation o f Free 

cash 
Certificate o f deposit 
Accounts receivable - Note 1 
Inventory - Note 1 

ASSETS 

Notes receivable, net of allowance f or 
doubtful a ccounts o f $1,871 ($1,871 in 1998) 

Accrued interest receivable 
Propertr and equipment at cost, less 
accumu ated depreciation of $29 153 
($26,075 in 1998) - Notes 1 & 2 , 

Capital i zed lease _ Note 3 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Accounts payable and accrued 
Deferred revenue _ Note 9 

Total liabilities 

Commitments - Notes 5 & 7 

Net assets 
unrestricted 
Temporarily restricted 
Permanently restricted 

expenses 

Total liabilities and net assets 

See a ccountants• report and accompapying 
notes t o the financial statements . 

-2-
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1~~9 
$166,109 

6,914 
12,240 

10,091 
2,105 

14 ,093 
51648 

$2171200 

$ 19,854 
371731 

~7.~!!5 

18,713 
128 ,269 
12,633 

159,615 

S2p I 200 

uu 
$105, Ji; 

70. ooo 
8, on 
9, 600 

10,767 
1, 882 

13,457 
6.1Jt 

sns~2ll 

$ 31,9U 
38 I 41§ 

7Q,Ji2 

28.722 
114 , 433 

11,716 
154,871 
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WOMEN NA'[ION!IJ,X AC'UVB POR CHBISI 
(AD Auxiliary of the National A§sociation of Free Will saptists) 

Statements of A&tivities 
For the Years §nded oecember 31, 1299 and 1998 

1999 

wrestricted 

1998 

Revenue and other support : 
$ 66 , 573 $ 71,990 

oues and fees 
Designated contributions 
Magazine and literature sales 
convention and retreat income 
Gifts and offerings 
Interest *'ncome 
Net assets released from restrictions : 

satisfaction of program restrictions 

Total revenue and other support 

Expenses: 
Salaries and wages 
Payroll taxes and employee benefits 
Coat of magazine and literature printing 
Travel and promotion 
Conventions and retreats 
Otfice expense 
Postage 
Rent expense 
Professional fees 
Administrative expense 
Depreciation 
Amortization 
Bad debt expense 
Insurance expense 
Dues and subscriptions 
Special projects 
Continuing education 
Designated contributions 
Miscellaneous 

Increase (decrease) in unrestricted net assets 

See accountant•' report •pd accompanying 
notes to the fipancial ttatements, 
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299,520 
85 , 962 
14,273 
62,273 
2,479 

657 

~H , 7~7 

98,866 
28,798 
29,758 

5,828 
23,406 
12,161 

ot , 597 
2-t,600 

3,988 
305 

3,078 
491 

708 
160 
898 

2,643 
299,147 

a,n4 
541,746 

( 12. QQ2) 

327 , 690 
81 , 615 
19, 498 
64 , 97l 
1,558 

13,534 

~§Q,§~§ 

99,454 
23,-t53 
ot3,017 

6,5-t5 
27,124 

9 , 9-t5 
3,281 

2-t,600 
3 , 730 

203 
2 , 825 

ot91 
1 , 239 

6-t 
251 

5 ,669 
1 , 760 

328,087 
§,217 

5§9,755 

( §,!!22) 



WQMEN NATIONALLY ACirvB FOR CHRIST 
(An Auxiliary of the National AsSOciation of Free - -- ____ Will Baptist§) 

Statements of Activities 
For the Years 8nded Pecember 31. 1999 and 1998 

(Continued) 

Temporarily restricted 
Gifts and offerings 
Interest income 
Net assets released from restrictions: 

Satisfaction of program restrictions 

Increase (decrease) in temporarily restricted net assets 

Permanently restricted 
Gifts and offerings 

Increase in permanently restricted net assets 

Total increase (decrease) in net assets 

Net assets - beginning of year 

Net assets - end of year 

See accountants' report and accompanying 
notes to the financial statements . 

-4-

A - 236 

l:i!22 

$ 8,371 
6,122 

( 657) 

13 f 836 

217 

217 

1 f 741 

154' 871 

U~2 1 615 

uu -
$ 13,792 

4,628 

( l). sw 
4.au 

1. 101 

1. 1 01 

( 2. 612) 

157' 483 

u~~ • •'~ 

WOMEN NAtiONALLY ACTIVE FOR CHRIST 
(An Auxiliary of the National A§sociation of Free Will Baptists) 

Statements of Cash Flows 
For the Years Ended Qecember 31. 1929 and 1998 

1922 1928 

~rating activities 
Increase (decrease) in net assets ($ 2, 612) 

Adjustment to reconcile increase (decrease) in 
net assets to net cash provided (used) by 
operating activities: 

Depreciation 
Amortization 
Bad debts 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 
(Increase) decrease in inventory 
(Increase) decrease in accrued interest receivable 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

Inve§ting activities 
Purchase of equipment 
Collection of loans receivable 
New loan made 
Redemption of certificate of deposit 

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of years 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of years 

See accountants' report and accompanying 
notes to the financial statements . 
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Note 1. - Qrganization and summary of 
- -- significant aCcounting DOlicit;~ 

The Women Nationally Active for Ch . 
and an auxiliary of the N rist 1S a nonprofit o 
located in Antioch Tenn ational Association of Free Will a.p~anizattaa 
publish the Free will Bape::ete ., The Purpose of the Organizatio~•:•· ~. 
di b s s magazine for wome • to 

s urse funds for missionaries and id n , to receive &nd 
Baptis~ women. The Organization's prov e other services to Free W 
contributions , dues and fees d support comes primarily from -'--ill 

' an magazine sales. ~r 

The Organization is 
501. (c) (3) of the Internal Rexempt from federal income tax under secti­
N ti evenue Code unde -a onal Association of Free Will B i r a group exemption of the 
Organization has been determined b a:~ sta, Inc . In addition, the 
be a •private foundation• within t~e e Internal Revenue Service not to 
Revenue Code. There was no unrelated~an;"g of 509(a) of the Inte~l 

us ness income for 1.999 and Uta . 
The following significant accountin 

in the preparation of th fi g policies have been follo~ e nancial statements : 

Basis of accounting 

The Organization prepares its fin 
accrual basis of accounting hi h i ancial statements using the 

' w c nvolves th accepted accounting principles ; conse e application of generally 
recognized when earned a d quently, revenues and gains are 
incurred. , n expenses and losses are recognized when 

Basis of presentation 

Financial statements presentati 
the Financial Accounting Stand ds on follows the recommendations of 
Accounting Standards (SPAS) N ar Board in ita Statements of Financial 
Profit Organizations . UDder ~~~1.~~ F:nancial Stateme~s of Not-for­
to report information regarding "t ! · 17• the Organization is required 
according to three classes of n t1 s 1nancial position and activitiea 
t e assets· unre t i emporarily restricted net ' s r cted net assets assets and ' assets. ' permanently restricted net 

Use of estimates 

The preparation of financial s . 
generally accepted accounti tatements 1n conformity with 
that affect the financial ~g principles includes the use of estimates 
differ from those estimate:.atements . Accordingly, actual results could 

-6-
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JIOte 1 -

WQMEN NAtiONALLY ACTIVE FOR CHRIST 
(AA Auxiliary of the National Association of Free Will Baptists) 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31.. 1999 and 1.998 

Organization and sumroarv of significant accounting policies - Continued 

contributions 

The Organization accounts for contributions in accordance with the 
recommendations of the Financial Accounting Standards Board in SFAS No . 
116, Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made. In 
accordance with SFAS No . 116, contributions received are recorded as 
unrestricted, temporarily restricted , or permanently restricted support , 
depending on the existence or nature of any donor restrictions . 

All donor-restricted support is reported as an increase in 
temporarily or permanently restricted net assets depending on the nature 
of the restriction. When a restriction expires (that is, when a 
stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is 
accomplished), temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to 
unrestricted net assets and reported in the statements of activities as 
net assets released from restrictions . 

Prooerty and equipment and depreciation 

The Organization follows the practice of capitalizing, at cost, 
all expenditures for property and equipment in excess of $500 with a 
useful life of at least two years. Depreciation is computed on a 
straight- line basis over the useful lives of the assets ge~erally as 
follows: 

Equipment 5 - 20 years 

The net property and equipment balance has been recorded as a separate 
component in unrestricted net assets. 

Accounts and notes receivable and allowance for doubtful accounts 

The Organization iseues credit to churches and individuals for the 
purchase of magazines and literature . These churches and individuals 
are located all across the United States. 

The Organization loans money to Bible college students for the 
payment of college tuition. The student is required to sign a note for 
the money. These notes are uncollateralized. These students are 
located across the United States. There are numerous loans with varying 
interest rates and maturity dates . Accordingly, the fair value of these 
notes approximates the carrying value net of the allowance for doubtful 
accounts . 

Management considers accounts receivable to be fully collectible ; 
accordingly, no allowance for doubtful accounts is required for accounts 
receivable. Management consid.ers the notes receivable that are overdue 
to be only partially collectible and accordingly has recorded an 
allowance for doubtful accounts in the amount of $1,871 ($1,871 in 
1.998) . 

-7-
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Note 1 -

Note 2 -

Note 3 -

Note 4 -

(An Auxiliary 

pecember 31. 1999 and 1998 

Organization and summa f i i 
- ry 0 s qn ficaot accounting polici~§ 

- ContinUed 
Caah equivalents 

The Organization considers 
maturity of three months or leas all highly liquid invest~~~enta with 

when purchased to be cash equi • 
Inventory 

Valente , 

Inventory is stated at the lower of coat 
method) or market . (first in, first out 

Property and equipment 

A summary of property and equipment follows: 

Equipment 
Less : Accumulated depreciation 

U22 1221 
$ 43 ,247 $ 39,532 

( a2.1H> ( a§, 21~> 
~ 14 .2U ~ u.uz 

CApitalized lease 

The National Association of F i 
office building to house vario d ree w 11 Baptists, Inc. purchaaed e 
denomination. The Organizatio~•ha:partmenta and agencies of the 
space in thia new buildin and entered into an agreement to leaae 
costa during the construc~ion a~::d to contrib~te to the debt service 
been retired. The construc:tio: r and to c:ontl.nue until the debt hAl 
in 1991 and will be amortized ov!: iod coats of $9,822 were c:apitaliz~ 
Amortization expense for the a period of twenty years . 

years amounted to $491 ($491 in 1998). 

Restriction• on net •••eta 

Temporarily restricted t 
purposes: ne assets are available for the follow~ 

Student Loan 
Foreign sc:holarahip 
Pree Will Baptist College Organ Fund 

1992 
$109,743 

8,515 
lQ.QlJ, 

$128.262 

Permanently restricted assets are i 
res~r ~ted to: 

Endowment Trust 
$ 12·633 

- 8-
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12.28 
$102,451 

6,589 
5,393 

Sll1dJ3 

s u, 7li 

Note 5 -

Note 6 -

Note 7 -

(An auxiliary 

Lease 

WQMEN NATIQNALLX ACTIVE POR CHRIST 
of the National Association of Free 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
pecember 31, 1999 and 1998 

Will Baptists) 

The Organization entered into a lease agreement on October 1, 1990 
with the National Association of Free Will Baptista, Inc: . for office and 
storage space. The term of the lease expires when all mortgages on the 
building are satisfied, which is approximately eight years. The rent 
expense for the years amounted to $24,600 ($24,600 for the year ended 
December 31, 1998) . 

The future minimum lease payments are as follows: 

2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 
2004 

Thereafter (estimated) 

Pension plan 

$ 21,600 
24,600 
21,600 
24,600 
24,600 
75,850 

Sl98 1 8so 

The Organization participates in the master pension plan of the 
Board of Retirement and Insurance of the National Association of Free 
Will Baptists . The plan is a defined contribution plan . The 
Organization contributes St of gross salary for all employees with five 
or more years of service and 3\ of gross aalary for employees with leas 
than five years of service. Employees are allowed to contribute to the 
plan but are not required to contribute. Pension expense for the years 
amounted to $1,001 ($4,139 in 1998). Under the plan, an account is 
maintained for each participant and upon retirement the participant can 
either receive a lump sum diatribution or purchase one of several types 
of annuity accounts . 

Corrmitmenta 

The Women Nationally Active for Christ has pledged its equipment 
as collateral on a mortgage note that the National Association of Free 
Will Baptists, Inc. bas with the Church Extension Loan Fund. 

-9-
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Note 8 -

Note 9 -

Note 10 -

WQMEN NATIONALLY ACT 

December 31. 1999 and 199Q 

Concentration of credit risk 

. The Organization maintains cash de . 
~nstitution located in the Unit d posits at a f~nancial 

i e States. Accounts t 
are nsured by the Federal Deposit Insuran a . the inatitut~ 
At December 31 , 1999 the excess amount ove~etCorporat~on up to $100,~o 
was $ -0 - ($-0- in 1998) . he federally insured lillit. 

The Organization also has $110 87 
with the Free Will Baptist Found t' , 1 ($21,578 in 1998) on depoait 

a ~on . These funds are unin d sure . 

Referred revenue 

Deferred revenue resulted from ma . 
2000 issues . gaz~ne subscriptions r e cei ved for 

Fair values of financial instruments 

The following methods and ass 
Organization i n estimating its f i umptions were used by the 
instruments : a r value disclosures for financial 

Cash, accounts receivabl 
payables, and deferred r:~e:ucec:UeTdhinteres~ receivable, 

· e carry~g amo t 
reported in the statement of fina . un s 
f a ir values beca use of t h h ncial pos~tion approximate 
instruments. e 8 ort matur~ties of thos e 

Notes receivable: Based on current interes 
carrying value approximates the fair 1 t rates, the 
receivable at December 31 , 1999 and l;:8~e of the notes 

- 10-
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Gifts to Missions/Missionary Obiedives 
January 1, 1999 to December 31, 1999 

Cash Gifts 
Foreign Missions 

Sent Direct 
Home Missions 

Sent Direct Not Available 
State Projects 
Bible Colleges 
Memorial SL Fund 
Other Gifts 

Foreign Student Sch 
Mission Objectives 

Provision Closet 
WNAC Operating Exp 

Gen Fund Offering 
Emphasis Offering 
Endowment Fund 
Dues 

Non Cosh Gifts 
Provision Closet 

Total Cosh and Non-cash Gifts 

135,331.26 
23,155.36 

1,926.06 
24,543.55 

20,914.45 
12,247.24 

917.00 
65,973.00 

$158,487.00 

107,417.00 

31,107.00 
7,460.00 
2,1 06.00 

26,470.00 

7,120.00 
100,052.00 

42,152.00 
$482,371 .00 

1999 Top Ten Contributors to WNAC 

General fund Offering Emphasis Offering Combined 

1. Tennessee s 3,452.77 1. Tennessee s 2,135.64 1. Tennessee s 5,588.41 
2. Monsos 2,517.70 2. Arkansas 2,000.05 2. Arkonsos 4,515.75 
3. Missouri 2,482.80 3. North Carolina 1,288.53 3. Missouri 3,601 .31 
4. Georgia 1,739.80 4. Georgia 1,135.31 4. Georgia 2,875.11 
5. North Carolina 1,51 6.32 5. Missouri 1,118.61 5. North Corolino 2,804.85 
6. O~ahoma 1,375.70 6. South Carolina 825.57 6. Oklahoma 2,079.93 
7. Ohio 1,315.76 7. Oklahoma 704.23 7. South Carolina 1,711 .30 
8. Virginia 1,189.16 8. Alabama 697.00 8. Ohio 1,607.76 
9. South Carolina 885.73 9. Texos 614.00 9. Virginia 1,479.16 

10. Texas 677.95 1 0. Florida 352.10 10. Alobomo 1,357.00 
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WNAC Salary Breakdown 

1999 2000 2001 Executive Secretay-Tresurer 
Salary $32,740.92 $33,395.00 $34,395.00 Social Security/Medicare 2,552.85 2,555.00 2,631.22 Retirement 1,668.53 1,670.00 1,719.75 Insurance 3,208.62 3,010.20 3,778.98 Travel/Life 270.00 283.20 272.40 Hospital 2,718.22 2,524 .80 3,257.77 Dental 220.40 202.20 248.81 Christmas Bonus 629.63 642.00 661 .44 Total Salary and Benefits $40,800.55 $41,272.20 43,186.39 

Executive Assistant 
Salary $23,547.00 $24,489.00 $25,489 00 Social Security/Medicare 1,836.07 1,874 .00 1,949.91 Retirement 1,177.35 1,225.00 1,274.45 Insurance 2,973.40 2,920.20 3,718.98 life 193.20 193.20 212.40 Hospital 2,559.80 2,524.80 3,257.77 Dental 220.40 202.20 248.81 Christmas Bonus 453.83 471.00 490.17 Total Salary and Benefits $29,987.65 $30,979.20 $32,922.51 

Editor 
Salary $22,137.65 $23,023.00 $23,135.00 Social Security/Medicare 1,758.66 1,761.00 1,769.83 Retirement 664.13 1,151.00 694.05 Insurance 2,960.20 2,907.00 3,718.98 Life 193.20 180.00 212.40 Hospital 2,559.80 2,524.80 3,257.77 Dental 220.40 202.20 248.81 Chdstmas BQnl.!s 425.Z2 443.00 144.20 Total Salary and Benefits $27,946.36 $29,285.00 $29,762.76 

Bookkeeper 
Salary $18,477.61 $19,217.00 20,217.00 Social Security/Medicare 1,440.71 1,470.00 1,546.60 Retirement 554.33 960.00 1,010.85 Insurance 3,131.32 2,920.20 3,718.98 Life 193.20 193.20 212.40 Hospital 2,718.22 2,524 .80 3,257.77 Dental 220.40 202.20 248.81 Christmas Bonus 355.34 370.00 388.79 Total Salary and Benefits $23,959.31 $24,937.20 $26,882.22 
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Su ested Bud et 

Women Nationally Active for Chriat 
P. 0. Box 5002 

Antioch, Tennessee 370 II-SOOz 

For the year Ending December 3 1, 2001 

Estimated Income 
General Fund Offering 
Convention Offering 
Convention Expense Gift 
Delegate Fees 
Dues 
Interest Income 
Literature Sales 
Magazine Subscriptions 
Miscellaneous 
Rest of the Family Offering 
WNAC Emphasis Offering 

Total Income 

Estimated Expense 
Salaries 
Employee Benefits 

Payroll Tax Expense 
Employee Retirement 
Health and Life Insurance 
Christmas Bonus 

Insurance-General & Workers' Compensation 
Legal and Professional Services 
Convention Expense 
Executive Committee Expense 
Co-Laborer Magazine Expense 

Mailing 
Miscellaneous 
Printing 
Postage 

Miscellaneous Expense 
Office Rent 
Office Supplies and Materials 
Phone 
Postage 
Printing 
Service Contracts 
Subscriptions 
Travel and Promotion 
Continuing Education 
Equipment (additions and repairs) 
Special Projects 

Total Expense 
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7,898.00 
4,699.00 

14,936.00 
1,985.00 

3,600.00 
500.00 

29,900.00 
3,600.00 

$ 35,000.00 
1,800.00 
8,000.00 

500.00 
76,000.00 
7,100.00 

13,000.00 
81,000.00 
3,500.00 
2,000.00 

13,000.00 
$242,900.00 

$I 03,236.00 
29,518.00 

I ,000.00 
4,000.00 
8,000.00 
5,000.00 

36,500.00 

2,696.00 
24,600.00 
3,500.00 
5,000.00 
4,000.00 
2,500.00 
I,200.00 

150.00 
4,500.00 
2,000.00 
3,000.00 

500.00 
$242,900.00 

-

The General Board Report 
The General Board of the National Association of Free Will Baptists 

met Monday, July I7, 2000, in the Anaheim Convention Center, Anaheim, 
California. As a result of this meeting, we offer the following information 
and recommendations: 

1. We heard the reports of the Executive Office, WNAC, Master's Men De­
partment, Home Missions Department, Board of Retirement, Free Will 
Baptist Foundation, Foreign Missions Department, Free Will Baptist 
Bible College, Sunday School and Church Training Department, Com­
mission for Theological Integrity, Media Commission, Music Commis­
sion and Historical Commission. We recommend that the reports be 
received and the budgets adopted as each is given. 

2. We recommend that a written procedure be placed in the Treatise 
regarding the election of the Executive Secretary. The following proce­
dure would be inserted in the Treatise on page 63 at the end of Section 
15 and read as follows: 

The procedure for election of the Executive Secretary shall be: 

(1) The Executive Committee shall serve as a search committee to 
screen potential candidates. 

(2) The Executive Committee shall recommend one candidate to the 
General Board. 

(3) The General Board shall recommend one candidate to the 
National Association. 

( 4) The Executive Secretary shall be elected by a majority vote of the 
National Association. 

If this procedure is adopted, it will necessitate a change in the By­
Laws (page 6I , Section II) as follows: 

The procedure for the election of officers of the National Association 
shall be as follows: The Nominating Committee shall be appointed by the 
moderator one year in advance. The committee shall consist of seven mem­
bers, shan meet at least three months prior to the annual session, and present 
at least one name for each vacant office, excepting the General Board and 
Executive Secretary. The funding of the committee shall come from the con­
vention fund A brief resume shall be submitted with each nomination 

3. After reviewing Item #I of the I999 Resolutions Committee Report, 
we recommend that we retain our present system of site selection for 
the national convention. 

4. We recommend Oklahoma City, Oklahoma, as the site for the July I8-
22, 20 I 0, national convention. 

5. WHEREAS, 
the annual session of the National Association of Mexico will as­
semble the latter part of July 2000, 

AND WHERFAS, 
a recommendation will be presented to their Association as an ap­
pendix to the Treatise of Mexico pledging their adherence to the 
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position of the autonomy of the local ch h 
AND WHEREAS urc , 

' 
~e M~~o Association has contacted an attome t . . 
m a reVIsion of their constitution to clarify local hy o giVe assistance 

AND WHERFAS, c urch autonomy, 

th~ new ~ssociation has submitted an appeal to the Ex . 
mttee, Without following proper procedure ecutive Corn-

BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED: ' 
• We re~of!11Tlend that they address their riev . 

~ocal dJstrict association and National Assog . ti ances m !he 
m compliance with the Treatise. CJa on of Mex~co 

• rr~t the National Association of Free WiJJ Baptists f th 
mted States of America encoura ~ e 

A~sociation of Free WiJJ Baptists in Mexic~~o f~~w ~tionaJh 
With the above recommendations. roug 

• That we assure them of our prayers and concern. 

• ~~~t ~f in~esti~ative. committee be sent at the present time 
owmg em time to correct their own problems. ' 
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Credentials Committee Report 
We, the Credentials Committee, have examined the letters from the 

following states, districts and local churches and found them to be in 
order as presented below. 

1. From the following state associations which are entitled to be repre­
sented by five delegates: Alabama, Arkansas, California, Florida, 
Georgia, Idaho, Illinois, Indiana, Kansas, Kentucky, Michigan, 
Mississippi, Missouri, North Carolina, Ohio, Oklahoma, South 
Carolina, Tennessee, Virginia, West Virginia. 

*Texas owes for all but one of its churches. 

2. From the following district associations entitled to be represented by 
three delegates: 

Arizona, Canada, Colorado, Louisiana, Mid-Atlantic, New Jersey, 
New Mexico, Northeast and Northwest. 

*Mexico has not paid representation fees for any of its churches. 

3. From the following local churches entitled to be represented by one 
delegate: Hawaii, Montana, Puerto Rico, Virgin Islands and Wisconsin. 

4. We recommend that the delegates from the state associations, district 
associations and local churches listed above be seated for this session, 
along with all their other delegates which are properly registered. 

5. We recommend that all lay delegates entitled to represent by virtue 
of their positions on standing boards be seated if properly registered. 

6. We recommend that the delegates from the state of Texas and coun­
try of Mexico be seated provided representation fees for all church­
es are paid, or that assurance for full payment of representation fees 
is given to the executive office. 

Submitted by Your Credentials Committee 

George Harvey, Jr. (AZ) - Chairman 
William Smith (GA) 
Jim Patton (KY) 
Tim Owen (FL) 
Brent Nix (NW) 
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2006 

2006 

2001 
2005 

2005 

Nominating Committee Report 
Bible College 'lrustees 

Replacing Richard Barnes (VA), Richard Barnes (VA) 
Replacing Gary Fry (MO), Gary Fry (MO) 
Replacing Howard Price (GA), A. C. Allen (SC) 

Foreign Missions Board 
Replacing William Reagan (CAN), Randy Wilson (OK) 
Replacing Douglas Little (AR), Douglas LittJe (AR) 
Replacing Milton Worthington (MI), Milton Worthington (MI) 

Home Missions Board 
Replacing Richard Atwood (TN), Matt Upton (CA) 
Replacing Ken Dodson (MO), Robert Thebeau (MO) 

Sunday School and Church 'Iraining Board 
Replacing Billy Hanna (GA), Edwin Hayes (OH) 
Replacing Dennis Wiggs (NC), Dennis Wiggs (NC) 
Replacing Jeff Crabtree (CAN), Jeff Crabtree (CAN) 

Commission for Theo~ogicallntegrlty 
2005 Replacing Daryl Ellis (IL), Daryl Ellis (IL) 

Media Commission 
2005 Replacing Doug Kite (NC), Doug Kite (NC) 

Music Commission 
2005 Replacing Vernon Whaley (TN), Chris Truett (NC) 

Historical Commission 
2005 Replacing Darrell Holley (TN), Darrell Holley (TN) 

General Board 
2001 Replac~ng St~phen Robinson (AZ), George Harvey, Jr. (AZ) 

Replacing Millard Sasser (FL), Tim Owen (FL) 

2002 (to be elected in 2000) 
North Carolina (replacing Jim Marcum) Jim Marcum 

Northeast Association (replacing Jim Nason) Jim Nason 
Northwest Association (replacing Brent Nix) Brent Nix 

Ohio (replacing Delmar Sparks) Delmar Sparks 
Oklahoma (replacing Jack Richey) Ernest Harrison 

South Carolina (replacing Joe Cagle) Sigbee Dilda 
Tennessee (replacing Charles Thigpen) Charles Thigpen 

Texas (replacing Thurmon Murphy) Keith Woody 
Virginia (replacing Glen Johnson) Glen Johnson 

West Virginia (replacing Carl Vallance) Carl Vallance 

Executive Committee 
2001 Replacing Millard Sasser (FL), Rick Cash (AL) 
2003 Replacing Delmar Sparks (OH), Glen Johnson (VA) 

Replacing Jack Richey (OK), Ernest Harrison (OK) 
Replacing Charles Thigpen (TN), Charles Thiqpen (TN) 
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General Officers 
(to be elected in 2000) . 

Moderator: Replacing Carl Cheshier (OK), Carl Cheshier(~) 
sistant Moderator: Replacing Tim York (KY), Tim York 

~~~~;!~~~~~/e~\~~1~~(~~b!~itJ).r1~~(~~bard (CA) 

Nathan Ruble (MO)- Chairman 
Rick Cash (AL) 
Doice McAlister (CA) 
Delmar Sparks (OH) 
Keith Woody (TX) 
Ernest Harrison (OK) 
Sherwood Lee (SC) 

Resolutions Committee Report 
Whereas the California State Association of Free ~ill Baptis~ ~as 

• warm' welcome to the 64th session of the National Association 
gJVen us a . ·~ . 
of Free Will Baptists in Anaheim, Calllorru~, . kn _ 

Be it therefore resolved that w~ give a nsi~g vot~ ~f th~ss~o~ t~:s 
ledge our appreciation for every kindness an consi era o 
during the session. 

Ernie Lewis (IL) - Chairman 
Charles Thigpen (TN) 
Jack Richey (OK) 
Fred Hanson (CAN) 
Mike Mounts (OH) 

Free Will Baptist National Convention 
Registration Report 

The 2000 Anaheim Convention registered the following: 

National Convention 
Ordained Ministers 431 
Ordained Deacons 73 
Local Church Delegates 38 
State Delegates 72 
Home Missionaries 64 
Foreign Missionaries 27 
National Board Members 41 
Licensed Ministers 16 
Visitors 1,362 

National Youth Conference . 
Women Nationally Active For Chnst 

Total Registered 
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2,124 

1,733 
586 

4,443 



2000 National Youth Conference Report 
The 2000 National Youth Conference met for it's 33rd annual conference 

in Anaheim, California, July 16-20. The theme of I Press Toward the GoaJ was 
emphasized in many ways. A total of 962 participants were registered. 

A total of 431 competitive entries were conducted during the four day 
conference, with a total of 907 young people participating in the competitive 
activities. A complete list of NYC winners will be sent to each state office. 

Worship services were conducted for Preschool (ages 3-5), with an 
average of 30 attending, Children (1 st-3rd grade) and Tweeners (4th-6th 
grade) with and an average of 200 attending, and Youth (7th-12th grade) 
with an average of 600 attending Sunday Morning and Sunday through 
Tuesday nights, with Jonathan Yandell, Casey Cariker, Chris Wilhite, Matt 
Upton, and Rick Locklear speaking. Over 200 decisions were made, 
including several for salvation. 

Over 400 students participated in Impact Anaheim, our area service 
projects. The five service project opportunities included the Anaheim Food 
Bank, Anaheim Extended Care, Southwest Community Center, Second Har­
vest Garden and a graffiti removal project. Individuals and entire youth 
groups joined these projects. 

A total of 31 workshops were presented during the conference for 
children, youth, children's workers and youth workers. 

We will not leave the city of Anaheim untouched. Rather, we leave 
having given many tiring hours to improve the lives of others and having 
shared the love of Jesus with them. We also leave with many people 
knowing that Christ makes a difference in the lives of our students. 

The 34th annual National Youth Conference is scheduled for Detroit, 
Michigan in July 2001 where our theme will be . . . Go .... No Retreats .... 
No Reseroes .... No Regrets! 

Report of the Special Committee on Mexico 
Having examined the Treatise and heard representatives from both 

parties in Mexico, we believe that the aggrieved party made a reason­
able effort to resolve their differences regarding perceived irregularities 
in the Mexican National Association and made proper appeal to the 
Executive Committee of this body (Treatise, Part V, "By-Laws," sec. 28, 
pp. 66-67; Part IY, chap. III, sec. IY, A.4-B, pp. 49-50). 

We therefore conclude that the best interests of both parties in 
Mexico would be served if the Executive Committee of this body medi­
ate between the two groups. 

Nathan Ruble, chairman 
Leroy Forlines 
David Joslin 
Gene Norris 
Matt Pinson 
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Obituary Committee Report 
win names were submitted in sympathy and. precious 

~e folfl~eir 1ives labor, and love for our Lord Jesus Christ. 
memones o ' 

Alabama 
Ray Birmingham, deacon 

Arkansas .. t 
Herman Greenwood, mims er 
Darwin Kelton, minister 

Florida 
Charles Bryant, minister 

Georgia . . 
Lewis Williams, mm1ster 

Illinois 
Jim Neal, deacon 

Indiana 
Samie L. Adkins, minister 

Mississippi 
Terry Goin, minister 

Missouri 
John Schebaum, minister 

North Carolina 
James K. Childers, minister 
Bronco West, minister 
Lester Conneer, deacon 

Carl Vallance (WV) - Chairman 
Henry Van Kluyve (NC) 
David Sutton (OK) 
Ron Parker (1st LA) 
Dale McCoy (KS) 

Ohio 
Lucian Mounts, minister 
Quentin England, minister 
Orville Roberts, minister 
Woodrow Hayes, deacon 

Oklahoma 
Tommy Roberts, minister 
Clayton Crafton, minister 
I.L. Florence, minister 
Jim Dowdy, deacon 
Bo Ward, deacon 

Tennessee 
Carl Reese Bowser, minister 

West Virginia 
Basil Bright, minister 
Garland Becket, minister 
Huling Brown, ~nister 
E. Persinger, m1mster 
George Williams, minister 
Gordon Conley, minister 
Densil Cline, minister 
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Budget Committee Report 
The National Association of Free W'll B . 

convention the following budgets for 200 ~ : aptlsts, Inc. has approved in this 

Executive Office (Includes:) 
Administrative . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · $ 
Contact . · · · · · · · · · · · $ 390,000.00 
Convention. · · · · · · · · · · · · · 93, 105.00 

Free Will Baptist Bible c~il~g~ · · · · · · · · 217,535.25 

F 
(~nclud~s . $1 ,200,000.00 in ~~~~st;i~t~d g. ifts) ..... 

ore1gn M1ss1ons 
(Doe~ n_ot incl~d~ $864;5o·o· Vi~i·o~· Pr. : · t. ). · · · · · 

700,640.25 

4,480,939.00 

7,090,003.26 
Home M1ss1ons OJec s 
Master's Men · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 4 ,500,000.00 
Retirement and. in~~;a·n~~ · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 218,437.00 
Free Will Baptist Foundatio~ · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 399,668.00 
Sunday School and Church 1i · · · : · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 116,100.00 
C ' . r. ra~n~ng 3 547 ?mn:uss•on ror Theological Integrity · · · · · · · · · · · · · , , 103.85 
H1stoncal Commission . · · · · · · · · · · · · 2,800.00 
Music Commission · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 4,800.00 
Media Commission · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 46,375.00 

Total · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 200 0 
• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • ' I 00.00 

..•..•••••.•.•.•.•.• $ 21 ,306,866.36 

All these ministries receive funds thro h h 
the Sunday School and Church Trainin ~g t e Togeth-:r 'W_ay Plan except for 

The Budget CommiHee recommend g ep?rtment_whlch IS self-sustaining. 
Way Plan be allocated to the nation ,S t~a~ gl_fts received thro~gh the Together 

. 1 . Underwrite the Executive Officea A~'".'s!nes ~:m the follow~ng basis: 
g•fts, n~t to exceed 45% of cooperative ;;,~•strat•ve Budget above De.signoted 
. ~ . Disburse the balance of coo e f ·.ft . 
•stnes according to these per t p ra IVe g• s to the follow~ng National min-F . cen ages· 

ree. W1ll Baptist Bible College · 
Fore1gn Missions · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . . . . . . 2 3. 0% 
Home Missions · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . . . . . . . 2 3. 0% 
Retirement and l~s~~~~c~· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . . . . . . 18.0% 
Master's Men · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . . . . . . . 14.0% 
Free Will Bapti~t F~~~d.ati~~ · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . . . . . 14.0% 
C?m":lission for Theological l~t~ · ;ity. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . . 6. 0% 
H1stoncal Commission g · · · · · · · · · · · · · . . . . . . . 0 .5% 
Music Commission · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . . . . . . . 0 .5% 
Media Commission · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . . . . . . 0. 5% 

liotal 
. . . . . . . . . . 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0 . 5% 
......................... 100.0% 

Respectfully SubmiHed, Your Servants 

Melvin Worthington, Executive Secretary 

J~;;:e~~:r~~~=reGseidneenrtaol fD~reet Will Baptist Bible College 
' •rec or of Fore· M' · 

Trymon Messer, General Director of H lg~· I~Sions Department 
Billl Evans, General Director of R f orne •ssJons Department 
~m Dooley, General Director of ~~~:~~~t ~nd ~surance Department 

ton loveless, General Director of Sunday Scho:7 andCahrtmehnlit . . 
urc ra1n1ng Department 
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Educational Task Force Report 
NASHVILLE, TN-The Educational Task Force authorized by delegates to the 
National Association in Atlanta (July 1999) launched its first series of meet­
ings in December 1999, according to Chairman Melvin Worthington. The 
exploratory session met December 1 0-11 after the Leadership Conference 
to fonnulate plans and set parameters. 

Members elected Georgia pastor Matt Pinson as clerk. When the task 
force is ready to present its findings, the fmal report will be drafted by Bill 
Davidson, Douglas Simpson and Matt Pinson. 

The task force will seek to address concerns raised by six questions: 

1. Why aren't our colleges attracting 90o/o+ of Free Will Baptist college 
students? What can we do to attract our students to our colleges? 

2. How can we cooperate more and foster greater complementarity 
and sharing sharing among our colleges? 

3. How can we cooperatively employ creative, entrepreneurial means 
to increase our level of educational effectiveness (e.g., educational 
technology, adult education, cross-cultural education)? 

4. What steps must we take to establish a Free Will Baptist seminary 
to educate our pastors more effectively for ministry? 

5. How can we better fund our educational institutions? 

6. How do we view Christian education as a denomination? 

The purpose of the task force, as understood by its members, is two­
fold: (1) to defme the educational needs and problems with the current 
system, and (2) to formulate a strategy with which to address them. 

In order to find answers to the six questions and to fulfill its purpose, 
the task force approved three committees: the Survey Committee, chaired 
by Tim Eaton; the College and Seminary Committee, chaired by Randy 
Sawyer; the Funding Committee, chaired by Dan Parker. 
. Each committee was assigned specific responsibilities, and each 
mformed the other task force members how they plan to proceed-some 
With surveys, some with campus visits to other institutions, some with 
Study of literature in the field and more. 

The Educational Task Force will reconvene in January 200 I. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Melvin Worthington, Chairman 
Tom Malone 
Carl Cheshier 
Wendell Walley 
Thomas Marberry 
Milton Fields 
Tim Eaton 
E. T.Hyatt 

A. B. Brown 
Marco Antonio Mendoza Gonzales 
William Davidson 
Douglas Simpson 
Daniel Parker 
Matthew Pinson 
Randall Sawyer 
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Alabama 14 13 171 160 
Arizona 1 1 8 8 
Arkansas 15 15 222 208 
California 8 7 62 52 
Canada 1 1 10 10 
Colorado 1 1 6 6 
Florida 9 9 71 70 
Georaio 10 10 123 119 
Hawoii 1 1 
Idaho 2 2 7 7 
Illinois 7 6 44 40 
Indiana 3 2 26 20 
Iowa 
kansas 2 2 8 8 
Kentucky 10 10 150 149 
Louisiana 1 1 2 2 
Ni!-Mm /(fJJ 1 1 8 8 
Mexico 
Michigan 6 4 44 44 
Mississippi 3 3 51 40 
Missouri 18 18 184 179 
Montuno 1 1 
New Jersey 1 1 2 2 
New Mexico 1 1 4 4 
North Carolina 8 8 191 191 
Nollhoost Am. 1 1 3 3 
tbiiPMllt Am. 1 1 6 6 
Ohio 19 19 148 147 
Oklahoma 22 22 239 229 
Puerto Rica 1 1 2 2 
South Caroline 7 7 118 118 
South Do koto 
Tennessee 9 9 225 192 
Texas 6 6 52 4 
Virain Islands 1 1 
Virainia 8 7 101 90 
West Virginia 20 20 180 180 
WISConsin 1 1 
Totals 216 209 2,472 2,302 

Statistical Report 
Reporting Period 1999 
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76 75 91 39 400 17,447 860 458 
7 1 6 2 40 310 37 34 

103 119 100 97 708 19,657 1,171 548 
55 8 39 12 581 3,244 349 132 
3 7 2 8 7 263 10 6 
6 6 17 159 35 37 

39 32 44 27 208 5,846 384 197 
47 76 86 34 245 9,429 423 187 
1 14 54 21 21 
7 3 4 76 268 17 13 

22 17 23 15 149 3,334 214 89 
16 4 12 8 975 

8 7 1 91 131 96 4 
36 114 29 76 1,047 16.994 1.156 527 
2 2 8 65 8 1 
2 6 7 1 121 1,935 86 18 

34 10 36 8 188 3,536 211 135 
17 34 27 24 190 3,391 259 79 
95 89 103 74 717 15,299 1,019 487 
1 1 2 14 5 2 

3 1 2 2 72 5 2 
81 110 122 69 1,180 20,411 1,517 682 
1 2 3 4 ISO 11 5 
6 5 86 328 75 17 

67 81 58 90 912 10,058 843 468 
134 88 131 82 955 24,048 1,51 4 490 

2 2 20 30 20 
38 80 77 41 657 8,793 830 242 

94 126 118 87 859 22,726 1,146 523 
27 IS 23 19 173 2 053 196 82 
1 1 200 

37 59 40 56 328 4,793 304 272 
51 129 73 103 578 9,304 63 
1 8 42 

1,120 1,283 1,279 979 0,549 205,349 12,932 5,841 
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402 17 849 18.881 1396564 

3 313 283 616 502 
723 20,380 20,443 18,201,536 
217 3,461 2.904 tnom 

4 267 280 270 565 
(2) 157 204 253 622 

187 6,033 5,972 2,209,936 
236 9 665 9 426 5 063.522 

0 54 54 75.564 
4 272 245 150,723 

125 3,459 3,467 2,064,700 
0 975 

92 213 234 152 611 

629 17 623 15.745 2 681 730 

7 72 72 52,083 

68 2,003 795 806,235 

76 3,612 2,969 1,424,214 

180 3,571 3,423 1,265,570 

532 15,831 15,227 8,179,806 

3 17 16 
0 0 
3 75 43 36,468 

835 21,246 20,120 8,871,687 

6 156 196 
58 386 320 301,725 

375 10,433 10,019 5,341,841 

1,024 25,072 21,944 9,154,476 

10 30 70 15,000 

588 9,381 5,821 4,471,064 

623 23,349 21,784 
114 2167 2 096 1195 791 

0 200 
32 4,825 6,775 2,481,967 

(63) 9,241 9,271 1,368,074 

0 42 35 13,557 

7,091 212,440 199,134 80,887,972 

Statistical Report 
Reporting Period 1999 

20 36 15 713,020 8 997 1 413 702 119 243 32 453 6 6 4 
11 4 70 34 417 154 1,061,100 7 2 3,028,000 342 4 7 543 4 4 4 1,176 200 

50 71 50,87 6,860 10,833 2,493 

California 

Idaho 
lltnois 
hli1ono 

19 21 25,767,800 
3 4 1 308 885 
4 1 775 000 

29 40 14,777,140 
36 51 26,621,100 
1 1 3 500000 
2 4 1.279,468 

19 14 13,078,000 

lamas 1 1 1 499 650 

Kentuckv 15 6 18 529 500 

louiSiana 1 750,000 
2.477,700 

Mexico 
10 1\ 8,055,100 

~ppi 7 27 5,794,700 

MI~Uri 47 48 39,782,548 

Montano 150,000 

New Jersey 

3,902 308 
340 
206 

3,070 449 
4,802 996 

64 45 
250 

2,476 608 

188 
7 951 875 

46 
783 10 

1,566 30 

2,186 556 

9,711 1,1 48 

30 

275 54 91 26 104 6 8 1 

95 6 3 17 

3 500000 

15 
112 18 124 5 2 2 1 

7 

516 163 
745 153 154 28 409 2 2 2 

1 
13 2 5 1 8 
64 11 107 1 2 
40 3 

281 112 

10 1 4 11 
1 2 

48 
399 38 300 496 

1 1 
33 

3 

62 9 4 12 

63 9 52 1 
2 2 1 

230 43 
56 8 128 1 

4 3 2 1 650,000 220 100 
287 49 359 5 792 227 

1 1 

5 1 4 12 
282 93 460 27 13 11 1 1 2 460 ()()( 59 

1,737 1,392 471 
New Mexico 

68 57 39,581,500 13,388 Nortb Cnrolina 

Oklahoma 
Puerto Rica 
Soulb Carolino 
South Dakota 
Tennessee 
Texos 
Virgin Islands 
Virginia 
West Virginia 
VfiStonsin 
Totals 

3 8 22 
6 3 1 2 1 1 145 

2090 1,122 246 
2 2 

28 
353 18 245 1 1 4 3 023 500 332 

197 546 11 5 
400 53 534 5 5 5 1 3,750,000 27 19 34,874,561 8,917 

59 67 61,156 254 20.009 

189 25 134 5 4 3 200,000 3,000 80 
371 441 270 48 20 7,837,000 3,889 

430 23 365 1 1 1 

1 064 183 380 60 552 7 2 2 2 1 
1.625 

72 9 90 160 72 38,997 400 13,312 
234 15 

2 2 2 1 1 
130 15 11 7367580 1270 

10 6 
192 22 262 1 1 2 1 1 

4140 543 562 88 20 264,003 27 1\ 
10 10 
1 

19,558,000 
109 000 32 1 

8,318 545 665 94 

131,709 16,345 l\,807 2,737 4,229 582 5,282 68 59 61 11 5 9,161,100 
698 612 467,996,269 
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